MINUTES



SECTION_D___PAGE NO,_|

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

. ROLL CALL
President Woo called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll call.
Directors Fuller, Hecathorn, Latt, Rupp and Woo were present. General Manager John Friedenbach,
Superintendent Dale Davidsen, Business Manager Chris Harris, and Board Secretary Sherrie Sobol
were present. Recently retired Dave Deskins and Lee Dedini were present for a portion of the
meeting. Pat Kaspari and John Winzler of GHD were present for a portion of the meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE
President Woo led the flag salute.

. ACCEPT AGENDA
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Hecathorn, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the

agenda.

. MINUTES
Director Hecathorn stated she attended the meeting with ACW A President Kathleen Tiegs and was
not listed. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board voted 5-0 to approve
the minutes as amended.

. PUBLIC COMMENT
No public comment was received.

. CONSENT AGENDA
Director Hecathorn pulled items 2 and 6. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Latt,
the Board voted to approve the Consent Agenda, less Items 2 and 6.

2. CSDA e-News: Your District Could Get Saddled with JPA Pension Liability

Director Hecathorn stated she would like to know more about this and the proposed legislation. The
article stated that CalPERS staff will recommend their Board of Directors approve sponsoring
legislation that would, among other things, attach joint and several liability to new and current Joint
Powers Authorities for all unfunded pension liabilities for any public retirement system, not just
CalPERS. The CSDA is opposed to this for multiple reasons. Director Rupp noted that we are
members of ACWA JPIA and they have paid their pension liability. That money is in a trust account
earning a higher interest rate. The JPIA is well managed.

6. North Coast Journal article: Stop Passing Notes!

Director Hecathorn noted the Board discussed this years ago and inquired if the District has a policy
regarding this. Mr. Friedenbach stated the District does have a policy. He suggested minimizing
phone use and if a personal call needs to be taken, announce it as a personal call and leave the room.
Director Rupp noted this is not an issue with our Board and Director Latt stated use of private
communication devices are discoverable if there is business related information on them.

On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Hecathorn, the Board voted 5-0 to approve
Consent Items 2 and 6.



SECTION_D__ pAGE N, _59‘

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

- —.
—_——

. CORRESPONDENCE

District Letter to Hog Island Oyster re: Stand-by Fire Protection Rates

Mr. Fiiedenbach shared the letter sent to Hog Island Oyster Company in October regarding their bill
for Stand-by Fire Service. He stated he has not heard back from them and the bill remains unpaid.
Director Latt inquired what the next step is if the bill remains unpaid. Mr. Friedenbach stated we
can’t turn off water to be used for fire suppression; however we can put a lien on the property if the
bill remains unpaid.

California Department of Transportation (DOT) letter re: Bridge Inspection Report

Mr. Friedenbach shared the cover letter from California DOT regarding the inspection of the R.W.
Matthews Dam bridge. The District owns the bridge and is responsible for maintenance and repairs
on the bridge. The latest inspection did not require any additional work or repairs. Mr. Davidsen
noted that he and his crew continue to monitor the bridge welds and see no issues. Director Fuller
inquired if they are any bridge costs in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Mr. Friedenbach replied
yes, and the CIP will be discussed next month. He added that the bridge was painted just last year.

. CONTINUING BUSINESS

Water Resource Planning
There were no updates on the Water Resource Planning process.

Cannabis Grows

Mr. Friedenbach shared the media release and fact sheet from the State Water Resources Control
Board (SWRCB) announcing that they adopted environmental standards for Cannabis cultivation. Mr.
Friedenbach stated they now have the tools in place to pursue enforcement, however staffing for
enforcement is still-an issue. Director Rupp requested staff contact SWRCB staff to discuss
enforcement in our area.

District Medical Plans/Open Enrollment

Mr. Friedenbach stated during the open enrollment for District medical plans, staff went to Essex to
discuss the Consumer Driven Health Plan and associated Health Savings Account as well as other
options. Employees had several questions which Ms. Harris was able to address. Ms. Harris stated
last year, three employees were enrolled in the CDHP and this year there are nine. Director Rupp
thanked staff for investing time and educating employees about the CDHP, Director Hecathorn added
the CDHP is good for many employees (but not all) and the District too.

Reservoir Conditions

Mr. Friedenbach shared the California Department of Water Resources reservoir conditions. He also
shared the Ruth Lake conditions and noted that it is at 92% of the ten-year average. Director Rupp
noted the Oroville Reservoir level is being kept down at 35% of capacity.




SECTICN

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

NEW BUSINESS

Resolution 2017-13 Dave Deskins Retirement and Resolution 2017-14 Lee Dedini Retirement
Director Rupp read Resolution 2017-13 Recognizing and Honoring the Outstanding Service and
Achievements of Dave Deskins. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the
Board voted 5-0 to approve Resolution 2017-13.

Director Rupp read Resolution 2017-14 Recognizing and Honoring the Qutstanding Service and
Achievements of Lee Dedini. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the Board
voted 5-0 to approve Resolution 2017-14.

President Woo presented both retirees with a framed Resolution. Each Board member expressed
appreciation for Mr. Deskins’ and Mr. Dedini’s dedication and work with the District and shared
well wishes for their retirement years. Mr. Davidsen echoed these sentiments and also
acknowledged the wives and family members as well.

Ruth Lake Water at work

Ms. Harris stated staff received notice from the US Forest Service (USFS) that planes would be
departing from Chico headed for Ruth Lake to assist with the Buck Fire during October. The
USFS stated their staff would be contacting the Trinity County Sheriff and the Ruth Lake Marina
staff to notify them that planes would be scooping water from Ruth Lake. Ms. Harris provided
details on the type of aircraft used and the process to avoid the spread of aquatic invasive species
when dipping into the lake. She shared photos of the fire and some video of the planes at work in
Ruth Lake. She also stated District staff is working with legal counsel Paul Brisso to draft a
Memorandum of Understanding between the District and the USFS for accessing Ruth Lake
Water.

Per Diem/Travel Advance Policy

Ms. Harris described the current process to reimburse an employee who incurs work related travel
expenses. The process is burdensome for both the traveling employee and the office staff. In an
effort to remedy this, staff reviewed the current travel policy and practices and contacted other
local agencies regarding their policies. These were shared with the Board. Ms. Harris then
outlined three options: 1) Maintain current practice; 2) Issue a travel advance check of a flat
amount to be reconciled upon return from the business trip; or 3) Issue a per diem/travel advance
check, based on destination zip code and meal requirements. The zip code based per diem amount
is calculated and provided by the Government Services Administration and is available online.
This option would eliminate potentially all out of pocket costs for the traveling employee and the
check could be issued to the employee up to two weeks prior to travel. Staff recommends the
Board adopt Option 3 and after discussion with Eureka office staff, developed a preliminary
procedure for Option 3. Director Rupp inquired if the motivation for this change is consistency
and a simpler process, do the employees see this as a simpler process. Ms. Harris stated, yes, she
discussed this with the supervisors in advance and received feedback from the employees.
Director Fuller stated she has used both systems and the Option 3 is more fair and equitable. Mr.
Friedenbach clarified this is for employees only, the Directors are governed by the Board
Governance Manual. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Hecathom, the Board
voted 5-0 to adopt Option 3 Per Diem & Travel Advance Policy.




SECTICN_J)__,FAGE NO-i,....

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

Draft Emplovee Handbook
Mr. Friedenbach stated the Employee Handbook was last updated in 2012. Since that time, there

have been Board policy changes adopted and employment law changes that need to be
incorporated into the handbook. Staff has met with the Board Policy and Evaluations Committee
(Directors Woo and Rupp) and discussed the draft update. He highlighted the sections being
updated and requested feedback on those as well as any other section. Staff will include changes
discussed and bring the Employee Handbook back in December for final adoption. He noted that
the ACWA/JPIA handbook served as a model for several sections of the District Employee
Handbook. Also, legal counsel will be reviewing the Employee Handbook as well.

Director Rupp requested the Retirement and Sick Leave portion of the handbook be reconsidered
at the next budget cycle. He understands this is a common policy with other agencies as well,
however he feels this is a poor policy in that it adds to the District’s retirement liability. Director
Latt stated he is supportive of staff looking at altemative options.

Statewide Mercury Control Program for Reservoirs

Ms. Harris stated she, Mr. Friedenbach and Ms. Ryan participated in a webinar on the Statewide
Mercury Control Program for Reservoirs. The State Water Resources Control Board is working to
find a solution to address the issue of mercury levels in reservoirs. There will likely be future
regulations for reservoir owners.

J. REPORTS (from Staff)

1. Engineering
Sheriff’s Cove Dredging
Mr. Kaspari stated the project is complete and went very well. There was one change order to
allow the use of the GRS Cat 330 DL Excavator instead of the District’s long-reach excavator.
Although the change order increased the contract by $9,779.03 it saved the District approximately
$20,000 since there was much more material to excavate than originally anticipated. Mr. Kaspari
pointed out that even with the change order increase; the total cost was still lower than the second
lowest bidder. Mr. Friedenbach added that the District received FEMA Disaster grant funding so
the District covers twenty-five percent of the costs and grant funding covers the remaining
seventy-five percent.

Spillway Assessment

Mr. Davidsen reported out on the spillway assessment. He explained the steps taken to strengthen
and reinforce the spillway. He noted there were some challenges along the way but he is very
pleased with the outcome. Director Rupp stated someone with less quality concerns would have
left the spillway as is and commended Mr. Davidsen and his staff for their quality assurance and
persistence in doing the job right. Mr. Davidsen thanked him and stated it is very important that
the job is done right and looks good.

Collector Mainline Hazard Mitigation Grant Application
Mr. Kaspari stated the grant for the collector mainline project was submitted. The project has a

high benefit to cost ratio which is good. A project must have a minimum ration of 1 and this
project is at a BCA of 11.14.



et
secTicn_D__ rAcE No,_T

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7% Street, Eurcka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

Blue Lake-FG CSD Water Line Replacement over Mad River (funded by Prop 84 NCIRWMP
grant and FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant)

Mr. Kaspari stated he is still waiting on the Geotech report and hopes to have it next week. Staff is
scheduled to meet with Randy Sundberg to work out details for a construction easement. He also
stated he will request an extension from FEMA given the delays in the project and doesn’t
anticipate any problems.

1 MG Reservoir Roof Replacement/Painting
Mr. Kaspari stated the project is almost done and the tank should be back in service soon. The

project is overdue and has cost him extra time on the job. He believes liquidated damages should
be charged and discussion with staff needs to occur.

Surge Tower Replacement/12kV Replacement

Mr. Kaspari stated FEMA is almost done the NEPA process for both grant projects. The former
CalOES representative who was assigned to our projects has retired and now there are three
CalOES representatives, one for each of our projects. They will be in town November 30 to
conduct site visits at the Surge Tower, 12kV and Blue Lake Fieldbrook Water Line Replacement
projects.

Financial

Analysis of Overtime Expenses

Overtime expenses for the prior month are included in the Board packet each month. Ms. Harris
provided an analysis of overtime trends for the past ten years and shared the results in graph form.
She was able to identify specific events or projects that contributed to the spikes in overtime.

CalPERS Unfunded Pension Liability

Ms. Harris provided information on the CalPERS unfunded liability. She defined “unfunded
liabilities” and provided background on how the CalPERS unfunded liability occurred. The most
recent GASB 68 report from July 2016, calculates the HBMWD CalPERS unfunded liability at
$2,002,310.00. She noted that all government agencies that are members of CalPERS are faced
with a similar dilemma as to how best to manage their growing CalPERS unfunded liability.

In 2015, Humboldt County had $220 million in CalPERS unfunded pension liability and began
reviewing options to decrease their liability. Options included creating a pension obligation bond
or creating a trust fund. After analysis, the Humboldt County Treasurer suggested the trust fund
option based on the “inflexible financial commitment” required by the bond obligation. This
allows the County to shift funds into a trust account, earning interest at a higher rate. This trust
fund is dedicated to reducing the CalPERS unfunded liability.

Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) is the company Humboldt County selected to
manager their trust fund. Staff suggests the Board consider reallocating a portion of general fund
reserves currently held in low return investment accounts into a dedicated, higher return pension
trust account. To help better understand this, staff also proposes to contact PARS and request a
presentation to the Board. Staff requests direction from the Board to begin creating a CalPERS
Unfunded Liability Policy, potentially allocating budgetary funds on an ongoing basis. Ms,

=



SECTION,;Q_H FAGENO, 0 _
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT '
828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

Il

Harris added that both ACWA and CSDA use PARS as well. The Board concurred with staff’s
suggestions and requested a presentation from PARS.

Financial Report

Ms. Harris provided the October 2017 financial statement and vendor detail report. Director
Rupp reviewed the bills and stated there were no issues. He did note that the GHD check was
quite large but covered a myriad of projects. He added it is money well spent. Ms. Harris added
that approximately sixty-percent of the GHD bill was grant related and will be reimbursed at
seventy-five percent. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Hecathorn, the Board
voted 5-0 to approve the October 2017 financial statement and vendor detail report in the amount
of $363,798.99.

3. Operations
Monthly report on projects and operations

Mr. Davidsen provided the October Operational Report. The Turbidity Reduction Facility is now
online. Load testing of all District cranes and the man lift have been completed. The testing is
required every four years. The ninety-day inspections of larger flect vehicles were also
completed. As noted earlier, spillway work took up a great deal of time but during all this, Mr.
Davidsen found time to provide a presentation on the R. W. Matthews Dam for the Blue Lake
Disaster Preparedness Meeting. Mr. Davidsen spoke about the District’s safety program,
maintenance program, regulatory reporting and requirements and answered numerous questions
from the public in the audience. He noted that the event was very well attended.

Mr. Friedenbach stated the District has a metal lathe at Essex that is about 40 years old and was
not functioning properly. Mr. Davidsen took the fitting home to work with it on his personal
lathe. His purpose in sharing this was two-fold: 1) the District will need to purchase a new metal
lathe machine; and 2) this is another example of Mr. Davidsen’s dedication to the District.

PG&E Statement of Electric Energy Purchased and hydro related summaries

There we no questions.

Surplus PLC/SCADA system components

Mr. Davidsen shared the list of PLC/SCADA system components to be declared surplus. He
stated some of the components have value and will likely be sold on eBay. On motion by Director
Hecathorn, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to declare the list of PLC/SCADA
items surplus.

K. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

1. General
Director Rupp went to the 2017 Flood Coordination Meeting. He stated he learned a lot of
interesting information which he shared. He also learned that Humboldt County has a new alert
system and encouraged everyone to sign up for it.

2. ACWA-JPIA

Director Rupp participated in an Employee Benefits Committee meeting via phone. The JPIA
noticed that doctors were regularly referring patients to out of network facilities. This was mainly a

6



SECTICN_1) __ FAGE NO-,/J_L,_,,..

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

November 09, 2017

—_ —
— —

problem in southern California and was costing about one million dollars. The Executive
Committee decided to cap out of network costs to help reduce their loss.

3. ACWA
2018 Membership Dues
Mr. Friedenbach stated the ACWA dues for 2018 is $14, 0303. We are a water district and
ACWA does a lot of great work in many ways. It is important that remain a member of ACWA.
Director Rupp concurred, as did the Board.

Letter from Vice-President candidate for 2018-19
Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter from Steven Lamar who is a candidate for ACWA Vice
President. Director Rupp stated Mr. Lamar is running unopposed.

News articles
ACWA provided a 2017 Legislative Wrap-Up: An Update on Key Water Related Bills that Mr.
Friedenbach shared with the Board.

4, Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC

Director Woo stated RCEA continues to be very busy. They are in the process of conducting a
review of the Executive Director. The DG Fairhaven biomass portfolio will be discussed at an
upcoming meeting,.

Director Latt reported out on RREDC. He stated RREDC is not just a loan organization. Many
agencies, small and large, participate. The program topic at the October meeting was Economic
Development Implications of Sea Level Rise around Humboldt Bay. He also learned that a
couple of airlines wanted to provide direct flights to Los Angeles, however there is a pilot
shortage which prevented this.

Mr. Friedenbach stated that local ballot Measure Z passed to allow formation of the Peninsula
CSD. This will have an effect on the Humboldt Bay retail customer base and the retail staff in the
Eureka office.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 2:50 pm.

Attest:

Sheri Woo, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



CONSENT



Page 1 of 4

\  pagenNo.

ool

SECTION

Dunes Climate Ready
Grant Update

August - October
2017

Ninth Quarterly Update

The Dunes Climate Ready Grant {(Coastal Vulnerability and Adaptation Study) is funded in part by
the State Coastal Conservancy's Climate Ready Program. It is designed to further our
understanding of how climate change will impact Humboldt's coastal dunes and test the
effectiveness of different adaptation strategies. We expect our coastal dunes to be affected by
sea level rise as they are forced to adapt and move east, away from the encroaching ocean. As
part of the education and outreach component of the grant, quarterly email updates are sent to
email subscribers keeping them up to date on the progress of the grant. To learn more about the
project, previous updates can be found here.

Summer 2017 Survey

The summer 2017 survey wrapped up successfully, data has been cleaned and entered, and
graphs of results from the first two years of the study have been sent to landowners and
managers.

Lanphere Adaptation Site

Arizona State University Professor lan
Walker and Laboratory Coordinator Craig
Turner returned in October and carried out
a scan of the adaptation site. Kite aerial
mapping was completed at the end of
September by RA Candace Reynolds and
refuge staff member Ryan Aresenault.
Ammophila resprouts during this period
were sparse, and were pulled by refuge
staff. ASU will be carrying out the analysis
of changes to the geomorphology of the
site that have occurred since the
conclusion of Alana Rader's thesis, and will
return in May for another scan.

Eelgrass wrack on the beach after the November
high tides near Mad River Beach

mhtml:file://C:\Users\Executive Assistant\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporar... 11/30/2017



Page 2 of 4

secTion F\ pAGENO._&

Eel River Adaptation Site

The Coastal Conservancy will be funding an augmentation of the Climate Ready grant to cover an
additional project at the Eel River adaptation site. Based on the poor performance of passive
methods of foredune rebuilding, an experimental foredune building project will take place to
evaluate the potential for this method to increase resiliency. The Wildlands Conservancy is
leading this project and has been carrying out CEQA and permitting steps. Baseline monitoring of
the site will be conducted in May by ASU and will consist of Terrestrial LiDAR scanning. In
addition, RAs will carry out kite or pole aerial mapping in November. Heavy equipment will be
used to move sand from the existing washover fan to rebuild the foredune. Pre-project
monitoring of sand grain size distribution is being carried out by Humboldt State University
student Steven LaPointe through an internship with Friends of the Dunes. The project will also
utilize large wood and sand fencing to anchor the foredune and reduce sand movement on the
new foredune in the first summer. Scattered dune mat species (especially Ambrosia chamissonis)
now growing on the washover fan will be scraped prior to grading, then the seed and vegetative
debris will be spread over the surface of the new foredune to promote native vegetation growth.
Heavy equipment work is

scheduled for spring 2018.

HSU students Elizabeth Nguyen, Sean
Thull, and Steven LaPointe wrapped
up the field and greenhouse studies
of Elymus mollis they carried out
under the direction of HSU Botany
professor Erik Jules. The students
measured growth of Elymus
harvested from the Lanphere Dunes
and transplanted to the Eel River
overwash site as well as to the Ma-
le'l Dunes. In addition they grew
Elymus transplants in the greenhouse
planted in sand from both sites. The
goal of the study was to determine
whether sand from the Eel River site
might be limiting growth of Elymus,
given that transplants to the adaptation site performed so poorly. The students found that in the
field, the plants had fewer but longer leaves at the Ma-le'l site. In the greenhouse, plants grew
better on Eel River sand, exhibiting greater total dry weight, above-ground weight, and below
ground weight. Together these results suggest that plants are not limited by substrate at the Eel
River site. Observations of herbivory and the leaf number/length response support a conclusion
that herbivory is the most limiting factor at the Eel River site. A similar herbivory response was
observed at the first Elymus propagation site at the Friends of the Dunes property, which was
surrounded on three sides by Ammophila. Dense Ammophila provides protective cover for
herbivores, and the small areas planted at the Eel River site and Friends of the Dunes site may

The foredune breach and overwash, site of the
proposed foredune rebuilding at Eel River Estuary
Preserve.

mhtml:file://C:\Users\Executive Assistant\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporar... 11/30/2017



Page 3 of 4

SECTION_F\ __ PAGE NO..2

.,

have concentrated herbivore pressure. This level of herbivory has not been seen when Elymus
was planted in the past at the Lanphere and Ma-le'l Dunes, which have less Ammophila and large
areas of Elymus. Mortality and severe pressure from herbivory was not observed even when
Elymus was planted directly adjacent to unrestored Ammophila dunes at the new BLM
propagation site. In this case, the Elymus was planted at the south end of an extensive existing
stand, suggesting that a larger planting might dilute the effects of herbivory.

Experimental Elymus transplants at Eel River (left, mostly dead) and Ma-le'l (right) at end of
summer.

BLM Elymus Propagation Site
The BLM propagation site was monitored for survival by refuge staff in September. Additional
planting is scheduled to occur this winter.

Historic Shoreline Mapping

The report for the northern portion of the littoral cell was finalized by Research Associate Kelsey
McDonald and has been transmitted to collaborators. The analysis concluded that most of the
sandy shorelines around then northern littoral cell {Little River to Table Bluff) are stable to
prograding (advancing towards the ocean), with the exception of the North Jetty area. The beach
at the North Jetty has been eroding rapidly since 1939 at a rate of approximately 2 m/year. The
North Spit from Samoa to Mad River Beach has been stable to gradually accreting with rates of
less than 1m/year. The Clam Beach to Little River shoreline stretch has shown high accretion (2.6
m/year), while the South Spit has shown moderate accretion of approximately 1.3 m/year. The
analysis of the south portion of the littoral cell has been completed by GHD, and is currently
undergoing review.

Vulnerability assessment

Work on the vulnerability assessment has begun and is currently in the data gathering stage. We
will be using an approach modeled after USGS protocols. The assessment will include sensitive

mhtml:file://C:\Users\Executive Assistant\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporar... 11/30/2017



Page 4 of 4

SECTION_F\ __ PAGE NO.lﬂ

cultural and ecological resources as well as infrastructure.

Although the Coastal Conservancy funded portion of the Dunes Climate Ready project is near
completion, work continues through the BLM match. We will continue to provide quarterly
updates through Friends of the Dunes.

South Spit from Table Bluff showing restored dunes

For additional background information visit the following
websites:

* Humboldt Bay National Wildlife Refuge
* State Coastal Conservancy
* Friends of the Dunes

Friends of the Dunes, PO Box 186, Arcata, CA 95518

SafeUnsubscribe™ sobol@hbmwd.com

Forward this email | Update Profile | About our service provider
Sent by info@friendsofthedunes.ora in collaboration with

Constant Contact’, 2~

Try it free today

mhtml:file://C:\Users\Executive Assistant\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporar... 11/30/2017



LOG IN /CREATE ACCOUNT | “Teo

G FAVORITE SHARE

Letters + Opinion » Views November 16, 2017

I Passed Notes

A former planning commissioner opens up about texting
talking points, 'following orders' and the Journal's lawsuit
BY LEE ULANSEY

I believe that the Journal has raised a couple very important s
points in its lawsuit and accompanying editarial ("Stop g

Passing Notes!," Nov. 2). The first involves the transmittal of E‘:'

otherwise personal communication during an official's "public" . = % . oo J
working hours. On this subject I believe the Journal is incorrect THINKSTOCK
in its assertion that these communications are disclosable

under the Public Records Act.

. think this can be best exemplified by the example of the spouse of a public official
texting the results of a family member's medical test. Clearly this information would fall
well outside the public's right to know and would constitute an equally clear invasion of
the privacy of non-elected members of the official's family. Just because something
happens during business hours does not make it a matter of business. Most of us
receive calls or texts at work for personal matters. How we deal with them might be
subject to our employers' rules but the content of such correspondence would not. I
believe this applies to the question of the quantity of correspondence as well. If an
official has an important family matter or just a self-absorbed teenager who sends a text
every half hour, private is still private. Of course, these examples could and perhaps
should be subject to rules determined by the boards and councils themselves.

As to the matter of "... responding to constituent emails that can be handled later
during a public meeting, when their attention should be on the topics at hand and the
speakers addressing them." On this I would strongly agree with the Journal. A public
official should be singularly focused on what the public is saying during public
meetings.

With respect to the second issue raised by the Journal's suit, that of communications
that do include subjects of public interest, the Journal is unquestionably correct in
arguing that they are disclosable.

Years ago during public meetings on the General Plan, I personally sent many texts to
wo members of our Board of Supervisors and did so at the request of at least one of
them. At the time, I held no public office and was acting as an advocate for certain
policies, so I saw no conflict in my doing so. These particular officials were not able to
understand the implications and ramifications of the language they were voting on,
despite many hours of meetings beforehand, and, in some cases, due to their not having



read the materials. As a result, as certain topics came up for a vote or discussion, I SECTION E 9. PAGE NO 3,
would text information I felt relevant to their decisions from the audience. The ' TEITe=——.

supervisor might text a follow up question or ask how to best phrase an argument to
support a particular position.

Without question, this kind of communication is and should be disclosable to the
public. As an aside, around the same time, members of the Board of Supervisors also
had a regular practice of actually passing notes during meetings. I believe that it was
then County Counsel Wendy Chaiten and Supervisor Mark Lovelace who correctly
called it out and put a stop to it. Finally, while serving on the Planning Commission, I
regularly observed another commissioner receive texts and emails from interested
persons. I don't recall if I said something about it but it was definitely distracting during
particularly heated meetings. During a Planning Commission meeting recess, I also
recall another commissioner, rather pompously, informing me that he had received a
message during the meeting from a supervisor "encouraging" a particular outcome. I
found this particularly disturbing in that I disagreed with the position. I ultimately
voted against the supervisor's wishes and was later severely chastised for not following
orders.

I feel the need to note that I have deliberately not included the names of any specific
official. I believe the Journal and its suit is intended to address the practices of our
elected and appointed officials, not to "out" any particular individuals. I believe that
pointing a finger would distract from the more important matter of affecting public
policy. I will add that, in my experience, the practices I address are more or less equally
carried out across the political spectrum and based more on an individual's proclivities
than orientation.

An important issue addressed by the Journal is whether these kinds of communications
vetween elected officials and staff or members of the public are appropriate at all.

On this I have mixed feelings. On the one hand, the public should have the right to
know who our officials are interacting with and on what subjects. On the other, outside
of public meetings our elected officials meet with hundreds of people to gain
information, perspectives and other insights without reporting those meetings unless
asked. This is an important and expected part of their job.

I believe that much of the problem lies with the way our public meetings are conducted.
Generally, the members of the public are limited to a three-minute statement on any
agenda item and there is no back and forth discussion. This practice is arguably
necessary to keep meetings to a reasonable length. But unless an official engages a
speaker, there is no opportunity for a knowledgeable person to say, "Wait a minute.
You're misunderstanding something."

This is compounded by the deathly fear most elected officials have of looking or saying
something stupid. The result of all this is that the public can't provide much needed
assistance and decision makers are afraid to ask for desperately needed help.

As if that isn't enough, the problem is even further exacerbated by the fact that staff
members are allowed to speak as much as they like at these meetings. Naturally in this
typical scenario officials tend to rely heavily on their staff and do so even more than on
the input from those most affected by their decisions, the public. Is it really any wonder
yur public policies are actually decided in closed rooms by staff members with their
-own agendas and biases?

A last concern, and the one that should most concern us all, lies with the few officials
who lack the strength of character to actually form their own opinions and rely instead



on a finger in the air. This often creates the worst-case scenario where a decision is
based on nothing more than what an elected official was told by the last person he or
she interacted with. The general public would be shocked to learn just how prevalent
this is. Those who deal with this type of official are well aware of how effective it is to be

he last appointment or call before a meeting and will jockey for the position
accordingly. I, for one, would far prefer an official with whom I occasionally disagree
but who can at least understand and articulate our differences to one who's vote is
dependent only on a breeze.

Lee Ulansey is a former Freshwater School Board president, Humboldt County
planning commissioner, a founder of the Humboldt Coalition for Property Rights and
the Blue Angel Village. A longtime artist and Kneeland resident, he now lives on
Kauai, surrounded by Mai Tais and beachgoers, and is very, very happily retired
Jfrom the dysfunction of Humboldt County politics.

Have something you want to get off your chest? Think you can help guide and inform
public discourse? Then the North Coast Journal wants to hear from you. Contact us at
editor@northcoastjournal.com to pitch your column ideas.

Tags: Views
MORE VIEWS »
G+ | FAVORITE SHARE

Comments

Subscribe to this thread: By Email With RSS

Subscribe to this thread

Post Comment

about the author
Lee Ulansey

Contact Us

secTion £ 3~ PAGE NOLD

ATy



~y - SN
secmN_E.%.. PAGE NO, f&-

&
S

X

8losiAledng Jo-

LOHSNITHOS — . mnutnﬁ,.w..mmnaw
LarogAng; mmw00< T i ¢ ‘P . )
; u%mgaem Ewmﬁaca _oE .é e swsﬁuﬁ..
o _ ) 3¢ sey inbys “pnely E@ﬁo Ut
‘Busew o102

3 101t ,Euﬁtg
s ‘st u@n%, dey

- ‘oL ke S11 18 ..an%.bnﬁoo aEenEam oEom

: S1914SED (0008 .%‘

ustmaed Ui s BT U0 UOISTIOR S IIMD

‘utoa Ea@geu.?ga@ge?gﬁs
; ..Emsom s hm

Emom mf S,..




sEcTIoN_” r 9 _PAGE NO, b/

ey

Py

“@! R

g concems, and Bohn said e St

| was dlsappomted that Mel: , X ‘ (

|" lett did not come speak to’ other audltor-controll‘ e- ' the con rns rals d on trol of the Audi
- the board personally about partments m nearby cor Tue; e .

T, -,,;»gw\e.mw‘q:r oo

E somethmg I hadn’t'seeu be-

to condiict internal inves-.

“-are now essentially nonex-",

| $1 .3 million..

 TIMES-STANDARD. COM | NEWS@ [ 5

e ¥ merge the ofﬁce
Supes said that’ the au— Treasurer-Tax: 0
PROMPAGEI ; i '; Con=* jus 8:5 full-tj employ- Department. 51: ¥
g M ep 2008 and that staff- ° “We thmk they ‘ean |

c0unty is poor manage- .it’s an unofficial policy offlces staffing re- prog

. ment and can‘lend to the -the county to underfu : quest 1sa “want or aneéd” “sire Q
d ,

e Judgment that transparency -
- ‘and accountablhty for pu BT ,,. 1St g pr f P :
- lie funds is not a top prit  know that the prac ities ? ett said the 1 merg
?1ty, she continued. : d bﬂlW»acc sup-‘ Pr osal would not have?

iey the pubhc 1sn’t ge gr ‘
-the services that it de t
"rves,” he said., §
* To further his argume t;. Reso
about sta.ﬂing Mellett prowded theT

“all about gettlng

 hiseoncerns.. - .« Ttes, . \
e “Ifweregomgto address. ~ Whlle Humho it
all staffing needs through has a populatlo
hepre needl 000

fore T thought heas the .

i+ able for comment onFnday
‘Thls reporters attempts 0,

ler Joe Mel étt! e_stlm ‘ d; day,’s.boardvvrneetlng county
hls_departmentwould need: Administrative Office :

Bayto dttend the Cahforma not, returned by Fnday afe
j‘astal Comm1ssmn meet- teruoon 3 Y-

perforrn its role to both’ mg a
ovérsee the daily financial Provig
vities 1n_the county and :stafﬁng

e;Sundberg said - supemsors responses are
day that Mellett had not - exactly what he
ed hlm about the—'_ eXPEC

tlgatlons into county “dé- : county
partments -which :he. sald had prevxously provxded

TSy ‘going to'need 1o be ad-
dressed over time. I. don’t-'
“.think that this board is re-
ally going t0.take the is-
sue very seriously as long'
‘as they have got some-
bedy they can blame,” Mel-.
lett said“I do the best T
- can with What T've got. I've
. had supervisors tell me pri~
vately that 'm never getting
under 1nvest1gatlon earher g 3 ahymore. staff and I should
. this year for.selling the es- 14 pos1tlons, accordmg ) Bohn' and Sundberg qu1t askmg

tate items of deceased ; resx-‘ .to county budget reports, .5aid the- auditor-controller L=t
-dents to carrent anid former with’ ﬂuctuatmg numbers staff concerns are exactly Wzll Houston Can be -
county employees, Mellett of temporary posr ons b

istent. Mellett said they ¢
ntly have about 12.5 posi- thro '
ns filled with a budget of sales tax Fevenue and other ;
g Y. sources, in part becanige
", “We're barely able to stay :the new- duties t e
) “of.paying th e bills 12
-and paying the mployees,”
Mellett said. - -
When the couuty Publlc
Admlmstrator s Office came

Bt



.

SECTICN

o

2 racENO

"9050-TF¥-L0L 10 DIYIDIL
9q uD) JomMSSaL] JOJUNE

"8gII=aIqVvexdse
"9AIYD1V/310°A031P10(
~wInyg 7e S[qe[leAr a1e S)ns
-21 91ep 01 dp ‘810w
-OWIEs e 9[qeleA® St U0}
_-euwiIoJut 3OLIISIP JIOW -

‘519104 Aq pasoad
-de 5q 01 PI2U P[IOM $33]
aly Ul 95B2IOUI AINGNJ AUY
‘pres IUIOOIN. ‘TRaf A19Ad
0014 1840 Aed JOLIISIP JUAD
-efpe. ul spiogasnoy s
1OLIISTP SI1f 9Y3-03 Iedh 19

-A9 ¢ Aed sployasnoH - -

. 'ples.aY 09] 311}

S71 2SBAIOUL 0] SPOIU OS[E U
(] JOLIISIP SIVTAIIS AJTUNTL
w100 ¢ Spoou emsuruad ayy
uo jusumiredap-aIl oYL,
- , © ‘pres
TUL{ODIN ‘@Iming oU3 Ul 3q

Aew jey) ng SIXB) 3sLAID-

~U[ J,USI0P SANSLIU ST
“pres ay ,JUow
~jxedop a1y e jsnl Yim
9A®Y| 1,UPIP 9M JR1[} JOLNSIP
$9OIAISS A UNUIIOD B UM
sasnid jo 101 ® S3IYL,
gnsuruad a1y uo jue[d
1WRUIEAI) 191EM B JOo Sul
-uado oY) INoge pIeay OS[E-
§,Y pres ‘I0LISIp U009l
-01d a1y 23 Jo 13ed ©.9q 03
.pasn oy pres oM ‘1Imad
“Z 2InSLIN JO PTES Y U JO,
JoA®] Ul Aejnjosqe wil,
-~ 8up
-puny jueis aiow Joj A[dde
01 sanuniioddo dn wado
1M1 30113STP UoNd9101d 211,
2 1Sn{ wey I9yiel 12LINISID
S901AI9S AJUNWIWOD € Ul
-ABY pres 1Imad Adng)
1UIPISII - UaAeyIlRd
uf "pres SuepaZ
JSemsaruad a3 uo jusdo
-[oASD U Pa)saIauUl AXSA

W] pU® JoMas Ul pajsaidl
-ur A1oa osfe ui] ‘Iojem Ul
Po1saIa1ul A19A OS[® L],
J1osse 1ea1s,; ¢ se Juounded
-3p 21 23 PaqLIosap 9H
‘fepsany, pres SurIaZ £01
-9'T JSUMO SIOIAIIS SULIRIA
Suglez 3 BULAZ U PUI
-aq juas1ad Q01 I8 oM, -
spaau

41 1ioddns AJUNWITODd oY}

SBY 2INSLIUI 91 181 1ULY
sj[nsal AJeuiwifdld
. "pres i
-09IN Inouin) poal Apaad
e Surary JoJ AUNWIOD
a1 Jo pnoad Afjear uLy,
*SI0A
pa103si8a1 00g Inogqe By
Aue 1OLISIP 2y} Pres 9H
. “pres [UIHooIN U
XUIf 03 JBM L,U0P |  90J0
1sod sq3 e .A2pO] poyIBW
-350d s101{eq JO Younq € aq
pInod a1ay3 os S10[[eq 993

-uasqe §I IPLISIP AINUL
oy L ‘os adoy 3Ins aM,,
110da1 puodas aypy SuLIesy
10138 943 wSTURdo snoy,
‘nes jeql) paureldl oH
. Suissed
3INSESW 9y} JO SIDUBYD YL
Jnoqe Susmupdo A[snory
-neo,, SeM 9 Pres I[N
‘pajsod Gureq synsal Areur,

. -mead 151y A1 Jo peayy

.. :rsIeak
TS19 10]-SHI0M 3} UT U],
a3ueyo SYY3 31Ul PIepuEls
-SOWEL],: 9} PIOY A[snotaaxd
TaiodIN Aoiy, juapisald
PIeOQ 1ILIISIP I UOTNI0
"-§a1 Aq resodoad sty pajen
~uT JOS1(] UOLIDAI01J AL
eINSUIURd eOoWRS YL

19OVAINOHA

7 9Insedp|

IV ¢ ZIHNSYIN

"Surdeospuey eore oy
-qnd pue 9014105 s302ds Uedo pue
S[teny ‘uopesdas-syred I9Jjo Os[B
PINOA 3] “B[IUBIY JO ‘YInos eyns
“UIURd BOUIRS 9y} UC UIABRYIIEY
PUE dumojauuly “eomieg jo mwﬂ.pE.
-IWUIUIOD 3} 01 SAOIAIS om.mﬁw.mw
..E.Sam pu® 199118 ‘Iamas uo.pdg
uol1o910ad axry apraoid -pinem
UYIYM “WINSI S90[AISS ATUnux
-uI0)) B[NSUIUS] 3} -OIUI 3L 9Z1U
-e310a1 pue osIq nosu.wao.mm
|11 B[NSUIUSJ. BOWIRS JUSLIND

91 SA[OSSIP PMOM 7 aanseapy
'ssed 01 Lquiofew

-9[duiis & saarnbai a1nseour aqr

Kepsany, ‘urd $¢:01 Jo-se ur Sar
-410da1 spouroaid [ie Yim sInseaw
91 JO"I0AR] UT 3T€ 18] OS PSIUNO0D
S910A Jo-jue0rad. 6L pamoys
1rodar TepIyoun Teui; -ayqL

's[iod ay3 ur peaye 7 aImseapy
SMOUS d)Isqam SUON03[Y A1unoy
1PIOqUINY 2y U0 WolBMLIOFU]

" IR UO SEDYINI D
E8.ﬁ%ﬁﬁs&.@.ﬁ%@ﬁsaﬁ%ﬁ

- llomssax) reyunyy Ag
e e

_ .__§ou&w_ judozad gy
MOYs sy[nsar Areurujas

peoye spnd
:_.O_a_ﬁ:-, J0J

- PLgsIp

- SIINAIIG

Z IUNSVIN



SECTION_F" 2" PAGE

Manila seeks new plan

Jack Durham
‘ Map River UNION

MANILA — The Manila Community Services District
may find out next month whether it will be awarded
grant funds to update its Strategic Plan and map out the
future of services in the simall peninsula town.

The district has applied for a $5,000 grant from the
Humboldt Area Foundation’s Technical Assistance Pro-
gram. If the grant is awarded, the district would hire
Heather Equinoss to hold a series of community meet-
ings and surveys over the coming months to assist the
update of the 12-year-old plan.

As the grant application points out, a lot has changed
in the sandy outpost since the old Strategic Plan was

approved in 2005. Although the district manages local |

park facilities, it no longer offers recreation programs as
it once did. The district now leases a large part of the Ma-
nila Community Center to Redwood Coast Montessori, a
public charter school. '

Like other unincorporated towns, Manila struggles
with how to deal with community issues outside the dis-
trict’s legal authority. The district’s powers are limited
to sewer, water and recreation, but community members
have concerns about public safety, traffic, roads, lighting,
homelessness, health and other issues.

How, or even if, the district should be involved in oth-
er issues would be addressed during the strategic plan-
ning process.

“Undergoing a strategic planning process that in-
volves community stakeholders and community mem-
bers in addressing these issues will help build board and
community agreements needed to move forward and
make effective change that benefits the Well-being of res-
idents,” states the grant application.

If the district obtains the grant, it would have the goal
of completing the plan by July of next year. =

At a special board meeting Nov. 7, Director Dendra
Dengler said she hoped the plannmg process would not
resemble Manila’s “v1s1on1ng session” that took place in
2015.

The highly contentious “visioning” sessions involved
public meetings and were centered on the future of the
Manila Community Center and the McKinleyville Family
Resource Center. The process consumed the board for
much of the year, with highly contentiou$ meetings and
lots of finger pointing and crying.

Eventually, a divided board voted to hand over man-
agement of the resource center to Redwood Coast Mon-
tessori.




SECTION_F 2= _ PAGE hogﬁ,

s ]

Water Deeply October 24, 2017

Toxic Ashes and Charred Forests Threaten Water
After North Bay Fires

The fires that burned wildlands and urban areas in Northern California this month now pose a threat to
water quality, humans and wildlife as crews work to contain unstable hillsides and keep toxic debris

from entering waterways.

WRITTEN BYAlastair Bland PUBLISHED ONg Oct. 24, 2017 READ TIMEApprox. 5 minutes

b o

In some urban areas, such. as this pat of Santa Rosa hit by the wildfire on October 13, 2017,
ashes are knee deep and contain remains of paint, plastics and rubber.Tayfun Coskun/Anadolu

Agency/Getty Images

FOR MANY HOMEOWNERS in Sonoma and Napa counties, nothing could have
been more welcome than the splashing of rain that fell on Northern California last
Thursday — the first significant precipitation in about five months. The rain helped put
an end to the fires burning in the area, which first ignited on October 8, and have
wreaked hellish destruction on Santa Rosa and other communities.

However, the recent rain —and the precipitation to come in the months ahead — will
bring considerable environmental impacts of their own, especially to the waterways,
and even water treatment plants, downstream of destroyed forests and

incinerated neighborhoods.

More than 245,000 acres burned during California’s most disastrous firestorm,
turning around 8,400 structures into ash heaps and killing at least 42 people. Now, in



section_F&_paceno. 9

the immediate aftermath, numerous agencies, nonprofits and volunteers are
collaborating to assess the scope and intensity of the damage and identify areas most
vulnerable to post-fire erosion.

“We're concerned about landslides, debris flows and ash-laden runoff,” said Jay
Jasperse, chief engineer and director of groundwater management with the Sonoma
County Water Agency.

Impacts will vary from one burned acre to the next, and urban and wildland areas
face different threats to water quality.

“In some of these areas, the fires did what fire is supposed to do,” said Brock Dolman,
a watershed ecologist with the Occidental Arts and Ecology Center in Sonoma County.
That is, the fires burned at relatively low temperatures, leaving adult trees alive while
clearing underbrush from fuel-loaded woodlands and cracking seedpods of certain
fire-adapted plants, which will allow them to germinate. “So next year we’ll see
mushrooms and wildflower blooms,” Doiman added.

In fact, most of the burned wildlands were hardly devastated, according to Caitlin
Cornwall, the research program manager at the Sonoma Ecology Center.

“It appears that in a lot of the mixed forests the fires burned mostly in the
understory,” said Cornwall, whose organization helps communities manage the
health of the Sonoma Valley’s wildlands and watersheds.

But in some locations, the fires were hot and destructive, driven by powerful winds
and destroying almost every bit of vegetation in their paths. Adult trees burned away
from roots to canopy, along with shrubby undergrowth and grasses. With the root
networks that help hold soil together incinerated, the risk of mudslides will increase
when heavy rains fall.

The watershed of Mark West Creek, one of the Russian River’s most important Coho
salmon spawning tributaries, was hit especially hard as the Tubbs Fire swept across
the pocket of hills several miles northeast of Santa Rosa. Here, rainfall could wash
vast amounts of debris into creeks and smother the gravel beds where the
endangered salmon lay and fertilize their eggs each winter.

Waterways in the valleys to the east will be similarly impacted — especially Sonoma
Creek, where a remnant population of endangered steelhead trout still spawns, and
the Napa River, habitat for several salmonids, including Chinook salmon, according to
Matt St. John, an executive officer of the North Coast Regional Water Quality

Control Board.

He says soil erosion doesn’t just affect streambeds. “Especially when they contain ash
of burnt vegetation, soils have high levels of nutrients, both nitrogen and



SECTIGN_F 2_pacE ho._|0

phosphorus,” St. John noted. “The increased nutrient load in the water can cause
blooms of blue-green algae that produce cyanotoxins.”

The fallout from the urban destruction will be of a different nature. In the burned-out
ruins of some Santa Rosa neighborhoods, for example, the knee-deep ashes contain
remnants of paint, solvents, pesticides, plastics and rubber. Heavy metals and
hydrocarbons will pose serious and direct threats to people and wildlife for months
to come.

Smoke and flames shoot up as a wildfire surges through the Santa Rosa area on October 10,
2017. (Tayfun Coskun/Anadolu Agency/Getty Images)

“After these fires, it’s almost like a toxic waste dump,” said Richard Halsey, director of
the California Chaparral Institute, in Escondido, California. “Just think of all the
materials in a house being burned. When those contaminants get into watersheds
and out into the ocean, it becomes a major pollution event.”

Dolman calls the contaminated ashes from the urban fires “enemy-number-one
right now.”

“We need to control erosion and keep that toxic ash from being delivered into creeks,
especially in areas like Mark West with Coho and steelhead spawning habitat,”
he said.



SECTION_F2—_, PAGE NO. __U,_

Research has shown that smoke from inland fires can even have negative impacts on
ocean chemistry and marine life when it settles offshore.

Officials with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, the California
Office of Emergency Services, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the
United States Army Corps of Engineers and other agencies, as well as local
organizations and conservation districts, have been collaborating in the response to
the fires. They are placing sandbags, straw bales and wattles alongside creeks and
below impacted slopes to control erosion.

St. John says his agency, and staff from others, will likely place filtration systems in
small waterways, and create small settling ponds to collect fine debris. Street
sweepers, he says, are working urban roadways to collect ash and particulates. Crews
specializing in toxic waste cleanup will spend months sifting through the ruins in
Santa Rosa and other towns, sorting and separating refuse that can be sent to
conventional landfills and hazardous materials that must be handled carefully and
disposed of by more elaborate means. Sewer lines from each home will be closed off
to keep ash and charred waste from entering sewer mains and municipal water
treatment systems.

Private property represents an added level of complexity in upland watersheds.
Cornwall says a great deal of the burned wildlands are privately owned, which she
says will make it difficult to assess damage and respond accordingly. She warns
against dispersing non-native grass seeds across scorched acreage — which she says is
a common response among landowners hoping to regreen burned properties.

“We want to stabilize the soil but without just throwing out seeds that will become
the fuel for next year’s fires,” she said.

Cornwall recommends that owners of burned properties with streams on their land
line the banks with downed wood and logs, sandbags or coir, or coconut fiber and
netting. She says most conventional straw usually contains seeds from grasses —
generally non-natives. She suggests rice straw as a safe alternative.

As for rain, Cornwall is eager to see it arrive — but not all at once.

“Ideally, we’ll get many small rains,” she said. “We want seeds to germinate and put
roots in the ground as soon as possible so we can stabilize the soils.”



SECTION_F9__PAGENO. | 0~ _

Trump's environmental rollbacks hit California hard, despite Sacramento's resistance

By EVAN HALPER
3:00
| WASHINGTON

When 50,000 acre-feet of water went gushing out of the Sacramento River last month, it fast became a
test of California’s ability to protect its environmental policies from an increasingly -

hostile Trump administration. The episode proved humbling. Heeding the calls of big agriculture
interests and area congressional Republicans, the administration pumped federally controlled water to
Central Valley farms despite protest from the state that the move imperiled the endangered delta smelt.
All California could do was temporarily shut its own pumps, which came at the expense of the state's
mostly urban water customers.

It was perceived by some in California as the kind of big agriculture water grab that the state had not
seen in years. And it flouted a longstanding water-management partnership between California and
Washington, D.C.

"This has never happened before,” Doug Obegi, an attorney at the Natural Resources Defense Council,
said of the pumping. "It has created a huge mess, and a lot of uncertainty."

The incident was a jolting reminder of California's limited ability to counteract the environmental retreat
in Washington. Even in the state where resistance is the mantra, leaders can't keep up with the pace of
Trump's environmental rollbacks.

The risk of exposure to toxic substances escaping from industrial facilities has been heightened by the
suspension of federal safety rules. Climate change action is getting undercut by easing of restrictions on
heavily polluting vehicles. Federal waterways protections that state officials were relying on to save
sensitive vernal pools and boost fisheries are gone. A dangerous pesticide that field workers expected
would be banned remains widely sprayed. Even the authority of officials at the state's national parks to
prohibit plastic water bottles has been stripped.

So many rules and regulations have been rolled back that lawmakers can scarcely keep up. “I have lost
track,” said Rep. Jared Huffman (D-San Rafael), who sits on the House Natural Resources Committee. “It

is dizzying.”

The Californian who ran the EPA division encompassing the state and others in the Southwest during the
Obama administration is particularly concerned about the state's exposure to toxic chemicals. "No one
knows: Is this being covered? Who is covering it and how?" said Jared Blumenfeld, former EPA Region 9
administrator.

While the state has moved aggressively to implement tough restrictions at oil refineries in recent years,
there are other categories of facilities where the federal government had been taking the lead. The EPA
was imposing new requirements enabling regulators to keep track of what chemicals are stored where,



SECTION_F & PAGE No._1D__

and requiring plant owners to take proactive measures to prevent dangerous releases into the
community. But the Trump administration suspended them.

EPA Administrator Scott Pruitt said the move was made in the interest of being “responsive to concerns
raised by stakeholders regarding regulations so facility owners and operators know what is expected of

them.”

The rules would have boosted safety provisions at plants such as the South San Francisco salami factory,
which in 2009 released a plume of 217 pounds of poisonous ammonia, sending 17 people in the nearby
community to the hospital, one of them for four days.

In many cases, California's backstop is local fire departments. Some have experienced hazardous
chemical experts on staff. Others don't.

A tiny volunteer fire department in Humboldt County was in over its head a few years ago when the
Chinese owners of a pulp mill abandoned the place, leaving behind thousands of gallons of highly acidic |
liquids leaching from improperly built tanks susceptible to crumbling in an earthquake.

"It looked like Chernobyl," Blumenfeld said of the 70-acre facility on the shore of Humboldt Bay when |
the EPA arrived on site. "Any seismic activity would have led to an unbelievable environmental |
catastrophe." Trump's plan to cut deep into the EPA budget would diminish the agency's ability to ‘ !
monitor such facilities, and his plan to eliminate the U.S. Chemical Safety Board would deprive California '
regulators of a crucial partner in bulking up its own protections. '. ‘

The state leaned heavily on the expertise of the board following the 2012 Chevron refinery explosion
that drove 15,000 people in the Bay Area to seek medical treatment for issues such as breathing
problems. Nineteen refinery workers narrowly escaped the ignition of a flammable vapor cloud that
engulfed the facility. It was board investigators who discovered Chevron's engineers had written a half-
dozen reports pinpointing the corrosion that put it at risk for the type of disaster that unfolded.

"We never would have known about those reports if it were not for the Chemical Safety Board," said
Mike Wilson, director for occupational and environmental health at the Blue Green Alliance, a national
coalition of labor and conservation groups.

The state was also looking to Washington to take the lead on protecting farmworkers against the
dangers of chlorpyrifos, a widely used pesticide in California's fields that EPA scientists warned should be
banned. Studies find it inhibits childhood brain development.

When the EPA's deadline to decide on a ban came in March, Pruitt declared the science is unsettled. He

put off action until 2022.

State regulators are now in the midst of their own proceedings. They are conducting a separate review,
which began over the summer and will extend at least into December — prolonging the time California
agriculture communities are exposed to the pesticide, even if the state ultimately imposes its own ban.
The fight over the pesticide is another case highlighting the extent to which state regulators rely on a
robust EPA to pursue California's regulatory agenda. The army of scientists, attorneys, data crunchers

and other regulatory experts may operate largely in the background, but they are a backbone of
environmental protection in California. They are not easily replaced.

A legislative effort championed by state Senate Leader Kevin de Leon {D-Los Angeles) that would
obligate the state to backfill Trump retreats on clean air and clean water has hit roadblocks. Industry



SECTION_F-_paczno. |4

e vt

groups have so far persuaded a Democrat-dominated Legislature that the lift would be too big and too
complicated.

Even without it, Trump is still hitting big barriers imposing his agenda in California. Restrictions on
methane releases at oil and gas drilling facilities were preserved by a lawsuit that California and other
states filed, and other such legal challenges will likely blunt other air quality, water quality and public
lands rollbacks. The state's aggressive pursuit of climate action will go a long way in helping the United
States meet the obligations under the Paris climate accord on global warming that Trump has spurned.
"Where we can, we will do everything in our power to hold this administration accountable," said state
Atty. Gen. Xavier Becerra. "That's exactly what we've been doing, and we've already been successful
numerous times. And where we can't, California will continue to lead on its own path as we have done
in the past."

Some things, though, can be out of the state's reach, even if they are happening in its backyard. A
federal plan aimed at protecting endangered sea turtles and whales from drifting sword fishing nets off
the West Coast was canceled. More of California's federal land is being opened to oil and gas drilling,
and the administration is signaling it may move to open its waters up, too. The EPA is moving to repeal
new restrictions on a type of heavily-polluting truck California was relying on to meet its climate and air
guality goals.

After California sued to stop the cancellation of another highway program aimed at tracking greenhouse
gas emissions, the administration appeared to back off. Then it moved to cancel the program again.
John McManus is watching it all with dismay from his office in Northern California. The executive
director of the Golden Gate Salmon Assn. worries the state has only so much power to stop the federal
government from pumping water out of California's rivers that he says could kill off the fishery.

"The federal bureaucrats making these decisions have a new boss," McManus said. "We got a glimpse in
October of how they might act. if they can do this to the smelt today, they can do it to the saimon
tomorrow."

evan.halper@latimes.com

Twitter: @evanhalper




SECTIGN_ (2 PAGE No.J_g__

SHARE bttt o il b i i
SPONSORED BY

Become a KQED sponsor

Updated 6:25 p.m. Monday — 11131/17

Federal regulators have asked the officials who operate Oroville Dam — and who are in
charge of the $500 million-plus effort to rebuild and reinforce the facility’s
compromised spillways — to explain small cracks that have appeared in recently rebuilt
sections of the dam’s massive concrete flood-control chute.

In a previously undisclosed October letter, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
told the state Department of Water Resources to document the extent of tiny cracks that
have showed up in some of the spillway’s brand-new concrete slabs. FERC also asked
DWR what, if any, steps might be required to address the issue.

In early November, DWR told the dam’s federal overseers in a cover letter to a classified
memorandum that steps taken to build a stronger spillway — such as an added layer of
steel reinforcement — caused the hairline cracks.

The letter said the agency found “the hairline cracks are a result of some of the design
elements included to restrain the slabs and produce a robust and durable structure.”

The letter added that the cracking “was anticipated and is not expected to affect the
integrity of the slabs.”

FERC did not respond Monday to requests for further details on the extent of the cracks
or on whether it was satisfied with the Department of Water Resources’ explanation of
the cracking.

DWR spokesperson Erin Mellon said in an email Monday evening that hairline cracks
are “something you expect to see” in concrete slabs as massive as the those in the rebuilt
spillway, which measure 30 feet by 37.5 feet. “These cracks are not abnormal, nor do
they cause a concern,” she said.



SECTION_F2~ pace o, |lp__

Mellon said DWR will continue to monitor the concrete and that the agency, along with
the spillway contractors and outside experts, is looking at a refinement to the concrete
mixture to minimize cracking.

“However, considering these hairline cracks do not cause a concern, the mixture may
remain the same going forward,” she said. “We anticipate that hairline cracks would still
form even with a refined mixture.”

DWR’s Nov. 7 letter to FERC mentions a technical memorandum that the department
classified as critical electrical infrastructure information, or CEIIL. Under post-9/11
federal law, CEII documents can be viewed by members of the public or media only if
they agree to sign nondisclosure agreements — a provision that effectively places them
beyond public view.

E LA : S e
The California Department of Water Resources says extensive steel reinforcement and other measures intended to
make Oroville Dam’s rebuilt spillway stronger have resulted in cracking of the spillway concrete. DWR says the

small cracks should not affect the spillway’s integrity. (Ken James/ California Department of Water Resources)

The upshot is that the evidence for and reasoning behind DWR’s statements about the
cause of the cracking is not available for independent assessment.

Robert Bea, a professor emeritus of civil engineering at UC Berkeley and a veteran
analyst of structure failures, said that DWR’s letter leaves “a lot of uncertainties
regarding the implications of the reported micro-cracking.”

Bea, who heads a Berkeley-affiliated group that has issued several reports this year
highly critical of DWR’s management of the Oroville facility, added that cracks in the
concrete surface are potentially serious and require urgent attention.

L]

“Cracking in high-strength reinforced concrete structures is never ‘to be expected,” ” Bea
said in an email. Even small cracks could increase stresses in the concrete when it is
under “service loading” — for instance, when large volumes of water hurtle down the

structure at speeds approaching 9o mph.



The cracking also “develops paths for water to reach the steel elements embedded in the
concrete and accelerate corrosion,” Bea said. “Such corrosion was responsible for the
degradation and ultimate failure of the steel reinforcing in parts of the original gated
spillway.”

DWR inspection and repair records going back to the 1970s documented widespread
cracking of the 3,000-foot-long spillway chute — largely because of the thinness of the
concrete covering the drainage system below the concrete slab. On at least two
occasions, sections of the steel rebar inside the slab were found to be corroded and in
need of replacement. After the spillway failed last February, some of the steel rods
intended to anchor the slab to underlying rock were also found to be corroded.

The new spillway design aims to prevent those extensive concrete problems with by
introducing a series of now-standard spillway design elements. In addition to more
careful foundation preparation than the 1960s original, the chute features much thicker
concrete, increased steel reinforcement, improved slab anchoring, interlocking slabs,
waterstops to block the flow of water beneath the slabs, a redesigned sub-slab drainage
system and electronic instrumentation to monitor the intrusion of water beneath the
concrete chute.

The failure of the spillway and the subsequent severe erosion in an adjacent hillside
used as an emergency spillway triggered the evacuation of about 180,000 people along
the Feather River. Rebuilding the main spillway and reinforcing the adjacent emergency
spillway will cost at least $500 million, DWR says.

The cost of the emergency response to the crisis — including removal of 1.7 million cubic
yards of debris, rock and mud that blocked river channel below the shattered spillway —
will top $100 million. State officials have said they will ask the Federal Emergency
Management Agency to pick up 75 percent of the cost of the total costs of response and
reconstruction.

This post was updated to include a Department of Water Resources response to federal
regulators questions about the Oroville spillway concrete.



Lake County Record-Bee (http://www.record-bee.com) SECTION—-E%-. PAGE NO, 187

supervisors sign letter to keep Scott Dam

By Zack Jordan, zjordan @record-bee.com
Monday, November 27, 2017

LAKEPORT >> The Board of Supervisors is pushing back against the potential removal of the Scott Dam
located in Lake Pillsbury. They plan to send a letter defending the preservation of this and other dams to the
members of Congress representing Northern California, Jared Huffman, Mike Thompson and John Garamendi.

The Scott Dam sits downstream from Lake Pillsbury along the Eel River. It is first in line, followed by the Cape
Horn Dam and helps to form Lake Van Arsdale. The structures create energy for a generator and divert water
through a tunnel to the Russian River. However, there is concern at the federal level that the dams interfere with
fish and wildlife.

Environmentalist have argued that removing the dams would help restore passage of fish to spawning waters.

“The potential for removal of the two PG&E Dams in order to remove impediments to fish migration because, in
the view of some, they don’t need the power generation because solar energy could replace that,” said District 3
Supervisor Jim Steele. “They could have 12 acres of solar panels and replace those two dams,” Steele said.

sut the Supervisors consider dams critical for water storage, aiding agriculture, recharging groundwater and
muting the impact of winter storms.

Lake Pillsbury, as a headwater, benefits the community as a destination for recreation in an economically
disadvantaged area, attracts large herds of rare Tule Elk and — during fire season — is a source of water for fire
CTEwsS.

District 2 Supervisor Jeff Smith said he is in support of getting this letter moved and notifying the three
Congressmen of the county’s opinion.

“I definitely want to make sure that they know we don’t want this dam removed and trying to get a dam put back
in is ridiculous,” Smith said.

The three Congressmen have indicated they are willing to consider opposition to the plan. Removal has thus far
only been discussed in informal reports generated by a series of hearings.

“They said they would love to have a letter stating our interest in protecting Scott Dam so they can track the
hearings,” Steele reported.

URL: http://www.record-bee.com/general-news/20171127/supervisors-sign-letter-to-keep-scott-dam

% 2017 Lake County Record-Bee (http://www.record-bee.com)




secTion_F_pacENo._|9

December 6, 2017 |
Groundwater Pumping Fees Are Not Taxes, California
Court Says

From Environment & Energy Report
By Carolyn Whetzel

A decision by California’s highest court could give a boost to local water agencies
grappling with how to implement the state’s landmark groundwater management law.

The California Supreme Court ruled that the charges Ventura, Calif., must pay to a local
water district for groundwater conservation activities aren’t taxes or fees that require
approval by property owners or voters.

Because the United Water Conservation District's charges aren't for property-related
services, they don'’t require approval either by property owners or two-thirds of area
voters, the court said, affirming a 2015 lower court ruling.

This “decision is significant because it provided needed and timely guidance to local
groundwater management agencies, groundwater users and state officials as to how
groundwater fees should assessed prospectively,” Richard M. Frank, director of the
California Environmental Law & Policy Center at the University of California, Davis, told
Bloomberg Environment in a Dec. 5 email.

The state’s high court rejected the city’s claims the charges violate Proposition 218 and
Proposition 26, voter-approved measures that made it more difficult for government
agencies and utilities to impose or increase certain taxes or fees.

Such fees will be a critical component of the plans local agencies must complete and
administer under the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act over the next
several years, Frank said.

Groundwater, which is water found underground, typically provides about 40 percent of
the state’s water supply but much more in dry years.

The groundwater law requires the formation of local groundwater sustainability agencies
to manage their groundwater resources within the next several years, along with the
development plans designed to bring basins into balanced levels of pumping and
recharge by 2050. Should local entities fail to enforce the law, the state will then
intervene.



section T 2_ pacE No, 20

‘Reasoned, Fair, Practical’

“The justices ably worked through the morass of Lilliputian tax principles that California
voters have placed in the California Constitution—and the relevant facts—to reach a
reasoned, fair and practical result,” Frank said.

Article XlII C of the California Constitution, as amended by Proposition 26, “supplies the
proper framework for evaluating the constitutionality of the groundwater charges at
issue in this case,” the court said in a Dec. 4 opinion.

The case now heads back to the Second Appellate District to answer the city’s question
as to whether the water district's charges are fair or reasonable under Proposition 26,
Jane Ellison Usher, United Water’s attorney at Musick, Peeler & Garrett in Los Angeles,
told Bloomberg Environment Dec. 5.

“The California Supreme Court found the appeals court didn't adequately consider that
second prong of the case,” she said.

Ventura alleged it pays a disproportionate share of the district's charges.
Under state water code, groundwater pumping charges for non-agricultural uses must
be three times those levied for agricultural uses. The justices intimated that the Water

Code section 75594 is unconstitutional under Proposition 26,” Frank said.

The water district manages all or part of eight groundwater basins in central Ventura
County.

This case is (City of San Buenaventura v. United Water Conservation Dist., 2017 BL
432760, Cal., No. S226036, 12/4/17).



CORRESPONDENCE



SECTION .PAGE NO.|
Sherrie Sobol —Cﬁ-—a Wl

From: Daniel Edrich <daniel@reninet.com>
Sent: Sunday, November 19, 2017 1:37 PM
fo: Sherrie Sobol

Cc: John Friedenbach

Subject: Re: The 540 Rule

Dear Sherrie, would you please distribute this note to the Board?

HBMWD
Dear Board of Directors and
General Manager John Friedenbach

This is the argument, of many, of why removing vegetation off the coastline is harmful and illegal.
We know that when dunes are de-vegetated they deflate, why would HBMWD allow deflation on the primary dune that

stands as a lonely sentinel
between the Pacific Ocean and HBMWD's own coastal pipeline?
This will invite Salt-Water Intrusion into the fresh-water marshes that secure your pipes.

Please join in getting repairs to topography and stability from illegal and non-Permitied vegetation removali.

In essence, if you take the cross-section of the primary dune, above Base Flood Elevation, divide by 2 and if not at least

540 sq, ft. FEMA does not
consider it a structure " Primary frontal dunes will not be considered effective barriers to base flood storm surges and

associated wave action where the cross-sectional
area of the primary frontal dune , as measured perpendicularly to the shoreline above the 100 year still water flood

“levation and seaward to the dune crest, is equal to,
Jr less than 540 sq. ft".. Reasonable coastal engineers were pushing for the 1080 Rule.

Susceptibility Results:
Dune System FEMA 540-Rule Evaluation

LIDAR-2000 data were used to derive the FEMA 540-rule for each of the spatial analysis bins. The FEMA 540-rule definition states: "primary frontal
dunes will not be considered as effective barriers to base flood storm surges and associated wave action where the cross-sectional area of the
primary frontal dune, as measured perpendicular to the shoreline and above the 100-year stillwater flood elevation and seaward of the dune crest, is

equal o, or less than, 540 square feet." A generalized sand reservoir to determine dune failure potential was calculated on a per-
bin basis for the dune system. The calculation was performed by determining: (1) the 100-year stillwater flood level
(estimated to be 10 feet NAVDB8S), (2) the average width of the dune system from stillwater elevation to landward-most crest
line, (3) the average dune system landward-most crest height above stillwater flood elevation, and (4) calculating the area of
a friangular sand reservoir defined by these dimensions. For a simple dune system, with one primary frontal dune, a
triangular sand reservoir of 540 square feet is considered by FEMA to be an effective barrier to base flood storm surges and
associated wave action during a 100-year storm event. Stillwater elevation was derived from USACE beach nourishment
feasibility studies, FEMA HAZUS data, and Coastal Research Center data. Elevation calculations were made using LiDAR

Primary Frontal Dune Reservoir Dune
Isit: Crest
> 540 square feet?
or I
< 540 square i
s he M r e s e et s 1
100-year

stillwater elevation

point spot-elevations proximal to the dune system.,




CONTINUING
BUSINESS



, SECTION 1| _ PAGE KO, _|
John Friedenbach

From: ERICO <erico.tavares@sinclairlimited.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 2:13 PM
To: John Friedenbach

Subject: Water supply

John

It was a pleasure speaking with you just now. | will be following before Christmas.
in the meantime | will also look at the information on your website.

Very best,

Erico

(718) 313-2258

San Diego County Water Authority

Dana L. Friehauf, PE.

Water Resources Manager

4677 Overland Avenue ¢ San Diego, California 92123
[858) 522-6749 FAX (858) 268-7881 Cell (858) 9672820
dfriehauf@sdewa.org

DO /¢ 7550 O W
Irmiprenismen |

2907 8. MAPLE AVENUE
FRESNO, CA 93725-2208

De Ann Hailey
Controller

OFFICE TELEPHONE |
(659) 233-7161 Ext. 7201 » FAX (559) 233-7708
dhailey @ fresnoirrigation.com



SECTION_Md_ pacz No,_|

Governors push federal fight against
invasive mussels

The Associated Press Published 12:01 p.m. PT Nowv. 5, 2017

BOISE - Governors of 19 Western states are pressing the federal government to do more to prevent
the spread of damage-causing invasive mussels from infected federally managed waterways.

The Western Governors' Association on Thursday sent a letter urging Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke
to put in place by spring 2018 controls to prevent the spread of zebra and quagga mussels.

A quagga mussel infestation was discovered in recent years at Lake Piru in Ventura County.

The governors are also asking that federal agencies conduct mandatory inspections and
decontamination of boats leaving infected water bodies. The mussels can attach to boats and trailers
and travel long distances, clogging water pipes, damaging boat motors and affecting other aquatic

life.

"Given the significant risks that quagga and zebra mussels pose to uninfested waterbodies, it is
critical to implement effective control policies in a timely manner,” the letter states.

The governors say they're particularly concerned about the mussels reaching the Columbia River
Basin, Lake Tahoe, and the Colorado River Basin above Lake Powell.

The Interior Department has said that hydroelectric projects infested with the mussels might require
an additional $500,000 in annual maintenance. The Pacific Northwest gets much of its power from
hydro projects, so an infestation could increase the cost of electricity.

Many states have spent millions and continue to do so to keep the mussels out. Some have set up
mandatory checkpoints near borders to intercept boats for inspections, including Idaho, which is
spending more than $3 million annually.

"ldaho and our neighbors in the West are acting individually and collaboratively to address the
challenge of these invasive species," Idaho Gov. C.L. "Butch" Otter said in a statement to The
Associated Press on Friday. "Now our federal partners must step up to help us stop further

infestations."



SECTIGN_H 2 phoE wo,_ 9

——— ———- o

Heather Swift, Interior Department spokeswoman, said in an email o The Associated Press on
Friday that Zinke hadn't seen the letter and couldn't comment specifically.

"Stopping the spread of invasive species is a big concern of the Department and the Secretary," she
said, noting a June 26 news release outlining some of the agency's collaborative efforts with states

and tribal agencies.

The governors' letter on Thursday is the second they've sent this year about invasive mussels to
Zinke. A letter sent June 22 also pressed for watercraft inspection and decontamination.

The Interior Department responded Sept. 15 with a two-page letter agreeing with the severity of the
problem. The most recent letter by the governors' included "clarifying questions."

Specifically, the governors want to know what timeline has been set for the National Park Service to
complete an assessment of mussel containment and monitoring programs at Lake Mead National
Recreation Area in southeastern Nevada and northwestern Arizona, and the Glen Canyon National
Recreation Area in southern Utah and northern Arizona.

The governors are also interested in knowing if similar timelines are being set for other Interior
Department agencies, including the Bureau of Land Management and Bureau of Reclamation.

The governors also asked if federal agencies have the authority to require mandatory boat checks
and, if not, what authority would be needed.

"Western states need adequate measures to ensure these invaders do not spread to uninfested
waters," the governors said.



SECTICN_H 9~ PacE HO.:?_,..

DENNIS DAUGAARD DAVID IGE JAMES D. OGSBURY
WESTERN *
]
GOVERNORS cHAIR

ASSOCTATION

November 2, 2017

Honorable Ryan Zinke
Secretary of the Interior

U.S. Department of the Interior
1849 C Street N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Secretary Zinke:

We are writing to thank the Department of the Interior (DOI) for its recent response to a June 22,
2017 from the Western Governors Association (WGA), in which Governors requested that
DOI work with western states to prevent the spread of quagga and zebra mussels from infested
federal waters into uninfested waterbodies. In the letter, Governors requested that:

1) DOI engage with WGA in an ongoing effort to identify resources, policy recommendations,
and technical tools that states and federal agencies can use in efforts to combat aquatic
invasive species in the West, and;

2) DOI, through the National Park Service (NPS), the Bureau of Land Management (BLM), the
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR), and other agencies, require the implementation of
mandatory inspections and decontamination of watercraft before they leave federal and
inter-jurisdictional waters known to be infested with quagga and zebra mussels, including
waters on the lower Colorado River. Such inspections and decontamination should be
conducted by federal agency staff in accordance with the Quagga-Zebra Mussel Action Plan
for Western U.S. Water (QZAP), and the NPS Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention
and Response Planning Guide (2007).

We appreciate DOI's September 15, 2017 reply to this letter, which articulates DOI's commitment to
partner with WGA and western states to address invasive mussels and other invasive species. In
the response letter, DOI states that, “the National Park Service (NPS) is maintaining containment
and monitoring programs at Lake Mead and Glen Canyon National Recreation Areas, and is
assessing options to strengthen those programs in the future. Also, NPS is reviewing its inspection
and decontamination policy to determine if it protects NPS resources and meets state and tribal
needs.”

Western Governors have some clarifying questions regarding this assessment and review:

¢ (Given the significant risks that quagga and zebra mussels pose to uninfested waterbodies, it
is critical to implement effective control policies in a timely manner. What is the timeline
for NPS to complete this management assessment and policy review? Are similar timelines
being established for actions at BLM, BOR, and other DOI agencies?

WESTGOV.ORG



SECTIGN_}} 2~ FAGE ti0, Ll

Honorable Ryan Zinke
November 2, 2017
Page 2

e While the review will determine if NPS resources are protected during its review of
inspection and decontamination policy, how will NPS assess and incorporate threats to
state resources during the review? What steps will NPS take to cooperatively engage states
and Tribes in the review?

¢ Do DOI agencies have the authority to implement mandatory inspections and
decontamination of watercraft before they leave federal and inter-jurisdictional waters
known to be infested with quagga and zebra mussels? If not, what autherity do they need?

The presence of invasive dreissenid mussels in federal waters presents a risk to all communities in
the West. Western states need adequate measures to ensure that these invaders do not spread to
uninfested waters. We also request that DOI agencies establish timelines for completion of these
reviews and implementation of control policies as soon as practicable, preferably before the spring
of 2018, when movement of watercraft across state lines and between bodies of water will begin to
ramp up again.

We commend DOI's commitment to work with western states and review federal agency policies to
address these risks, but ask that the review involve meaningful consultation with states and be
conducted on a timeline that respects the urgency of the issue.

Sincerely,

XMy k4 Y
‘Dennis Daugaard f i *‘( David Ige
Governor of South Dakola Governor of Hawau

Chair, WGA Vice Chair, WGA



e

SECTION JT2~_ rasE o, O

4.
T

United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washington, DC 20240

SEP 15 2017

The Honorable Steve Bullock
Governor of Montana
Helena, Montana 59620

The Honorable Dennis Daugaard
Governor of South Dakota
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Dear Governor Bullock and Governor Daugaard:

Thank you for your letter dated June 22, 2017, on behalf of the Western Governors’ Association (WGA)
to Secretary Zinke, about the urgent need to prevent the spread of invasive mussels in the Columbia River
Basin, Lake Tahoe, the Colorado River Basin above Lake Powell, and other waterbodies across the West.
Secretary Zinke asked that | respond to you on his behalf.

Like the Secretary, I am deeply concerned about the serious impacts that invasive mussels can cause,
particularly to hydropower, water delivery, recreational activities, endangered and sensitive species, and
local economies in the West. We also share Western governors’ concern about the impact of invasive
species on forest health and rangeland management.

The Secretary addressed invasive mussels at your recent WGA summer meeting in Whitefish, Montana,
and on June 26, announced a set of actions that Interior Department bureaus are leading in coordination
with WGA, states, and tribes. This spring, Interior staff worked closely with WGA, states, and tribes to
identify what the federal government can do to improve efforts to address invasive quagga and zebra
mussels in the Columbia River Basin specifically, and the West more generally. We worked
cooperatively with more than 70 federal, state, and tribal representatives and identified more than three
dozen actions that we are now pursuing. This includes actions to support watercraft inspection and
decontamination stations, increase monitoring programs, improve detection tools and techniques, and
convene experts to share best management practices on reducing impacts to infrastructure and facilities,
among other actions.

This recent initiative complements strong state-federal collaborations already in place through the
leadership of the Aquatic Nuisance Species Task Force and its Western Regional Panel as well as other
regional networks, such as the 100" Meridian Initiative’s Columbia River and Missouri River Basin
Teams. Your letter references WGA'’s support for the model policies and protocols developed by the
Western Regional Panel and partners. These efforts have been funded or coordinated through the U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service for a decade, demonstrating our long-standing commitment to this issue.

I understand your concern about the need to improve how we can help keep invasive mussels from
leaving federally managed waters. We are committed to working with affected states on how best 1o
implement watercraft decontamination programs. To this end, the National Park Service (NPS) is
maintaining containment and monitoring programs at Lake Mead and Glen Canyon National Recreation
Areas, and is assessing options to strengthen those programs in the future. Also, NPS is reviewing its
inspection and decontamination policy to determine if it protects NPS resources and meets state and tribal
needs. [n addition to Lake Mead and Lake Powell, Lake Havasu is another infested waterbody of concern



section_ & racE ko, b .

in the Lower Colorado River Basin. To help bolster the containment program there and downstream, the
Bureau of Land Management is convening partners 1o develop an interjurisdictional containment strategy.

[ agree that we need to enhance partnerships with WGA and invasive species coordinating groups to
strengthen intergovernmental cooperation, We are exploring options with WGA to enhance policy level
coordination among federal and state leaders on a variety of invasive specics issues, including invasive
mussels. We also are working with WGA to identify ways to enhance that coordination, such as through a
Memorandum of Understanding, side mecetings in connection with WGA mceetings, or some other means.

States have significantly increased funding and activities to address invasive mussels and other invasive
species. At the federal level, we are comumitted to partnering with you in this effort. The Department of
the Interior’s burcaus collectively spend about $8 million cach year to prevent, contain, and control
invasive mussels. In the current fiscal year, we incrcased that spending by $1 million through the Bureau
of Reclamation. In Fiscal Year 2018, the President’s budget requested an increase of $4.4 million for
Reclamation to enhance work in coliaboration with states to protect the West from these invasive species.

In addition, the National Invasive Specics Council Secretariat contracted with the State of Montana to
foster federal, state, and local government cooperation o address invasive mussels. This includes
evaluating lessons learned from Montana’s carly detection and rapid response program with a view
toward building a regional/national program and assessing what the cost of “no-action™ would have been
to the State.

Thank you for your continued leadership, both within WGA and within your respective states. on invasive
species. We are committed to working with you and other governors to address this important issue.

Sinc }Ll?% C/éﬂ‘ﬁ’v;

Scott J. Cameron
Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary
Policy, Management and Budget




secTion 2 prceno. |

California’s State Water Board recently passed new policies that will regulate water
impacts from marijuana growing operations. Erin Ragazzi and Scott Couch of the
Water Board discuss the challenges.

WRITTEN BY:lan Evans PUBLISHED oN: Nov. 7, 2017 READ TIME:Approx. 6 minutes

As the legalization of recreational marijuana in California looms, so do concerns over how the
new industry will use the state’s limited water. LARS HAGBERG/AFP/Getty Images

On October 17, the California State Water Resources Control Board adopted new environmental
policies to regulate how marijuana growing operations will impact California’s already limited
water resources. The new regulations are in response to voters’ approval of Proposition 64 in
2016 to legalize recreational marijuana.

Cannabis cultivation can impact local water by reducing flows in streams and creeks or polluting
waterways with pesticides and other agricultural chemicals. Even the construction of roads and
buildings for cannabis farming causes sediment runoff and erosion that damages nearby
streams and rivers. Until recently, this was difficult to address because many growing operations
were illegal.

The new rules will be implemented through five regulatory programs, which will require certain
permits depending on the size of the operation. Among other things, the new policies limit how
much water needs to be flowing through a channel before water can be diverted for marijuana
growth, how many acres of land an operation can disturb, how growers should dispose of their
waste and how the new permits will be enforced through cooperation with local, state and
federal law enforcement.

Water Deeply Recently spoke with Erin Ragazzi, an assistant deputy director for the State Water
Board’s Division of Water Rights and Water Quality Certification and Scott Couch, section chief
of groundwater protection at the State Water Board, about developing the new policy.

Water Deeply: What damage can cannabis farming do to water quality? And what kind of damage
are you hoping to reduce with this regulation?

Erin Ragazzi is an assistant deputy director for the Water Board’s Division of Water Rights and
Water Quality Certification. (Courtesy of George Kostyrko/SWRCB)

Erin Ragazzi: There’s a variety of different types of damage that can occur, depending on where
the cannabis cultivation activities are taking place, and the measures that are put in place to
protect the environment. Our focus here is mainly on surface water and groundwater protection,
and the beneficial uses associated with them.

Scott Couch is the section chief for groundwater protection at the State Water Board. (George
Kostyrko/SWRCB)

Scott Couch: I just wanted to also add that we're seeing the types of things on the cultivation
side, like waste — just trash, human waste, waste from fertilizer, pesticide containers, things like
that. We don’t want that stuff in the water.



SECTICN WD _ FAGENO,_J

Water Deeply: Even just building roads to these sites can be damaging. Is that something that you
are paying attention to as well?

Ragazzi: That’s definitely something that the policy in general order addresses. We have specific
conditions related to sediment controls, targeted specifically at land, then the roads. So, in the
policy, we really direct people to make sure that they’re meeting the requirements in the road
[building], and then having appropriate best management practices in place to control
sediment runoff.

That wouldn’t be a problem in many cases, except that we’ve got cannabis cultivation in areas of
the state that aren’t highway-developed, and these rural areas, in order to gain access there is a
lot of road building that wouldn’t occur with traditional agriculture.

Couch: Yeah, we're seeing a lot of damage in the North Coast, in particular, for road-building
activities that are contributing to sediment and damaging streams and habitat.

Water Deeply: A lot of these impacts have been in remote parts of the North Coast, but there is
also a lot of new industry growth happening in Southern California in an entirely different
landscape. When it comes to things like building roads, or other policies, how have you tried to
shape the new policies to adapt them to Southern California?

Ragazzi: What we did was develop a statewide policy that looked at the various impacts
associated with cannabis cultivation. It’s not that it’s targeted at Southern California or
Northern California, but when we’re looking at cultivation activities, what requirements are
necessary to protect water quality and the associated water habitat, you’re going to have the
potential for less impact if you have an.indoor grow in general than you will with an outdoor
grow that is right adjacent to a stream system.

But we do take that into account, and all commercial cannabis grows that are going to the
California Department of Food and Agriculture will need to register with the State Water Board
to determine what coverage they need under the Waste Discharge Requirements that the board
recently adopted.

Water Deeply: Is it difficult to balance growing in Southern California, an industry that'll be
mostly indoors I imagine, versus say the North Coast, which is mostly outdoors and therefore
might have more of an environmental impact?

Couch: Well, we tried to cover both of those areas, and we have requirements for both indoor
and outdoor cultivation.

The thing about the indoor — we've heard of warehouses being converted in Southern California,
or old IKEA stores and things like that — that they may want to grow inside, and you think,
“Well, there won’t be a discharge,” but even there ... If they have to discharge their wastewater,
and if it goes into a community sewer system, it won’t be covered by this permit that we have.
So, they have to have a permit from the sewer system to be able to discharge their waste down
the sewer.



secTion -3 FAGERO. D .

Water Deeply: Up until this point, cannabis growing has mostly been on the black market in
California. In some of our previous coverage, Scott Greacen, at the Friends of the Eel River,
mentioned that many growers - who are already using the black market - might just continue to
do so to avoid regulations. Do you think there is a risk that these further regulations are going to
push more growers to take that route, or discourage people who are already using the black
market to start growing legally?

Ragazzi: Well, I think that we are cognizant of the need to develop requirements that we think
are protective of water quality, but also create an environment in which people want to come in
to the regulated community, because they have been in the black market for so long. What will
be your carrots and sticks?

One key component of that is doing the education outreach to make the folks aware of what
we're requiring, why we're requiring it, but then also having the enforcement arm necessary to
facilitate folks knowing that they can’t hide in the black market, but that we are going to be
taking enforcement actions against folks that are not registered and enrolled in our program.

I think there are incentives already as part of the legislation that incentivize people to come into
the process earlier rather than later. There’s the potential to have a limited number of plant
identifiers and licenses issued by the various entities, and so those folks that come forward
earlier are going to be in a better position than folks that may stand on the sidelines and wait for
a while.

There are those carrots in terms of the early adopters, and the board has an enforcement policy
that is very focused on education as one of its first pillars, before you move directly to
further enforcement.

We don’t directly inform the other agencies for purposes of eradication. Typically, to my
knowledge, what occurs is the State Water Board staff will go out with California Department of
Fish and Wildlife staff and their warden, and as part of those joint inspections there may be an
eradication process that takes place, depending upon the unique circumstances of that

specific site.

Water Deeply: Thank you for taking the time to speak with us. Is there anything else that you
would like to say?

Ragazzi: Well, I think one of the things that’s important to point out is that the policy creates a
comprehensive mechanism to regulate cannabis cultivation, and it includes both those water
supply, water rights side and water quality components. Specifically, I think it’s important to
note we have a lot of important requirements to address individual and cumulative impacts that
can occur in watersheds, and that’s been a big concern for a lot of folks, in terms of not just the
site-specific impacts but the broader cumulative impacts in a watershed.

To that end, that policy includes requirements establishing maximum diversion rate, a
forbearance period when no diversions can occur and instream flow requirements so that even
when you’re in the season of diversion, you can always divert when flows are above that
instream flow requirement. So there’s a pretty comprehensive look at ensuring that we’re not
seeing the impacts associated with diversion and use of water, while at the same time allowing
folks a pathway to get a storage water right, which often would take a very long period of time.



SECTION_H2__ FAGENO. 4

Cannabis cultivators now will have access to a small irrigation use registration that will give
them the ability to store water during the wet season for use during the dry season, and it’s
really a step forward to be able to offer that streamlined process within a short period of time.

CALIFORNIA CANNABIS MARIJUANA



0

SECTION_H?_ragEnn,_ O

« McK DUI MURDER TRIAL: Judge Denies Defendant’s Request to Leave Jail to
Move Motor Home (/2017/nov/22/mck-dui-murder-trial-judge-denies-
defendants-reque/)

Join Ross Fenrara (/auTHoR/ Jonn-Ross-FERRARA) / Tooay (/2017/nov/22/) @ 12:48 p.. / Government (/cavesories/GovernMent/), NATURe
(/canesories/NaTuRe/)

Department of Fish and Wildlife Awards $1.3 Million in Grants to Restore
Humboldt County Watersheds Affected by Cannabis Cultivation

Looking upstream on the Main Eel River at Dyerville on September 4, 2015. Outpost fie photo (https://lostcoastoutpost.com/2015/sep/16/eel-river-
drought/) by Pat Higgins.

CDFW press release from Monday:



The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW SECTION

(http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/)) today announced the selection of four
projects to receive funding for habitat restoration projects within
California’s Northern Coastal watersheds most impacted by
unregulated cannabis cultivation.

The awards, totaling $1.3 million,
were made under CDFW’s Cannabis

Restoration Grant Program, and will C A L I F O R N I A

support cleanup and habitat e
restoration at inactive cannabis !
FISH &

cultivation sites. WILDLIFE

“These grants mark an important
step forward in our efforts to
address the extensive damage to
habitat and toxic chemicals
threatening a host of wild species,”
CDFW Director Charlton H. Bonham
said. “Providing a resource to
address the impacts of reckless
cannabis cultivation adds an
important piece to the complex
puzzle of our existing watershed restoration work.”

Projects approved for funding through the Cannabis Restoration Grant
Program include:

e Reclaiming our Public Lands and Watersheds from the
Environmental Threats of Trespass Cannabis Cultivation
($1,068,415 to Integral Ecology Research Center);

¢ Bull Creek Cannabis Recovery Project ($94,510 to Eel River
Watershed Improvement Group);

» SF Usal Creek Headwaters — Trash and Toxin Cleanup ($83,840 to
Eel River Watershed Improvement Group); and

¢ Whitethorn Grove Clean Up ($64,831 to Sanctuary Forest, Inc.).

Projects funded under the 2017 Cannabis Restoration Program are
scheduled to commence in early 2018.

The Cannabis Restoration Grant Program was established by CDFW in
2017 in response to legislation aimed at regulating the burgeoning
legal cannabis industry. In his signing message to Assembly Bill 243
{Wood, Medical Marijuana), Governor Brown directed, “the Natural
Resources Agency to identify projects to begin the restoration of our
most impacted areas in the state.”

“I have seen firsthand the devastation to the watersheds caused by
these rogue cannabis growers,” said Assemblymember Jim Wood, the
author of AB 243. “They divert water, use prohibited herbicides and
leave behind hundreds of butane canisters and chemical ponds that
pollute our waterways affecting the salmon and trout populations. I
am thankful that Governor Brown allocated $1.5 million this year to
kick off this very targeted restoration program for the North Coast area
and look forward to the state identifying future funds so we can
continue this critical work.”

General information about CDFW’s Cannabis Restoration Grant
Program can be found

at www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Watersheds/Cannabis-
Restoration-Grant
(http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Watersheds/Cannabis-
Restoration-Grant).

H? FAGE KO

e

L

‘e



SECTIGN H™> FaGE D, F
—-——-l—w

About Contact FAQ Donate

FRONT PAGE \TEST POSTS BY CATEGOR) CA WATER 1 WATER MANAGEMENT TOOLBOX

RESOURCE PAGES

ANNOUNCEMENT: Cannabis Cultivation
Regulatory Program Workshops to be held in

December
] November 24,2017 & Maven & ANNOUNCEMENTS

From the State Water Resources Control Board

Come learn about the State Water
Resources Control Board's (State
Water Board's) Cannabis Cultivation
Regulatory Program. On October 17,
2017, the State Water Board adopted
a Cannabis Cultivation Policy -
Principles and Guidelines for
Cannabis Cultijvation (Policy) and
General Waste Discharge Requirements and Waiver of Waste Discharge
Requirements for Discharges of Waste Associated with Cannabis
Cultivation Activities (Cannabis General Order). State Water Board staff
will hold seven workshops throughout California in December 2017 to
share information related to the State Water Board's Cannabis
Cultivation Regulatory Program.

CALIFORNIA

Water Boards

BTATE WATER AESQURCED GUNTADL BOARYD

REBIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL B0ARDS

At the workshops, staff will provide an overview of the: (1) Cannabis
Policy, which establishes the requirements for the Cannabis Cultivation
Regulatory Program; (2) Cannabis General Order, which implements the
Cannabis Policy requirements; (3) Cannabis Small Irrigation Use
Registration Program, which provides a streamlined option to obtain an
appropriative water right to divert surface water to irrigate commercial
cannabis crops; and {4) online application portal for enrollment under the
Cannabis General Order or to obtain a Small Irrigation Use Registration
certificate. Please see the attached flyer for details. Please note that
several venues are in the process of being confirmed and updates to the
flyer will be released as necessary. For additional information, please
visit the State Water Board’s website at Cannabis Cultivation web portal
at: https.//www.waterboards.ca.gov/cannabis/

& DONATE

California’s independent & most trusted
source for water news and information
is mainly supported by sponsorships
and by donations from readers like you.

CLICK HERE TO MAKE A
TAX-DEDUCTIBLE DONATION

“AUis  NOW ONLINE

LIBRARY

A reservoir of

/‘ useful information

www.CAWaterLibrary.net

FUNDERS! _

Icouldnl me_ks vﬁfawﬂ idnﬁur these gll@;

SEARCH THE NOTEBOOK

Enter your search term
here to search all posts:

o

Browse posts, filtering by
category and/or tag:




For more information on the workshops including locations, click
here.

If you have questions regarding these workshops, please contact the

Cannabis Registration Unit at (916)-319-9427 or by email at

CannabisReg@waterboards.ca.gov.

Click here to view all posted announcements.

Get the Notebook blog by
email and never miss a post!

Sign up for daily emails and get all the
Notebook's aggregated and original water
news content delivered to your email box by
9AM. Breaking news alerts, too. Sign me up! -

{Visited 42 times, 3 visits today)

Share this: .
[ Share 1 ] ) rShare] 0 A4 su_bnjif ;
, bd Emall | ._é Print l

@ Leave acomment ¢ Cannabis

Leave a Reply

Enter your comment here...

secTion__ {3 raczno, §
—— -
All Categories Y
All Tags

Submit

Sign up for free email
service and enjoy the
convenience of receiving all
the Notebook's news in your
inbox. Daily emails arrive by
9am; Weekly emails are
delivered Fridays at 10am.
By subscribing to Maven's
Notebook, you'll always be
one of the first to know!

* indicates required

Email Address *

Subscribers

«J Daily Emails: Full
Service (6 days + Breaking
News)

o Daily Emails: Monday
through Friday only; no
breaking news

o) Weekly emails from
Maven's Notebook

Email Format
html

text

Want your news sooner
than gam? Enter your
email address for this list
and you'll receive an
email instantly, every time
there's a new post!

Enter your email address

Sign me up!



IR
S

State Water Resources Control Boéfd
4 Cannabis Cultivation Regulatory
aater Boares Program Workshops

REGIDHAL WATER ODUALITY CONTROL BOAADS

ECTION WD _racENg, 9

! WORKSHOPS |: BACKGROUND il
1 , i
; fZﬁ;’L:‘,’,ﬁkfhﬁﬁ és S:Thed"’ed torunfrom 1l on October 17, 2017, the State Water Resources Control |
. e a.m. — 4:99 p.m. Ii Board (State Water Board) adopted the Cannabis :
! December 1, 2017 1| Cultivation Policy (Cannabis Policy) and General Waste i
1 Central Coast Regional Water Board Office |: Discharge Requirements and Waiver of Waste Discharge |
. X‘é%“;ﬁ:‘:\g;ﬁg?;ee Suite 101 .i  Requirements for Discharges of Waste Associated with :
| San Luis Obispo CA 93401 |: Cannabis Cultivation Activities (Cannabis General Order). ||
. ' 1;  The Cannabis Policy and Cannabis General Order include |
1 December 6, 2017 — UPDATED \i requirements to reduce impacts of waste discharges and |
i ggls:r;/;llgz;:ngnference Center |: surface water diversions associated with cannabis i
| 200 South School Strest i cultivation. .Cannabls cultivators will b_e able to _enroll under :
- Ukiah. CA 95482 1i  the Cannabis General Order and obtain water rights under
1 ' . ;. the Cannabis Small Irrigation Use Registration (SIUR) i
i December 8, 2017 o - Program, if needed, using the online Cannabis General i
; ga'ifg 'g?fﬂfor:ﬁ;BU"dmg ! Order and SIUR Application Portal. The Cannabis SIUR |
C 65(’) 11 Street. 2 Floor . Program is a streamlined option to obtain an appropriative |
- Sacramento. CA 95814 1, water right to divert surface water to irrigate comr?ercial |
1 ‘i cannabis crops.
- December 13, 2017 I !
T ' Redding Regional Water Board Office | PURPOSE OF WORKSHOPS :
I Gregory Cash Conference Room |I i
+ 364 Knollcrest Drive, #205 .i  To provide informati . |
| oz e :
- December 15, 2017 — UPDATED I: +« Cannabis General Order; and |
' Adomi Center i ¢ Cannabis Small Irrigation Use Registration Program i
1 Gymnasium i"l'_'_”_ e o e et
* 1011 Waterfront Dnve s e S g g -7 07 T
! Eureka, CA 95501 | AGENDA -
I b
; December 19, 2017 | Pollcy Overwew 10:00:a.m. = 12 00 (noon) '
! Fresno Regional Water Board Office Il « Break for Lunch (on your own) 12:00 (noon) — 1:00 p.m.
I Kings, Kem, and Tulare Conference Rooms || = Overview of Statewide Cannabis General Order
: 1685 E Street 1:00 — 1:30 p.m. %
; Fresno, CA 93706 !« Overview of Cannabis SIUR Program 1:30 — 2:00 p.m.
. DATE TBD** i "« Online Cannabis General Order/SIUR Application
!' Location TBD** 1 Portal 2:00-4:00 p.m.
.

I San Diego, CA dn welCW GRS _

* The Sacramento meeting will be webcast. .
» Information regarding the webcast will be available on, |
. our website at: www.waterboards.ca.gov/cannabis | _

. v

S

{ cdfa

CALIFORKIA DEPARTMENT OF
FOOD & AGRICULTURE

** Date and/or venue are to be determined (TBD). I
I Updated information wilt be posted to the State Water*
. Board’s Cannabis Cultivation webpage (see bottom of,
. flyer) and sent to the “Cannabis Cultivators” Email ¢ |
I Subscription List (see back page).

For more information, please visit our website at: www.waterboards.ca.gov/cannabis

m




SECTIONLE D FAGEND. [0 |

| State Water Resources Control Board
| Cannabis Cultivation Regulatory Program Workshops

| Who Should Attend?

Cannabis cultivators and other interested parties.

Additional Resources

The following websites have information regarding ongoing agency efforts related to commercial cannabis
i cultivation:

| State Water Board, Cannabis Programs — General information regarding State Water Board Cannabis
Programs. Website: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/cannabis/
State Water Board, Division of Water Rights — Responsible for administering water rights for all surface water

diversions, as well as diversions from groundwater and all springs for the purpose of commercial cannabis
cultivation. Website: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/cannabis/cannabis_water_rights.shtm!

State Water Board, Division of Water Quality and the Regional Water Quality Control Boards — Responsible

for addressing potential water quality impacts from cannabis cultivation and associated activitiés on private
property.

I Division of Water Quality: hitps://www.waterboards.ca.gov/iwater_issues/programs/cannabis/cannabis_water_quality.shtm|

Regional Boards Map: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterboards_map.htm|

California Department of Fish and Wildlife — Responsible for ensuring cannabis cultivators operate in a manner
l that is protective of fish and wildlife resources. Website: htips://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Cannabis

Bureau of Cannabis Control — Responsible for issuing cannabis licenses for distributors, dispensaries,
transporters, and testing laboratories. Website: http://www .bcc.ca.gov/

California Department of Food and Agriculture — Responsible for licensing cannabis cultivators and
establishing a track and trace program. Website: http://calcannabis.cdfa.ca.gov/

California Department of Public Health — Responsible for licensing manufacturers of cannabis products, such
as edibles. Website: htlps://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CEH/DFDCS/Pages/MCSB.aspx

California Department of Pesticide Regulation — Responsible for regulating pesticide use in commercial
cannabis cultivation. Website: http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/docs/cannabis/index.htm

How to Sign Up for State Water Board’s Email Subscription

To receive additional information about the State Water Board's efforts related to commercial cannabis cultivation,
please subscribe to the State Water Board's “Cannabis Cultivators” email list under “Water Rights” or “Water Quality
on the following webpage:
http:/iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml

Questions

If you have questions regarding these workshops, please contact the Cannabis Registration Unit by email at
CannabisReg@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at (916) 319-9427.

>

CALIFORNIA

Water Boards

BTATE WATCR RESQUACKE CONTAOL BOABD
REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTAOL 80AADE




sECTION Y pace No.l

Employee Handbook

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Adopted by Board of Directors March 14, 2002
Re-Issued August 2004 with Minor Amendments
Re-Issued September 2008 with Amendments
Full Revision January 1, 2018



secTioN_HY_pace No,_ .

Table of Contents

Chapter 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS
1000  INtrodUuction......cccccciiirininieiniciisii sttt 6
1001  Overview of DIStricCt.......ccocoveimenncecrcrccrercrererieererereeeeersseeenas 6
1002  District’s MASSION ......cccoveereuriemiiierereerrcecneereeceeneceereeseseeseesssesns 7
1003 Positions Covered........iiecneeseeeeneseeeeseseseseseens 7
1004  At-Will Employment Status.........ccocecvvevveneenecnneesnesissenenns 8
1005 Equal Employment Opportunity ............ccccveeerevereemveccnercnccnens 8
1006 Unlawful Harassment........cc.cocerurecineernineenineneneserenesesseneeenanns 9
1007  Integration Clause, Right to Revise, and Severability.............. 12
Chapter 2 - EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES
2000  Classification Plan ... e 14
2001 Hiring Procedures ... 14
2002 Conditions of Employment.........cccoovnimiuecimnccecreennincecnnescennenss 15
2003  APPOINtMEnt ..ot eaes 16
2004  Promotions ... 16
2005 Compensation Plamn ... 16
2006  Performance Evaluations ........c.cccooeocvceenconmnnennencenencenrennennns 17
2007 Merit and Longevity Increases.........ccccccecceeenerecnenencereerernncennns 17
2008  Work Schedules ..o 18
2009 Pay and Paydays.......cccccoeeecireiireeceeennnnenneeeneseesesssssseesenes 19

2009.1 Paycheck Direct Deposit.........c.ccccceeiuiriinnecnnernenes 19
2010  Overtime Pay and Procedures..........couveicicueecnniecnnneninincnes 19

2010.1 Comp Time in Lieu of Overtime..........cccccoovveererreerrurenen. 20
2011 Holiday, On-Call, Call-Back, Shift Differential & Meeting

PaY v 20
2012 Time Records........cciiiiciniictieeeeecr et esssaesasesenas 21
2013  Personal Records .........cvvrmcincenereeicrnnecenennereceneeneens 21
2014  Personnel File.........coiinimniimmicninieienennneeseenseieeseseasesns 21
2015  DiSCIPINE ..ot sesnens 22
2016  Issue ReSOIULION.....cccomiccriimiiccincciieieincseeeeceeecee et 22
2017  Termination ...t eeaeeaes 23
2018 Employment Verification.........cccocovevrmvccrcvrccrmncennnecesnenenes 23
2019 Off Duty Conduct/Other Employment............cccoouuerreceerncennnee 23
Chapter 3 - DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS and STANDARDS
3000 Standards of CONAUCE .......c.ccoeurmeeirireeinrirecrrecree e eceerenas 26

3000.1 Dress Code Standards.........c.cccvmreeerreecrenccninecernnneenenenns 27
3001  Alcohol-Drug Free Workplace..........cccvuecnecsirinnniccrnenenccenene 27

3001.1 Fitness-For-Duty & Return-To-Work Evaluations..... 28
3002  Punctuality and Attendance ........c.ccoveeviincccincniicncnncccneenes 29
3003  Emergency ReSPOnSe. ..........covvveeininnciicnicioncnecceeenenenns 29
3004  Certification......ccooiiiiiccinieecccreeeecrce s 30
3005 Release of District Information and Media Contacts ............... 32
3006  Conflicts Of INteTest .........ccoveiirernrrcrcrcrcrcerrnrrerireeereseeeseeesenesens 33
HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018



snacnow_&ﬂa PAGE NO, 2

3007  PIOPEILY wovocciiiiiiiiiciciniccce et eese et sa e 33
3008 Smoking/Tobacco POLICY ......ccovvcviercrruncernenmereraninerisreesireeannns 33
3009  Use of Telephome..........cccccciceercerneeeneceneeneeeresecsssssessessessan. 34
3010  Use of Computers, E-mail, Internet, Voicemail and Fax ......... 34
3011  Health and Safety .......cieiirvccmercecneerrceseceteeeceenan, 35
3011.1 Safety Incentive AWard ...........cccoveivurnimrinersisereceneereenes 35
3012  Workplace Security and Workplace Violence...........ccccruunnne.. 36
B012.1 VISItOIS ..vvvivniniiiiiiic e 36
3012.2 Monitoring and Vigilance ...............cococoiviiiiianni, 36
3012.3 Workplace Violence ............ccceveeiiiiiiiniciiiininnnnn. 36
3013  Staff Expense Reimbursement Guide/Travel...........ccccen...... 37
3013.1 Per Diem and Travel Advance Procedures .................. 37
3013.2 Employee Incurred Travel Expenses ..........cccccceveurunnne. 38
3013.3 District Issued Credit Cards .............c..ccoeevennennnn, 38
3014 District/Personal Automobiles ........c..cecvvevirreveniirerenirrereecrenenen, 38
3015  Cellular Phone Safety Policy ............c.ccccvevviiniinneininnnna. 39
3016  District Cabin ...t 39
3017 Gun and Pepper Spray POLICY.........ocoucerruvierrinncinienecrneseerenenens 39
Chapter 4 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
4000  INtrodUCHON......c.oiciiiececce et aes 41
4001 Paid Time Off Benefits......ccooceeecieeercrcrcncnrnenernreesereecseennennn 41
4001.1 Vacation .......ccvveirireiimeiiiiecreeeneecenseccsesesesesecsnes 41
4001.2 HOIAAYS .....ooviiiriricrcencrecrceerenreeeere e ssecseaeeas 42
4001.3 Floating Holiday BankK...........cccocecererrinencecermnccunncncrcnnnns 42
4001.4 Management Leave Bank ..........cccccoeereeverenencncinnnnnnnne. 43
4001.5 Sick Leave ........ccoorimnirnereicreeeeecececenrneer e 43
4001.5a Kin Care Leave ........cccoevcievcrcrniecnciencncecnrenceennn, 44
4001.5b Termination and Sick Leave ........cccocvrreverrnerennnnes 44
4001.5¢ Retirement and Sick Leave.........c.cccovurreruerrvecrenas 45
4001.6 Bereavement Leave ........coccomermicrnncneenencnireneeeesnnnes 45
4001.7 Worker’s Compensation: Work Related Injury............ 45
4001.7a Return to Work Policy .......ccccocvcevvceninnivnnnrinrennene, 46
4002 Disability Insurance, Leaves, and Leave Donation ......c..ceeesnee 46
4002.1 State Disability Insurance (SDI)........c.ccccovvecenrnerrnnnnee. 46
4002.2 Long-Term Disability (LTD) .....ccccecouvuruererernenccererrrinenes 47
4002.3 Pregnancy Disability Leave ........cccoeecervurnencerinscennence, 47
4002.4 Paid Family Leave Insurance............ccccececereererrererennen. 47
4002.5 Family Care and Medical Leave (FMLA/CFRA)........ 47
4002.6 Organ/Bone Marrow Leave .........ccoecvnieenirnreecrncnceneenns 48
4002.7 Unpaid Leave of Absence.........c..ccccouvrrmerierineerereionns 48
4003 Leave Donation for Critical Illness/Injury .........cccccorecereneecnce 49
4004 Health INSUrance.............ccoeeemenierererennineceescsisese et seaeennes 49
4005 Dental and Vision Insurance.............ccoeeceevecrnnrvnnecinerenreenennns 50
4006 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) .......ccccoecevneerrinecereen.50
HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018

Page 3



secTio_NU{_ PAGE N, 4

4007  Life INSUTANCE......cocvcemiiiecrcsicececcceecr e seese et sseses s sesens 50
4008  RetiremMent .......cccocvveriirieuiiriicinisiinieisieseenrse e sa e aesesas 51
4009  Deferred COmMPENSAtioN ........c.cceceueeerercrirercrmeseeresensrereneresesrnnses 53
4010  Unemployment Insurance............coccooeceurevcernencrneiccrnencncnneeennaas 54
4011 COBRAL.......cootciirtnit e tsss sttt saes 54
4012 Expense Reimbursement.........c.ccccovemeniresninenrnnenerineseiennenenas 54
40121 Certification..........ccvucuiiemieiciieicciieccrcce e eesceerenen 54
4012.2 Uniforms & Safety Gear.........cccoeerirencvrcrnneecnircncnneenns 54
4012.3 Safety Apparel ALlOWance............ccvuvcecueverrenireueerenencnnnnn. 55
4012.4 Educational Assistance..........ccccocuevvmeervnnrcrcnnnecnneenes 55
4012.5 Meals .....ccuiiiviriiiiiieiniiiee ettt 55
4012.6 Ruth ASSIgNMent........ooeerueremercinieereninieeeeencnineessinaenenns 55
4012.7 Miscellaneous...........ccccceeiueincrinccrrncierecreereeenseeensserenas 55
4013  Miscellaneous Time Off ...........ccvivieinniniiinicccncnnncncecceennnnn, 56
4013.1 JUry DULY .ot 56
4013.2 VOUNG ...ttt seasessenens 56
4013.3 Service as an Elected Official ........c.ccceceemiennnccrcncnnenn, 56
4013.4 Volunteer Firefighters .............c..coocoviiiniiin. 56
4013.5 School Visits .........cccovvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecr e, 56
4013.6 Military Leave .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniii e, 56
Acknowledgement of Receipt Employee Copy.....cccocreeervervcrrnerrrnncannes 57
Acknowledgement of Receipt District COPY .....cccooevereciricenceccenrenecnne 58
APPENDICES

Appendix A: Organization Chart

Appendix B:  Position Class List and Position Descriptions

Appendix C:  Salary Schedule

Appendix D:  Overtime/Comp Time Bank Agreement

Appendix E:  Sample Evaluation Form

Appendix F:  Workplace Illness and Injury Prevention Program
Appendix G: Substance Abuse Policy

Appendix H: Employee Educational Course and Expense Approval Form
Appendix I:  Personnel Records Request

Appendix J:  Critical Illness/Injury Leave Donation Policy

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 4



secnom_t’g'_’L PAGENOD. D

Chapter 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 5



SECTION PAGE NC.

1000 Introduction

This Employee Handbook, which we ask you to read and retain for future reference, was
prepared with you in mind. The Handbook is a guide to the policies, practices and
benefits relating to your employment at the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
(District). The policies, procedures and benefits presented herein outline the obligations,
rights, privileges, benefits, and prohibitions which are placed on all employees of the
District.

Communication is the most important aspect of our employment relationship. This
Handbook is designed as part of our effort to improve your understanding of what the
District expects of you. It also outlines what we offer you in return.

The Superintendent, General Manager, or Business Manager will be happy to answer any
questions you may have regarding your employment or the contents of this Handbook.
Furthermore, the Superintendent, General Manager, and Business Manager have an
“open door” policy, and as such, are open to questions, concerns, and any suggestions
you have for improving the District.

1001 Overview of District

The District was organized in 1956 under California’s Municipal Water District Act. The
major function of the District is to provide wholesale municipal and industrial water to
the greater Humboldt Bay area. The District also has authority to operate parks and to
produce hydroelectric energy. Two authorities not currently being exercised under the
Act include fire protection and sewage treatment.

Current operations include the R.W. Matthews Dam/Ruth Reservoir and Gosselin Power
House near Ruth in Southern Trinity County; the John R. Winzler Operations and Control
Center and the Lloyd L. Hecathorn Turbidity Reduction Facility, both located northeast
of Arcata in Humboldt County; and various pipelines and appurtenances around the
Humboldt Bay area. Present water delivery capabilities total 75 million gallons per day,
much of which is contracted to municipal customers. The District also provides
maintenance and billing services to the Fieldbrook Glendale Community Services
District.

The District has defined geographic boundaries and is subdivided into five divisions. The
District is governed by a five-person Board of Directors. The Board members are elected
to four-year terms by the voters of the division in which they reside. The Board
periodically elects a President and Vice President and is the appointing authority for the
General Manager, Attorney, Secretary/ Treasurer and Auditor. The General Manager is
the Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for the hiring of competent personnel to
carry out the various functions and responsibilities of the District. Appendix A is an
organization chart reflecting this structure.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 6



secnou_ﬁ_%_, PAGENO._\Q

1002 District’'s Mission

The District’s mission is to: 1) reliably deliver high quality drinking water to the
communities and customers we serve in the greater Humboldt Bay Area at a reasonable
cost; 2) reliably deliver untreated water to our wholesale industrial customers at a
reasonable cost; and 3) protect the environment of the Mad River Watershed to preserve
water rights, water supply and water quality interests of the District.

In carrying out this mission, the District is committed to the following values:

» ensuring worker and public safety at all times;

> creating a positive work environment emphasizing teamwork and open
communication among employees;

» fostering cooperative work relationships with our customers, and striving to
meet their needs to the best of our abilities;

> maintaining and operating our system to high standards, thereby ensuring
reliable service over the long-term;

» performing our work in a cost conscience manner to ensure the lowest possible
rates to our customers.

We ask that you carry out your job in a manner that supports the mission and values
above. Furthermore, any suggestions you have for improving the District are always
welcome. You are encouraged to present ideas for improving operations, customer
service, or cost saving opportunities at any time.

1003 Positions Covered

The policies and procedures contained in this Handbook shall pertain to all District
employees, but they shall not apply to independent contractors working for the District.

The District employs full-time, part-time and temporary employees, as defined below.
Full-time employees are paid a basic monthly salary, which is adjusted to reflect actual
hours worked, credited time off, or overtime worked.  Part-time and temporary
employees are paid in accordance with an hourly-wage scale established by the General
Manager consistent with the approved budget. Full-time employees are entitled to all
the benefits described in this Handbook, subject to modification by the Board.

Regular Full Time - A position which is a regularly established or planned position in the
District and works a regular forty-hour work week. Unless otherwise specified, the
benefits described in this Handbook apply only to regular full-time employees.

Regular Part Time - A position which is a regularly established or planned position, but
works less than a full-time basis. Part-time employees are not eligible for benefits
described in this Handbook, except as specifically noted.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 7



SECTION H l PAGE NC. q,

Temporary - A position having duties assigned to it that are not expected to become a
regular part of the workload and who are employed for a temporary period of time.
Normally, a temporary position will not exceed six (6) months in duration, unless
specifically extended by the General Manager. Summer employees are considered
temporary employees. Temporary employees are not eligible for benefits described in
this Handbook, except as specifically noted.

In addition to the above, Employees whose jobs are governed by the Fair Labor Standards
Act (FLSA) are either “exempt “or “non-exempt”. “Non-exempt employees are entitled
to overtime pay. Exempt employees are not. Most employees covered by the FLSA are
non-exempt. Some jobs are classified as exempt by definition. For most employees,
however, whether they are exempt or non-exempt depends on (a) how much they are
paid, (b) how they are paid, and (c) what kind of work they do.

The requirements to determine this status are outlined in the FLSA Regulations
(promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor). See the Business Manager if you have
any questions.

1004 At-Will Employment Status

The personnel policies and procedures contained in this Handbook are not a contract
guaranteeing employment for any District employee for any specific duration.
Employment at the District is employment at-will. Employment at-will may be
terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by the employee
or the District. Although we hope that your relationship with us will be long-term, either
you or the District may terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason, with or
without cause or notice.

Nothing in this Handbook or in any document or statement shall limit the right to
terminate employment at-will, and nothing in this Handbook or in any other personnel
document, creates or is intended to create a promise or representation of continued
employment for any employee. No supervisor, or any other employee of the District, has
any authority to enter into an agreement for employment for any specified period of time
or to make an agreement for employment other than at-will.

1005 Equal Employment Opportunity

It is the continuing policy of the District to provide equal, employment opportunities for
all individuals who have the necessary qualifications with respect to recruitment, hiring,
performance appraisal, promotion, training, termination, compensation, or other
personnel-related activities regardless of the actual or perceived ancestry, race, color,
religion, sex, gender, gender identification, gender expression, national origin, disability,
medical condition, marital status, age, genetic information, sexual orientation preference,

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 8



section Y _pace xo. 3

or veteran/military status. All employee decisions will be based upon policies and
practices that further the principles of equal employment opportunity.

Every member of management is held responsible for assuring non-discrimination in
employment opportunities. In addition, all staff members, regardless of position, share
in the responsibility of maintaining a discrimination-free work environment.

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified
individuals with a disability, the District will make reasonable accommodations for the
known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a
disability who is an applicant or an employee unless undue hardship would result. Any
applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential
functions of the job should contact his or her supervisor and request such an
accommodation. The individual with the disability should specify what accommodation
he or she needs to perform the job. The District will then conduct an investigation to
identify the barriers that make it difficult for the applicant or employee to have an equal
opportunity to perform his or her job. The District will identify possible accommodations,
if any, that will help eliminate the limitation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will
not impose an undue hardship, the District will make the accommodation.

If you believe you have been subjected to any form of unlawful discrimination, previde
a—written—cemplaint-to-please notify your supervisor, or the Superintendent, Business
Manager or General Manager. Supervisors must immediately refer all discrimination
complaints to the General Manager. Your complaint should be specific and should
include the names of the individuals involved and the names of any witnesses. The
District will immediately undertake an effective, thorough, and objective investigation
and attempt to resolve the situation. If the District determines that unlawful
discrimination has occurred, effective remedial action will be taken commensurate with
the severity of the offense. Appropriate action will also be taken to deter any future
discrimination. The District will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint and will
not knowingly permit retaliation by management employees or your co-workers.

1006 Unlawful Harassment

The District is committed to providing a work environment that is free of unlawful
discrimination. In keeping with the commitment, the District strictly prohibits unlawful
harassment on the basis of an employee’s race, sex (including breastfeeding,) gender
identity, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, age (over 40), marital status,
sexual orientation, or physical or mental disability. Discrimination of anyone in or from
the District, on any of these bases, is strictly prohibited.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 9



SECTION H k PAGE NC. ﬁh

This policy prohibits discrimination in any form, including:

e Verbal harassment such as epithets, jokes, derogatory comments or slurs based
on the person’s race, sex, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, age
(over 40), marital status, sexual orientation, or physical or mental disability;

¢ Physical harassment such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, or any
physical interference with normal work or movement when directed at an
individual based on one of the categories above; and

e Visual harassment such as derogatory posters, cartoons, or drawings based on
one of the categories above. Also included are emails or text messages that may
be inappropriate, offensive, harassing, and/ or creating a hostile work
environment.

If you believe you have been or are being subjected to this kind of discrimination, and are
unable to resolve (or uncomfortable attempting to address) the problem with the
individual, you should promptly report it to your supervisor, Superintendent, Business
Manager, or General Manager. All such claims will be investigated in a manner designed
to protect the privacy and confidentiality of all involved and appropriate action will be
taken. When appropriate, the District may seek to resolve the matter informally. Any
employee found to have discriminated against anyone in or from the District’'s work
environment, based on one of the categories above will be disciplined, from verbal
reprimand to dismissal, based on the circumstances.

1. Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment of the District employees, by any person in or from the work
environment, is strictly prohibited. Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to,
unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal, visual, or
physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

® Submission to such conduct is made either expressly or by implication a term
or condition of an individual’s employment;

® Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis
for employment decisions affecting the individual; or

e Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual's work performance; creating an intimidating, hostile, 1threatening
or offensive working environment; or adversely affecting the employee’s
performance, evaluation, assigned duties, or any other condition of
employment or career development.

Sexual harassment also includes any act of retaliation against an employee for reports of
violation of this policy or for participating in the investigation of a sexual harassment
complaint.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 10



SECTION lﬂ PAGE Ne. (O

Other examples of sexual harassment include unwelcome sexual flirtations or
propositions; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; graphic verbal comments about an
individual’s body; sexually degrading words used to describe an individual; and the
display in the work environment of sexually suggestive objects or pictures, posters,
jokes, cartoons, or calendar illustrations.

2. Guidelines for the Employee
If you think you are being sexually harassed:

e Say NO! Make it clear to the offender that the behavior is unacceptable to
you. The harasser may not realize the advances or behavior are offensive.
Sometimes a simple confrontation will end the situation.

¢ Don’t let confusion and self-doubt stop you from speaking out.

e Keep arecord of dates, times, places, witnesses and nature of harassment.
Such records will be very helpful if you find it necessary to pursue a
formal grievance.

e If you feel that you have been or are being sexually harassed or are aware
of or suspect the occurrence of sexual harassment, or you desire
counseling on coping with sexual harassment, you should immediately
contact your supervisor, any other supervisor, a Director or the General
Manager.

e Maintain strict confidentiality ensuring the privacy of all parties
concerned.

This procedure is your exclusive remedy for prevention and resolution of
any issues of harassment at the District.

The District encourages all employees to report any incidents of harassment forbidden
by this policy immediately so that complaints can be quickly and fairly resolved. You
also should be aware that the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and
the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing investigate and prosecute
complaints of prohibited harassment in employment. If you think you have been
harassed or that you have been retaliated against for resisting or complaining, you may
file a complaint with the appropriate agency.

In addition to notifying the District about harassment or retaliation complaints, affected
employees may also direct their complaints to the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing ("DFEH"), which has the authority to conduct investigations
of the facts. The deadline for filing complaints with the DFEH is one year from the date
of the alleged unlawful conduct. If the DFEH believes that a complaint is valid and
attempts to resolve the dispute fail, the DFEH may seek an administrative hearing

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 11



SECTION_LY_ PAGE RO, \

before the California Fair Employment and Housing Commission ("FEHC") or file a
lawsuit in court. Both the FEHC and the courts have the authority to award monetary
and nonmonetary relief in meritorious cases. Employees can contact the nearest DFEH
office or the FEHC at the locations listed in the District DFEH poster or by checking the
State Government listings in the local telephone directory.

3. Disciplinary and/or Corrective Action

Any employee found to have sexually harassed anyone in or from the
work environment will be disciplined, from verbal reprimand to dismissal,
based on the circumstances.

A District representative will advise all parties concerned of the results of the
investigation. The District will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint and will
not tolerate nor permit retaliation by management employees or your co-workers.

1007 Integration Clause, Right to Revise, and Severability

This Employee Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of the District
in effect at the time of publication. All previously issued handbooks and any inconsistent
policy statements or memoranda are superseded. This Handbook sets forth the entire
agreement between you and the District as to the duration of employment and the
circumstances under which employment may be terminated. No oral statements or
representations can in any way change or alter the provisions of this Handbook.

The District reserves the right to revise, modify, delete or add to any and all policies,
procedures, work rules or benefits stated in this Handbook. No one other than the Board
of Directors may add to or modify any of policies contained in the Handbook. Any
written changes to this Handbook will be distributed to all employees so that you will be
aware of the new policies or procedures. This Handbook will be interpreted consistent
with current law.

Should any provision in this Employee Handbook be found to be unenforceable and
invalid, such finding does not invalidate the entire Employee Handbook, but only the
subject provision.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 12



SECTION ﬁﬂ PAGE NG._| 4

Chapter 2

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 13



SECTION_&(_'\__, PAGE NG._@.__

2000 Classification Plan

The Classification Plan provides a complete inventory of all positions within the District
and a description of the duties and responsibilities associated with each. All positions
which are substantially similar with respect to duties, responsibilities, authority, and
nature of work are included in the same class. The same salary range shall apply to all
positions in the same class.

The Classification Plan consists of the following: (1) a grouping of positions into classes,
similar with respect to duties, responsibilities, authority, character of work, and which
require substantially the same qualifications for employment, (2) position descriptions
for each class which describe areas of responsibility, typical duties, and other
requirements, and (3) a listing of positions showing the class title and name of employees
assigned to that position. Included in Appendix B is a list of the District’s current
position classes and associated position descriptions.

It shall be the responsibility of the General Manager to administer the District
Classification Plan so that it reflects all positions within the District fairly and accurately.
The General Manager shall review the Plan periodically, and, if necessary, recommend
appropriate changes to the District Board of Directors. The General Manager may
reclassify an already created position to a different classification when the duties of that
position have changed materially enough to warrant such reclassification, with such
change subject to Board approval.

2001 Hiring Procedure

When a vacancy occurs in a regular position, and the District is not able to promote a
qualified person from within, the District shall prepare and advertise a job
announcement. The job announcement shall specify the classification title, the nature of
the work to be performed, the pay range for the position, the minimum or desirable
qualifications, and the period of time for the filing of applications. The General Manager
may include additional information as he/she deems necessary. Applications for
employment shall be made on forms provided by the District.

The General Manager or his/her designee shall review all applications and other relevant
supplemental application material, and shall select the candidate(s) possessing the best
job-related qualifications for further consideration in an interview process. The interview
process shall be consistently and impartially applied to all candidates. The interview
process shall consist of one or more personal interviews, and may also incorporate any
of the following which are relevant for the position: a written test, an aptitude test, a
performance test, a physical agility test, or work samples from prior employment.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 14



SECTION ttuf PAGE NO._LL

2002 Conditions of Employment

Prior to employment commencing, all full-time employees will be required to pass a pre-
employment physical exam to determine their fitness to carry out the duties of the
position.

All full-time employees in positions which are considered “safety sensitive” in nature
are required to pass a pre-employment drug test in addition to the pre-employment
physical exam. Safety sensitive positions are defined as:
(1) Their duties involve a greater than normal level of trust, responsibility for or
impact on the health and safety of others; and
(2) Errors in judgment, inattentiveness or diminished coordination, dexterity or
composure while performing their duties could clearly result in mistakes that
would endanger the health and safety of others; and
(3) Employees in these positions work with such independence, or, perform such
tasks that it cannot be safely assumed that mistakes such as those described in
(2) could be prevented by a supervisor or another employee.
Safety sensitive positions include but are not limited to the Essex and Ruth based
employees, and the General Manager. Administrative staff positions generally are not
considered safety sensitive.

Temporary employees may also be required to pass a pre-employment physical and
drug test.

Essex-based maintenance and operation employees are required to reside within 45 miles
and/or one hour’s driving distance of the Essex Control Center. The Essex control Center
is located in Humboldt County, a remote area of the state which on regular occasions is
isolated from other counties or reasonable access due to weather conditions, road closure,
or other emergency conditions. The District is the sole water supplier in the Humboldt
Bay region and provides the necessary water service for municipal drinking as well as
fire protection purposes. The District also provides water treatment to protect public
health under strict Federal and State of California regulations and guidelines requiring
frequent operations attention. Therefore, the District needs to have competent personnel
available to assure these services are maintained, as well as twenty-four hour emergency
on call response available even when the area is isolated due to weather or other
emergency conditions.

Any District employee that drives a District vehicle, or is authorized to drive their own
vehicle in the course of their employment, shall be required to have a valid California
driver's license of the appropriate class. If they are authorized to drive their own vehicle
they shall also be required to provide proof of insurance. The employees' driving record
must be free of multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents, and will be taken into
consideration as a factor in the selection process and continued employment with the
District.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 15



SECTION ﬁl’\ PAGE NG, |9

Any employee who handles District funds must be bondable and will be required to meet
the standards for a fidelity bond from a surety acceptable to the District.

It is the District's intention to only hire those workers who are authorized to work in the
United States, pursuant to the Immigration and Naturalization Act of 1990. Any person
offered employment with the District would be required to verify their eligibility to work
in the United States. This will require the completion of the employment eligibility
verification forms (i.e., I-9) and submission of all required documents providing proof of
identification.

2003 Appointment

The General Manager shall make all offers of employment in writing, stating the job title,
pay rate, date of hire, that the position is at-will, and any other conditions of employment.
Once an offer of employment has been made and accepted, employment remains
contingent upon passing the required pre-employment physical examination and drug
screening.

2004 Promotions

It is the District’s intent to promote employees from within if the employee under
consideration for promotion has the necessary interest, qualifications and experience.
Promotions to vacancies in higher classifications shall be made available to employees
whenever such promotions are in the best interest of the District.

2005 Compensation Plan

The Compensation Plan is intended to provide fair and competitive compensation for all
positions at the District. The pay range for each position class at the District shall be
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may from time to time
authorize changes in the pay range considering factors such as the cost of living index
and other labor market data. The current pay range for each position class is included in
Appendix C.

Individual steps within the pay range for each class have been established to recognize
varying experience levels of employees upon initial hire to the District, and to provide
incentives and rewards to employees who gain experience and perform satisfactorily.
Step increases are generally granted at one-year intervals, subject to satisfactory
performance (see Section 2007, Merit, below).

The District recognizes the value of qualified employees, who by virtue of working for
the District for an extended period of time, gain valuable experience and technical
expertise on the regional water system and/or other aspects of the District’s business.
The District wishes to promote longer-term service, and therefore, has instituted

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 16



SECTION_ 4 page o

e

“longevity pay”. Full-time employees will receive the following increase in base pay,
subject to satisfactory performance, as follows:

o b years of service - 2.5%

o 10 years of service - 5%

o 20 years of service - 7.5%

o 25 years of service - 5%

2006 Performance Evaluations

In order to provide an effective means of evaluating individual employee performance,
and to substantiate and justify the recommendation and approval of a merit pay increase,
all employees will receive periodic performance evaluations. Performance evaluations
shall be prepared on a form approved by the General Manager. A sample evaluation
form is contained in Appendix D.

Your first performance evaluation will be conducted within the first six months of
employment. After that, performance evaluations will be conducted annually. More
frequent evaluations may occur depending upon past performance, changes in job duties
or classification, or if performance problems exist. Your performance evaluation may
review factors such as the quality and quantity of the work you perform, your knowledge
of the job, your initiative, your attitude toward work, and your attitude toward and
ability to work with others. The evaluations should help you become aware of your
overall performance, areas for improvement, and objectives or goals for future work
performance.

The evaluation will be conducted by your supervisor who will discuss the results with
you. After the review you will be required to sign the evaluation report to acknowledge
that it has been discussed with you by your supervisor, and that you are aware of its
contents. All evaluations will be filed in your personnel file and a copy provided to you
after the discussion with your supervisor.

Absence of a performance evaluation does not imply satisfactory performance.
Additionally, positive performance evaluations do not guarantee increases in pay or
promotions, nor do they extend any guarantee or right of continued employment. Pay
increases and promotions are solely within the discretion of the District and depend upon
many factors in addition to performance.

2007 Merit and Longevity Increases

A one-step merit increase will be considered annually on or about the anniversary date
of employment or promotion with the District, subject to a favorable performance review.
Upon the recommendation of an employee’s supervisor, and with the General Manager's
approval, an employee may be considered for a special merit review at any time if
performance or other conditions so warrant. Longevity increases will also be granted,

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 17



SECTION _&ﬂ_, PAGE NG. __ll

subject to satisfactory performance, at specified times as described in Section 2005
(Compensation Plan). Any and all changes in pay will become effective on the pay
period closest to the scheduled anniversary date. The granting of merit and/or longevity
increases in pay do not extend any guarantee or right of continued employment to an
employee granted such increase.

2008 Work Schedules

The workweek begins on Monday at 12:01 a.m. and ends the following Sunday at
Midnight.
The regular work schedules are generally as follows:
o Eureka office staff: 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
o Essex supervisory, Maintenance & Electrical staff: 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
o Essex Operations staff Alternative Work Schedule: 8 hrs, two 10 hrs, 12 hrs
rotational shifts.*
o EHssex Operations staff (if on regular schedule): day shift 8:00 a.m. to 4:00
p.m.; swing shift 4:00 p.m. to midnight; graveyard midnight to 8:00 a.m.

Your working hours or regular schedule may change from time to time depending on
business needs. Under such circumstances, the District will provide you as much notice
as possible.

*HBMWD Operation and Maintenance Technicians requested, and were granted, an
alternative work schedule which has certain conditions attached to it. Primarily that each
O&M Tech understands that the District, at its sole discretion, and at any time, may
revoke the alternative work schedule and return all O&M Techs to a regular 8-hour per
day shift rotation schedule.

Due to the seasonal nature of the District’s Turbidity Reduction Facility (TRF), most O&M
Techs work part of the year in the Operations Department and part of the year in the
Maintenance Department. While in Maintenance, O&M Techs work standard eight-hour
shifts.

The Alternative Work Schedule is as follows:

o Comprised of a series of eight, ten and twelve hour days.

o Employees are scheduled to work four days each work week (on 8, 10 or
12 hour shifts) which together total 40 hours, with three scheduled days
off.

You will be provided one-half hour for lunch. Your lunch will be scheduled by your
supervisor at approximately the middle of a work shift to the extent possible. Lunch
periods are not considered to be time worked. You should also take two ten-minute rest
periods each day which will generally be scheduled at 10:00 a.m. and 2:30 p.m.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 18



section YL PAGE NG, [%

2009 Pay and Paydays

The District processes payroll twice per month. Pay for time worked from the first thru
the fifteenth of the month (1st - 15%) will be paid no later than the 22nd of the month. Pay
for time worked from the sixteenth thru the last day of the month (16 - last day of month)
will be paid no later than the 7t of the following month. The District offers direct deposit
as a convenience to employees. For those employees who prefer paper checks, they will
be available for employees on the 7% or the 22nd of the month at the Eureka office after
3:30p.m.

Full-time employees are paid a monthly salary which is adjusted to provide
compensation based on actual hours worked or, in the event of paid leave, on the basis
of credits due to the individual employee. Hourly rates and overtime rates for full-time
employees will be calculated, per provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act as it applies
to public agencies, using the monthly salary level for a given individual. Overtime
worked or time off will be credited or deducted in one-quarter hour increments.

2009.1 Paycheck Direct Deposit- The implementation of direct deposit of paychecks is
provided as a convenience for employees. Each employee who would like to participate
in direct deposit must complete a Direct Deposit Employee Authorization Form and
provide a voided check or a copy of the portion of their bank statement that verifies the
bank routing number and account number.

2010 Overtime Pay and Procedures

The District pays overtime to non-exempt employees according to applicable state and
federal laws. Overtime hours will be paid at 1.5 or 2.0 times the regular hourly rate, in
accordance with applicable law.

It is your responsibility to plan and carry out assigned duties within the work schedule
assigned by your supervisor. If your assigned work cannot be accomplished within your
scheduled work hours, you must so inform your supervisor. Any additional hours of
work required must be approved in advance by your supervisor, or the Superintendent,
Business Manager or General Manager.

If possible, supervisors should obtain advance approval from the Superintendent,
Business Manager or the General Manager before authorizing overtime. In situations
where prior approval is not possible, supervisors may authorize overtime, but must
notify the Superintendent, Business Manager or General Manager of overtime worked as
soon after as possible.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 19



SECTIGN \:\ﬁ_,PAGE vo._L9

2010.1 Comp Time in Lieu of Overtime- Any non-exempt employee has the option of
choosing when to receive compensation for overtime hours worked. Employees can
either be compensated on the paycheck when the overtime hours were worked or at a
later date by the use of a Compensatory Time Off Bank (Comp Time Bank). Hours are
banked at a rate of 1.5 hours per 1 hour of overtime worked.

The option to use the Comp Time Bank is voluntary. The employee must complete and
sign the Overtime/Comp Time Bank Agreement (Appendix D). Once a signed
agreement is on file at the Eureka office, any worked overtime hours will be posted to the
Comp Time Bank until the bank reaches 40-hours. Once the bank reaches 40-hours, the
employee will be switched back to receiving their overtime pay on their paycheck when
the hours are worked. An employee may opt back out of the Overtime/Comp Time Bank
Agreement by notifying the Eureka office in writing at least 30-days in advance. An
employee may only opt in or out of the Overtime/Comp Time Bank Agreement once
during any calendar year.

Overtime hours posted to the Comp Time Bank (up to 40 hours) may be used at a future
date in two ways:
o Paid time off (with supervisor pre-approval)

o Cashed out (once per calendar year)

The use of Comp Time hours must be scheduled and approved in advance by your
supervisor. These requests will be evaluated on the basis of projected manpower needs,
seniority, and extenuating circumstances

2011 Holiday, On-Call, Call-Back, Shift Differential and Meeting Pay
Holiday: Time worked on a holiday will be paid at twice the regular hourly rate.

On-Call: If you are required to be on-call to provide telephone or radio support to on-
duty staff, or for possible recall to work, you will be paid at 25% of your regular hourly
wage for all hours on-call. When on-call, you must be reachable either via telephone or
radio at all times. Any time spent actually responding to on-call situations shall be
counted as hours worked, and you shall be paid at your regular or overtime hourly rate
for such hours, whichever is applicable.

Call-Back: The District will compensate you a minimum two hours of pay if you are
required to report to work on a day other than your normally scheduled workday, or if
you are called back to work after your regular shift has terminated. This two-hour
minimum shall not apply to on-call situations.

Shift Differential: If you work the swing and/or graveyard shift between the hours of
4:00 p.m. and 8 a.m., you will be paid an additional hourly rate. This is based on 5% of
your regular hourly rate (i.e. regular hourly rate $15.00 x 5% = $.75 per hour). Eligible

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 20



SECTIGN__H_'ﬂ_, PAGE NG, 30

hours are considered hours worked during the swing and graveyard shifts. Employees
will not be paid shift differential for holiday, overtime or standby hours. Premium pay is
already paid in these circumstances. Eligible hours subject to shift differential pay will be
determined and reported on the employee’s individual timesheets by the Supervisor. An
employee must work to be paid shift differential. This means when an employee takes
either: vacation/ sick/bereavement/ floating holiday time off on a day that was schedule
as shift differential hours, shift differential pay will not be paid. This will appear on your
pay stub as a Shift Differential.

Meetings: You will be paid for your time while attending meetings, lectures and
training programs if they are mandatory or directly related to your job. Any overtime
hours, including travel time, will be paid in accordance with state and federal law at the
appropriate overtime rate.

2012 Time Records

Your time sheet is used to determine the number of hours for which you will be paid for
a given pay period, and to keep track of your paid time off or other leaves. Therefore,
it is essential that you keep an accurate record of hours worked, sick leave, vacation, or
other absences. As noted previously, all overtime requires prior approval. Essex and
Ruth based employees time sheets are completed by your supervisor, and reviewed by
the Superintendent. Eureka employees complete their timesheets and submit them to
their supervisors for approval.

2013 Personal Records

The District wants to be sure that your paycheck reflects the proper deductions and that
your dependents are covered by all appropriate benefits. Therefore, to ensure the
personal data in your file is accurate and up-to-date, please notify the Accounting and
HR Specialist of any changes in your personal status as soon as possible. Important
information includes:

o Name, address, telephone number
Marital status
Number of dependents
Person to be notified in case of emergency
Beneficiaries for insurance

0O 0 0O

2014 Personnel File

You have a right to inspect documents in your personnel file in the presence of a
District representative at a mutually convenient time. You may have copies of any
documents within your personnel file. Completion and submission of a Personnel
Records Request form is required. This form is provided in Appendix H. You may add
your version of any disputed item to the file.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 21



secmn_]ﬂ_, PAGE 10._P _

Personnel files are confidential and will be treated as such. The District will restrict
disclosure of your personnel file to authorized individuals only. Any request for
information from personnel files must be directed to the General Manager. Disclosure of
personal information will not occur unless requested by authorized law enforcement or
other governmental agencies conducting official investigations, or as otherwise legally
required.

2015 Discipline

Circumstances may occur which necessitate disciplinary action by the District.
Disciplinary methods and actions are at the sole discretion of the District. Use of
discipline does not affect the District’s at-will employment status.

A system of progressive discipline may be implemented, at the sole discretion of the
District, and may include any of the following steps: Oral Reprimand, Written
Reprimand, Demotion, Suspension Without Pay or Discharge. The General Manager
shall review and approve all disciplinary actions involving suspensions, and only the
General Manager has the authority to discharge or terminate employees.

Summary discipline (direct action) may be taken in cases involving criminal conduct,
drunkenness, drug abuse on the job, insubordination and similar employee conduct
which requires imposition of the immediate discipline.

2016 Issue Resolution

At some time during your employment with the District, you may have an issue, problem
or complaint about your job, your working conditions or the treatment you are receiving.
Such issues, problems, or complaints are of interest to the District. To facilitate discussion
and resolution, we ask that you take the following steps:

o Bring the problem to the attention of your immediate supervisor in a timely
manner. Your supervisor will investigate and provide a solution or explanation.

o If your supervisor does not adequately address the problem, or if it persists, bring
the problem to the attention of the Superintendent, Business Manager or the
General Manager. It is recommended that you do this as soon as possible after
you believe your supervisor has failed to resolve it. The Superintendent, Business
Manager or General Manager will then investigate and provide a solution or
explanation.

The District values your input and you should feel free to raise issues or concerns, in
good faith, without the fear of retaliation.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 22



SECTION__}‘E:\_, N, ¢ 0

2017 Termination

You may voluntarily terminate employment with the District by:
o Voluntarily resigning
o Failing to report to work for 3 consecutively scheduled workdays without notice
to or approval by your supervisor, upon voluntary termination, you will be paid
any accrued wages and accrued vacation, and potentially a portion of your
accrued sick leave (pursuant to the formula in Section 4001.5).

Upon involuntary termination, you will be paid, , any accrued wages and accrued
vacation, and potentially a portion of accrued sick leave (pursuant to the formula in
Section 4001.5) within 48 hours of termination.

You must immediately return all District-owned property (vehicles, keys, uniforms,
identification badges, credit cards, etc.) upon termination of employment. You should
take all personal items with you when you leave the District. Personal items left in the
workplace are subject to disposal if not claimed at the time of the termination.

2018 Employment Verification

All requests for employment verification should be directed to the Accounting and HR
Specialist. No other District employee is authorized to release employment verification
or reference information for current or former employees. The District's policy is to only
disclose dates of employment, and titles of positions held. If you authorize disclosure in
writing, the District will also provide a prospective employer with information regarding
the salary or wage last earned. Requests for any additional reference information shall
be directed to the General Manager. As a matter of policy, the District will not provide
letters of reference.

2019 Off-Duty Conduct/Other Employment

While the District does not seek to interfere with the off-duty and personal conduct of
its employees, certain types of off-duty conduct may interfere with the District’s
legitimate business interests. For this reason, employees should be aware of the
following policies:

Employees are expected to conduct their personal affairs in a manner that does not
adversely affect the District’s or their own integrity, reputation or credibility. Conduct
on the part of an employee that adversely affects the District’s legitimate business
interests or the employee’s ability to perform his or her job will not be tolerated.

While employed by the District, employees are expected to devote their energies to their
jobs with the District. The following types of outside employment are strictly
prohibited.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 23



seonon_HY_,pace o,

e Employment that conflicts with an employee’s work schedule, duties and
responsibilities;

e Employment that creates a conflict of interest or is incompatible with the
employee’s employment with the District;

¢ Employment that impairs or has a detrimental effect on the employee’s work
performance with the District;

¢ Employment that requires the employee to conduct work or related activities on the
District’s property during the District’s working hours or using the District’s
facilities and/ or equipment;

Employment that directly or indirectly competes with the business or the interests of
the District.

Employees who wish to engage in outside employment that may create a conflict of
interest must submit a written request to the General Manager explaining the details of
the outside employment. If the outside employment is authorized, the District assumes
no responsibility for the outside employment. The District shall not provide workers’
compensation coverage for injuries occurring from or arising out of outside
employment. Authorization to engage in outside employment can be revoked at any
time. If an employee has any doubts, it is recommended that a written request be
submitted to insure there are no future problems.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 24



SECTION !ﬂ PAGE r:o._ﬁt_\’__

Chapter 3

DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS and STANDARDS

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 25



section_HY_pace o, 20

3000 Standards of Conduct

Working together at the District requires cooperation and mutual respect for the rights of
all employees, customers, and the general public. Therefore, the District has high
expectations regarding the personal conduct of its employees. Employees of the District
are expected to work in a positive, productive and self-disciplined manner. The District
expects that employees will:

1. Use good judgment and work safely at all times

2. Use your experience and training to deliver high quality drinking water to ensure
protection of public health

3. Follow operations manuals and procedures, and other written or oral directives
from your supervisor

4. Work competently and diligently to carry out and complete your assigned duties

5. Keep yourself informed so as to perform your job effectively

6. Work well with your co-workers and be concerned and protective of their welfare

While continuation of your employment is at the mutual consent of you and the District,
it may be helpful to identify some examples of the types of conduct that are impermissible
and may lead to various forms of discipline, up to and including immediate termination.
Although it is not possible to provide an exhaustive list of all types of impermissible
conduct and performance, the following are some examples:

1. Insubordination, including improper conduct toward, or refusal to perform tasks
assigned by your supervisor, the Superintendent or the General Manager;

2. Drinking/intoxication while working or driving a company-owned vehicle;

3. For positions requiring a CDL, not maintaining an acceptable driving record.

(Note - District’s insurance carrier defines acceptable as: no moving violationin a
District vehicle, no at-fault accidents, and no more than two “points” from DMV
within a 36-month period);

4. Possession, distribution, sale or use of illegal drugs while at work or on the
property, or while driving a company-owned vehicle;

5. Theft or unauthorized removal or possession of property from the District, fellow
employees, customers, or anyone on District property;

6. Fighting on District property or while on District business;

7. Violating safety or health rules, or engaging in conduct that creates a
safety or health hazard;

8. Sexual or other unlawful harassment of another employee;

9 Bringing onto District property or in District vehicles, dangerous or unauthorized

materials, such as explosives, firearms, hazardous materials or other similar items,
except as provided for in Section 3016;
10.  Conviction of a criminal offense that impacts on your employment;

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 26



section_TY _ PAGE NG, A

11.  Falsifying or making a material omission in an employment application, or in
other information provided in personnel, timekeeping or other District records;

12. Committing a fraudulent act or a breach of trust under any circumstances;

13.  Neglect in the care or use of District property;

14.  Poor job performance;

15.  Excessive (3 per month) unexcused absenteeism or tardiness;

16.  Violation of District policies.

This list of prohibited conduct does not alter the District’s policy of at-will employment.
Either you or the District remain free to terminate the employment relationship at any
time, with or without reason or advance notice.

3000.1 Dress Code Standards - While the District has no formal dress code, it is
expected that you will dress in a manner consistent with good business practices.
The basic rule is “Nothing too short, tight, ragged or dirty. If in doubt, don’t wear it.”
Employees at the Essex location, for safety purposes, are not permitted to wear open-
toed shoes, slipper style or clog shoes or other shoes not appropriate for the work
environment. Please ask the Superintendent for additional clarification if needed.

3001 Alcohol-Drug-Free Work Place

The District recognizes that behavior resulting from the use of alcohol and/or drugs
may detrimentally affect the safety and work performance of its work force and can
present a risk to the health and welfare of its employees and members.

In recognition of the District’s responsibility to maintain a safe work environment and
your responsibility to perform safely, the District will act to eliminate any substance
abuse, which increases the risk of injuries, accidents, or substandard performance. For
the purpose of this policy, substance abuse includes the use or possession of illegal
drugs, alcohol or, abuse of prescription drugs, which could impair your work
performance and/or ability to perform your job safely. It is expected that:

O You shall not be at work, drive a vehicle on District business, or operate the
District’s equipment with any amount of alcohol or illegal drugs in your
system which would result in a confirmed positive test; shall not use alcohol,
possess open containers of alcohol, or use or possess illegal drugs while on
duty; and shall not manufacture, distribute, dispense, sell or provide illegal
drugs to any person while on duty.

O If the use of a prescription drug combined with the duties of the required job
creates an unsafe working condition, this fact shall be reported to your
supervisor or General Manager prior to reporting to work. Employees whose
job performance is so restricted may be subject to reassignment, medical
examination, or other actions specified by applicable statues and regulations.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 27



SECTIGN__\’H_. PAGE NO. -8-1/.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

Employees may be subject to drug and alcohol testing when there is reasonable
suspicion that the employee has violated the rules expressed above. In addition, when
any employee has previously been found in violation of these rules, or by the
employee’s own admission, the employee may be required to submit to periodic
substance testing as a condition of remaining in or return to District employment.

3001.1. Fitness-For-Duty & Return-To-Work Evaluations -The purpose of this policy
is to determine an employee’s ability to safely perform the essential job tasks of his/her
job with or without reasonable accommodation. This policy is not designed or intended
to supersede employer requirements under any state or federal law or regulation and
will be utilized in accordance with the law.

General guidelines:

e Each employee is responsible for maintaining his/her health in such a way that
the employee can perform the essential functions of his/her job with or without
reasonable accommodations. If a supervisor has reason to question the ability of
an employee to perform the essential job functions, a Fitness-for-Duty or Return-
to- Work Evaluation may be requested.

e To determine the appropriateness of a Fitness-for-Duty or Return-to-Work
Evaluation request, supervisors must consult and receive approval from the
General Manager.

o Time required by the employee to complete the Fitness-for-Duty / Return-to-
Work Evaluation is considered work time and may require an administrative
leave. Time off for prescribed treatment (after the evaluation), mandatory or
otherwise, will be charged to accrued sick leave and/or compensatory time.

e Results of the evaluation will be maintained confidentially and separate from the
employee’s personnel record.

e If a Fitness-for-Duty / Return-to-Work evaluation is necessary, the employee will
be required to be examined by a treating, personal physician or specialist
selected by the District.

e Failure to attend a Fitness-for-Duty or Return-to-Work Evaluation may lead to
disciplinary action, up to and including, termination.

Any employee who has questions concerning this policy or wants information on the
dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, or is interested in available assistance
programs, is encouraged to discuss this matter with the General Manager.

Any District employee convicted of any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 28



SECTION __Pﬂ_, enGE 0. K

in the workplace, shall notify the District, in writing, no later than five calendar days
after such conviction. The District upon receiving such notification will notify any
federal or state agency from which it receives funds as required, within ten days.

The Federal Highway Administration of the Department of Transportation (DOT) has
mandated urine drug testing and breathalyzer alcohol testing for safety-sensitive
positions, and prevents performance of safety-sensitive functions when there is a
positive test result. In addition, DOT requires the establishment of drug free workplace
policies and the reporting of certain drug-related offenses.

Appendix F contains the District’s DOT Substance Abuse Policy, the purpose of which
is to assure fitness for duty and to protect our employees and the public from risks
posed by alcohol and controlled substance use. This, in conjunction with the Drug-Free
Work Place policy above, is intended to comply with applicable Federal regulations
governing workplace anti-drug programs in the transportation industry.

3002 Punctuality and Attendance

You are expected to be punctual and regular in attendance. Any tardiness or absence
causes problems for your supervisor and your fellow employees. An unscheduled
absence causes your workload to fall on others, just as you must assume the workload
of others who are absent.

Excessive (3 per month) absenteeism or tardiness without legitimate reasons will not be
tolerated. If you are unable to report for work on any day, you must call your
supervisor (or if unavailable the Superintendent, Business Manager or General
Manager) before the time you are scheduled to begin working that day. In all cases of
absence or tardiness, you must provide your supervisor with an honest reason or
explanation and the expected duration.

If you fail to report for work without notifying your supervisor (or if unavailable the
Superintendent, Business Manager or General Manager) and your absence continues for
a period of three days, the District will consider that you have abandoned your job and
have voluntarily terminated your employment.

3003 Emergency Response

District operations involve supplying potable water to the District’s wholesale
municipal and retail customers. Any interruptions of these services can pose significant
public health problems to the communities we serve. All regular full-time employees
shall be subject to emergency call outs. All employees that are subject to emergency
calls are required to have working telephones in operation at all times in their places of
residence. Employees subject to emergency call-outs are required to report changes in
residence or phone number to the Superintendent within five working days.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 29



SECTION_ (’\_,PAGE o A

3004 Certification

California’s Health and Safety Code specifies requirements for Water Treatment and
Distribution Certification. The following summarizes the State requirements:

If an operator has been designated by the water supplier as the Chief Operator
or Shift Operator, the operator must be certified at the level specified below:
Minimum
HBMWD Facility Certification of Chief =~ Minimum Certification of
Classification Operator Shift Operator
Treatment 4 (T4) T4 T3
Distribution 4 (D4) D4 D3

The State regulations further state that water systems shall utilize only certified

distribution operators to make decisions regarding the following operational activities:
0 install, tap, re-line, disinfect, test and connect water mains and appurtenances

shutdown, repair, disinfect and test broken water mains

oversee flushing, cleaning, and pigging of existing water mains

pull, reset, rehabilitate, disinfect and test domestic water wells

stand-by emergency response duties for after-hours distribution system

emergencies

Q drain, clean, disinfect and maintain distribution reservoirs.

OO0 OO

And water systems shall utilize either certified distribution operators or treatment
operators to make decisions regarding the following operational activities:
o operate pumps and related flow and pressure control and storage facilities
0 maintain or adjust system flow and pressure requirements to meet consumer
demands
0 determine and control proper chemical dosage rates for well head
disinfection and distribution residual maintenance
0 investigate water quality problems in the distribution system

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 30



section_iH_pace o 20

Based on the state’s requirements, and the operational decision-making needs of the
District, the following requirements have been established for each position class:

Distribution
Position Class Treatment Certification Certification
Required Required

District Superintendent T4 (desired) D4

T2 (if State will not recognize

job duties and experience to

obtain T3/ T4 certification) **
Water Operations Supervisor T4 D4
(Chief Operator)
Assistant Water Operations T4 D4
Supervisor
Maintenance & Electrical Supervisor | T4 (desired) D4

T2 (if State will not recognize

job duties and experience to

obtain T3 /T4 certification) **
Assistant Maintenance& Electrical T2 D4
Supervisor
Water Operations Specialist T4 D4
O&M Technicians (Shift Operators) | T3 D3
Operations &
Customer Service Specialist T3 D3
Maintenance Mechanic T2 D2
Electrician & Instrument Technician | T2 D2
Ruth Hydro Operator T2 D2
Maintenance Worker T1 D1

** Note - State regulations require that our Chief Operator (Operations Supervisor) be certified at the T4/D4 level.
As a matter of District policy, we wanted all of our supervisory positions at Essex to have the highest level of
Treatment and Distribution Certification possible. Thus, all three Essex supervisory positions were originally
required to be T4/D4. However, the State employs a very narrow definition of “treatment experience” which is
required for all treatment certification levels beyond T2. Therefore, the required certification levels for the
Superintendent, Maintenance Supervisor and Assistant Water Operations Supervisor have been changed to reflect
the realities of State decision making,

If an employee, upon initial hire to the District or promotion within the District, does
not possess the required certification, the District will allow a specified period of time
for that employee to achieve the required certification. The specific amount of time

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 31



SECTIGN_H‘_‘L PAGE M0, 2] _

allowed to achieve the required certification shall be specified in the employee’s
hire/promotion letter from the District. The employee must meet the certification
requirements within that specified period of time as a condition of employment. Under
extenuating circumstances, a one-time extension may be granted to the employee to
meet the certifications requirements, upon approval by the General Manager.

The District will support employees through the certification process to the greatest
extent possible. The District will pay the following costs associated with the
certification process: examination fees, certification fees, renewal fees, and authorized
books/ courses to allow the employee to prepare for the exams, and costs associated
with continuing education requirements. The District will also allow a specified amount
of time during the paid work week for the employee to prepare for the exams. The
amount of preparatory time, and when an employee may take it, shall be specified by
the Superintendent.

Although not required, employees in the Maintenance Mechanic, Electrician,
Maintenance Worker and Hydro Operator position classes are encouraged to achieve
higher certification levels so as to maximize their training and potential career
progression.

In addition, the District has several vehicles that require a Commercial Class A License
for operation. Medical evaluation and certification is also required for this license. The
medical evaluation is provided at the District’s designated medical care facility. The
District will reimburse for Commercial license renewal fees for those employees with a
job classification requiring a Commercial Class A License.

3005 Release of District Information and Media Contacts

Improper use or disclosure of District information may result in liability for you and the
District. If you have any doubt as to whether you should release information to anyone
who does not have a clear right to that information, please refer the matter to the
Superintendent, Business Manager or General Manager.

Since the events of September 11%, the District has instituted a new policy regarding
release of District information to members of the public, or other “outside” parties. A
person interested in information about the District, and especially our facilities, must
tirst complete a Request for Information form. The General Manager or Superintendent
must approve release of the information, prior to any information being provided to the
“outside” party. Finally, the District employee who actually provides the information
must document exactly what was provided (using Part 3 of Request for Information
form). The completed form shall be submitted to the Accounting and HR Specialist for

filing.

At times, you may be approached for interviews or comments by the news media. If
approached, refrain from making any comment. You must refer all media questions to

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 32



secrion_H_pacero._20

the General Manager or Superintendent. This policy enables the District to coordinate
replies to the news media.

3006 Conflicts of Interest

All employees are to avoid conflicts of interest. Conflicts occur when your individual
interest interferes with your responsibilities at the District, or when your personal
relationship (e.g. with a supplier, customer, subordinate) impairs your ability to
exercise good judgment on behalf of the District. Furthermore, you should not accept
loans, excessive entertainment or gifts, or anything constituting personal gain from a
supplier, customer, or other party doing business with the District. If you are involved
in any actual or potential conflict of interest, you should immediately disclose the
relevant circumstances to your supervisor, or the Superintendent, Business Manager or
General Manager. If an actual conflict is determined, the District may take appropriate
corrective action.

3007 Property

District Property: You are expected to use and handle with care District property (e.g.
equipment, supplies, tools, furniture, software, documents). District property,
including the shops and tools, are not to be used for personal purposes, nor removed
from the District, without prior approval of the Superintendent or General Manager.

Ruth-area: Due to the unique location and nature of work at Ruth, an arrangement is in
place whereby the District’s tools and shop may occasionally be used for personal
purposes by the Ruth-Area Representative, in exchange the Ruth-Area Representative
uses some of his personal tools to perform District work.

Surplus Property: Occasionally, the District will declare as surplus property it no longer

needs. The District’s policy regarding sale of surplus property is as follows:

» the General Manager and Superintendent are not eligible to buy surplus property;

» other employees may purchase surplus property if, at the sole discretion of the
District, they have no “insider information” about the surplus goods;

» aprocess must be used that allows all potential buyers to have an equal opportunity
to examine the property and an equal chance to obtain it (e.g. a sealed-bid process).

Personal Property: The District is not responsible for your personal property. You
should not leave valuable personal belongings in the workplace.

3008 Smoking /Tobacco Policy

Smoking tobacco or marijuana is not allowed in District buildings or any other enclosed
area or facility. Chewing and spitting tobacco is not allowed in or around any District
building or facility. Vaping and use of e-cigarettes are not permitted in or around
District buildings.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 33



secnom_ﬂ_, PAGE NG, 2 _

3009 Use of Telephone

You are entitled to use the District telephone for personal calls in case of emergency. It
is also recognized that occasionally personal calls may have to be made or taken during
scheduled working hours. These calls must be kept to a minimum and should be
interrupted to handle incoming calls or other District business. If you make a toll call
for personal business, you must reimburse the District for the cost of such calls in
accordance with the established procedure.

3010 Use of Computers, E-mail, Internet, Voicemail, and FAX

Computers, E-mail, Internet (including social networks), voicemail and FAX machines
are provided to District employees for the purpose of conducting District business and
are not intended for personal use. Limited personal use is allowed, provided it meets
the following guidelines.

No use of the District's computers, E-mail, Internet (including social networks),
voicemail and FAX machines shall impair the District's business or the employee's
performance, commit any illegal act, violate the District's anti-harassment policy, or
result in private gain or advantage for the employee (such as conducting business
related to economic interests outside of District employment).

Each employee with access to the District's computers, E-mail, Internet (including social
networks), voicemail, and FAX machines is responsible for understanding and
following these guidelines. Unauthorized or improper use of the District's computers,
E-mail, Internet, voicemail or FAX machines may result in terminating access to it; and
depending upon the severity of the outcome of unauthorized or improper use, may
result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Employees may have a uniquely assigned user name and password for security
purposes. While this cannot guarantee privacy, confidentiality or data security, it is an
important component of the District's overall system protection. Employees are
responsible for all computer and Internet use under their user name, and shall maintain
the confidentiality of their password.

All electronic storage media, data files, logs and programs used on District owned
computer or telephone equipment is the property of the District and is subject to
inspection by the General Manager, Business Manager or Superintendent. No
employee has a personal right to, or any rights of privacy to any information stored or
created on the District's computer or telephone systems.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 34



SECTIGN L\__,PAG‘E vo. 4

3011 Health and Safety

The District is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees, and intends to fully comply with all laws regarding worker and workplace
safety. The District has a comprehensive Workplace Illness and Injury Prevention
Program (WIIP) as well as a number of other safety policies, procedures and practices.
A copy of the WIIP is included in Appendix E for your information and use.
Additionally, a complete copy of the District’s Safety Manual and ongoing safety
training schedule is available for your information and review at Essex and the Eureka
office.

Employees are expected to work safely and obey all safety-related rules and regulations
on the job at all times. If you sustain an injury or occupational illness at work, you
must immediately notify your supervisor, the Superintendent, Business Manager or the
General Manager. Additionally, please report any accidents or “near misses” even if
they do not result in injury, thereby helping sustain a safe environment.

3011.1 Safety Incentive Award -The District has instituted a safety incentive/reward
program for full-time regular employees. HBMWD believes that providing a positive
safety incentive program encourages employees to report injuries, illnesses and near
misses and recognizes, encourages and rewards their involvement in our District’s
safety management program and will assist in achieving these goals.

Incentive: Specific eligibility requirements are as follows: 1) applies to full time
employees only; 2) the employee must have been employed with the District for at least
six months in the calendar year for which the award applies; and 3) the employee is still
employed by the District at the time the safety drawing is conducted. The award is
$200 per employee per calendar year and $500 (including the $200) for one employee
whose name is randomly drawn from the list of $200 incentive recipients.

Criteria to be eligible for incentive award:

1. Participate in at least seventy five percent (75%) of monthly safety
meetings during the calendar year. For newly hired employees that meet
the eligibility requirements, percentage applies to eligible monthly safety
meetings.

. Wear appropriate PPE when required on the job.
. 3a. Provide one safety awareness or preventative suggestion to supervisor

2

3

J and have it documented at a safety meeting or with the safety committee.
|

One of these 3
per calendar 3b. Report an incident or near miss incident or unsafe conditions.
year
- 3c. Receive a “satisfactory” rating on annual performance evaluation
under the “Safe Practices” category.
HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018

Page 35



P
SECTION H PAGE 1O, D)

If employee fails to achieve any one of the three criteria listed above, they will be
ineligible for the annual award.

The employee must still be employed with the District at the time of the drawing. It is
very important that the safety award program not inhibit or deter employees from
addressing or reporting any injury sustained at work. Employees are once again
reminded that you must immediately notify your supervisor, the Superintendent,
Business Manager or General Manager if you sustain an injury or occupational illness at
work.

3012 Workplace Security and Workplace Violence

3012.1 Visitors - Visitors who are at District facilities are to be met in the office area and
accompanied by an employee at all times while on the premises. Only employees and
authorized consultants, suppliers or vendors are allowed on District property
unaccompanied.

3012.2 Monitoring and Vigilance - Employees should always pay attention to their
surroundings, and be on the look out for any abnormal or suspicious behavior or
situation in and around the workplace, or at any District facility. Any abnormal or
suspicious behavior or situation should immediately be reported to your supervisor, the
Superintendent, Business Manager or the General Manager.

3012.3 Workplace Violence - The District is committed to providing a safe and violence-
free workplace and strictly prohibits employees, consultants, customers, or visitors from
behaving in a violent or threatening manner. The District seeks to prevent workplace
violence before it begins, and reserves the right to deal with behavior that suggests a
propensity toward violence even prior to any violent behavior occurring. The District
believes that prevention of workplace violence begins with recognition and awareness of
potential early warning signs, and has established procedures for reporting and
investigating the possibility of violence.

Workplace violence includes but is not limited to:

1. Threats of any kind, or threatening, aggressive, or violent behavior;

2. Other behavior that suggests an inclination or propensity toward violence. This
could include belligerent speech, aggressive arguing or swearing, sabotage or
threats of sabotage, or a pattern of refusing to follow policies and procedures;
Defacing property or causing physical damage; or
4. Bringing weapons or firearms on District premises, in District vehicles, or while

conducting District business (other than that expressly allowed in Section 3016).

@

Any employee who observes or becomes aware of any of the above-listed actions, or
similar behavior, by an employee, customer, consultant, contractor, or visitor should
notify their supervisor, Superintendent, Business Manager or General Manager

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 36



sem*now_ﬂﬂd PAGE 10._Dlp

immediately. Further, employees should notify and provide a copy of any restraining
order that is in effect. Employees must also notify their supervisor, the Superintendent,
Business Manager or General Manager of any potentially violent non-work-related
situation that could result in violence in the workplace (for example a domestic dispute).
All reports of workplace violence or threats of such violence will be taken seriously and
will be investigated promptly and thoroughly. The District will not tolerate retaliation
against any employee who reports workplace violence.

If the District determines that workplace violence or threat of violence has occurred, the
District will take appropriate corrective action and will impose discipline on the
offending employee. While the nature of discipline will depend on the circumstances
involved, the District reserves the right to take other appropriate action, as it deems
appropriate, in its sole discretion, including without limitation initiation of civil and/or
criminal proceedings. If the violent behavior is that of a non-employee, the District will
take appropriate action in an attempt to ensure that such behavior is not repeated.

3013 Staff Expense Reimbursement Guide /Travel

All business travel must be authorized in advance by the General Manager,
Superintendent, or Business Manager.

3013.1 Per Diem and Travel Advance Procedures - To reduce/ eliminate out-of-pocket
costs for employees when travelling for District business, an advance per diem/ travel
check will be provided up to two weeks prior to travel. Once travel needs are known,
the employee will complete the top portion of the Per Diem/Travel Advance Request
Form and forward to the Eureka office. The check will not be issued more than two
weeks in advance of the travel event.

Once the check is issued to the employee, the employee will not be required to keep
receipts for meals and incidentals (per diem). If travel plans change or are cancelled, any
and all advance funds are due back to the District immediately. Failure to do so may be
grounds for termination.

The use of per diem and advance payment is required. Any exception must be approved
by the General Manager, Superintendent or Business Manager. An employee who does
NOT receive an advance per diem/ travel check, or who incurs additional expenses while
traveling that are not covered by the advance travel check, must claim reimbursement for
travel expenses using the Expense Reimbursement form and attach detailed receipts (see
3013.2, Employee Incurred Expenses, below). Advance per diem/travel checks are not
available after-the-fact.

Please refer to the “Per Diem & Travel Advance Policy” as well as the “Per Diem and
Travel Advance Procedures” for additional detail.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 37



—— T NvEd

3013.2 Employee Incurred Travel Expenses - Reimbursement for travel expenses not
covered by the per diem/advance travel check must be claimed using the Expense
Reimbursement Form and include submission of acceptable detailed receipts. Alcohol
is not reimbursable. Use of a personal vehicle for authorized District travel will be
reimbursed at the IRS-approved mileage reimbursement rate.

Any accompaniment by non-district personnel, whether the travel is by private car,
common carrier, or District vehicle, must be approved in advance by the General
Manager. No expenses associated with travel of the non-employee shall be reimbursed
by the District.

3013.3 District Issued Credit Card - Credit cards will be issued to Managers and
Supervisors who have the need to frequently purchase supplies or services. Credit cards should
be used only for legitimate, approved business of the District, subject to the following
regulations. These cards should be used for all approved expenses as authorized in this section.

0 No personal items may be charged on the business credit card;

0 All charges must be in line with travel guidelines or as approved by
management; and

O Receipts must be signed by a manager and submitted to the administrative
office within two weeks of making the charge.

3014 District/Personal Automobiles

Use of District-owned vehicles is limited strictly to work-related assignments, and only
District employees are authorized to operate District-owned vehicles. Employees with
assigned District vehicles may drive the vehicle from their home to the assigned work
location and from work back home each work day. Use of District vehicles for personal
business is strictly prohibited. Any employee driving a District vehicle must have an
appropriate un-expired driver’s license. Gas purchased for District vehicles (if not
pumped from District storage or filled at a “card-lock” station) must have a
documented receipt listing why the gas was purchased, the vehicle mileage, and the
purpose of the trip.

Use of personal vehicles on District business must be approved in advance except in
emergencies. Such use will be reimbursed per the travel policy outlined above.

All employees who drive a District vehicle or use a personal vehicle on District business
shall attend or take online an approved Defensive Driver Training Course at least once
every four years. Drivers may include temporary employees, seasonal employees, part-
time employees and volunteers.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 38



secnom__ﬁa PAGE N0, 4D _

3015 Cellular Phone Safety Policy

Consistent with California law, the use of cellular phones without a hands-free device
while driving on District business is prohibited. If you keep your cell phone on while
driving, you must use a hands-free device. If you do not have a hands-free device, you
must safely pull off the road to use your cellular phone. Under no circumstances, may a
driver initiate a cellular phone call or text message while driving a vehicle during the
course of business.

3016 District Cabin

Any employee of the District is eligible to use the Cabin/Bunkhouse at Ruth for
personal trips, as long as such use does not interfere with official District uses. The
cabin is available on a first-come, first-served basis, and use must be scheduled with the
Administrative Office. Use of the cabin costs $15.00 per night.

3017 Gun and Pepper Spray Policy

As discussed previously, bringing dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as
explosives, firearms, hazardous materials or other similar items, on District property or
in District vehicles is strictly prohibited except as follows:

0 Employees living at HBMWD's Ruth Lake Headquarters will be allowed to
keep rifles/ guns at the leased residence for personal use.

0 Employees assigned to maintenance duty at Ruth Lake may, with the prior
approval of the Superintendent, transport guns/rifles to the Ruth area for
recreational use during non-duty hours. It will be the responsibility of the
Superintendent to make sure such weapons are transported in a lawful
manner.

0 Full-time employees are allowed, but not required, to carry pepper spray for
personal protection against people or animals. -

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 39



|
secmNﬁl_’[_,PAeE vo, 2

Chapter 4

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 40



sem'loNﬂ.. paci o, 40

4000 Introduction

The benefits outlined below include certain benefits required by law, and others provided
at the discretion of the District to meet employee needs. All benefits are reviewed
annually and budgeted as part of the Salary and Employee Benefits Budget.

As the Board approves and changes benefits, the Employee Handbook will be updated.
All Board approved changes are applicable, regardless of whether they are listed in the
Employee Handbook.

Temporary employees are covered by Social Security, Worker’s Compensation, SDI and
Unemployment Insurance. No other benefits apply.

Full-time employees are covered by all of the benefits described below. It should be
noted though that not all benefits begin immediately upon hire - there may be a waiting
period before certain benefits commence. There are additional details associated with
some of the benefits outlined below. Please contact your supervisor or the Accounting
and HR Specialist to inquire about specific benefit details as necessary.

4001 Paid Time Off Benefits

4001.1 Vacation - Full-time employees begin accumulating ten (10) vacation days (at a
rate of 6 hours, 40 minutes per month) immediately upon hire. After four years of
service (on your anniversary date), you will be given five (5) additional vacation days
and begin accumulating fifteen (15) vacation days per year the following month (at a
rate of 1 day, 2 hours per month). After ten (10) years of service (on your anniversary
date), you will be given five (5) additional vacation days and begin accumulating
twenty (20) vacation days per year the following month (at a rate of 1 day, 5 hours, 20
minutes per month). Between fifteen (15) and twenty (20) years of service (on your
anniversary date), you will be given one additional day per year based on the following
schedule, and you will accumulate vacation at a higher rate each year commensurate
with the total days below:

o 16th year ~ 21 days
17th year - 22 days
18th year - 23 days
19th year - 24 days
20th year - 25 days

O O 0 O

All vacation leave must be scheduled and approved in advance by your supervisor and
will be evaluated on the basis of projected manpower needs, seniority, and extenuating
circumstances.

Vacation generally should be taken in the year in which it is earned.

No employee shall be allowed to accumulate more than 20 days (160 hours) of vacation
during the first five years of employment and no more than 30 days (240 hours) thereafter.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 41



SECTIGN_H‘_’L PAGE No.,,l:&_\___

Vacation days in excess of the above will be paid out by the District at the end of the
calendar year in which the accumulation limit is exceeded. In extenuating circumstances,
the General Manager may make an exception.

Employees, at their discretion, will be allowed to cash-in up to five days of earned
vacation in any one calendar year. This will be paid at their regular base salary.

4001.2 Holidays - Full-time employees are entitled to the following eleven paid regular
holidays:

1. New Year’s Day January 1

2. Martin Luther King Day 3rd Monday in January

3. Presidents’ Day 3rd Monday in February
4. Memorial Day Last Monday in May

5. Independence Day July 4th

6. Labor Day 1st Monday in September
7. Veterans’ Day November 11

8. Thanksgiving 4th Thursday in November
9. Day after Thanksgiving 4t Friday in November
10. Christmas Eve December 24th

11. Christmas December 25th

When a paid holiday falls on a Saturday, the District will recognize the preceding Friday
as the holiday. When a paid holiday falls on a Sunday, the District will recognize the
following Monday as the holiday.

Should a paid holiday fall on your regular day off, your Floating Holiday Bank balance
will be increased by 8 hours. Floating Holiday banked hours are always use/loose,
(cannot be accrued or cashed in, see 4001.3 for details) with the exception of additions
made for the Christmas Eve or Christmas Day holidays. Floating Holiday Bank hours
granted for either of those two holidays will expire February 28t of the following year.

4001.3 Floating Holiday Bank - Full-time employees are granted three Floating Holidays
(24 hours) per year. At the beginning of each calendar year employees will receive 24
hours posted to their Floating Holiday Bank. New hires are granted one (1) hour for
the first pay period in which they started work (regardless of the start date) and one (1)
hour per pay period through the end of the calendar year. These hours will be
calculated and posted to their Floating Holiday Bank within the first month of hire.
Floating Holiday hours cannot be accrued or cashed-in. Employees are encouraged to
use them prior to the calendar year-end. The only exception is regarding banked hours
related to regular paid holidays (see 4001.2 for details). The use of Floating Holiday hours
must be scheduled and approved in advance with your supervisor. These requests will
be evaluated on the basis of projected manpower needs, seniority, and extenuating
circumstances.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 42



SECTIGN_ﬁ_Li. PAGE i\:G.:__Lt?_:

If you wish to observe a religious holiday, you may Floating Holiday hours, accrued
vacation, or take time off without pay. Such days off must be scheduled in advance with
your supervisor.

4001.4 Management Leave - Management employees are exempt from overtime
compensation under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). In lieu of paid overtime,
management employees are granted management leave hours. These hours are posted
to the employees Management Leave Bank at the beginning of each calendar year.

o District Superintendent 4 days (32 hours)
o Business Manager 4 days (32 hours)
o Maintenance/Electrical Supervisor 3 days (24 hours)
o Water Operations Supervisor 3 days (24 hours)
o Asst. Maint./Electrical Supervisor 2 days (16 hours)
o Asst. Water Operations Supervisor 2 days (16 hours)

Management Leave hours cannot be accrued or cashed-in. Employees are encouraged
to use them prior to calendar year-end

4001.5 Sick Leave - All full-time-employees are provided paid sick leave benefit. Sick
leave is defined as the time an employee is absent from work due to illness or injury, or
to undergo medical, dental or optical examinations or treatment, or for family purposes
that meets the following criteria:

o Care of an eligible family member who is incapacitated because of illness or
injury and definitely requires personal care. The length of an absence for this
purpose shall be limited to the time reasonably required to either provide care
or to make other arrangements for such care. For the purpose of this
subsection, an eligible family member is the employee’s spouse, child, parent,
grandparent, domestic partner (as defined by Section 297 of the California
Family Code), or domestic partner’s child. Additionally, under this
subsection, an eligible family member is any other close relative or child who
resides with the employee.

o To transport an eligible family member to and from a local hospital for
medical treatment or operation, including childbirth.

o Tobe in attendance during serious medical treatment or operation, including
childbirth, performed upon an eligible family member.

Sick leave of three days is available for part-time employees at the beginning of each
twelve-month period. There is no carryover of sick leave for part-time employees. For
full-time employees, sick leave is accumulated at the rate of one day (8 hours) per
month, up to a maximum of 130 days, during months the employee is working or on
authorized paid leave. Sick leave will no longer accrue when an employee’s
accumulated sick leave balance equals 130 days (1040 hours). Sick leave is

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 43



SECTIGN_B‘:X_. PAGE NG.:_’L?_

used in increments of no less than one-quarter hour. A record of accumulated sick leave
and sick leave used will be maintained at the District’s administrative office.

It is your responsibility to notify your supervisor as soon as possible, and when
reasonably possible, no later than one-half hour after the start of the work shift, if you are
unable to come to work due to illness or injury. If the illness lasts more than one day,
you must keep your supervisor notified of your condition and estimated return to work.

The District may request a doctor’s certificate clearing you to return to work if the illness
or injury so merits. A doctor’s certificate may also be required on any absence exceeding
three work days. The District may periodically evaluate your ability to return to work
with your physicians, and with Worker’s Comp or SDI if applicable.

When applicable, the District will coordinate its sick leave benefits with Worker’s
Compensation benefits (Section 4001.7) and with State Disability Insurance (SDI) (Section
4002.1). If you receive Worker’s Comp or SDI payments, you must report them in writing
to the Accounting and HR Specialist for proper accounting and coordination. Under
such circumstances, you will be credited with the equivalent amount of sick leave. In no
event will you receive more in total compensation from the District and the insurer than
your regular wage.

In the event you become ill or incapacitated longer than your accumulated time off
(including vacation), health, dental and life insurance benefits will remain in effect as
long as the terms of the benefit policy in effect allows. Any employee share of benefit
premiums, if applicable, will be deducted from your paycheck from the District. When
such is no longer possible, you must pay any employee share to continue the benefit
coverage.

4001.5aKin Care Leave - Full-time employees may use a portion of their accrued sick
leave as Kin Care Leave to care for immediate family members who are sick. You may
use up to half of the sick time accrued per calendar year (up to 6 days) to care for a sick
family member, regardless of the seriousness of the illness. Family members covered
include parents, children and spouses. Kin Care Leave will not accumulate from year to
year. You must provide as much notice as possible to request Kin Care Leave. If the
leave exceeds one day your supervisor must be kept informed.

4001.5b Termination and Sick Leave - You will not receive days off in lieu of sick leave
when terminating from the District. However, as a reward for low sick leave usage,
terminating employees who have worked for the District for ten or more years (who are
not retiring) will be reimbursed by cash in an amount equal to the total accumulated sick
leave x 35% x most recent hourly wage.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 44



SECTION H_q,[ PAGE r:o.@‘i(i

4001.5c Retirement and Sick Leave - Retiring employees who have worked for the
District for ten or more years may choose in writing at least 30 days prior to
employment end date, one of three options:

1) Cash in an amount equal to the total accumulated sick leave hours x 35% x most
recent hourly wage

2) Conversion of 100% of accumulated sick leave hours to additional service credit
for retirement purposes (subject to the District’s CalPERS contract and any other
requirements imposed by CalPERS)

A portion in cash and a portion as service credit, the sum of which may not
exceed 100% of the accumulated hours. The cash portion may be any percentage
up to 35% (for example 20% cash and 80% service credit). The cash portion may
not exceed 35% of the total accumulated hours of sick leave times the most recent
hourly wage.

When an employee is approaching retirement, the employee should consult with a
representative from CalPERS to learn how the service credit provision works, as
well as any limitations or requirements.

4001.6 Bereavement Leave - Regular employees are eligible to receive up to three days
paid leave at any one time when they are absent from work due to death of a member
of their immediate family. For this purpose, immediate family includes the following
individuals for the employee, the employees spouse, or the employees domestic
partner: mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild, son, son-in-law,
daughter, daughter-in-law, niece, nephew, brother, or sister.

4001.7 Worker’s Compensation: Work-Related Injury - Workers’ compensation
insurance is paid by the District and protects you if you are injured while performing
assigned duties on the job. All employees are covered by the District’s Worker’s
Compensation Insurance. You must report any work-related injury or illness
immediately to your supervisor. Work-related illness or injury will be treated in the
manner prescribed by the Worker’s Compensation Insurance carried by the District.
This includes immediate diagnosis and treatment at a hospital or emergency room if
necessary, and follow-up care with appropriate physicians.

You will be placed on a Workers” Compensation Leave if temporarily and completely
disabled from work for more than five days. A doctor’s written certificate of disability is
required. While on Workers” Compensation leave, you are required to provide periodic
updates on your medical condition to the Superintendent or General Manager. Prior to
returning to work, you must provide a written release from your doctor that permits you
to return to work and indicates any restrictions to full duty. As discussed above,
Worker’s Comp benefits will be coordinated with the District’s sick leave benefits (see
Section 4001.5).

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 45



-~
SECTION __Yﬁ_, PAGE NG. _H_(?__

4001.7a Return to Work Policy - In an effort to minimize serious disability due to on-
the-job injuries and illnesses and to reduce Workers” Compensation costs, the District
has developed a Return To Work Program with its insurance provider. The program
will be implemented by a team comprised of your supervisor, the District’s claims
representative (from ACWA JPIA), the medical provider, the injured employee, and the
General Manager. All team members will be asked to take an active role in returning
the injured/ill employee to a productive status.

Supervisors will assist by directing the employee to appropriate care and assisting in
proper reporting of the injury or illness while maintaining a positive and frequent flow
of communication with the injured worker. They will also assist in reducing lost
production time by arranging work meeting “light duty” restrictions, as needed, The
Supervisors and General Manager will work with the JPIA claims representative to assist
with the assessment of the employee’s ability to return to work. Together they will
encourage the treating physician to release the injured employee to work as soon as
possible, with appropriate work limitations and restrictions. By this joint effort, the
District will help the injured/ill worker recover at a more rapid rate, gain production for
wages paid, minimize the employee’s wage loss, and reduce workers’ compensation
costs.

If you are injured and subject to this policy, you will have certain responsibilities. You
must engage in the interactive process. After your first appointment with a physician, a
Return to Work Recommendations Record (or other documents provided by the
physician) should be provided to your supervisor. Whenever possible, the District will
provide you with work within your restrictions, if any. Once you are released to light
duty, you should report to work immediately.

Once you are back at work, you are responsible for:

o Working within the physical limitations set by the physician at all times and
performing only those temporary duties assigned to you by your supervisor;

o Letting your supervisor know if you are having any difficulties performing
your assigned tasks;

o Telling your supervisor in advance if you must miss work for a medical
appointment; and

o Ensuring that your supervisor knows of any changes in your work
restrictions you learn from your doctor.

If you do not report to work (light duty or regular work) when you are released, you
may not be eligible for temporary disability payments or wages.

4002 Disability Insurance, Leaves and Leave Donation

4002.1 State Disability Insurance (SDI) - The District is a member of the State
Disability Insurance program which provides short-term weekly benefits in the event

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 46



secnom_&\j_, PAGE IG. _UL_(\_H__

an employee is unable to work due to non work- related illness or injury. All
employees are covered by SDI. The monthly premium is deducted in total from the
employee’s paycheck. As discussed above, SDI benefits will be coordinated with the
District’s sick leave benefits (see Section 4001.5).

4002.2 Long-Term Disability (LTD) - All full-time employees are covered by Long-
Term Disability Insurance. The District pays the entire premium for this coverage. If
you become disabled (as defined in the LTD policy), you are eligible to receive LTD
insurance benefits up to 60% of your monthly pay after the qualifying period. For
additional details, benefit coordination restrictions and any exclusions please consult
the policy statement provided by the insurance provider.

4002.3 Pregnancy Disability Leave - If you are disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or
related medical condition, you are eligible to take a pregnancy disability leave (PDL).
The PDL is for any period of actual disability caused by your pregnancy, childbirth or
related medical condition up to four months per pregnancy. You may be required to
provide certification from your health care provider outlining the details of your
disability. '

You may elect to substitute accrued sick leave or accrued vacation before taking the
remainder as an unpaid leave. You may also be eligible for State Disability Insurance for
the unpaid portion of your leave. For the duration of the authorized leave, the District
shall maintain your health, dental and life insurance coverage consistent with the
District’s existing policy. Upon return, the District will reinstate you to your original or
equivalent position.

4002.4 Paid Family Leave Insurance Program - You are eligible to receive paid Family
Leave to care for a seriously ill child, spouse, parent, domestic pariner, or to bond with
anew child. This benefit is another form of disability compensation, provided by the
State, and is funded by employee payroll deductions. Under the Family Temporary
Disability Insurance Program, an employee may take up to six weeks of wage
replacement benefits during a twelve-month period. As with other disability
compensation, employees will receive only a portion of their wages during their
absence. There are a number of program details and certain restrictions. This benefit is
administered by the State’s Employment Development Department (EDD).

4002.5 Family Care and Medical Leave - The District shall grant eligible employees
leave in accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California
Family Relief Act (CFRA), and the New Parent Leave Act (NPLA). If you have more
than 12 months of service with the District, and have worked at least 1,250 hours in the
12-month period before the date you want to begin your leave, you may take up to 12
weeks of unpaid leave in a calendar year for the following reasons:

o To care for and bond with your child after birth, or placement for adoption or

foster care

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 47



SECTIGN _\;\:_LX,‘ PAGE MG. __EL/;)/_

o To care for your spouse, parent, or son/ daughter with a serious health condition
o For a serious health condition that makes you unable to perform your job

The District may require medical certifications supporting the need for leave due to a
serious health condition affecting you or your immediate family member.

You must provide the District with a written request for family care or medical leave.
Foreseeable or planned events and pre-scheduled medical treatments require at least 30
days advance written notice of your requested leave. For other events, you must provide
as much notice as possible.

Both District policy and employee choice shall govern whether paid time off is
substituted for otherwise unpaid leave. To care for your child after birth, or placement
for adoption/foster care, you may elect to substitute accrued paid vacation for unpaid
leave. For your own serious health condition, or to care for an immediate family member
who has a serious health condition, you must first use your accrued paid sick leave, after
your accrued paid sick leave is exhausted, you may also elect to substitute accrued paid
vacation before taking the remainder as an unpaid leave. For the duration of the
authorized leave, the District shall maintain your health, dental and life insurance
coverage consistent with the District’s existing policy. Upon return, the District will
reinstate you to your original or equivalent position.

4002.6 Organ/Bone Marrow Leave Program - You are eligible to receive a paid leave of
absence for the purpose of donating an organ to another person. This paid leave is not
to exceed 30 business days in a one-year period.

You are eligible to receive a paid leave of absence for the purpose of donating bone
marrow to another person. This paid leave is not to exceed 5 business days in any one-
year period.

In both instances, the one-year period is measured from the date the employee’s leave
begins and consists of the subsequent twelve consecutive months.

4002.7 Unpaid Leave of Absence - Except as otherwise herein provided, leaves of absence
without pay up to a maximum of three months, that are in the best interest of the District, may
be granted by approval of the General Manager. Requests for leaves of absence without pay
shall be submitted in writing by the employee to their supervisor who shall consider such
requests on their individual merits and circumstances and shall forward his/her
recommendation to the General Manager for approval. When an employee is on an unpaid
leave of absence they shall not accrue sick leave, vacation or holiday benefits. The General
Manager may determine that an employee's anniversary date, for the purposes of merit increase
qualification and vacation accrual rate determination, has changed if the unpaid leave of
absence exceeds ten (10) working days.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 48



SECTIGN _Bﬁ__‘ PAGE NG. _K

4003 Leave Donation for Critical Illness/Injury

As a means for employees to support fellow employees in need during a critical or acute
illness/injury, the General Manager (or designee) may approve donations from full-time
employee’s accrued leave balances. These donations would assist an eligible employee
who is required to be absent from work for personal medical reasons and has exhausted
his/her applicable paid-leave balances.

There are specific eligibility criteria and requirements to receive donated leave.
Additionally, there are conditions for the actual donation of leave. Please refer to the
Critical Illness/Injury Leave Donation Policy and required Donation Form which are
provided in Appendix J.

4004 Health Insurance

All full-time employees of the District and their dependents are covered by a group
health plan. The District makes available several medical plans from which the
employees can choose. The District provides a monthly medical premium benefit in the
amount of the insurance premium cost of the Family Classic PPO plan. If you choose
a medical plan with a monthly premium in excess of this amount, you will be required
to pay the portion of the premium above this amount.

The District currently contracts for group health insurance through ACWA/JPIA. There
are a variety of plans available. These plan options include HMO and PPO plans. One
of the PPO plans is a Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP), which is a high deductible
plan and is Health Savings Account (HSA) compatible. The District will pay the annual
deductible for the Consumer Driven Health Plan via deposit to the employee’s HSA, as
long as the total cost of the premium plus deductible is less than the monthly premium
cost of the Family Classic PPO medical plan up to the CDHP annual deductible amount.
The current deductible amount is $1,500 for an individual and $3,000 for a family. In
addition to this annual benefit for the CDHP medical plan, the District provides an
additional incentive of $1,000 per year for the first four (4) years that an employee
switches to the CDHP. This additional incentive is deposited in two equal installments
of $500 in January and April. Employees are solely responsible for their HSA account
investments. An employee may change between available plans annually during the
open enrollment period. The open enrollment period is usually October/November
with the change becoming effective in January of the following year.

Under certain circumstances, retirees will be eligible for District-paid health benefits.

To be eligible for District-paid retiree health benefits, an employee must : 1) retire from
the District, 2) be eligible for PERS retirement benefits upon retirement from the District
(in accordance with the District’s PERS contract), and 3) have a minimum of ten years of
service at the District prior to retirement.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 49



secmNﬂ_,PAGE xo._ 49

The duration of retiree health benefits provided by the District, subject to the
requirements above, depends on the date an employee was hired by the District.

a For all full-time regular employees hired by the District prior to July 8, 2004, the
District will pay the medical cost premium during retirement, subject to a
maximum of $640 per month, without a specific time limitation as to how long
this benefit will be provided during a retiree’s retirement.

0 For all full-time regular employees hired by the District after July 8, 2004, the
District will pay 100% of the medical cost premium during retirement, subject to
a maximum of $640 per month, for a maximum of 10 years or until the retiree
reaches age 65, whichever comes first. In other words, if an employee retirees at
age 55, the District will pay up to $640/month in retiree health benefits for 10
years, after which time no more retiree health benefits will be paid by the
District. If an employee retirees at age 60, the District will pay up to $640/month
in retiree health benefits for five years (e.g. when the retiree reaches age 65), after
which time no more retiree health benefits will be paid by the District. The
District’s health insurance plan shall be made available, if allowed by the plan
provider, to retirees after age 65 if the entire premium is paid by the retiree.

4005 Dental and Vision Insurance

All full-time employees of the District and their dependents are covered by a group
dental policy. This coverage is entirely paid by the District. All full-time employees
and their dependents are also covered by a group vision plan. The premium is paid
entirely by the District.

4006 Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

This program is entirely paid by the District. The EAP offers employee assistance to
overcome emotional, family and other personal problems, offers guidance on financial
and legal issues, improve your health and wellness. Contact the EAP provider for
benefit details and limitations

4007 Life Insurance

All full-time employees of the District are covered under a group term-life insurance
program. The premium for this coverage is paid entirely by the District. This policy
provides coverage up to $50,000 for each employee, $12,500 coverage for spouse and
$2,000 for children and an additional $50,000 coverage for employee in the event of
accidental death. Additional life and accidental death insurance for employee and their
dependents may be available for employees to purchase via payroll deduction. For
additional details and exclusions, if any, please consult the policy statement provided
by the insurance provider.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 50



secnou_ﬁﬂ paceic, 90

4008 Retirement

All employees are covered by Social Security (SS). The District pays the SS employer
share and deducts the SS employee’s share from your paycheck. All regular full-time
employees are also covered by the California Public Employees Retirement System
(CalPERS). The District’s contract with CalPERS changes over time. Employees are
encouraged to contact CalPERS for the latest benefits available under the District
contract. A summary of the major benefits are listed below. For specific details, contact
CalPERS or the Accounting & HR Specialist or the General Manager. Due to changes
in the law, effective January 1, 2013, (PEPRA), the District will have two tiers of
employees: 1) Those employed before January 1, 2013, including those new employees
eligible due to carryover within six months (as provided in PEPRA) “Classic
Employees”; and 2) Those employed on or after January 1, 2013 “PEPRA Employees”.

1. Persons Eligible: Regular full-time employees, part-time employees reaching
minimum hour requirement, and employees already CalPERS member.

2. Waiting Period: Eligible from the first day of employment.

3. Employee Contribution: Tier 1 (2% at 55-Classic). Tier 1 employee
contribution is paid by the District. Tier 2 (2% at 62-PEPRA). Tier 2 employee
contribution is paid by the employee. PEPRA rules prohibit the District from
paying employee’s share.

4. Employer Contribution: Varies according to experience rating of the District.

5. Vesting Provisions: You become vested after completion of five years of
public service, be it with the District or another public employer who
participated in CalPERS. Vesting means funds may be left on deposit for
future retirement. Should you leave the District and wish to withdraw your
contributions, you may request a refund from CalPERS. The employer
contributions are only paid upon retirement.

6. Benefits Provided: You will be eligible to retire when you have five years of
service credit and have attained age 50 (Tier 1 / Classic) or age 52 (Tier 2 /
PEPRA). Your retirement date can be any date you choose; however, the
amount of the monthly allowance can be affected. Your age determines your
benefit factor used in the retirement formula. So, you may decide to retire on
your birthday or at a completed quarter year of age to increase the benefit
tactor. CalPERS will calculate the retirement benefits based on three factors:
(1) years of service, (2) a percentage factor determined by your age at
retirement, and (3) either Tier 1: the final average monthly pay rate for the
highest 12 consecutive months of work; or Tier 2: the final average monthly

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 51



SECTION_HB“ PAGENC, 9|

pay rate for the highest 36 consecutive months. There is no mandatory
retirement age.

7. CalPERS Options: The District contract includes options and benefits for its
employees, briefly described below. For more detailed information and a
complete list of CalPERS options and benefits available under our District’s
CalPERS contract, refer to the “CalPERS” website or see the Accounting & HR
Specialist.

71 2% @55 (Tier 1/ Classic) - This formula provides to local
miscellaneous members 2% of pay at age 55 for each year of
service credited with that employer. For members who retire
earlier, the percentage is reduced. See Contract.

7.2 2% @ 62 (Tier 2/ PEPRA) - This formula provides local
miscellaneous members 2% of pay at age 62 for each year of
service credited with that employer. For members who retire
earlier, the percentage is reduced. See Contract.

7.3 Salary Cap - The Public Employee Pension Reform Act
(PEPRA) of 2013 included compensation limits for CalPERS
retirement salary calculations (GC 7522.10) Subject to change
annually. For any employee hired after January 1, 2013, the
salary cap provided for the current year will be utilized (for
2017 the PEPRA cap is $118,775). For any Classic employee
hired after 1996 and before 2013, there is also a cap (for 2017 the
cap is $270,000).

7.4 One-Year Final Compensation (Tier 1/ Classic) - The period
for determining the average monthly pay rate when calculating
retirement benefits would be for the 12 highest paid consecutive
months.

7.5 Three-Year Final Compensation (Tier 2/ PEPRA) - The period
for determining the average monthly pay rate when calculating
retirement benefits would be for the 36 highest paid consecutive
months (3 years).

7.6 Unused sick leave may be converted to additional service
credits, see Section 4001.5c for description of available options.

7.7 Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2 Death Benefit- This
benefit is a monthly allowance equal to the Service Retirement
benefit that the member would have received had the member

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 52



SECTION BJ_J( PAGENC, T o
2

retired on the date of his or her death and elected Optional
Settlement 2. (A retiree who elected Optional Settlement 2
receives an allowance that has been reduced so that it will
continue to be paid after his or her death to a surviving
beneficiary.) The allowance is payable as long as the surviving
spouse lives. There is a guarantee that the total amount paid
will be at least equal to the basic Death Benefit.

7.8 Military Service Credit - Military Service Credit as Public
Service: A member may elect to purchase up to four years of
service credit for any continuous active military or merchant
marine service prior to employment. The member must
contribute an amount equal to the contribution for current and
prior service that the employee and the employer would have
made with respect to that period of service.

Military Service Credit for Retired Persons: The retired person
must contribute an amount to the contributions for current and
prior service that the employee and the employer would have
made with respect to that period of service. The retiree must
not receive credit for the same military service with another
publicly funded retirement system. The retired person’s
allowance would be increased only with respect to the
allowance on or after the effective date of the election to
purchase the service credit.

Employees nearing retirement are urged to avail themselves of the
retirement pre-counseling and planning available to them by CalPERS.
CalPERS requires at least 90 days’ notice in advance of planned retirement
(as does Social Security). However, the District strongly urges employees
anticipating retirement to make their inquiries at least six months to one year
in advance to avoid any unnecessary delays. The Business Manager or
Accounting & HR Specialist can provide you with names and phone
numbers of personnel at CalPERS who can assist you in your retirement
planning,

4009 Deferred Compensation

All regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in the District-sponsored
Deferred Compensation Plans. This allows employees to set aside a portion of their
paycheck in a deferred compensation account which shelters both the principal and
interest from taxes until it is actually withdrawn by the employee - presumably at
retirement when their tax bracket is lower. Participation in the deferred compensation

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 53



SECTION ﬁ"\_PAGE 6. 99

plan is entirely voluntary, and the District does not endorse nor guarantee the
particular investments made by the employee.

The District will contribute $50.00 per month for each employee who does not
participate in the deferred compensation program.

The District will provide a contribution match of up to $100.00 per month for employees
who do participate in the deferred compensation plan.

4010 Unemployment Insurance

All employees of the District are covered by the State Unemployment Insurance
Program. The District pays all costs of this coverage, which is available in the event of
unemployment, by applying to the State Employment Development Department.

4011 COBRA

At your expense, you and your dependents may be eligible for continuation of health,
dental and vision insurance coverage in the event you lose District coverage due to
termination of employment, reduction in work hours or certain other qualifying events.

4012 Expense Reimbursement

4012.1 Certification - All costs incurred by full-time District employees in applying for
the required State Operator Certification will be reimbursed by the District. The District
will also pay for training classes taken to maintain or upgrade an operator certificate, or
comply with the continuing education requirements. Where deemed necessary and
appropriate, the operator training and certification for temporary employees may be
paid for by the District. This determination must be made in advance by the
Superintendent and approved by the General Manager.

4012.2 Uniforms and Safety Gear - The District will make available raingear and all
safety gear needed by employees in the course of work (e.g. safety glasses, ear
protection, hardhats). The District will pay the difference in cost between normal
prescription lenses and safety prescription lenses. The District will also furnish
coveralls to each full-time employee either via purchase or a uniform service.
Additionally, as part of the safety program, the District will pay the cost of safety shoes
once per year (which include insulated steel toed rubber boots for maintenance and
operations/ maintenance tech employees-and-fulltime Ruth-empleyee) appropriate to
the position (up to a maximum amount established by the Superintendent). If the
position is in the shop/field, safety toe shoes are required. The District will pay the cost
of safety shoes when needed by the employee, but no more than once per year. The
District will also reimburse temporary employees a portion of the costs of safety shoes
up to $50 per year.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 54



sec*nou_ﬁﬂ__ PAGE ‘NO.__@_H__

Upon approval of the Superintendent, employees may be reimbursed the cost of
replacing or repairing personal property such as eyeglasses, clothing, or other items
worn or carried by the employee, when such item is damaged or destroyed in the line of
duty without fault of the employee.

4012.3 Safety Apparel Allowance - Permanent employees receive an annual allowance
of $100.00 to be used for the purchase of HBMWD logo safety T-shirts and sweatshirts.
The intent of this allowance is to provide safety apparel in highly visible colors to
employees. This apparel must be ordered through the Eureka office. The selection of
available styles and color options is managed through the Eureka Office. Please contact
office staff for additional details.

4012.4 Educational Assistance - All reasonable expenses related to attending
workshops or seminars which you are requested to attend by the District will be paid
for by the District in accordance with the travel policy outlined herein. Under certain
circumstances and with advance approval by the General Manager, the District may
provide tuition reimbursement for classes, seminars or workshops which enhance your
ability to do your job. Overtime and travel costs are not eligible for tuition
reimbursement. Upon completion of such class, seminar or workshop, you must
submit evidence of satisfactory completion and a brief report to your supervisor.

4012.5 Meals - If you are asked to remain at work or are called back to work generally
for a minimum of four hours, the District will provide a meal if you are unable to
provide one yourself. Under such circumstances, the District will either provide the
meal or reimburse you for the reasonable cost of the meal upon submission of proper
documentation.

4012.6 Ruth Assignment - At times, you may be assigned to work at Ruth Lake for
more than a normal work day. Any stay in excess of a normal work day must be
approved in advance. With respect to meals, breakfast and lunch on the date of arrival
are your responsibility. Thereafter, the District will either arrange for meals to be
provided, or will reimburse you for the actual and reasonable cost of up to three meals
per day in accordance with the travel policy outlined herein. The District will also
reimburse you for actual and reasonable lodging expenses if District facilities are not
available or other extenuating circumstances apply.

4012.7 Miscellaneous - An employee authorized to incur a miscellaneous expense not
covered by a regular purchase order (e.g. petty cash expense) must provide proper
documentation of the purchase, cost and need for the expense.

Use of District-issued credit cards is limited to the General Manager, Superintendent,
Business Manager, Operations Supervisor, and Maintenance Supervisor, who shall
maintain proper records of the expenses and reasons therefore of any credit card use.
Gasoline credit cards shall be used only for expenses related to District vehicles.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 55



SECTION ﬁﬂ _PAGENO,_ DO

4013 Miscellaneous Time Off

4013.1 Jury Duty - All employees should willingly accept ordered jury duty as one of the
obligations of citizenship. If summoned for jury duty, you must immediately report to your
supervisor when your jury service begins and when it ends. Given the size of the District, if it is
determined that jury duty would significantly impact the proper operation of the District, you
should notify the jury officials to request a postponement. Any full-time employee on jury duty
will receive regular compensation less any amount of compensation received from the court,
not including mileage. Generally, use of District vehicles for jury duty is prohibited.

4013.2 Voting - The District encourages its employees to take an active role in the
federal, state and local election process. If you are a registered voter, you may take up
to two hours of paid time off to vote if you do not have sufficient time outside of
working hours to vote. Time off for voting shall be taken at the beginning or end of
your regular work shift, whichever accommodates the most time for voting and the
least time off from work. You must provide your supervisor with at least two days’
notice that time off is needed.

4013.3 Service as an Election Official - You are eligible to take time off to serve as an
election officer on election day. You will not be paid during this time off, unless you
elect to use accrued vacation. You must provide your supervisor with at least two days’
notice that this time off is needed.

4013.4 Volunteer Firefighters - You are eligible to take time off to perform emergency
duty as a volunteer firefighter. You will not be paid during this time off, unless you
elect to use accrued vacation. You must provide your supervisor with as much notice as
possible that time off is needed.

4013.5 School Visits - You are eligible to take time off to appear at school-for suspended
children or dependents. The District will also allow you to take up to 4 hours for school
conferences each year per child or dependent. You will not be paid during this time off,
unless you elect to use accrued vacation. You must provide your supervisor with at
least two days’ notice that this time off is needed.

4013.6 Military Leave - You are eligible for a leave of absence to meet your military
obligations. With respect to Reserve Duty, the District will pay the difference between your full
salary and your military pay, for up to two weeks each year. Any additional time will be
unpaid. With respect to Active Duty, you may take a leave of absence without pay to meet your
active duty responsibilities. A copy of the military orders shall be provided to your supervisor
at least five days prior to reporting for duty.

To be eligible for reinstatement to employment, you must return to work in accordance
with the provisions of the Universal Military and Service Act. Your leave of absence
will expire if you do not return within the time limits set by the Act.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 56



secrion Y _paceno. 72

Acknowledgment of Receipt of Handbook and At-Will Agreement

After you have read this Handbook and have clarified any issues with your
Supervisors, please complete and sign both copies of the following statement. Two
copies are provided, one for your records and one for the District’s records. Detach one
copy and return it to the Accounting & HR Specialist within five days.

District Employee Handbook Receipt (employee copy)

I have received my copy of the District’s employee Handbook. I understand and
agree that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with and follow the
policies and procedures contained in the Handbook.

I understand that, except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or
practices can be changed at any time by the District. I understand and agree that, other
than the General Manager of the District, no manager, supervisor or representative of
the District has authority to enter into any agreement, expressed or implied, for
employment for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for employment
other than at-will; only the General Manager has the authority to make any such
agreement and then only in writing, signed by the General Manager.

My signature below certifies that I understand that the foregoing agreement on
at-will status is the sole and entire agreement between the District and me concerning
the duration of my employment. It supersedes all prior agreements, understandings,
and representations concerning the duration of my employment.

Employee's Signature Date

Sign, date, and keep this copy for your records.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 57



s&cnou_{ﬂd PAGE NG, 1] 1

Acknowledgment of Receipt of Handbook and At-Will Agreement

After you have read this Handbook and have clarified any issues with your
Supervisors, please complete and sign both copies of the following statement. Two
copies are provided, one for your records and one for the District’s records. Detach one
copy and return it to the Accounting & HR Specialist within five days.

District Employee Handbook Receipt (employer copy)

I have received my copy of the District’'s employee Handbook. I understand and
agree that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with and follow the
policies and procedures contained in the Handbook.

I understand that, except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or
practices can be changed at any time by the District. I understand and agree that, other
than the General Manager of the District, no manager, supervisor or representative of
the District has authority to enter into any agreement, expressed or implied, for
employment for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for employment
other than at-will; only the General Manager has the authority to make any such
agreement and then only in writing, signed by the General Manager.

My signature below certifies that [ understand that the foregoing agreement on
at-will status is the sole and entire agreement between the District and me concerning
the duration of my employment. It supersedes all prior agreements, understandings,
and representations concerning the duration of my employment.

Employee's Signature Date

Sign, date, and return this copy to the Accounting and HR Specialist.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 58



sction Y ace N0, 58

Appendix A



4¥.1 Jo snjels uo Suipuadap

va suepiuyda) wucm:muc_m_\,_\m:o_um._mnO Josiadng suonesadQ Jalem Jo Josinadng

dueudule 01 podas syssy ulep/sdo

(2)

(2) saueyoay asueusuepy
(T) Josiatadng aoueuaiuiey Juesissy

(2) s1axlom dueuauley

SY23] jJuawiniisu _\Cm_u_._vuw_w

(1) 1siieroads ao1nieg Jawojsny/suonesado
(1) 1stieroads suonessdQ Jajepp
(1) 1osinadng suonelsadQ Jejep juelsissy

sscnon__\&&, PAGE No._iﬁ_

(1) Josin1adns aaueusjuiepy

(sT0Z) 8109H/suey) 810/aeqpSuluuely
uoneziuesip/|auuosiag ;g uoneziuesig/Wo

(T) (103e42d0 J14D)
Josiazadng suonesadQ Ja1eMm

(1) doy yany/i0yesadQ 0upAH

(Bupinsuo)) _
Joauibug joysiq _

(Bumynsuon)
1oyipny joLsiq

(1) juepuejupedng
1oMsIq

(1) Ateronnag
pJeoq 3 1UBISISSY SAIINIBX]

(1) sAjeUyY Aiojejnbay g weiboiq
(1) wessissy 6ununodoy pue a9IAlag Jawolsny
(1) Juejsissy YH/Bununoooy % 80IA18S Jawoisny
(1) 1sije108dg YH/BuURUNOIDY

(1)

labeuepy |esausn

(1) 1obeuely ssauisng

|
| (Buninsuo))
" fauiony 1013810

s103931iQ JO pieog

PUISIq J91epn |eddiuniy Aeg apjoquing



SECTION _Erj_, PAGE NO. (00

Appendix B



y Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Classification Plan (Chapter 2, §2000) - All Positions within the District

Appendix B - Employee Handbook  sgCTION_ | _ PAGE NO_(._Q_I__
POSITION POSITION

POSITION TITLE CLASSIFICATION BASED
General Manager Mi1 Eurcka
District Superintendent M2 Essex
Business Manager M3 Eureka
Maintenance/Electrical Supervisor M4 Essex
Water Operations Supefvisor (Chief Operator) M5 Essex
Assistant Maintenance / Electrical Supervisor Mé Essex
Assistant Water Operations Supervisor (Back-Up Chief
Operator) M7 Essex
Water Operations Specialist OM1 Essex
Electrician/Instrument Tech OoM2 Essex
Operation & Maint Technicians (Shift Operator) OM3 Essex
Maintenance Mechanics, Operations/Customer Svc Spec., Essex
Hydro Operator/Ruth Representative Ruth
Maintenance Worker OM4 Essex
Senior Regulatory Analyst* Al Eureka
Accounting and Human Resources Specialist A2 Eureka
Regulatory Analyst Eureka
Executive Assistant and Board Secretary A3 Eureka
Accounting and Human Resources Assistant A4 Eureka
Customer Service and Accounting Assistant AS Eureka

M = Management Classification
OM = Operations & Maintenance Classification

A = Administration Classification

* At any given time, there is only one Analyst Position

G:\Human Resources\Employee Handbook\2017 Employee Handbook\Appendix items\Appendix B - Position Class



,, SEcmMM,, PAGE MO, (70

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

GENERAL MANAGER - M1
Position Description

GENERAL PURPOSE

This is the chief executive office position responsible for carrying out the Board of Director’s policies, directing
District operations, controlling District expenditures, and overseeing all programs and activities of the District.
May act as Secretary/Treasurer, and performs other duties as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1) Serves as Chief Executive Officer of the District.

2) Provides leadership and management including planning, goal setting, and evaluating District
effectiveness.

3) Supervises, develops and evaluates the District Superintendent, Business Manager and Executive
Assistant/Board Secretary.

4) Provides full charge and control over construction, maintenance and operation of the regional water
system. Ensures compliance with water quality laws and regulations, and ensures sufficient water supply

capability to meet customer demands.
5) Prepares, recommends for Board approval, and administers the District's annual budget including
salaries, maintenance, and capital projects.

6) Directs and oversees development of a comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan. Advances high-
priority projects and develops funding mechanisms to ensure the regional water system continues to

reliably serve the community’s needs.

7) Supports and plays a critical role in the District’'s Water Resource Planning process to secure new
customers or uses for the District's available water supply.

8) Directs and oversees the District’s aquatic Habitat Conservation Plan, and other efforts in the watershed
involving the District.

9) Oversees the District’s safety program. Ensures compliance with Federél, State, and local safety
regulations. Develops and supports a strong safety culture in the organization.

10) Serves as the Dam Safety Coordinator pursuant to the District’s Owner Dam Safety Program. Ensures
compliance with Federal and State dam safety regulations. Develops and supports a strong and

effective dam safety program.

11) Maintains full power and authority to employ and discharge employees and prescribe their duties .
Develops and maintains the District's personnel system in accordance with Board-approved policies.

12) Maintains a close working relationship with the Board, Board committees, the District's legal counsel,
auditor, and other consultants who advise the Board.

13) Prepares monthly Board meeting agendas and well-developed and written staff reports.

14) Serves as liaison representing the District to the general public, the District’s wholesale municipal
customers, regulatory agencies, the media, and civic or community organizations.

15) Participates in the negotiation of water sale contracts and administers the contracts once implemented.
16) Provides legislative review and advocacy on Federal, State, or local issues affecting District operations.

General Manager (Sepilember rary 20157) Page 1 of 3



17) Performs the duties of District Secretary/Treasurer as required.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILUTES

1)

2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

7)
8)
9)

Excellent written and oral communication skills, as well as ability to make effective and persuasive
presentations.

Principles and practices of management and public administration.

Principles and practices of planning, analyzing, and developing sound business recommendations.
Principles and practices of financial planning, budgeting, expenditure control, and reporting.
Principles of supervision and personnel management, including public sector employment law.

Basic knowledge of engineering and construction principles applicable to the planning, design, and
construction of District facilities.

Contract development and administration.
Safety regulations and programs.
Principles and practices of water utility cost-of-service and ratemaking.

10) General understanding of the following:

11)

12)
13)

a. /Laws, regulations and processes governing special districts;

b. Safe Drinking Water laws, regulations and practices governing water quality, treatment
and distribution;

ederal and state regulations and practices governing the safety of a high-hazard dam and hydro-
electric power plant;

a. fFederal and state environmental regulations and permit processes for river operations;
b. tate law and practices governing water rights;
omputer operation and standard applications software.

Public, media, and staff relations.

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

Bachelors Degree from an accredited university or college with a major in Business
Administration, Public Administration, Engineering, Water Resources, or closely related field.

Ten-to-fifteen years of increasingly responsible and broad experience in éngineering,
administration, or management in a private or public agency. Strong preference for experience in
utility or water resources fields. Background should include experience working with elected
Board or Commission, and responsibility for planning, development and implementation of
programs, budgets, and operations.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

General Manager (Sep 20157) Page 2 of 3

s&c*no;a_):\ﬂ_, paGE ke, (0D



secion_ 1Y _pace no i

Must possess a valid California Driver’s license, and must maintain a driving record acceptable to the
District and its insurance carrier. Compiliance with this requirement is a condition of continuing

employment.

Must qualify for fiduciary bonding.

Must be able to occasionally work evenings and weekends. Must be available to work following an
emergency that affects the District’s operations.

Must be able to serve as the District’s Dam Safety Coordinator pursuant to the FERC’s Owner Dam
Safety Program regulatory requirements.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the
District also pays for. The medical examination and drug screening are intended to evaluate the applicant's
ability to meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

i.
ii.
ii.
iv.
V.
Vi

vii.

General Manager (Seapia anuary 20157)

o0perate a motor vehicle;
o0perate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);
uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

sCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
wiVork cooperatively and get along well with the Board, District staff, customers and the public;

sSit for extended periods of time;
pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching.

Page 3 of 3



SECTION |iﬂ _PAGE KO, _[_,c_i_
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general management direction, is responsible for all operations and maintenance activities of the
District as well as project management and construction. Supervises, trains, develops and evaluates staff.

Implements District safety program.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1) Develops and maintains an effective safety program (including WIIP) and a strong safety culture.

2) Directs and is responsible for the water supply, pumping treatment and distribution functions of the
District. This includes: Ruth Lake operations including hydro-electric facility; Essex and Korblex
operations including control, pumping, treatment and storage; distribution and metering functions
throughout the system; and radio and communication systems.

3) Directs and oversees maintenance and operations for the Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD in accordance with
The Agreement for Operations and Maintenance Support Services for Fieldbrook-Glendale Community
Services District effective March 15, 2008.

4) Directs and is responsible for water quality and ensuring all federal and state standards are fully met.

5) Develops Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s)

6) Directs the District’s ongoing construction and maintenance activities and projects, including the
Preventative Maintenance Program.

7) Directs and advances energy efficiency programs.

8) Prepares and advances the District's long-term capital improvement and maintenance plans, and annual
prioritized project and maintenance budgets. Accomplishes planned work per the approved scope,
schedule and budget. In coordination with the Accounting and HR Specialist, ensures employee time,

materials, and contract labor are accurately accounted for.

9) Develops plans, skeiches, cost estimates, specifications and work schedules to carry out projects and
maintenance work. Prepares requisitions for services and materials. Directs and oversees construction
and maintenance work by in-house and outside contract resources. On larger construction projects,
performs project management in concert with the District engineer. Prepares emergency response plans
and procedures. Responds to emergencies such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline breaks,

floods/high-water events, and chiorine leaks.

10) Consuits with General Manager, District staff, and consultants/vendors regarding methods and
procedures of work, operational priorities, and technical issues.

11) Inspects construction, installation, maintenance and grounds-keeping activities and projects to ensure the
District’s standards and requirements are met.

12) Ensures compliance with all laws and regulations that govern District operations. Ensures compliance
with and renewal of necessary permits, and with the California Department of Public Health certification

requirements.

Superintendent (Sepiflovember 20147) Page 1 of 4



Vi.
vii.

viii.

section 1 pace no,(dlo

13) Represents the District in meetings with customers, representatives of governmental and regulatory
agencies, professional and community groups and the public.

14) Prepares and presents required reports. Attends and participates in Board of Directors meetings and
provides operational report.

15) Fosters a positive work environment for employees. Demonstrates and instills teamwork and
communication throughout the organization. Trains, develops, and evaluates employees to support long-
term productivity and growth. Recommends and implements disciplinary action if necessary.

16) Acts as an advisor to GM on strategic issues and performs other duties as assigned by General Manager
or Board of Directors.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

Operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution systems
Operation of hydro-electric facilities
State and Federal safe drinking water regulations, standards, and practices

Water supply planning

Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities, and hydro-electric
facilities

Environmental regulations, including handling and disposal of hazardous and toxic materials and waste
Project planning, budgeting, cost estimating, and record keeping

Principles of organization and management, and of supervision, training, and effective personnel
management

Safety programs and safe work practices

Operation of computers, and other office equipment, using both standard and specialized application
software

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED

i. College, technical or professional-level classes or coursework in areas applicable to this position
highly desirable.

i. ~ Ten-to-fifteen years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of
water pumping, treatment and distribution systems, including three-to-five years in a supervisory
capacity. Experience with water treatment plants and hydroelectric generation is highly desirable.

iv. Grade IV Treatment and/or Distribution certificates (if candidate does not possess, must be
willing to pursue)

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Superintendent ( ember 20147) Page 2 of 4



SECTIGN_XH_:\ ' PAGE NG.__LQJL

1) Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2) May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

3) Mustbe-elean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface{such as
stubble beard arowth, beard, mustache or sidebums).

3)4}  Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

435} Must possess and maintain a Grade IV Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade IV
Water Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not
initially possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain
the required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education
requirements to maintain certifications. Compliance with the State ceriification requirements is a
condition of continuing employment. '

£)5)  Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of

employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the
District also pays for. The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant’s
ability to meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

a. Perform visual inspections
b. Hear normal versus abnomal noises
¢. View and respond to operational control screens (including alarms)

d. Think crifically
iLii.  eSit for extended periods of time;
itiil. eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.)
iitiv, eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment
rev.  eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools
v.vi,  pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;
vi.vii.  pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which
may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions

Superintendent (Sepiblavember 20147) Page 3 of 4



vikviil.  w\Wear a respirator and other personal protective equipment: SECTIGN-}-E:\-" PAGE I\.O._&._Q____

vilkix.  uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

ix. 6C ommunicate well with others, both verbally and in writing:

%——w\Work cooperatively and get along well with other people;

= Broblem ia W lai¥/a

Superintendent (Septhlovember 20147) Page 4 of 4



$EC on_HY_pace wo, (0% _

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Distric
Business Manager — V3

OVERVIEW

This position is responsible for managing, directing and supporting the District's financial, accounting, human
resource, risk management, and regulatory compliance functions.

This is one of three management-level positions at the District. The organizational culture is that the General
Manager, Superintendent and Business Manager work together as a management team to lead and direct
all operational and business aclivities to ensure reliable and cost effective delivery of water to the community.
There is significant interface with employees, customers and the Board of Directors. In partnership with the
General Manger and Superintendent, this position may also participate in strategic planning and initiatives.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

Leadership and Supervision:

1. Supervises financial, accounting, human resource, customer service and regulatory staff
2. Develops goals and objectives for the work unit, and work plans to accomplish them
3. Sets high expectations and leads by example
4. Trains, develops and consistently supports staff
Financial

5. Budget - Responsible for preparing the annual budget for operational and administrative expenses,
pPRrojects, and revenues of the District.

6. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)— Responsible for developing mechanisms to link CIP to annual
budget. Responsible for developing financing needs and options, and working with financial advisors
and counsel to secure financing. Responsible for pursuing grants to fund CIP projects and

administering grants if received.
Accounting: Responsible for:
(1) Respensible-forafccounting functions including:
i.  mMaintenance of general and subsidiary ledgers and ; general journal entries
ii. _ ~sCash and other account reconciliations
jii. _ -aAccounts receivable and -ascounts payable
iv. _Hlnvestment and reserve accounts.-and
iv.  eCapital, depreciation and inventory schedules.

(1) Respensible-fer-eEstablishing system of internal controls in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards and in accordance with recommendations from the District’s auditor.

Eensuringes compliance with ssameystem-ofinternal-controls.

(2) Acts as principle liaison with the District’s auditor during the annual financial audit process

£.7. Retail Water Business — Responsible for:

Business Manager (Saptemberdanuary 20127) Page 1 of 4



sec1'|on_ﬂi.. PAGE NQ-A.;.%;L

(1) verseeing the retail business function (establishing accounts, meter reading,
billing, accounts receivable and customer service) in accordance with approved Ordinance
(2) eveloping retail rate studies, proposing and justifying rate increases and

implementing Proposition 218 requirements

0.8. Process Improvements — Responsible for analyzing, making recommendations and implementing
improvements in District’s payroll, accounting and utility billing systems; as necessary.

Human Resource/ Risk Management: - Respoi
(1) uman Rresources functions, including hiring, payroll, benefit
administration and employee claims management.
(2) isk management and risk transfer including insurance programs

contracting procedures, and claims processing.

10.  Regulatory Program and Compliance - Responsible for overseeing regulatory compliance
and reporting (with the District’s Program and Regulatory Analyst)

11 Computer and Administrative Systems — Responsible T

e ]
T

(1) aintaining administrative computer system and network in Eureka

(2) eveloping and maintaining District'’s Records Retention Policy. and for
maintaining filing system in accordance with the policy

(3) nvestigating electronic filing and record retrieval system. and an electronic work

scheduling/follow-up system, and for implementing approved projects.
Other Duties as Assigned:
May provide back-up and perform duties of the General Manager when necessary

1413, May perform special projects and assignments with the Superintendent and General
Manager

Required to participate in Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities during emergencies

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

i.  Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling,
grammar and punctuation. Ability to compose complex and detailed correspondence

and reports accurately.
ii. Strong verbal communication and presentation skills

i.  Ability to deal tactfully and courteously with customers, District staff, and the Board of
Directors

iv.  Strong organizational skills
v.  Ability to work well and collaboratively with others

vi.  Ability to complete complex analyses (e.g. define objective, conduct research, collect
data, analyze data, derive results, and formulate conclusions and recommendations)

vii.  Office methods and procedures, including filing, record keeping and reporting
systems

Business Manager (Sep 20127) Page 2 of 4



secron 1Y _pace v, al

viii.  Strong working knowledge of desktop computers and systemes, in _udmg—partleular
intermediate-to-advanced proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel,
PowerPoint and Outlook). Knowledge of QuickBooks and/or ESRI's GIS software is

desirable.

ix.  Subject matter expertise in accounting (especially governmental accounting)
business, economics, finance or human resources is highly desirable

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of fraining and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:
i.  Bachelors Degree (required) and Masters Degree (preferred) from an accredited university or
college with an emphasis in business, accounting, public administration, or finance

Seven-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in business, public administration,
accounting, or finance sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties

PECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Possession of a valid California’s Driver’s license issued by the State Depariment of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

ii. Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding.
Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersens selected for appointment to thls posmon must pass a pre-employment medlcal
examlnatlon which the Dlstrlct pays for. Bs s-position-is-not-considered-“safety-sens n-A

ssreenmg The medlcal examlnatlon is lntended to evaluate the appllcant’s ablllty to meet the physncal and
health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, etc.);
ii. uwUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

iii. esCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
iv.  wWork cooperatively and get along well with the Board, District staff, customers and the public;

v.  {Think critically to address complex business and accounting assignments;
vi.  wWork independently and take initiative;

vii.  sSit for extended periods of time;
viii.  sPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

Business Manager (Septemberdanuary 20127) Page 3 of 4



SECTION Hﬂ PAGE NO._ &

ix. perate a motor vehicle.

Business Manager (Septe 20127) Page 4 of 4



. ) secnon_’lﬂ‘, PAGE NO. 1.2
Humboldi Bay Municipal Water District
Business Manager — |Vi2

OVERVIEW

This position is responsible for managing, directing and supporting the District’s financial, accounting, human
resource, risk management, and regulatory compliance functions. ,

This is one of three management-level positions at the District. The organizational culture is that the General
Manager, Superintendent and Business Manager work together as a management team to lead and direct
all operational and business activities to ensure reliable and cost effective delivery of water to the community.
There is significant interface with employees, customers and the Board of Directors. In partnership with the
General Manger and Superintendent, this position may also participate in strategic planning and initiatives.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES
Leadership and Supervision:

1. Supervises financial, accounting, human resource, customer service and regulatory staff
2. Develops goals and objectives for the work unit, and work plans to accomplish them

3. Sets high expectations and leads by example
4. Trains, develops and consistently supports staff

Financial
5. Budget - Responsible for preparing the annual budget for operational and administrative expenses,
pirojects, and revenues of the District.
6. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)— Responsible for developing mechanisms to link CIP to annual

budget. Responsible for developing financing needs and options, and working with financial advisors
and counsel to secure financing. Responsible for pursuing grants to fund CIP projects and

administering grants if received.

Accounting: Responsible for:
(1) Responsible-foraficcounting functions including:

i. mMaintenance of general and subsidiary ledgers and ; general journal entries

i. sCash and other account reconciliations

ii. _ ;aAccounts receivable and -accounts payable

]

iv.  investment and reserve accounts-and

v.  eCapital, depreciation and inventory schedules

(1) Respensiblefer-eEstablishing system of internal controls in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards and in accordance with recommendations from the District's auditor.

Eensuringes compliance with ssam .
(2) Acts as principle liaison with the District’s auditor during the annual financial audit process

8.7.Retail Water Business — Responsible for:

Business Manager (Sepiemberdanuary 20127) Page 1 of 4



secnow_\;\ﬂ PAGE RO, q,U(

| (1) verseeing the retail business function (establishing accounts, meter readung,
billing, accounts receivable and customer service) in accordance with approved Ordinance
| (2) eveloping retail rate studies, proposing and justifying rate increases and

implementing Proposition 218 requirements

0.8. Process Improvements — Responsible for analyzing, making recommendations and implementing
improvements in District’s payroll, accounting and utility billing systems; as necessary.

Human Resource/ Risk Management - Respon
(1) uman Rresources functions, lncludlng hiring, payroll, benefit
administration and employee claims management.
(2) isk management and risk fransfer including insurance programs

contracting procedures and claims processing.

1.10.  Regulatory Program and Compliance - Responsible for overseeing regulatory compliance
and reportlng (with the District's Program and Regulatory Analyst)

Computer and Administrative Systems — Responsible fol

(1) aintaining-Bis! administrative computer system and network in Eureka
(2) eveloping and maintaining District's Records Retention Policy, and for
maintaining filing system in accordance with the policy
| (3) nvestigating electronic filing and record refrieval system. and an electronic work

schedulingffollow-up system, and for implementing approved projects.
I Other Duties as Assigned
May provide back-up and perform duties of the General Manager when necessary

May perform special projects and assignments with the Superintendent and General
Manager

15.14. Required to participate in Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities during emergencies

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILUTES

i.  Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling,
grammar and punctuation. Ability to compose complex and detailed correspondence

and reports accurately.
i. Strong verbal communication and presentation skills

ii.  Ability to deal tactfully and courteously with customers, District staff, and the Board of
Directors

iv.  Strong organizational skills
v.  Ability to work well and collaboratively with others

vi.  Ability to complete complex analyses (e.g. define objective, conduct research, collect
data, analyze data, derive results, and formulate conclusions and recommendations)

vii.  Office methods and procedures, including filing, record keeping and reporting
systems

| Business Manager (Sep 20127) Page 2 of 4



secTion T4 pacevo, 3T

viii.  Strong working knowledge of desktop computers and systemes, including particular
intermediate-to-advanced proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel,
PowerPoint and Outlook). Knowledge of QuickBooks and/or ESRI's GIS software is

desirable.

ix.  Subject matter expertise in accounting (especially governmental accounting)
business, economics, finance or human resources is highly desirable

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  Bachelors Degree (required) and Masters Degree (preferred) from an accredited university or
college with an emphasis in business, accounting, public administration, or finance

ii. Seven-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in business, public administration,
accounting, or finance sufficient to demonsirate the ability to perform the required duties

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

i.  Possession of a valid California’s Driver’s license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

ii.  Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding.

ji.  Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividuslsPersens selected for appointment to thls posmon must pass a pre-employment medlcal
examlnatlon which the Dlstnct pays for CAUS 5-POS 5-REL-6oRsId BS Sens R

sspeenmg The medlcal examlnatlon is lntended to evaluate the appllcant’s ablhty to meet the physucal and
health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, efc.);
ii. wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

ii. eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
iv.  wi\Vork cooperatively and get along well with the Board, District staff, customers and the public;
v.  iThink critically to address complex business and accounting assignments;

vi.  wWork independently and take initiative;
vii.  sSit for extended periods of time;
vili.  pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

Business Manager (Septembardanuary 20127) Page 3 of4



secTion_HY_pace o, Ho

iX. perate a motor vehicle.

Business Manager (Septe 20127) Page 4 of 4



) ce vo. 11
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water DistricP®"N1PAeENo. 1L

ks

MAINTENANCE AND ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under direction, supervises and participates in the work of staff responsible for the construction, repair,
calibration, and maintenance of District pumping, water treatment, distribution, storage, hydroelectric,
communications, electrical, electronic, and other facilities. May coordinate and oversee the work of contract

construction and maintenance employees. Performs other related work as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1) Supervises and participates in the work of staff responsible for the construction, repair, calibration, and
maintenance of District pumping, water freatment, distribution, storage, hydroelectric, communications,
electrical, and electronic facilities and related appurtenances.

2) ldentifies and plans capital, maintenance, and repair projects. Prepares cost estimates and
specifications. Provides input to the budget process.

3) Supervises and participates in capital, maintenance, and repair projects. Determines personnel and
materials requirements; receives work orders; makes decisions on personnel and priorities; prepares
requisitions for materials; develops plans, sketches, cost estimates, specifications, and work schedules.
Assists in the coordination of construction, maintenance, and electrical work performed by outside
contractors

4) Assists in solving technical problems, and provides technical advice and support.

5) Assists in developing and implementing comprehensive programs for preventive maintenance, work
safety, and energy conservation.

6) Ensures adherence fo safety requirements; plans and conducts in-service training programs; prepares
incident reports and conducts accident investigations. Conducts periodic inspections of District
equipment and facilities; also inspects for fire, safety, and health hazards.

7) Reads and interprets manuals, blueprints, and schematic drawings; maintains records and reports of
work performed; prepares schematic drawings and updates blueprints to reflect as-built conditions.
8) Prepares various reports; directs departmental record keeping activities.

9) Prepares estimatessestquetes for new meter installations using information provided by Operations
Supervisor for-as-to size and location of newrequestsd meter-servise. Turns in- estimates to Main Office
for final cost quote.

10) Performs supervisory functions. Assures that subordinate staff acquire and maintain all necessary
licenses, certifications, and training. Plans and conducts in-service training programs. Prepares periodic
evaluations of employees. Assists in the selection of new maintenance and electrical staff.

11) May perform duties of Operations and Maintenance Technician, and may act as District Superintendent.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS. and ABILITES

Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution systems, and hydro-electric plant

Maintenance & Electrical Supervisor (September 20157) Page 1 of 4



vii.

viii.

Xi.
Xii.
xiii.

Xiv.

secnon P pace w0, 28

Procedures, materials, equipment and tools used in maintenance and construction of water system
facilities, electrical/electronic systems, hydroelectric facilities, and in particular: industrial motors,
engines, pumps, compressors, hydraulic systems, valves, gas and diesel engines, and buildings

Regulations relating to water treatment and distribution. Electrical codes and industrial safety orders
Principles and methods of procurement and storage of construction, electrical, electronic, and water
treatment equipment, tools, supplies, and materials

Fabrication of equipment, basic shop trades practices, and welding

Preventative maintenance programs

Interpreting repair manuals, schematic diagrams, and blueprints

Operation of a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment

Cost estimation to repair, alter, and miaintain facilities, and prepare accurate budget estimates

Rules and regulations pertaining to handling and storage of hazardous and toxic materials

Safety program and safe work practices

Supervision and staff training

Operation of computers, and other office equipment, using both standard and specialized application
software

Familiar with CAD software and use

Develop Ccooperative working relationships. eamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate
work among a small, close-knit workforce

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED
i. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial.
Completion of an apprenticeship or other equivalent training and education involving industrial
plant maintenance and repair desirable
i. Five-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in the construction and maintenance
field, preferably involving water treatment and distribution systems equipment and facilities.
Supervisory experience beneficial

iv.  Grade IV Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. (Class A, Combination vehicle, with Haz-Mat
endorsement)  Job incumbents must maintain a driving record acceptable to the District and its
insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established District vehicle operation

standards are a condition of continuing employment.

PIC DO f ;. DOOITT HULR Lab, alnd

allow a peroa ime Tor e

Y DX nis_ce , NG

1Ll c 15 { 4 > Ll Y IC ClLATanc

Maintenance & Electrical Supervisor (September 20157) Page 2 of 4



section T _pace io. _/_’_ﬂ_
ersort for lifting

1O |t
= I
’

iiv.  Maywork odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

v. _ Mustbe-clean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface (such
as stubble, bead growth, beard, mustache or sidebums).

ivi.  Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

fikvii.  Must possess and maintain a Grade IV Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade IV Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required cerfifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing

employment.
hwvill.  Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsParsons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination paid for by the District. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening also paid for by
the District. The medical examination and drug screening are intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to
meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. _ Investigate and solve compiex problems involving the ability to:

Perform visual inspections
Hear normal versus abnormal noises
View and respond to operational control screens (including alarms)
_Think critically
Li.  sSit for extended periods of time;
iiiii.  eOperate a deskiop computer;
iiLiv.  eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;
iv.v.  eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

wvi. _pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, climbing, and manual dexterity;

viwvii.  pPeriorm additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which
may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

vilviii.  w\Wear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;

Qe o

Maintenance & Electrical Supervisor (September 20157) Page 3 of 4



I

viiix.  uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

sex._ eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

AL

xxi.  wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

SECTION ” S _PAGE NG.

Maintenance & Electrical Supervisor (September 20157)

Page 4 of 4

6
I ——



secrion_HY _pace vo, S|
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

WATER OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR — M5
(Chief Operator)

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under direction, supervises and participates in the work of staff responsible for the water pumping,
distribution, and treatment systems; oversees and participates in work involving meter reading, water service
connection, backflow compliance, and customer services; and performs other related work as required.

Serves as the District's Chief Operator pursuant to California safe drinking water regulations.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1) Responsible for overseeing and leading operations of the District's water pumping, treatment and
distribution system. Also responsible for operation of the District's Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition System (SCADA) used to monitor and control the water system. Supervises and
participates in alfl aspects of District operations to carry out this responsibility.-Cperations-includes:

$2) Monltornng and controlling the operation of water pumping, freatment and distribution facilities
to achieve proper processing and distribution of water within mandated operating requirements:

2)3) Starting and controlling plant processes and chemical systems to freat water in accordance
with DHS' Permit and other operating requirements:

3)4) Assisting in handling and storage of water treatment chemicals

4)5) Performing water sample coilection and various laboratory testing and analytical procedures

5)8) Monitoring, starting and controlling power generation equipment in a safe manner:

8)7) Responding to alarms, identifying operating problems, and initiating or implementing
appropriate response and corrective actions

2)8) Supervises and participates in meter reading, service connection, backflow device installation
and testing, and customer services

3)92) _ Conducts periodic inspections of equipment and facilities to ensure proper operation, and to
identify and plan for repairs and maintenance

4)10) Assists with the implementation of a comprehensive work safety program. Ensures
adherence to safety requirements, conducts inspections for hazards, conducts accident

investigations, and prepares incident reports
5)11) Designs and implements energy conservation programs

8)12) Assists in the identification, planning and prioritization of operations and maintenance
projects, including the determination of personnel & materials requirements, and personnel

assignments

£13) Works with Gcontractor and/-or Ccustomer to properly size and locate new meter service
requests

8)14) Provides input on budget and cost proposals for maintenance and operations

N15) Directs departmental record keeping activities; prepares requisitions; prepares a variety of
reports.

| Water Operations Supervisor (September 20157) Page 1 of 4



SECTION_M_, PAGE NO_E(_Q;

| 10316) Handles customer inquiries and complaints. Keeps records of all complains per State
regulations.

| 1417) __ Performs supervisory functions. Assures that subordinate staff acquire and maintain all
necessary licenses, certifications, and training; plans and conducts in-service training programs;
prepares periodic evaluations of employees; assists in the selection of new water operations staff.

| 42)18)  Performs duties of an Operations and Maintenance Technician as needed, and may act as
District Superintendent

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

i.  Principles, practices and operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution;

i. Federal and State regulations relating to water quality, freatment, and distribution:

li. Collecting water samples and performing laboratory testing procedures;

v. Reading meters and accurately recording water usage;

v.  Budgeting and project planning, and cost estimation for service installations:

/i.  Safety regulations, programs and safe work practices;

Vvii.  Interpretation of user manuals, repair manuals, schematic diagrams and blueprints;

\n[ii. Operating a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment;

x. Dealing tactfully and courteously with customers. Handling customer inquiries and complaints;

x. Develop Ccooperative working relationships. Use Fteamwork to solve practical problems, and fo plan
and coordinate workload among a small, close-knit workforce; '

xi.  Strong working knowledge of computers using both standard (Microsoft Office) and specialized
application software (Allan Bradley Ladder Logic, MMI languages; SCADA, ESRI ArcGIS/GPS)

fii.  Strong written and oral communication skills;
xjii.  Ability to compose routine correspondence and reports;

v.  Strong arithmetic and basic mathematics skills-

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of fraining and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED
i. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial

i.  Five-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of
water pumping, treatment and distribution system and facilities. Supervisory experience
beneficial and desirable. Experience with Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition Systems

also beneficial and desirable
iv. Grade IV Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

| Water Operations Supervisor (September 20157) Page 2 of 4



SECTIGN Hﬁ AGE NG._52
Must possess the category of California Driver's license required by the State Department'of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the Disfrict and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2. May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline

breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

3. Mustbe-clean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment. facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface(such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums)

3-4.Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

4-5.Must possess and maintain a Grade 1V Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade IV Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing

employment.

| 5.6.Must posses and maintain Backflow Certification pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an
incumbent does not initially possess this certification, the District will allow a period of time for the

incumbent to obtain the required certification.
l 6-7.Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

1.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

| IndividualsRersons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination paid for by the District. Because this position ig considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening also paid for by
the District. The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to

meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

a. Perform visual inspections
b. Hear normal versus abnormal noises
c. View and respond to operational control screens (including alarms)

d. Think critically
ki, sSit for extended periods of time
iiii. _eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.)

ii-iv.  eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment:

iev.  eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools:

wyi, __pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, climbing, and manual dexterity

vii. __pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which
may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions

vikviii. w\Vear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;

MVl

| Water Operations Supervisor (September 20157) Page 3 of 4



SECTION Hﬂ _PAGE b:c._gff__

viii-ix.  uUnderstand and camy out oral and written directions;
-x.___sCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

-xi. __wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

| Water Operations Supervisor (September 20157) Page 4 of 4



section_ 1 _,pace no, 5O
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
l ASSISTANT MAINTENANCE and ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR — M6

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, directly assist and support the Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor, and
participate in the work of staff responsible for the construction, repair, calibration, and maintenance of District
pumping, water treatment, distribution, storage, hydroelectric, communications, electrical, electronic, and
other facliies. May coordinate and oversee the work of contract construction and maintenance employees.
Coordinates and facilitates the District Safety program and Regulatory Safety Compliance program.
Performs other related work as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

831) Directly assist and support the Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor and participate in the
work of staff responsible for the construction, repair, calibration, and maintenance of District pumping,
water treatment, distribution, storage, hydroelectric, communications, electrical, and electronic
facilities and related appurtenances.

| 9)2) Assists Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor in identifying and planning capital,
maintenance, and repair projects. Prepares cost estimates and specifications. Provides input to the

| 6)3)Pudget RIGRESShsence of Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor, provides field supervision and
participates in capital, mainienance, and repair projects. Determines personnel and materials
requirements; receives work orders; makes decisions on personnel and priorities; prepares
requisitions for materials; develops CAD plans and sketches, cost estimates, specifications, and work
schedules. Assists in the coordination of construction, maintenance, and electrical work performed

by outside contractors as needed.

| 6)4)  Under direction of Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor, facilitates work safety programs,

| 0)5)84ch as5chedule and coordinate Monthly Safety meetings and prepare literature and visual aids.
Document and keep records as required.

| 6) ____ Coordinate and take minutes for Quarterly safety committee meeting. Prepare and distribute
minutes and agendas.

| 87y On an ongoing as required basis — develop methods to assure safety compliance with
regulatory agencies.

I 0)8) _Coordinates and facilitates the District Safety program and Regulatory Safety Compliance
program. implements of comprehensive work safety program. Such as: reads and understands
safety rules and regulations; develops safety program in compliance with safety rules and
regulations; conducts employee safety training; conducts inspections for hazards, conducts accident
investigations, and prepares incident reports. Conducts periodic inspections of District equipment
and facilities; also inspects for fire, safety, and health hazards.

9)9) Plans and facilitates in-service training programs and record keeping.
£9)10) Assist Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor with inventory management duties.

211) Reads and interprets manuals, blueprints, and schematic drawings; maintains records and
reports of work performed; prepares schematic drawings and updates blueprints to reflect as-built

conditions.
I Assistant Maintenance Supervisor (September 20157)Page 1 of 4



SECTION __Hfi PAGE NO,_ B0

2] Prepares various reports as directed; assists in departmental record keeping activities.
9)13) Performs supervisory functions as needed.

2)14) May perform duties of Operations and Maintenance Technician
©)15) _ May provide full back-up and perform duties of the Maintenance and Electrical Supervisor.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITIES

4. Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution systems, and hydro-electric plant.

-ii. __Procedures, materials, equipment and tools used in maintenance and construction of water system
facilities, electrical/electronic systems, hydroelectric facilities, and in particular: industrial motors,
engines, pumps, compressors, hydraulic systems, valves, gas and diesel engines, and buildings.

i. _ Regulations relating to water treatment and distribution. Electrical codes and industrial safety orders.

lv. __ Principles and methods of procurement and storage of construction, electrical, electronic, and water
treatment equipment, tools, supplies, and materials.

-v. __ Fabrication of equipment, basic shop trades practices, and welding.

-yi.____Preventative maintenance programs.

~\ii. __Interpreting repair manuals, schematic diagrams, and blueprints.

-vli.  Operation of a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment.

~x. _ Costestimation to repair, alter, and maintain facilities, and prepare accurate budget estimates.

-x. _Rules and regulations pertaining to handling and storage of hazardous and toxic materials.

|

il

—ki. __ Safety program and safe work practices.

-il. _ Supervision and staff training.
-xlii. __Operation of computers, and other office equipment, using both standard and specialized application
software.

-xlv.___Familiar with CAD software and use.

-xv.  Develop Ccooperative working relationships. Use Fteamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate
work among a small, close-knit workforce.

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

~i. _High school diploma or GED
-ii. _ Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial.

Completion of an apprenticeship or other equivalent fraining and education involving industrial
plant maintenance and repair desirable.

| ~ii.__Three -to-five years of increasingly responsible experience in the construction and maintenance
field, preferably involving water treatment and distribution systems equipment and facilities.

I -iv. __Grade Il Treatment and Grade IV Distribution certificates.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

I Assistant Maintenance Supervisor (September 20157)Page 2 of 4



SECTIGN __Hi’i PAGE 1O. _EE_

|i.  Must possess the category of Califomia Driver's license required by the State Department of Motor

Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. (Class A, Combination vehicle, with Haz-Mat
endorsement) If an incumbent does not initially possess this license, the District will allow a period of
time for the incumbent to obtain the required license. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

Job _incumbents will be required to attain and maintain an NCCCO Crane Operator certification for
telescopic boom fixed cab, boom truck fixed cab, and service truck cranes. If an incumbent does not
initially possess this certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications through the established certification cycle for District Crane Operators. (every 5yrs)

ii. __May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chiorine leaks.

i.  Mustbe-clean-shaven-ln order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface (such

as stubble, bead growth, beard, mustache or sidebums).

H|

-lv. ___—Must be able to participate in confined space operations.
+v. __Must possess and maintain a Grade Il Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade IV Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially

possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing
employment.

—.#L__Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

I IndividualsPersens selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination paid for by the District. Because this position js considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening also paid for by
the District. The medical examination and drug screening are intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to
meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

a. Perform visual inspections

b. Hear nomal versus abnormal noises
c. View and respond to operational control screens (including alarms)

d. Think critically
1. ____sSit for extended periods of time;

<ii. ___eOperate a desktop computer;

=il ___eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;
=lv. ___eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

I Assistant Maintenance Supervisor (September 20157)Page 3 of 4



secrion_ Y pace no._B3_

—lv. pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, climbing, and manual dexterity,

~yi. __pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which may
involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

-\, wWear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;

-Mii. __uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

—x. eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

-Ix. ___wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

Assistant Maintenance Supervisor (September 20157)Page 4 of 4



secrion 14 PAGE No._§j__

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District o

ASSISTANT WATER OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR — M7
(Back-Up Chief Operator)

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, directly assist and support the Water Operations Supervisor by performing
activities related to operations, maintenance and control of the District's water pumping, distribution,
treatment, and hydroelectric facilities. Fills operational shifts as the Shift Operator for a portion of the work
week. Participates in, and helps oversee, sample collection and basic laboratory testing, meter reading,
water service connections, backflow compliance, and other customer service work. Provides primary
oversight and development of the District’s Geographical Information System / Facility Information System.

Serves as the District's Back-Up Chief Operator.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

Operations:
| 1) Directly assist and support the Water Operations Supervisor with all aspects of operations
and control of the District's water pumping, distribution, treatment, and hydroelectric facilities.

| 86)2) Perform system operations activities as the District's Shift Operator (generally 16 hours per
workweek). Duties include: l

| ~a. Monitoring and controlling the operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities
to achieve proper processing and distribution of water within mandated operating
requirements

—b. Starting and controlling plant processes and chemical systems to treat water in accordance
with DHS’ Permit and other operating requirements

-C. Assisting in handling and storage of water treatment chemicals
-d. Performing water sample collection and various laboratory testing and analytical procedures
-e._Monitoring, starting and controliing power generation equipment in a safe manner.

~-f._Responding to alarms, identifying operating problems, and initiating or implementing
appropriate response and corrective actions:

£53) Perform shift scheduling for Operations staff. Complete timesheets and monitor vacation and
holidays for Operations and Maintenance staff.

I 8)4) _ Cross-frain with Water Operations Supervisor in river management, Ruth operations, water
quality testing program, production of monthly operations reports, oversight of day-to-day operations,
oversight and quality assurance on SCADA system development.

0)5) May provide full back-up and perform duties of the Water Operations Supervisor position.

l Assistant Water Ops Supervisor (September 20157) Page 1 of 4



SECTION X' _ PAGE NG 90

© v msnermrsy

Customer Service:

8)1) _ Cross train with District's Operations/Customer Service Specialist on distribution system,
backflow program, valve exercising program, and flushing program. Perform Customer Service

duties as necessary.

A2) Respond to and document customer inquiries/complaints about water service, water quality
and service installation requests in a timely manner.

8)3) Develop service quotes for customers. Document and track service installations to ensure
completion in a timely manner.
Other:
1) .Geographical Information System / Facility Information System

a. Oversight of GIS/FIS system for District’s system and facility information, rights-of-way, and
preventative maintenance program._Develop documentation and user protocols. Interface
with ESRI and engineering consultants.

b. Continue system development and perform ongoing maintenance of the system.

~¢. Train staff in its use.

erginserrg-sansulianis

102) Safety - Conduct certain safety training classes as needed. Periodically serve on District's
Safety Committee.

+433) Purchasing / Stocking /Inventory Management — Oversight and support of requisition
process, petty cash, and inventory management and reporting. Ensures compliance with the
District's system of internal controls for accounting, auditing and fraud prevention purposes.

124) Special Projects — Research and collect information for special studies, community outreach,
and-budget, and /CIP development.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

Principles, practices and operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution

Federal and State regulations relating to water quality, freatment, and distribution:

Collecting water samples and performing laboratory testing procedures;

Reading meters and accurately recording water usage;

Budgeting and project planning, and cost estimation for service installations

Safety regulations, programs and safe work practices;

Interpretation of user manuals, repair manuals, schematic diagrams and blueprints;

Operating a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment:

Dealing tactfully and courteously with customers while ——Hhandling customer inquiries and complaints;

Assistant Water Ops Supervisor (September 20157) Page 2 of 4



secrion Lo\ PAGE vo. | __

Develop ©cooperative working relationships. Use Fteamwork to solve practical problems, and to pian
and coordinate workload among a small, close-knit workforce

Strong working knowledge of computers using both standard (Microsoft Office) and specialized
application software (Allan Bradley Ladder Logic, MMI languages; SCADA, ESRI ArcGIS/GPS)

Strong written and oral communication skills;
Ability to compose routine correspondence and reports:

Strong arithmetic and-bacic-mathematics-skills

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED
ii. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position is beneficial

ii. ~ Three-to-five years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of
water pumping, treatment and distribution system and facilities

iv.  Grade IV Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1)

2)

Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline

breaks, high water events, and chiorine leaks.

3) Mustbe-clean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must

be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface(such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums)..

3)4) _ Must be able to participate in confined space operations.
4)5) _ Must possess and maintain a Grade IV Water Treatment Operator’s Certificate and a Grade IV

Water Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not
initially possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain
the required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education
requirements to maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a

condition of continuing employment.

| 8)%8) _ Must posses and maintain Backflow Certification pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an

incumbent does not initially possess this certification, the District will allow a period of time for the
incumbent to obtain the required certification.

Assistant Water Ops Supervisor (September 20157) Page 3 of 4



secrion Y _ pace v, g

| 8)7) _Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of
employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersens selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination and-drug—secreening—paid for by the District.__Because this position is considered "safety
sensitive” in nature, the person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug
screening also paid for by the District. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability
to meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. _ Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

a. Perform visual inspections

b. Hear normal versus abnormal noises
c. View and respond to operational control screens (including alamms)

i. __ Think critically
-ii. _ sSit for extended periods of time;

-ii. __eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);

-iv. ___eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment,
~v. ___eOperate a variety of hand and elecfric tools;

~vi. __pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

| —vii. __pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which

may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;
—viil. __wWear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;
~ix. ___uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

-Xx.___eCommunicate well with others, both verbally and in writing;

-xi. ___wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

=Xii.

Assistant Water Ops Supervisor (September 20157) Page 4 of 4



| secmon_ 4 _paceno. 42

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
WATER OPERATIONS SPECIALIST — OM1

GENERAL PURPOSE
This position is somewhat unique in that it contains an element of another District position (the Operational

and Maintenance Technician), but it also performs and is responsible for a variety of highly technical and
specialized work related to the District's network and computer systems, including the District's Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA).

Under general supervision, programs, organizes, administers, and maintains automated process control,
data acquisition and software systems, microcomputer networks and related peripheral equipment. Acts as
technical resource to other staff on use of automated equipment and software. Performs full range of
Operations and Maintenance Technician duties, and other related work as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1. Performs water system operations duties and responsibilities of the Operations and Maintenance
Technician position. Operational duties include:

o Monitoring and controlling the operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities to
achieve proper processing and distribution of water within mandated operating requirements:

o Starting and controlling plant processes and chemical systems to freat water in accordance with
DHS’ Permit and other operating requirements;

o Assisting in handling and storage of water treatment chemicals;
o Performing water sample collection and various laboratory testing and analytical procedures;

o Responding to alarms, identifying operating problems, and initiating or implementing appropriate
response and corrective actions.

2. Uses process control, data acquisition, and special application software to meet District operational
needs.

3. Responsible for networked systems which includes over 40 computers and multiple peripheral
devises. Responsible for the District's Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA.).
The control system is a local area network of approximately 20 programmable logic controliers
(PLCs) linked through ethernet, fiber-optic, DH+, and modems. The administrative system is a
network of PC computers linked to each other through an ethemet LAN, and also linked to the control
system. Acts as network supervisor for plant operations, and assists electricians with physical
maintenance of the control network.

4. Installs and activates sensors and other instrumentation. Assists in the setup and configuration of
automated equipment, computers and related peripherals. Adds ladder logic and HMI programming
to display and data log these sensors and related SCADA inputs. Performs software upgrades to the
PLC and HMI, including sensor calibrations and range programming.

5. Performs daily checks and analyses to maintain complete functionality of computer systems.
Performs routine cleaning of computers and printer equipment. Interacts as requested with computer
consultants to identify and resolve computer/network problems. In the event of system or network
failure, expedites professional trouble-shooting procedures to retum the system to full capability.

| Water Operations Specialist (September 200817) Page 1 of 4



secnon Y pace o Q4

6. Performs Database Administrator functions. Diagnoses and responds to varying symptoms
evidenced in the data that could result in production, water quality and/or environmental concems.
Performs PC archiving and backup duties. Provides data acquisition services and produces special
reports and graphs.

7. Utilizes the VBA programming language to improve software and user interfaces. Innovates to
introduce new systems and/or processes to improve capability or efficiency of operations.

8. Acts as resource for the entire organization on operation of computers and peripheral equipment.
Provides technical assistance and training for personnel in the use of computers, HMI and related
hardware and software.

9. Sets up procedures for a variety of office support, record keeping, disc handling and system library
tasks.

10. May periodically fill-in and act as Assistant Water Operations Supervisor ,er Water Operations
Specialist and shift operations-

10.11. Responsible for both administrative and control system backups. Review and update backup
policies and procedures to make sure the dDistrict is protected from new and emerging threats.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE; SKILLS, and ABILITES

e Principles and practices of programming

e Standard deskiop operating system and Microsoft Office applications (spreadsheet and database).

¢ Specialized program applications, including Allan Bradley Ladder Logic and HMI languages, SCADA,
VB, VBA

e Mathematical and analytical skills necessary for a Network Administrator. Ability to maintain and
troubleshoot DH+, fiber-optic, and ethernet/CATS LAN systems

¢ Design and implementation of new systems or procedures for process control automation

¢ Operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities. Principles and practices of water
quality and water treatment.

¢ Interpreting gauges, recording devices, and other monitoring equipment for plant operations.
¢ Basic water sample coliection and laboratory testing procedures.
¢ Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution equipment.

« Interpreting repair manuals, schematic diagrams, blueprints, and preventative maintenance
programs.

¢ Safety program and safe work practices

« Cooperative working relationships. Teamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate work

among a small, close-knit workforce
TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:
Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.

A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

¢ High school diploma or GED

| Water Operations Specialist (September 200817) Page 2 of 4



SECTION HE\ L PAGE IC. __CLQ
e Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position highly desirable. A
Bachelors Degree, or equivalent professional-level coursework, in data processing, computer
systems analysis, symbolic programming, is beneficial and desirable.

o Five-to-seven years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation of water distribution,
treatment, and pumping facilities, with particular experience in process control and data
acquisition systems, and related network and computer application software.

o Grade IV Treatment and/or Distribution certificates
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2. May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

3. Mustbe-clean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment,_facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface{such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums).. Must be able to participate in confined space
operations.

4. Must possess and maintain a Grade IV Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade |V Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing

employment.
5. Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical examination which
the District pays for. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the person selected for
appointment fo this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the District also pays for.
The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the
physical and heaith requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
a) sit for extended periods of time;
b) operate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);
c) operate motor vehicles and other equipment,

d) operate a variety of hand and electric tools;

e) perform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

| Water Operations Specialist (September 200817) Page 3 of 4



SECTIGN_\.’.H_'L.PAGE 'NC--%._

f) perform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which may
involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

g) wear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;
h) understand and carry out oral and written directions;

i) communicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

i) work cooperatively and get along well with other people;

k) investigate and solve complex problems which involves ability to perform visual inspections, ability to
hear normal versus abnormal noises, ability to view and respond to operational control screens

including alarms, and ability to think critically.

| Water Operations Specialist (September 200817) Page 4 of 4



SECTIGN_EB..P' ceve. T

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
ELECTRICIAN and INSTRUMENT TECHNICIAN — OM2

Under general supervision, installs, maintains, troubleshoots, repairs, adjusts, programs and calibrates
a variety of electrical, electronic, and electro-mechanical equipment including millivolt systems through
high voltage distribution systems, SCADA system equipment, PLC ladder logic programing, wireless
communications systems, hydroelectric power generation equipment, water pumps, cranes, and
telemetry systems; and performs other related duties as required.

©0)1) Installs electrical circuits, relays, switch gear, wiring, electronic alarms, and telemetering equipment
used in the operation and monitoring of high voltage distribution systems, hydroelecfric power generation

. plant, water pumps, cranes, and telemetry systems.
0)2) Troubleshoots, repairs, and calibrates water treatment instrumentation, testing, and monitoring devices.
0)3) _Troubleshoots, programs, and repairs automated control devices; repairs, adjusts, and replaces

electrical relays.
9)4)__Troubleshoots, repairs, rebuilds, and adjusts electrical and mechanical parts of pumps, motors,
and pressure control valves.

0)5) Tests and repairs cathodic protectionsystems.

8)6) - Performs testing, maintenance, and repair on metering and recording instruments, control apparatus,
data logging and display equipment, communications and telemetering systems, and laboratory
equipment; performs specialized maintenance and repair on two-way FM base radio stations, repeaters,
mobile stations, portable and telemetry stations, antennas, and intercom systems.

837)__ Installs, maintains, repairs, and modifies office and shop electrical systems in District office and
shop facilities.

£)8) Maintains, froubleshoots the District's SCADA system, sensors, communications devises, PLC’s,
etc.

£)9) _Collaborates with others and performs PLC ladder logic programing, using Allen Bradley
equipment and Rockwell Automation software.

8)10) Installs, maintains, troubleshoots wireless radio communications systems

9)11) Oversees the work of helpers assisting withrepairs.

£)12) May order parts, materials, and supplies required for electrical and other repairs.

9313) _Reads and interprets manuals, blueprints, and schematic drawings,; maintains records and reports
of work performed; prepares schematic drawings and updates blueprints to reflect as-built conditions.

. Principles and practices of electrical and electronic repair and maintenance

~ii. ___Repair, maintenance, and operational adjustment procedures for water pumping, distribution, and
treatment plant equipment

Electrician & Instrument Tech (September 2017) Page 1 of 4



SECTION__T

—iii. __Methods, materials, tools, and testing equipment used in the installation, maintenance, calibration,
and repair of electrical and electronic equipment

=iV, Measuring, monitoring, and calibration devices used in electrical, mechanical, instrumentation, and
relay troubleshooting and repair:

V. Repair and calibration of instrumentation and relays-
-vi. ___Maintenance and repair of electrical generation equipment, and high voltage (12,000 volt)
transmission system:
~Vii. Experience with the operation, maintenance, and troubleshooting of Supervisory Control
and Data Acquisition Systems
~viii, ___Experience with the programing of PLC’s and HMI's and the associated programing
software such as Rockwell Automation’s Studio 5000, RSview32, Factory Talk, Logix500,
and ControlLogix5000:
=X, Experience with wired and wireless telemetry technologies and the troubleshooting and
maintenance methods employed with them
-X. Experience with project development, specification and interconnection CAD work
associated with the implementation of new equipment and or control technologies

~Xi. Safety laws, regulations, and rules relating to electrical system and electronic maintenance and repair
work. Safe work practices including necessary electrical clearances and lockout / tagout procedures

=Xil. Operation of computers, automated equipment and standard applicationssoftware

-xiii. ___Develop Gcooperative working relationships. Use Fteamwork to effectively solve practical problems,
and coordinate work among a small, close-knit workforce

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is
qualifying. A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

-i. ___High school diploma orGED

-ii. __ Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial

-ii. __Three-to-five years of journey-level experience in electrical and electronic construction, repair and
maintenance, preferably with some direct experience at a water or wastewater treatment plant,
hydro-electric plant, or similar facilities. Completion of a formal apprenticeship or its equivalent in
the electrical, electronics, or instrumentation fields are highly desirable.

| -lv. __Grade Il Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

| Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
| District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

‘ Electrician & Instrument Tech (September 2017} Page 2 of 4

PAGE No.jiﬁ__



SECTIGN W pace ko9

2) Job incumbents will be required to attain and maintain an NCCCO Crane Operalor certification Tor ———
telescopic boom fixed cab, boom truck fixed cab, and service truck cranes. If an an_incumbent does not
initially possess this certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to to obtain the
required certifications through the established certification cycle for District Crane Operators. (every 5yrs)

3) Job incumbents will be required to be certified as a competent Rigging and Signal Person for lifting
operations

64) .
9)5) May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be
available to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages,

pipeline breaks, high water events, and chiorine leaks.

6) Mustbe-elean-shavenln order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing

surface(such as stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sideburns). .

8)7) _Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

£)8) Must possess and maintain a Grade Il Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade Il Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compllanoe with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing

employment.
©)9) _Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersens selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position jg-considered “safety sensitive” in
nature, the person selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug
screening which the District also pays for. The medical examination and drug screening is intended
to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

¢ Perform visual inspections

* Hear normal versus abnormal noises

+ View and respond to operational control screens (including alarms)
Electrician & Instrument Tech (September 2017) Page 3 of 4




SECTION l’M _,PAGE NG-_LQQ_

« _ Think critically
sSit for extended periods oftime;
Oeperate a desktop computer;

-iv.___eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment:

=V,

oOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

~vi. __pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting,

kneeling, crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity:

_pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which

e may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;
-viii.__w\Wear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;
-ix. _ wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;
~x.___esCommunicate well with others, both verbally and inwriting:
—xi. __ Wwork cooperatively and get along well with otherpeople;
. - i
-xiii. __-+Read and under complex electrical diagrams and communicate electrical processes contained is
such diagrams:
-xiv. __dDraw rudimentary electronic diagrams and communicate electrical processes contained is such

diagrams

Electrician & Instrument Tech (September 2017) Page 4 of 4




secrion_tHH_pace o, O
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District '

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN — OM3
(Shift Operator)

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, operates, maintains, and controls the District's water pumping, distribution, water
treatment, and hydroelectric facilities; performs basic laboratory testing and sample collection; performs
preventative maintenance checks and repairs of District water pumping, distribution and treatment facilities,
machinery, equipment, structures, and grounds; and performs other duties as required. Serves as the
District's Shift Operation pursuant to California safe drinking water regulations.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1. Performs water system operations duties and responsibilities as the District’s Shift Operator on an
assigned shift schedule. Operational duties include:

o Monitoring and controlling the operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities to
achieve proper processing and distribution of water within mandated operating requirements:

o Starting and controlling plant processes and chemical systems to treat water in accordance with
DHS’ Permit and other operating requirements;

o Assisting in handling and storage of water treatment chemicals;
o Performing water sample collection and various laboratory testing and analytical procedures;

o Responding fo alarms, identifying operating problems, and initiating or implementing appropriate
response and cormective actions.

Monitors, starts and controls power generation equipment in a safe manner.

. Inspects, maintains and repairs a variety of water control, pumping, distribution, treatment, regulating
equipment, and buildings and other related facilities. Assists others with complex machinery and
equipment maintenance, repairs and overhauls.

4. Maintains and cleans facilities such as wastewater recovery basins, sludge handling facilities, storage

tanks, and related equipment, as well as District buildings and grounds. Keeps machinery,
equipment, structures, piping, work areas, and grounds in a clean and orderly condition.

5. Records operation and maintenance actions including flows, chemical dosages, filtration rates, and
other information in appropriate log sheets/books. Notes operational or maintenance problems and
writes work orders for repairs.

6. Uses personal computers to enter operational data into spreadsheets for calculation of average
flows, chemical dosages, CT values and water usage. Prepares a variety of operating and statistical

reports. Creates simple graphs using spreadsheet programs such as Microsoft Excel to compare
and demonstrate frends and attributes of processes. Produces simple written reports and

memoranda.
7. May read customer meters; may assist maintenance staff in installation of water lines and meters as
needed.

| Operations & Maintenance Technician (September 200317) Page 1 of 3



8. May periodically fill-in and act as Assistant Water Operations Supervisor or Water Operations
- Specialist.

sectioN_tTH, Pace o, _(0 -

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

¢ Operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities
¢ State and Federal water quality regulations, standards, and practices

« Interpreting gauges, recording devices, and other monitoring equipment for plant and facility
operations

¢ Basic water sample collection and laboratory testing procedures

¢ Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution equipment

¢ Interpreting repair manuals, schematic diagrams, blueprints, and preventative maintenance programs
e Time, materials, and labor cost estimating for maintenance and repair projects

¢ Operation of a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment

o Safety program and safe work practices

e Operation of computers, and other office equipment, using both standard and specialized application
software

« Cooperative working relationships. Teamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate work
among a small, close-knit workforce

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

¢ High school diploma or GED
¢ Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial.

¢ Three-to-five years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of
water pumping, treatment and distribution system and facilities;

e Grade lll Treatmenti and/or Distribution certificates

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Must possess the category of California Driver's license required by the State Depariment of Motor
Vehidles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2. May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

3. Mustbe-elean-shaven-lin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment<facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface(such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums)

3-4.Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

| Operations & Maintenance Technician (September 200817) Page 2 of 3



secrion_HY._ pace io. | 03

| 4.5.Must possess and maintain a Grade Il Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade Ill Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing

employment.
6.6.Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical examination which
the District pays for. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the person selected for
appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the District also pays for.
The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the
physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
a) sSit for extended periods of time;
b) eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);
c) eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;
d) eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

e) pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawiing, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

| f) pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which may
involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

g) wWear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;
h) wuUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;
i) sCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

j) wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

k) iinvestigate and solve complex problems which involves ability to perform visual inspections, ability fo
hear normal versus abnormal noises, ability to view and respond to operational control screens
including alarms, and ability to think critically;

] Operations & Maintenance Technician (September 200817) Page 3 of 3



secTion HY, _ pae wo,

Humboldi Bay Municipal Water District
MAINTENANCE MECHANIC — OM3

GENERAL PURPOSE

| Under direction, supenvses ahd participates in the work of staff responsible for the construction, repair,
calibration, and maintenance of District pumping, water treatment, distribution, storage, hydroelectric,
communications, electrical, electronic, and other facilities; may coordinate and oversee the work of contract
construction and maintenance employees; and performs other related work as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1)

2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

7)
8)

9)

Inspects, operates, and maintains a variety of water control, pumping, distribution, freatment, and
regulating equipment, buildings, structures, pipelines, hydroelectric plants, reservoirs, and related

facilities.

Performs repairs and overhauls of gas and diesel engines and large pumps.
Maintains and repairs specialized water control and treatment equipment.
Prepares shop designs for the fabrication or modification of parts and equipment.

Installs, repairs and maintains water meters and pipelines.

Operates the full range of field and shop repair equipment and tools, including trucks, tractors, forklifts,
boomtruck, cranes, portable welders, and paint spraying equipment.

Maintains and repairs buildings, facilities and equipment including the performance of carpentry, painting,
welding, plumbing, and machine shop work.

Performs pipeline repairs including placement of various types of clamps, grouting and other joining
devices.

Performs plumbing and valve repairs including rebuilding of air relief, blowoff, and butterfly vaives.

10) Performs hydrauiic system maintenance, repair and modifications including piping, cylinders, and pumps.

11) Reads and interprets manuals, blueprints, and schematic drawings.
12) May periodically perform duties of Operation and Maintenance Technician.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

iii.
iv.

] Maintenance Mechanic (September 20 )}

Operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities

Repair and maintenance of water pumping, treatment and distribution equipment. In particular,
procedures, equipment, materials, and tools to maintain and repair. industrial motors, engines, pumps,
compressors, hydraulic systems, valves, and gas and diesel engines.

Basic electrical theory related to pump and motor repair and maintenance
Fabrication, and gas and electrical welding

Page 1 of 3

o4

e



secrion_. pact o, |05 |

v.  Preventative maintenance programs

vi. Interpreting repair manuals, schematic diagrams, and blueprints
vi.  Time, materials, and labor cost estimating for maintenance and repair projects
viii.  Operation of a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment

ix. Safety program and safe work practices

x.  Operation of computers, and other office equipment, using both standard and specialized application
software.

xi.  Cooperative working relationships. Teamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate work among a
small, close-knit workforce

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED

i. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial.
Completion of an-apprenticeship or other equivalent training and education involving industrial
plant maintenance and repair desirable.

ii. Three-to-five years of experience in skilled industrial plant mechanical maintenance and repair,
preferably with some direct experience at a water or wastewater treatment plant or similar facility.
Completion of an apprenticeship or other equivalent training and education involving industrial
plant maintenance and repair desirable.

iv.  Grade Hl Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1) Must possess the category of California Driver's license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. {Class A, Combination vehicle, with Haz-Mat
sndorsement)  Job incumbents must maintain a driving record acceptable to the District and its
insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established District vehicle operation
standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2) Job incumbents will be required to attain and maintain an NCCCO Crane Operator certificatiosn for
telescopic boom fixed cab, boom truck fixed cab, and service truck cranes. If an incumbent does not
initially possess this certification, the District will allow 2 period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications through the established certification cycle for District Crane Operators. (every 5yrs)

433) ___Job incumbents will be required to be certified as a competent Rigging and Signal Person for lifting

operations

2)4) May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be
available to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages,

pipeline breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

5) Mustbeclean-shavendin order fo wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface(such as

stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums)..
3)8) _Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

[ Maintenance Mechanic (September 200817) Page 2 of 3



secriontt _page o, [0o_

| 4)7) __Must possess and maintain a Grade Il Water Treatment Operator's Certificate and a Grade Il Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing
employment.

| 8)8) _ Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of
employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical examination which
the District pays for. Because this position js considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the person selected for
appointment fo this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the District also pays for.
The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to meet the

physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

i. Investigate and solve complex problems involving the ability to:

»  Perfomm visual inspections
+ Hear normal versus abnormal noises
» Viewand respond to operational control screens (including alarms)

+__Think critically
—i. __sSit for extended periods of time;

~ii.  eOperate a desktop computer;

—iii. ___eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;

=iv. _ eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

-v. __pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

_pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which
may involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

-vii. __w\WWear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;

—viii. __wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

-ix. _eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

-X. ___wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

| =Vi,

—Xi, nvesti

Page 3 of 3

| Maintenance Mechanic (September 200217)



secion 1Y, pase 0. (07
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District '

OPERATIONS and CUSTOMER SERVICE SPECIALIST — OM3

GENERAL PURPOSE

This position is somewhat unique in that it contains elements of other District positions (the Operational and
Maintenance Technician and the Water Operations Specialist), and it also performs a variety of water quality
and retail-level distribution and customer service work.

Under general supervision, this position performs the duties of the Operations and Maintenance Technician
position, and also performs retail customer service and distribution system activities such as meter reading,
pipeline flushing, backflow device testing, and pipeline locating. Provides assistance and part-time back-up

to the Water Operations Specialist.

In general, a greater portion of time will be spent operating and providing support to the Water Operations
Specialist when the Turbidity Reduction Facility (TRF) is operational, and conversely, a greater portion of
time will be spent performing retail customer service functions when the TRF is not operational.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES
1. Performs water system operations duties and responsibilities of the Operations and Maintenance
Technician position. Operational duties include:

o Monitoring and controlling the operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities to
achieve proper processing and disfribution of water within mandated operating requirements;

o Starting and controlling plant processes and chemical systems to treat water in accordance with
DHS’ Permit and other operating requirements;

o Assisting in handling and storage of water treatment chemicals;
o Performing water sample collection and various laboratory testing and analytical procedures;

o Responding to alarms, identifying operating problems, and initiating or implementing appropriate
response and cormrective actions.

2. May monitor, start and control power generation equipment in a safe manner.
Records operation actions including flows, chemical dosages, filtration rates, and other information in
appropriate log sheets/books. Notes operational or maintenance problems and writes work orders
for repairs.

4. Reads water meters following an established schedule, and checks for inoperative, defaced, or
bypassed meters. Makes minor adjustments or repairs to meters/appurtenances. Turns water
service on/off and handles inquiries with respect to retail service.

I 5. Flushes-pipeline-systemResponsible for valve exercising and system flushing programs according to
prescribed procedures.
6. Determines need for backflow and cross-connection equipment and tests all backflow devices for
compliance with regulations at specified interval.
7. Locates and identifies District equipment and pipelines for customers, contractors, and other public
agencies.

| Operations and Customer Service Specialist (September 200178) Page 1 of 4



SECTION ﬁﬂ,_,,PAGE HO. LQZ@___
8. Maintains a variety of records and reports relating to water service customers and equipment.
9. May assists in the repair and maintenance of Distfrict equipment and facilities, may assist
maintenance staff in the installation, repair, and maintenance of meters, pipelines, and other water
distribution equipment.
10. Use personal computers to enter operational data into spreadsheets for calculation of average flows,

chemical dosages, CT values and water usage, and prepares a variety of operating and statistical
reports. Produce simple written reports and memoranda.

11. Support and provide back-up capability to the Water Operations Specialist with respect to
maintenance and operation of the District’'s process control, data acquisition, and special application
software.

12. May periodically fill-in and act as Assistant Water Operations Supervisor,-or Water Operations
Specialist and shift operations .-

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES
e Operation of water pumping, treatment and distribution facilities

e Principles, practices and regulations of water quality, water treatment and distribution

o Interpreting gauges, recording devices, and other monitoring equipment for plant and facility
operations

¢ Collecting water samples and performing laboratory-testing procedures

e Reading meters and accurately recording usage

e Performing backflow testing and line flushing procedures

¢ Dealing tactfully with customers, contractors and others encountered in the course of work
e Operating a variety of vehicles and power-driven equipment

e Safety program and safe work practices

e Operation of computers using both standard applications (e.g. Office-based), and specialized
applications including Allan Bradley Ladder Logic and MM languages, SCADA, VB, VBA

e Principles and practices of programming

e Cooperative working relationships. Teamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate work
among a small, close-knit workforce

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way fo obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

e High school diploma or GED
e Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial.

e Two-to-three years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation of water distribution,
treatment, and pumping facilities; and/or distribution system activities such as backflow testing,
meter reading, and customer service. Backflow certification also desirable.

e Grade 1l Treatment and/or Distribution certificates

| Operations and Customer Service Specialist (September 200178) Page 2 of 4



sec1‘|oN_LJf(:_\,__,PAGE no. |07

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment. '

2. May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, high water events, and chlorine leaks.

3. Mustbe-clean-shavendin order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, facial hair must
be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface(such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebumns).

- 3:4.Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

4-5.Must possess and maintain a Grade Il Water Treatment Operator’s Certificate and a Grade Ill Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing
employment.

$:6.Must posses and maintain Backflow Certification pursuant o State drinking water regulations. If an
incumbent does not initially possess this certification, the District will allow a period of time for the
incumbent to obtain the required certification.

8-7.Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical examination which
the District pays for. Because this position g considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the person selected for
appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the District also pays for.
The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to meet the

physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
a) sSit for extended periods of time;
b) eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);
c) eOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;
d) eOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

e) pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

f) pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which may
involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

Operations and Customer Service Specialist (September 200178) Page 3 of 4



L

g) wiWWear a respirator and other personal protective equipment; SECTIGN.H&. PAGE} 30-.[.,@,,_
h) wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

i) eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

j) wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

k) ilnvestigate and solve complex problems which involves ability to perform visual inspections, ability to
hear normal versus abnormal noises, ability to view and respond to operational control screens
including alarms, and ability to think critically;

| Operations and Customer Service Specialist (September 200178) Page 4 of 4



SECTION//%__ PAGE NO. // /

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
HYDROELECTRIC OPERATOR/RUTH-AREA REPRESENTATIVE — OM3

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, operates, maintains, and controls the District's hydroelectric generating facilities,
R.W. Matthews Dam and reservoir equipment, and Ruth Lake facilities; acts as District's on-site Ruth area
representative; and performs other related duties as required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1.

Controls the operation of hydroelectric generation, R.W. Matthews Dam, reservoir, and water release
equipment and facilities at Ruth Lake using established operating parameters.

Reads and records voltage level and kilowatt hour production of hydroelectric plant; reads gauges and
flow meters to determine and record water levels and flow rates; reports data and plant conditions to
other staff.

Stops and starts power plant following established procedures; checks annunciators, gauges, and dials
to assess plant conditions; checks equipment for malfunctions of maintenance needs.

Performs needed maintenance and repair on District facilities; keeps machinery, equipment, structures,
piping, work areas, grounds, and landscaped areas in a clean and orderly condition; assists others with
complex machinery and equipment maintenance, repair, and overhauil.

Inspects control equipment, facilities, and grounds for needed maintenance and repairs and unusual
operating conditions.

Operates vehicles and equipment; prepares a variety of operating reports; makes rounds of District
property to secure facilities and ensure safety.

Oversee the work of other staff assigned to assist in the operation and maintenance of District
equipment, RW. Matthews Dam, and facilities at Ruth Lake.

Acts as District representative to public agencies, lessees of District properties, and the general public;
assures that the development and usage of District real property complies with District requirements.

9. Responds to hydroelectric plant alarms and emergencies; performs powerhouse and R.W. Matthews

Dam inspections in the event of an earthquake; coordinates the Emergency Action Plan activities at Ruth
Lake.

9-10. Make visual observations of dBam, aAbutments and surrounding geology per our Dam Safety and

Surveillance Monitoring Plan (DSSMP).

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILIITES

* Principles and practices of dams, penstocks, and hydroelectric plants, including electrical generators,
turbines, high voltage breakers, transformers, compressors, valves, pumps

o Hydro-electric facility operations, including monitoring, controlling and adjusting operations and output
¢ Reservoir capacity, water flow, and electric generation calculations

e Repair and maintenance procedures for hydroelectric plants, dams, and related equipment

Hydro Operator-Ruth Rep (September 200817) Page 1 of 3



SECTION L4 FRGE NG, //.2.

¢ Planning and overseeing construction and maintenance work conducted by third-party contractors
e Basic water sample collection and laboratory testing procedures

o Basic operation of computers, automated equipment, and standard applications software

e Safe work practices and safety regulations

e Public and media relations

o Cooperative working relationships. Teamwork to solve practical problems and coordinate work
among a small, close-knit workforce.

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

¢ High school diploma or GED
s Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial

o Three-to-five years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of
hydroelectric generation, dams, and reservoir facilities; or three-to-five years of experience in
skilled industrial plant mechanical maintenance and repair, preferably with some direct
experience at a water facility.

¢ Grade Il Treatment and/or Distribution certificates
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Must possess the category of California Driver’s license required by the State Department of Motor
Vehicles to perform the essential duties of the position. Job incumbents must maintain a driving record
acceptable to the District and its insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and established
District vehicle operation standards are a condition of continuing employment.

2. May work odd shifts, weekends, or holidays and perform standby duties as assigned. Must be available
to respond to emergencies which affect the District such as earthquakes, power outages, pipeline
breaks, and high water events..-ard chlorneleaks:

3. Mustbe-clean-shaven iln order to wear respiratory protection or other safety equipment, -facial hair must

be maintained as to keep hair growth out from between the skin and the facepiece sealing surface{-such as
stubble beard growth, beard, mustache or sidebums)

3-4. Must be able to participate in confined space operations.

4.5.Must possess and maintain a Grade || Water Treatment Operator’s Certificate and a Grade Il Water
Distribution Certificate pursuant to State drinking water regulations. If an incumbent does not initially
possess this level of certification, the District will allow a period of time for the incumbent to obtain the
required certifications. Job incumbents must also meet the State’s continuing education requirements to
maintain certifications. Compliance with the State certification requirements is a condition of continuing
employment.

§-6.Must acquire basic American Red Cross First Aid/CPR certificates during the initial year of employment.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

| Hydro Operator-Ruth Rep (September 200817) Page 2 of 3



SECTIONY Y. JFAGENG. /L2

Persons selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical examination which
the District pays for. Because this position is considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the person selected for
appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment drug screening which the District also pays for.
The medical examination and drug screening is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the
physical and health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

|9

g)
h)
i)
)
k)

sSit for extended periods of time;

oOperate a desktop computer;

oOperate motor vehicles and other equipment;
oOperate a variety of hand and electric tools;

pPerform a variety of physical activities which may involve reaching, bending, squatting, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, and climbing, and also manual dexterity;

pPerform additional physical activities to position or move tools, equipment, and supplies which may
involve lifting, and pushing or pulling motions;

w\\Vear a respirator and other personal protective equipment;
wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;
sCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
wWork cooperatively and get along well with other people;

iinvestigate and solve complex problems which involves ability to perform visual inspections, ability to
hear normal versus abnormal noises, ability to view and respond to operational control screens
including alarms, and ability to think critically.

| Hydro Operator-Ruth Rep (September 200817) Page 3 of 3



SECTION _H_:li_, PAGE MNG. _LH_

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

'SENIOR PROGRAM AND REGULATORY ANALYST — A1

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, performs a wide variety of substantive and complex analytical, business,
program, and regulatory work: Considerable leeway is granted for the exercise of independent judgment and

initiative.
DISTINGUISHING FEATURES

This position is distinguished from the Analyst position by the broader scope of responsibility involved in the
analytical work requiring additional years of experience to perform.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1. Analytical - Performs complex analyses and studies regarding the District’s water supply, water
use, cost-of-service, infrastructure financing, water rates, and other business, operational, or
technical matters. Provides analytical support to the budget and Capital Improvement Plan
processes. Presents results, conclusions, and recommendations from the analyses and studies

concisely and accurately.

2. Communication - Prepares routine and complex correspondence, reports and regulatory filings.
Prepares and writes grant applications. Prepares presentation material to communicate to the
District's wholesale customers, the Board of Directors, and other audiences.

3. Regulatory - Stays abreast of, researches, and determines impacts regarding existing or proposed
regulations of interest to the District. Prepares ali required regulatory reports, filings, and
applicaticns.- Meets and confers with regulatory agency personnel. : i ications-

4. Safety — Participates on District's Safety Commitiee and supports the Superintendent with OSHA
compliance and delivery of the District's safety program.

5. Business Information Systems — Develops and maintains spreadsheets, databases, and other
computer tools to input and retrieve data, and to support a variety of business and operational needs.
Assist with the planning and implementation of a Graphical Information System and Facility Records
System (GIS/FIS) to support and optimize operations and records management.

6. Planning ~ Supports the General Manager, Superintendent and Business Manager with long-range
planning matters. Supports implementation of the District's Capital Improvement Plan.

7. Other
4._May provide back-up and perform the duties of the Business Manager or General Manager.

{i.  May perform special projects for the Superintendent or General Manager as time pemits.

iii. Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
activities or other emergency events.

Sr. Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 200178) Page 1 of 3



SECTloN_&‘_LPAGE v D

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

i Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar and
punctuation. Ability to compose complex and detailed correspondence and reports accurately.

i Strong verbal communication and presentation skills
Ability to work well and collaboratively with others
iv. __Ability to meet deadlines, plan ahead, and adhere to a work plan
Y Ability to prioritize and manage time effectively, and able to realign priorities as needed

vi. __ Ability to complete complex analyses and studies in an independent manner (e.g. define
objective, conduct research, collect data, analyze data, derive results, and formulate conclusions

and recommendations)

vii, __Subject matter expertise in business, economics, engineering economics, planning (especially
water resources planning), or regulations related to the water industry.

vili.  Strong working knowledge of desktop computers, in particular intermediate-to-advanced
proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Outlook). Knowledge
of Microsoft Access and ESRI's GIS software highly desirable.

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

A Bachelors Degree (required), Master Degree (beneficial), from an accredited university or college
with an emphasis in business, economics, engineering economics, planning, water resources, or
management information systems.

-ii. _ Five-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in business, the water industry, or at
another governmental agency, sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties
in an independent manner.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

i Possession of a valid California’s Driver's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

i.  Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

PersonesIndividuals selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature,
the person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the physical and
health requirements for this classification.

Sr. Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 200178) Page 2 of 3



SECTION I _ PAGE p.oﬁ\i}g__

A person employed in this position must be abie to:
4. Oeperate a variety of office equipment, especially-deskiop computers;;
<. Uunderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

iii.  Ceommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;

Wwork cooperatively and get along well with others, the Board, District staff, customers and the
public;

. Tthink critically to address complex business and accounting assignments;

v,

vi.  Ssit for extended periods of time;

~vii. __Pperform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

~viii.  Oeperate a motor vehicle.

i Only one of the two Program and Regulatory Analyst positions will be filled at any given time,

Sr. Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 200178) Page 3 0of 3



secrion_3Y_ pace o, ||
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Sy

ACCOUNTING AND HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST - A2

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision performs financial accounting, bookkeeping and reporting functions of the District,
performs risk management functions, and performs payroll and other human resources functions.

Accounting Area:

0y1)  Performs the District's accounting functions for revenues, expenditures, capital, and reserves.
Maintains cash receipts, cash disbursements journal, and the general ledger. Tracks the District's
checking account and investment account activities.

832) Maintains the District's automated accounting system (currently in QuickBooks) in accordance with
approved accounting standards, policies and procedures. Assists in the design, installation and
update of the District's accounting systems, as necessary.

0)3) Accounts Receivable - Prepares accurate and timely billings to the District’s wholesale municipal and
industrial customers, and the District's retail customers in accordance with approved District
oOrdinances and contracts.

@&4) ~  Accounts Payable - Prepares and processes payments to District creditors in accordance with
approved policies and procedures.

©0)5)  Performs purchasing and contract functions including: a) preparing and processing requisitions,
purchase orders, and JPIA-approved model contracts, b) administering the competitive bidding
process, ¢) ensuring required insurance and risk management provisions are fully satisfied, d)
maintaining systems to ensure products/services are received, &) maintaining supply inventories, and
f) properly tracking, reporting and accounting for purchases and contract services.

9)6) Prepares monthly financial reports which track actual revenues and expenditures versus the
approved annual budget.

0)7) . Assists in the preparation of the annual budget.

8) Provides information and support to the District’s auditor during the annual financial audit
process.

0)8) _ Maintains a system of internal controls in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and in accordance with recommendations from the District’s auditors.

0)10) Develops and maintains a procedure manual for accounting and financial reporting functions.

0i1) Responds fo customer inquiries regarding water services and billings, and vendor/consultant
inquiries in a timely manner.

Acct-HR Specialist (September 20157038) Page 1 of 4



snscmo.\n,\:l:!‘_i PAGE NG.L@__

Human Resource Area:
1) Performs or oversees the District's payroll functions; including:

i) _ajreviewing time cards

ii)__-b) verifying payroll

iii)_¢)-preparing payroll and benefit checks-and

iv)d) preparing payroll-related reports to PERS and state and federal taxing agencies.
44)2)  Provides information and routine support to employees regarding District-paid benefits.

45)3) Handles District response to human resource-related claims (disability, workers’
compensation efc.)

16)4) Trains District personnel in time and job accounting methods and human resources areas.

Other:

Provides general administrative support, including:
a. a)Rresearching, gathering, and organizing information from District records or other sources
b. k) pPreparing and composing District correspondence and routine reports,-and-¢)
¢. pPerforming routine analyses.

19)2) Participates in the planning and implementation of a comprehensive electronic filing and
record retrieval system for the District.

20)3) _ Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
activities or other emergency events;

244) Operates a variety of office equipment including, desk-lep-computer, phetecopier, fax
machinessirile, dosument scanner; and document/information management systems;

5) Utilizes computer software such as word processing, database and spreadsheet applications to input
and retrieve data, produce letters, reports, graphs and spreadsheets:ar¢

22)6) Maintains District's Records Retention Policy and ensures filing and retention protocols are
consistent with that policy.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

1) Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar and
punctuation, and an ability to compose correspondence and reports

2) Strong verbal communication skills

3) Ability to deal intelligently, tactfully, and courteously with customers, District staff, and the Board
of Directors

4) Strong organizational skills
5) Strong arithmetic and-basicmath-skills

6) Bookkeeping and/or accounting experience, especially with governmental accounting principles
and QuickBooks accounting software

Acct-HR Specialist (September 2015708) Page 2 of 4



l

fii

V.

i,

Vi

SECTION_&_\'L, racerc. {9

7) Office methods and procedures, including filing, record keeping and reporting systems.

8) Strong working knowledge of deskiep-computers, including-particular intermediate-to-advanced
proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook). Experience

with Microsoft Access and/or ESRI's GIS software beneficial.

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of fraining and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

High school diploma or GED

Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position is beneficial

Five-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in office administration, accounting, and/or
human resources functions sufficient o demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties and work in

an independent manner

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Possession of a valid California’s Driver's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in accordance
with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these requirements and
established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding.

Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persensindividuals selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature,
the person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the physical and

health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
Oeperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.);
Uunderstand and carry out oral and written directions;
{Think critically to address administrative and accounting tasks;

sCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
w\Work cooperatively and get along well with the Board, District staff and the public;

sSit for extended periods of time;
pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

~—o0perate a motor vehicle.

Acct-HR Specialist (September 2015708) Page 3 of 4



secmN_h‘_‘:LPAGE No. |20

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
'PROGRAM AND REGULATORY ANALYST — A2
GENERAL PURPOSE

Under direct supervision, performs a wide variety of analytical, business, program, and regulatory work.
Some leeway is granted for the exercise of independent judgment and initiative as the incumbent

demonstrates proficiency.
DISTINGUISHING FEATURES

For promotion to the Senior Analyst position, an Analyst incumbent must successfully complete at least two
years of work; obtaining and demonstrating the required knowledge, skills, abilities, and experience; and
meeting criteria for promotion to the Senior position.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

1. Analytical - Performs complex analyses and studies regarding the District's water supply, water
use, cost-of-service, infrastructure financing, water rates, and other business, operational, or
technical matters. Provides analytical support to the budget and Capital Improvement Plan
processes. Presents results, conclusions, and recommendations from the analyses and studies

concisely and accurately.

2. Communication - Prepares routine and complex correspondence, reports and regulatory filings.
Prepares and writes grant applications. Prepares presentation material to communicate to the
District’s wholesale customers, the Board of Directors, and other audiences.

3. Regulatory ~ Stays abreast of, researches, and determines impacis regarding existing or proposed
regulations of interest to the District. Prepares required all regulatory reports, filings, and
applications. Meets and confers with regulatory agency personnel. Prepares-permit-applications-

4. Safety — Participates on District’s Safety Committee and supports the Superintendent with OSHA
compliance and delivery of the District's safety program.

5. Business Information Systems — Develops and maintains spreadsheets, databases, and other
computer tools to input and retrieve data, and to support a variety of business and operational needs.

Assist with the planning and implementation of a Graphical Information System and Facility Records
System (GIS/FIS) to support and optimize operations and records management.

6. Planning — Supports the General Manager, Superintendent and Business Manager with long-range
planning matters. Supports implementation of the District's Capital Improvement Plan.

7. Other:
i.  May provide back-up and perform the duties of the Business Manager.

ii.  May perform special projects for the Superintendent or General Manager as time permits.

iii.  Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
activities or other emergency events.

iv.  Acts as Water Conservation Coordinator per UWMP requirements.

Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 200817) Page 1
of 3



SECTION _H__,PAGE No._[a_\__

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITES

i.  Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar and
punctuation. Ability to compose complex and detailed correspondence and reports accurately.

i.  Strong verbal communication and presentation skills
ii.  Ability to work well and collaboratively with others

iv. __ Ability to meet deadlines, plan ahead, and adhere to a work plan

iikv. _ Ability to prioritize and manage time effectively, and able to realign priorities as needed

iv.vi.  Ability to complete complex analyses and studies in an independent manner (e.g. define
objective, conduct research, collect data, analyze data, derive results, and formulate conclusions

and recommendations)

wvii.  Subject matter expertise in business, economics, engineering economics, planning (especially
water resources planning), or regulations related to the water industry.
wiviil.  Strong working knowledge of desktop computers, in particular intermediate-to-advanced

proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Outlook). Knowledge
of Microsoft Access and ESRI's GIS software highly desirable.

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  Bachelors Degree (required), from an accredited university or college with an emphasis in
business, economics, engineering economics, planning, water resources, or management
information systems.

i.  Two years of increasingly responsible experience in business, the water industry, or at another

governmental agency, sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties in an
independent manner.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

i. Possession of a valid California’s Driver's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

i. Mustbe available fo work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persensindividuals selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature,
the person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 20 ) Page 2
of 3



secnion 1 pace no, | 00
R

screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the physical and
health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:
i. Ooperate a variety of office equipment, especially desktop computers;;
i. Uunderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

ii. Ceommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
Whwork cooperatively and get along well with others, the Board, District staff, customers and the

public;
Tthink critically to address complex business and accounting assignments:

iv.

V.
vi.  Ssit for extended periods of time;
vii.  Pperform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;
vii.  Ooperate a motor vehicle.

i Only one of the two Program and Regulatory Analyst positions will be filled at any given time.

Program and Regulatory Analyst (September 200817) Page 3

of 3



secron 4 _pacero, 192
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT AND BOARD SECRETARY - /

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, provides varied, complex, and at times confidential, administrative and secretarial
support to the General Manager and the Board of Directors.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

Board Secretary:
1. Organizes, produces, and distributes the Board of Directors meeting agenda and package.

2. Attends Board of Directors and Board-level commitiee meetings. Takes notes at Board meetings,
and certain committee meetings, and produces clear, concise minutes for consideration and approval

by the Board of Directors.
3. Provides administrative support to the Board of Directors as necessary.
Makes travel arrangements for Directors for authorized District business trips.

Executive Assistant:

5. Provides professional-level administrative and secretarial support to the General Manager and
his/her direct reports including:

i.  HHandling confidential information
Lii.  Rresponding to questions and comments from the public in a courteous and timely manner
ii-iii. Pproviding information to public inquiries on routine questions, and directing more complex
questions/requests to appropriate staff;

fiiv.  Sscheduling meetings and maintaining an appointment calendar for the General Manager
and direct reports;

izv.  Rresearching, gathering, and organizing inforrmation from District records or other sources:

wvi.  Ppreparing and composing District correspondence and routine reports;

vivii.  Pproof-reading District correspondence and reports to ensure accuracy, proper use of the
English language, and consistency with District policies and standards:

vibviii.  Pperforming routine analyses (generally using Excel);
vilkix.  Ceoordinating and overseeing certain programs and implementation of District policies
ixx.  Ceommunicating effectively with the General Manager and histher direct reports;

xxi.  pPerforming other administrative duties as assigned.

Exec Assistant & Board Secretary (September 200178) Page 1
of 3



secrion Y _pace ko | A4
6. Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities
or other emergency events

7. Operates a variety of office equipment including, desk-fep computer, shetecopier, fa
machinessimile, document scanner; and document/information management systems

8. Utilizes computer software such as word processing, database and spreadsheet applications to input
and retrieve data, produce letters, reports, graphs and spreadsheets

Records Management:

9. Maintains a variety of files, indexes, and document retrieval systems for District ordinances,
resolutions, agreements, and District correspondence and project files;

0-Maintains District's-Records-Retention-Policy

eonsistent-with-that-peliey:- Becky does this
14:10. Participates in, and possibly leads, the planning and implementation of a comprehensive
electronic filing and record retrieval system for the District.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILIITES

i.  Strong written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar
and punctuation, and an ability to compose correspondence and reports

ii. Strong verbal communication skills

i.  Ability to deal tactfully and courteously with the public, District staff, and the Board of
Directors

iv.  Strong organizational skills

v.  Basic arithmetic and analytical skills

vi.  Office management operations and procedures
vii.  Office filing and record keeping systems

vii.  Standard office machines and equipment. Strong working knowledge of deskiop-computers,
in-particular; intermediate-to-advanced proficiency in Microsoft Office applications (Word,
Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook). Experience with ESRI's GIS software beneficial.

ix. General knowledge of legal requirements which govern retention of public records

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED
i. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for this position beneficial

iii. Five-to-ten years of increasingly responsible experience in office administration or other office
experience sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties and work in an
independent manner.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

| Exec Assistant & Board Secretary (September 200178) Page 2
of 3



SECTION_H:L:\,_,F'-GE Mo, 199

Possession of a valid California’s Driver's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from muiltiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding.

Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersone selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical

- examination which the District pays for. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature,
the person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to meet the physical and
health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

Tiake and transcribe notes and minutes at an acceptable rate and accuracy;

Tiype at 55 words per minute;

eOperate a variety of office equipment (computer, copy machine, fax, etc.) ;
uUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

iv.
v.  {Think critically to complete complex administrative tasks;
vi. eCommunicate well with others, verbally and in writing;
vii.  wiVork cooperatively and get along well with the Board, District staff and the public;
viii.  &Sit for extended periods of time;
ix.  pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;
X. oOperate a motor vehicle.
Exec Assistant & Board Secretary (September 2001 78) Page 3

of3



section Y _pace ko, |
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

CUSTOMER-SERVICE-ANB-ACCOUNTING AND /HUMAN RESOURCES
ASSISTANT - Ad

GENERAL PURPOSE

.
VA = - Yo B W = alaata ) 2Va

....... ey -l O Dartoom

Under general supervision:alse provides administrative, bookkeeping and Human Resou spprl.
Under general supervision provides back-up support for the Customer Service & Accounting Assistant

ENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

Accounting and /Human Resources Support:
3)2) Supports and provides back-up to the Accounting and Human Resources Specialist position
in the following areas.
i) _pPayroll funstier; including:
{1) a) reviewing time cards;
{2} b) verifying payroli;
(3)_c) preparing payroll and benefit checks-and
(0)4) d) preparing payroli-related reports to PERS, and state and federal taxing agencies:;

i) Assists-with-rResponse to human resource-related claims (disability, workers’ compensation
etc.):

iii) aAccounting/bookkeeping functions using the District's automated accounting system
(QuickBooks) in for revenues, expenditures, capital, and reserves;

iijiv) _Reconciles monthly retail water billing for Humboldt Bay and Fieldbrook Glendale retail water
accounts

ivjv)  aAccounts receivable function — preparing accurate and timely billings to the District's
wholesale municipal and industrial customers in accordance with approved Gordinances and

contracts;
Cust-Sve-Accounting and ¥Human Regources Assistant (September 20157 }September2008) Page 1

of 4



4)

secrion_ Y Lpaceno |9t
¥vi)  aAccounts payable function — preparing and processing payments fo District creditors in
accordance with approved policies and procedures
vijvii) _pProviding information and support to the auditor during the annual financial audit process
3) Performs purchasing and routine contract functions including:
i) _a)preparing and processing requisitions, purchase orders, and JPIA-approved model contracts
i) _-B) maintaining systems to ensure products/services are received;<)
i) _-maintaining supply inventories,-and-d)
iv) properly tracking, reporting and accounting for purchases.
Develops internal tracking and reporting systems (e.g. special jobs, time tracking) to ensure costs are

properly accounted for.

Customer Service Back-up:
5) Provides back-up for all aspects of Retail Customer Service including:
i) _Greeting the public, answering routine questions, accepting payments

ii) Account services such as meters on/off and analysis of water use

i) Generating retail bills
iv) Preparing bank deposits.
Other:
6) Provides general administrative support, including:-a)
i) _¢Researching, gathering, and organizing information from District records or other sources )
i) _-pPreparing routine correspondence and reports,-c)
i) _mMaintaining and ordering office supplies-and-c)
JiviaAssisting with filing systems, including transition to new electronic system

6)7) Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
activities or other emergency events;

#8) Operates a variety of office equipment including,-desk-tep computer, phetecopier, fax
machineesimile, dosument scanner; and document/information management systems;

9) Utilizes computer software such as word processing, database and spreadsheet applications fo input
and retrieve data, produce letters, reports, graphs and spreadsheets.

10) May provide back-up and perform duties of the Executive Assistant/Board Secretary position;

-7 1 )

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITIES

Ability to deal intelligently, tactfully, and courteously with customers, the public and District staff
Strong verbal communication skills, including reception and telephone skills

Written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar and punctuation, and
an ability to compose routine correspondence

Cust-Sve-Accounting and #Human Resources Assistant {(September 20157 ¥September-2008) Page 2

of 4




vi.
Vii.

viii.

Basic arithmetic skills

Utifity billing system or related experience.

Basic bookkeeping and/or accounting experience

Office methods and procedures, including filing, record keeping and reporting systems

Working knowledge of deskiop-computers, including-partisular intermediate proficiency in Microsoft
Office applications (Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook)

EQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:
High school diploma or GED
iti.  Community College, technical or other course work relevant for position berefisial
Two-to-three years of experience in customer service, office administration or accounting/human

resources support functions sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties and
work in an independent manner

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

I.  Possession of a valid California’s Driver’s license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District’s insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

ii. Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding

iil.  Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

Persensindividuals selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination which the District pays for. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature,
the person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant's ability to meet the physical and

health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

i.  eDperate a variety of office equipment (ielephorne, computer, copier, faxy machine,postage machine,
fax; etc.);
ii. wUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;
CustSve-Accounting and #Human Resources Assistant (September 20157 ¥Sepiember2008) Page 3

of4

SECTIGN _)ﬂ LFAGENG. |,

A



secrion M PAGE Mo, | Pl |

i.  Think critically to address human resource andeustomerservice-and-accounting administrative
support tasks;

—iv. eCommunicate well with others,both verbally and in writing;

-v. _wWork cooperatively and get along well with customers, members of the public, and District staff,

~vi. _ &Sit for extended periods of time;

—vii. __ pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

~vit. __eOperate a motor vehicle.

Cust-Sve-Accounting and ¥Human Resources Assistant (September 20167 September2008) Page 4
of 4




section 1t _pace o, 120

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT — A5

Under general supervision, performs a variety of duties related to retail customer service and billing functions.
Under general supervision also provides administrative, bookkeeping, payroll and accounts payable support.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES

Customer Service Area:

1) _Answers telephone and greets the public and provides information on routine questions and directs
complex or technical questions to appropriate staff members.

H2) Takes and relays messages.
3) Serves as Customer Service Representative for the District’s retail water function.

i) __Processes account services such as meter fum-ons/-and-turm-offs.

it} Generates and mails retail bills

iii) Responds to customer inquiries and performs analyses of water use and acoount activities as
requested

iv) Works closely with the customer service field representative.

v) _-and-aAccepts and posts payments to accounts in an accurate, timely manner

Prepares bank deposits. Rest

atatm 1 = sata

Accountina/Bookkeeping Support:

2)4) Supports and provides back-up to the Accounting and Human Resources positions in the
following areas.

i) pPayroll{unctien, including:
(1) ajrReviewing time cards:b)
(2) ¥Verifying payroil<)
(3) pPreparing payroll and benefit checks.-and-d)
{(1)(4) pPreparing payroll-related reports to PERS, and state and federal taxing agencies

ii) aAccounting/bookkeeping functions using the District’s automated accounting system
(QuickBooks) in accordance with approved accounting policies and procedures for revenues,

expenditures, capital, and reserves;

Cust Svc-Acct Assistant (September 2015) Page 1 of 3



SECTION_ QL. PAGE NG-l.b_{...
iii) ceounts payable function — preparing and processing payments to District creditors in
accordance with approved policies and procedures;

iv) pProviding information and support to the auditor during the annual financial audit process.

3)5)  Performs purchasing and routine contract functions including:2; preparing and processing
requisitions, and purchase orders.
Other:

Provides general administrative support, including
esearching, gathering, and organizing information from District records or other sources
reparing routine correspondence and reports

i) aAssisting with filing systems

47) Assists the General Manager and Superintendent in Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
activities or other emergency events

£)8) Operates a variety of office equipment including:-desk-tes-computer, pheiocopier, fa
machinessirile, document scanner; and document/information management systems;

6)9) Utilizes computer software such as word processing, database and spreadsheet applications
to input and retrieve data, produce letters, reports, graphs and spreadsheets.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITIES

1) Ability to deal intelligently, tactfully and courteously with customers, the public, and District staff
2) Strong verbal communication skills, including reception and telephone skills

3) Written communication skills including the use of proper English, spelling, grammar and punctuation, and
an ability to compose routine correspondence

4) Basic arithmetic skills

5) Utility billing system or related experience

6) Basic bookkeeping and/or accounting experience

7) Office methods and procedures, including filing, record keeping and reporting systems

8) Working knowledge of -deskiop computers, including-particular intermediate proficiency in Microsoft
Office applications (Word, Excel, Access, PowerPoint and Outlook)

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination of training and experience that provides the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying.
A typical way to obtain the requisite knowledge and abilities would be:

i.  High school diploma or GED
i. Community College, technical or other course work relevant for position beneficial

i. Two-to-three years of experience in customer service, office administration or accounting and
bookkeeping support functions sufficient to demonstrate the ability to perform the required duties
and work in an independent manner

Cust Svc-Acct Assistant (September 2015) Page 2 of 3



vii.

viii.

| | secnion 4 _pace vo. 122
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

i.  Possession of a valid California’s Driver’s license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.
Proof of a good driving record, free from multiple or serious violations or accidents, and in
accordance with any standards of the District's insurance carrier. Compliance with these
requirements and established District vehicle operation standards are a condition of employment.

i. Must be able to qualify for fiduciary bonding.

iii.  Must be available to work evenings, weekends, or holidays in the event of an emergency or other
significant operational requirement.

ESSENTIAL PHYSICAL ABILITIES

IndividualsPersens selected for appointment to this position must pass a pre-employment medical
examination paid for by the District. Because this position is not considered “safety sensitive” in nature, the
person selected for appointment to this position will not be required to have a pre-employment drug
screening. The medical examination is intended to evaluate the applicant’s ability to meet the physical and

health requirements for this classification.

A person employed in this position must be able to:

Ooperate a variety of office equipment (telephone, computer, copiery-mashiae, fax machine, postage
machine,efc.) ;

dUnderstand and carry out oral and written directions;

{Think critically to address customer service, accounting and administrative support tasks;
sCommunicate well with others both, verbally and in writing;

w\Work cooperatively and get along well with customers, members of the public, and District staff;
sSit for extended periods of time; '
pPerform minor physical activities which involve bending, lifting and reaching;

e0Operate a motor vehicle.

Cust Svc-Acct Assistant (September 2015) Page 3 of 3



SECTION M_. PAGE NC. _IZ._

Appendix C



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Dlstrlct M piGE o, | AL{

Compensation Plan (Chapter 2, §20
Appendix C - Employee Handbook - Effective 7/1/2017

POSITION TITLE CLASS. STEP1 STEP2 STEP3 STEP4 STEPS
General Manager Ml Based on Employment Contract

District Superintendent M2 7,346.81 7,714.15 8,099.85 8,504.85 8,930.09
Business Manager M3 6,664.17 6,997.38 7,347.25 7,714.61 8,100.34
Maintenance/Electrical Supervisor M4 6,073.12 6,376.78 6,695.62 7,030.40 7,381.92
Water Operations Supervisor (Chief Operator) M5 5,958.54 6,256.46 6,569.29 6,897.75 7,242.64
Assistant Maintenance / Electrical Supervisor M6 5,783.51 6,072.68 6,376.32 6,695.14 7,029.89

Assistant Water Operations Supervisor (back-up

Chief Operator) M7 5,674.39 5958.11 6,256.01 6,568.81 6,897.25
Water Operations Specialist OM1 5,325.83 5,592.12 5871.73 6,165.31 6,473.58
Electrician/Instrument Tech OM2 5,071.24 5,324.80 5591.04 5,870.59 6,164.12

Operation & Maint Technicians (Shift Operator) OoM3 4,382.62 4,601.76 4,831.84 5,073.44 5,327.11
Maintenance Mechanics,

Operations/Customer Svc Spec.,

Hydro Operator/Ruth Representative

Maintenance Worker OoM4 2,884.68 3,028.92 3,180.36 3,339.38 3,506.35
Senior Regulatory Analyst Al 5,325.83 5,592.12 587173 6,165.31 6,473.58
Accounting and Human Resources Specialist A2 4,382.62 4,601.76 4,831.84 5,073.44 5,327.11
Regulatory Analyst 4,382.62 4,601.76 4,831.84 5,073.44 5,327.11
Executive Assistant and Board Secretary A3 3,974.06 4,172.77 4,381.41 4,600.48 4,830.50
Accounting and Human Resources Assistant Ad 3,784.94 3,974.19 417290 4,381.54 4,600.62
Customer Service and Accounting Assistant A5 2,884.53 3,028.76 3,180.20 3,339.21 3,506.17

Retail Clerk and Accounts Payable

* At any given time, there is only one Analyst Position and either an Accounting Assistant or a Retail Clerk Position

G:\Human Resources\Employee Handbook\2017 Employee Handbook\Appendix items\Appendix C - Salary
Schedule



e
secrion Y _ phce o, 129

Appendix D



' secTion {14 _ page no. [ Jle
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT T

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-29018

FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

OVERTIME/COMP TIME BANK AGREEMENT
—ALL NON-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES-

The HBMWD Budget approved by the Board of Directors July 2017 expanded the prior Comp Time Policy. The District is now
pleased to offer non-exempt employees the choice of when to receive compensation for overtime hours worked. Employees
can either be compensated on the paycheck when the overtime is earned or at a later date by the use of a Compensatory Time
Off Bank (Comp Time Bank). Under the new policy, employees may opt to bank worked overtime into a Comp Time Bank (up
to 40 hours). This Comp Time Bank can be used the following ways:

1) Paid time off (with Supervisor approval)
2) Cashed out once during a calendar year

The option to use the Comp Time Bank is entirely voluntary. By completing and signing the form below, the employee
agrees to bank overtime hours into a Comp Time Bank at a rate of 1.5 hours per 1 hour of earned overtime. When the
maximum bank (40 hours) is reached, the employee will automatically be switched to monetary compensation for
additional overtime hours worked.

1, , hereby request to use a Comp Time Bank in lieu of paid overtime
(Employee Printed Name)
compensation. | understand that this agreement will remain in place until | notify the Eureka Office of my desire to

change back to standard paid overtime compensation. | also understand that | may opt-in or out only once during any
given calendar year. To opt-out of the Comp Time Bank, | must notify the Eureka Office in writing at least 30-days in
advance of the change. This agreement is governed by California Labor Code 204.3. A copy can be provided upon

request.

Employee Signature: Date:

Supervisor/Manager Sighature: Date:



SECTIONﬂ., PAGE NC. PZ:],.,.

Appendix E



Name:

SECTIGN_H_’}_JL _PAGE MO
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Type: [Jannual

Position:

Period: From:

unsatisfactory

Rate only those factors that apply,
to this position. Immediate
Supervisor must check each
appropriate factor in the proper
columns. Additional factors may
be added as appropriate to the
position.

Continued Developmen

satisfactory

l

1. Observance of work hours

[Jnot rated

2. Attendance

[

3. Public Contacts

4. Employee Contacts -

T 5. Communication with others

6. Knowledge of work

]

7. Work judgments

8. Planning and organizing

D 9. Job skill level
[]10. Quality of work

EEEEEEE

11. Acceplable work volume

[

O]
A

12. Mesting deadlines

13. ,Accepis re_sthsibiIity

14. Accepts direction

15. Operation & care of equip.

16. Initiative and creativity

17. Leaming ability

D 18. Work station appearance

19. Safety practi_ces

L
UU 21. Effectiveness under stress

20. Accepts change

L_| |ADDITIONS;

AR

L]

Injim| Im

Any unsatisfactory rating must be explained in Section

For employees who supervise others:

26. Planning and organizing

27. Scheduling & coordinating

28. Training and instructing

EEEE
|

30. Evaluating subordinates

31. Judgments & decisions

]
29. Productivity [ ]
L]

32. Leadership skills

33. Operational economy

34, Supervisory control

U [C

O [0
O [

35. Compliance with affirmative
action rules

alE|

To: [Cinterim

A. General Comments: This section may be used to clarify factor ratings, make

general observations about the emplovee’s performance and outline further

| B. QOutstanding Accomplishments or Superior Performance Incidents:

|

| C. Suggesied Development

Supervisor: Date:

Employee: Date:
Reviewer’s Initials:
Supt. GM




SECTIGN_H:‘:L L PAGE NC. _ Bﬁ

[ C. Suggested Development (Continued)

I._D.. Employee Comments- .. o _J.- SOEEE e




SECTION _M - PAGE IC. J_‘j_Q_

Appendix F



SECTION_H__,PAGE No._l ﬂu(_(__

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Workplace Illness and Injury Prevention Program

General Philosophy

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) is committed to providing a safe and healthful working environment for
all of its employees. The desired results of such efforts are: 1) to minimize the risks of industrial illness or injury to District
employees, 2) to maintain a productive work force; and, 3) to foster an atmosphere of adherence to safety practices.

This plan has been prepared to respond to the requirements of SB 198 and regulations adopted to implement the legislation. It is
not intended to be a comprehensive safety document. Rather, it is a framework plan to be used in conjunction with other safety
resources-to promote a healthful and safe working environment.

Program Outline

The District's Workplace Iilness and Injury Prevention Program (WIIPP) is made up of the following key elements, each of
which is described in detail below:

1.

2.

Safety Organization

Workplace Safety Inspections and Hazard Elimination
Employee Training / Training Records

Management - Employee Communication

Safety Policies / Procedures

Employee Safety Responsibility / Discipline
Protective Gear / Devices

Accident Investigations

Recognition of Outstanding Safety Performance

Safety Organization

The General Manager is responsible for establishing, maintaining and controlling an effective safety program in accordance with
the "General Philosophy" stated above and which meets the requirements of State law, specifically SB198 .

The District Superintendent is responsible to the General Manager for implementing the District's WIIPP, including the
following specific responsibilities:

Chair the employer/employee Safety Committee.
Implement periodic safety inspections.
Implement required employee safety training.
Perform or review all accident investigations
Recommend amendments to the WIIPP.
Recommend outstanding safety recognitions.

Recommend discipline for safety violations.

Supervisors are responsible to the District Superintendent for implementing the District's WIIPP, including the following specific
responsibilities:

Updated January 9, 2015
Office Manager\My Documents\HB Personne\WIIPP



SECTION )ﬂ_ _FAGE 1'C.

e  Serve on the Employer/Employee Safety Committee as required.

e  Assist in safety inspections as required.

e  Perform accident investigations involving employees under their supervision.
¢  Enforce the District's safety policies.

e  Assure availability of needed safety equipment and protective devices.

o  Train employees in safe work practices and hazard avoidance.

¢  Know the rules of safety that apply to their areas of responsibility.

The Business Manager is responsible to the General Manager for implementing the WIIPP with the administrative staff at the
Eureka office.

Employees are required to follow the District's safety policies and to stay aware of and immediately report workplace hazards.
Specific employee responsibilities include:

o~ Know the District's safety rules and implement them.

e  Perform work in a manner that insures their own safety as well as that of their fellow employees.

e  Work free of the influence of alcohol, drugs or medicines that affect safe performance of work duties.
e  Participate in scheduled safety meetings and training sessions.

e  Make use of all protective devices and equipment supplied by the District to make work safer.

e  Avoid horseplay or any act that adversely affects the safety of others.

e  Report accidents, or unsafe working conditions, equipment or practices promptly to their supervisor or other
responsible person.

The Safety Committee's responsibilities include the following:
e  Review and make recommendations about the content of in-house employee safety training,
e Review the results of periodic work site inspections.
e  Review the District's WIIPP and recommend changes.
e Review and evaluate employee safety suggestions.

e Review investigations of workplace accidents and hazardous conditions reports and, where appropriate, submit
suggestions to management for prevention of future incidents.

e  Verify compliance with OSHA abatement actions if requested to do so by OSHA officials.

The Safety Committee will meet at least quarterly and is composed of employer and employee representatives. It will be chaired
by the District Superintendent, and will include:

e  One Supervisor and two employees, from different operating units, appointed by the Committee Chair for a period
of one year. The appointment will be rotated among all supervisors and employees in subsequent years.

The Committee Chair will cause minutes to be kept of all Safety Committee meetings. These minutes will be posted for thirty
days on the employee bulletin board, and will be kept in master files at Essex and in the District's Eureka Office.

Updated January 9, 2015
Office Manager\My Documents\HB Personne\WIIPP

49

it ok o ctveagy



SECTIGN \fux PAGE NG, \ }..

Workplace Safetv Inspections and Hazard Elimination

The basic purpose of the District's periodic safety inspections is to identify workplace hazards such as unsafe work conditions or
work practices. The inspection should also include an evaluation of the seriousness of the hazards and, provide alternatives to

eliminate them, including employee safety training where indicated.

Workplace hazards are to be corrected as soon as possible after they are identified. In the event the hazard cannot be eliminated
iminediately, a plan and target date for correction will be developed and unplemented Until the hazard is eliminated, employees
exposed to the hazard will be provided with interim niotice, protection or training as may be appropriate. The District,

recognizing that preventive maintenance of its tools, machinery and equipment can reduce workplace hazards; will conduct such
preventive maintenance as appropriate. Safety inspections will include at least one overall annual review of the District's facilities
and safety practices using the self-inspection checklist included in the Safety Policies Procedures Manual. The chlorine facilities
must be inspected by at least one person knowledgeable in the Distriét's chlorinatioh system and process.

Additional safety inspections will be scheduled as needed. Specific triggers to additional safety inspections are:
e Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced into the workplace.
*  Whenever new or previously unrecognized hazards arise or are discovered.

These types of specialized mspectlons will have as their prirnary object the development of new or amendment of existing safety
practices to assure employee protection. All safety inspections will be reviewed by the Safety Committee to aid optimum follow

up actions.

Employee Training / Training Records

Employees hired by the District are expected to follow basic safe work practices. If unsure about safety practices related to a
specific work assignment, they are to seek clanﬁcatlon or explanation of safe work practices before proceeding with such

assigniment

In addition, the District will conduct periodic training designed to help employees recognize, avoid and deal with hazards likely
to be encountered while worlcmg for the District. Training is an on-going activity, but will be specifically provided to new
employees or employees given a new assignment, or when new hazards, procedures, processes, of equipment are discovered in or

introduced to the workplace.

Training will be provided on the basis of an assessment of the employee s need for training and may be in the form of written
safety material or formal classroom or on-the-job training sessions. The following policies will be reviewed in a formal safety

session at least once per year:
e  Confined spaces policies' procedures and equipment.
®  Hazardous substances policy, including use of SDS's.

e  Respirator safety, including medical evaluation where needed.

Chlorine safet} and leak response training sessions will be held quarterly in conjunction with other local qualified emergency
responders when possible. These sessions will focus on the emérgency notification procedures to be activated in the event of a

serious chlorine emergency such as a chlorine line leak or tank rupture; and proper use and fit of SCBA's and protective
uniforms. The object of the training is to assure that all Essex employees understand how to activate the County's Hazardous
Material Incident Plan and the District's role in that plan; how to notify other apptopriate emergency responders that a chlorine
emergency requires their response; how to assist others; and, how to deal with and repair a chlorine leak.

First Aid and CPR training will be provided on a regular basis to assure certification of all field and operations’ personnel.

Defensive Driver training_will be provided at least every four years or more frequently on an as needed basis. These are formal
classes usually set up via the District's insurance carrier and the California Department of Motor vehicles. In addition, "tailgate"
sessions will be held as needed to provide training in general safe work practices such as lifting procedures, trenching protocols,

and fire protection procedures.

Updated January 9, 2015
Office Manager\My Documents\HB Personnel\WIIPP



sem"m_\ﬂ _PAGE NG,

Qualified persons will provide training. If done on an in-house basis, the qualifications of the trainer will be reviewed and, if
necessary, supplemented with training needed to become qualified. All training will be logged in the employee's personnel file
and a record of each session, including subject, speaker, date, and attendees kept in the safety training files at Essex and
theDistrict’s Office.

Cellular Phone Safety Policy

Consistent with California law, the use of cellular phones without a hands-free device while driving on District
business is prohibited. If you keep your cell phone on while driving, you must use a hands-free device. If you do not
have a hands-free device, you must safely pull off the road to use your cellular phone. Under no circumstances, may
a driver initiate a cellular phone call while driving a vehicle during the course of business. Texting while driving is

strictly prohibited.

Management - Emplovee Communication

Several avenues of communication between management and staff have already been discussed above. Specifically, the formal
training sessions, "tailgate" meetings, posted Safety Committee minutes and interim hazard notices are all crucial elements of the

District's safety communication program.

The Safety Policies and Procedures Manual, discussed below, is the other formal link in the process. This manual will be
available to all employees at various locations including the office of the employee's supervisor, the District Superintendent's

office, the Hydro plant Office at Ruth Lake, the headquarters building at Ruth Lake, the District Eureka Office, a reference copy.
at the counter in the Operations Office at Essex and at the Turbidity Reduction Facility (TRF).

A final reference document is Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. This material is available online at
www.dir.ca.gov/counters/t8index.htm,for reference purposes, to any employee of the District.

Safety Policies / Procedures

A manual outlining the District's safety policies and procedures will be available to all employees. It outlines the general safe
work practices which employees are expected to observe while carrying out District work assignments.

The manual will be updated as needed. The General Manager will formalize the updates, with revision notices sent by the
Business Manager to the following:

e  The District Superintendent who is responsible for incorporating the updates into his manual.

e  Each Supervisor who is responsible for updating his copy of the manual. The Water Operations Supervisor will
also be responsible for updating the reference copy at Essex and at the TRF.

e  The Hydro plant Operator who is responsible for updating the copies of the manual at the Hydro plant and
headquarters building at Ruth Lake.

e The Business Manager at the District’s Eureka Office who is responsible for updating the manual at the Eureka
Office.

Employee Safety Responsibility / Discipline

Although the law places primary responsibility for occupational safety and health on the employer, certain responsibilities are
also placed on employees. These responsibilities include:

e  Obeying all occupational safety and health standards, rules and orders issued according to the law.

e  Not removing, displacing, damaging, destroying, tampering with or carrying off safety devices, safeguards, notices
or warnings.

e  Using equipment (e.g. hard-hat, safety belt), safety devices (e.g. machine guards), methods or procedures which
have been adopted for employee protection.

Updated January 9, 2015
Office Manager\My Documents\HB Personne\WIIPP

Wy

A it B Sy —



e
SECTIG.\J);H_’\__,PAGE no. |49

Employees who willfully disobey safety rules and procedures will be disciplined as circumstances may dictate.

Protective Gear / Devices

The District's policy of participating in the purchase of steel-toed shoes and prescription safety glasses is documented in the
District's Employee Handbook. In addition, the District will supply all necessary protective gear including safety belts, lifelines,
hard hats, respirators, boots, gloves, chlorine gas protective uniforms, self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA), ear plugs, eye
protectors, face shields, high visibility vests, eye washes, and first aid supplies. Any employee lacking such items or any other
required PPE will bring the matter to the attention of his supervisor before proceeding with any project requiring any such gear.

Accident Investigation

All accidents and near misses involving District personnel or equipment will be investigated, whether or not employee or third
party injury is involved. The purpose of the accident investigation is twofold: 1) to provide proper reporting to: a) insurance
carriers (i.e. worker's compensation, property, liability) to allow expeditious processing of claims and b) regulatory agencies; and,
2) to provide data that will allow action to be taken to minimize recurrences.

Accident investigation and analysis of the data gained from investigations can provide useful information such as:
1. Machines, tools, locations or type of assignment producing job injuries.
2. Revision of job practices producing job injuries.
3. Evaluation of effectiveness of District safety program.

The facts which need to be identified in an accident include who was involved, what happened, when did the accident occur,
where did the accident occur and why did it happen? The "Supervisor's Report of Accident" must be filled out for any workers
comp accident. This form is available from the District's worker's compensation insurance carrier.

The "Vehicle Accident Reporting Kit" should be used for reporting vehicle accidents. It is available through the ACWA/JPIA,
and copies are kept in each vehicle owned by the District.

The responsibilities for accident investigation are outlined in the section of this WIIPP entitled "Safety Organization". In addition
to the specific forms noted above, the accident investigator should use the "Supervisor's Investigation Report", included in the
Safety Policies & Procedures Manual, to the extent necessary to provide sufficient facts about the accident.

Recognition of Qutstanding Safety Performance

In February or March of each calendar year, the District will recognize each employee of the District who has not had a
“reportable injury”, as defined by OSHA and reported on OSHA Form 300 and 300a. The District will award one grand prize,
based on a drawing of all eligible employees. The grand prize winner will be honored at the February or March meeting of the
Board of Directors with a certificate of recognition and a check of $400. All other eligible employees will receive a certificate of
recognition and a check for $200 in recognition of their safe work habits.

Summary

This plan has been prepared to respond to the requirements of SB 198 and regulations adopted to implement the legislation. It is
not intended to be a comprehensive safety document. Rather, it is a framework plan to be used in conjunction with other safety
resources to promote a healthful and safe working environment.

T HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THIS DOCUMENT AND AGREE TO COMPLY WITH ITS CONTENT.

DATE NAME

Updated January 9, 2015
Office Manager\My Documents\HB Personne\WIIPP



SECTION _\__Jfl_)(_ _PAGE no 4l

Appendix G



SECTION _\:}ﬂ_iPAGE NG-.,‘H,:’.E

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
DOT Substance Abuse Policy

L. Introduction
The purpose of this policy is to assure worker ﬁtness for duty and to protect our

employees and the public from risks posed by the use of alcohol and controlled
substances. This policy is also intended to comply with all applicable F ederal regulations
governing workplace anti-drug programs in the transportation industry. The Federal
Highway Administration (FHWA) of the Department of Transportation has enacted 49
CFR Part 382 that mandate urine drug testing and breathalyzer alcohol testing for safety-
sensitive positions and prevents performance of safety-sensitive functions when there is a
positive test result. The Department of Transportation has also enacted 49 CFR Part 40
that sets standards for the collection and testing of urine and breath specimens. In
addition, the Department of Transportation has enacted 49 CFR Part 29, "The Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988," which requires the establishment of drug free workplace
policies and the reporting of certain drug-related offenses to the Department of
Transportation. The pollcy incorporates those requirements of safety-sensitive employees
and others when so noted."

The District recognizes that the use of alcohol and/or controlled substances in the
workplace is not conducive to safe working conditions. In order to promote a safe,
healthy and productive work environment for all employees, it is the objective of the
District to have a work force that is free from the influence of alcohol and controlled

substances.

The District is dedicated to assuring fair and equitable apphcatlon of this Substance
Abuse Policy. Therefore, superv1sors are requlred to administer all aspects of the policy
in an unbiased and unpartlal manner. Any supervisor who knowmgly dlsregards the
requirements of this policy, or who is found to deliberately misuse the policy with respect
to his/her subordinates shall be subject to dlsmplmary action, up to and including

termination.

II. Safeg Sensitive Emglovee

This policy applies to all safety-sensitive employees and contractors when they are on
District property or when performing any District related business. It applies to off-site
lunch periods and breaks when a safety—sens1t1ve employee is scheduled to return to
work. Visitors, vendors, and contracted employees are governed by this policy while on
District premises, and they will not be permitted to conduct business if found to be in

violation of this policy.

A safety-sensitive position is defined as any position requiring the use of a Class "A" or
Class "B" commercial drivers license. The following positions are considered District
safety-sensitive employee (function and/or position) classifications: Hydroelectric
Operator, Maintenance Mechanic, Maintenance Supervisor, and Supermtendent A
safety sensitive function during any period in which that employee is actually

March 2002 Page 1 0f 11



section 1, paGE o, ,]_ﬁg_

performing, ready to perform or immediately available to perform any safety-sensitive
functions.

II1. Prohibited Substances

"Prohibited substances" addressed by this policy include the following: Drugs:
Marijuana, amphetamines, opiates, phencyclidine (PCP) and cocaine. Alcohol: This use
of beverages or substances, including any medication, containing alcohol such that it is
present in the body at a level in excess of that stated in Department of Transportation
guidelines while actually performmg, ready to perform, or immediately available to
perform any District business is prohibited. "Alcohol" is defined as: the intoxicating
agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight alcohol,
including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

1V. Prohibited Conduct

Manufacture. Trafficking. Possession. and Use Any safety-sensitive employee engaging
in-the unlawful-manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession.or use of a controlled. ..
substance or alcohol on District premises, in District vehicles or while conduacting
District business off the premises is absolutely prohibited. Violation will result in
removal from safety-sensitive duty and referral to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP).

Impaired/Not Fit for Duty Any safety-sensitive employee who is reasonably suspected of
being impaired, under the influence of a prohibited substance, or not fit for duty shall be
removed from safety-sensitive job duties and be required to undergo a reasonable
suspicion controlled substance or alcohol test. Employees failing to pass this reasonable
suspicion controlled substance or alcohol test shall remain off duty and be referred to a
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). A controlled substance or alcohol test is considered
positive (failed) if the individual is found to have a quantifiable presence of a prohibited
substance in the body above the minimum thresholds defined in the Department of
Transportation guidelines.

Alcohol Use No safety-sensitive employee may report for duty or remain on duty when
his/her ability to perform assigned functions is adversely affected by alcohol or when
his/her breath alcohol concentration is 0.04 or greater. No safety-sensmve employee
shall use alcohol while on duty or while performing safety-sensitive functions. Violation
of this provision is prohibited and will subject the employee to removal from safety-
sensitive duty and referral to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP).

Compliance with Testing Requirements All safety-sensitive employees are subject to
controlled substance testing and breath alcohol testing. Any safety-sensitive employee
who refuses to comply with a request for testing, who provides false information in
connection with a test or who attempts to falsify test results through tampering,
contamination, adulteration, or substitution shall be removed from duty immediately and
be referred to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). Refusal to submit to a test can
include an inability to provide a urine specimen or breath sample without a valid medical

March 2002 Page 2 of 11



secnoN_l'_Hik _PAGE O, lﬂﬁ_

explanation, as well as a verbal declaration, obstructive behavior or physical absence
resulting in the inability to conduct the test.

Treatment/Rehabilitation Program An employee with a controlled substance and/or
alcohol problem will be afforded an opportunity for treatment in accordance with the

following provisions:

¢ A Rehabilitation Program is available for safety-sensitive employees who
have tested positive for a prohibited substance on a one time basis only.
Employee will be immediately terminated on the occurrence of a second
verified positive test result. Program costs and subsequent controlled
substance and/or alcohol testing costs will be paid by the safety-sensitive
employee. When recommended by the Substance Abuse Professional (SAP),
participation and completion of the rehabilitation program is mandatory.
Failure of a safety-sensitive employee to attend and/or complete a prescribed
program will result in termination from employment. Prior to return-to-duty
testing, an employee must follow the rehabilitation program recommended by
the SAP and agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty Agreement. The duration
and frequency of follow-up testing will be determined by the SAP but will
not be shorter than one year or longer than five years.

¢ All employees who feel they have a problemi with controlled substances
and/or alcohol may request voluntary admission to a rehabilitation program.
Requests miust be submitted t o the General Manager or his/her designee for
review. Program costs and subsequent controlled substance and/or alcohol
testing costs will be paid by the safety-sensitive employee. An employee
failing to complete the program will be subject to termination from
employment. An eniployee completing a rehabilitation program must agree to
and sigh a Return-To-Duty Agreement, pass a return-to-duty controlled
substance and/or alcohol test and be subject to unannounced follow-up testing
for 36 months following return to duty. A positive result on the return-to-duty
test or on the unannounced follow-up tests within a 36 month period will
result in termination from employment.

o Participants in the rehabilitation program may use accumulated sick leave and
vacation, if any.

V. Testing for Prohibited Substances

Analytical urine controlled substance testing and breath testing for alcohol will be
conducted as required under Department of Transportation guidelines. All safety-
sensitive employees shall be subject to testing prior to employment, randomly, for
reasonable suspicion, and following an accident, as defined in the Department of
Transportation guidelines. In addition, all safety-sensitive employees will be tested prior
to returning to duty after failing a controlled substance and/or alcohol test. Employees

March 2002 Page 3 of 11



secnon . pase o 150

who have returned to duty will be subject to unannounced follow-up tests for up to five
years, as determined by a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). Safety-sensitive
employees who perform safety-sensitive functions as defined in the Department of
Transportation guidelines shall also be subject to testing on randomly selected,
unannounced basis.

Testing shall be conducted in a manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability
and using techniques, equipment, and laboratory facilities which have been approved by
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). All testing will be conducted
consistent with the procedures put forth in the Department of Transportation guidelines.

The controlled substances that will be tested for include marijuana, cocaine, opiates,
amphetamines, and phencyclidine (PCP). An initial controlled substance screen will be
conducted on each specimen. For those specimens that are positive, a confirmatory Gas
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) test will be performed. The test will be
considered positive if the controlled substance levels present are above the minimum
threshelds-established-in-the Department of Transportation-guidelines. -

Tests for alcohol concentration will be conducted utilizing an approved Evidential Breath
Testing device (EBT) operated by a trained Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT). If the
initial test indicated an alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater, a confirmation test will
be performed to confirm the result of the initial test. An employee who has a confirmed
alcohol concentration of 0.02 but less than 0.04 will be removed from his/her position for
at least twenty-four hours unless a retest results in an alcohol concentration 0.02 or less.
An alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater will be considered a positive alcohol test and
in violation of Department of Transportation guidelines and this policy.

Any safety-sensitive employee who has a confirmed positive controlled substance or
alcohol test will be removed from his/her position, informed of educational and
rehabilitation program available, and evaluated by a Substance Abuse Professional
(SAP).

The District affirms the need to protect individual dignity, privacy and confidentiality
throughout the testing process.

Employees in Safety-sensitive positions may be tested under any of the following
circumstances:

e Pre-Employment Testing All applicants for safety-sensitive classifications
shall undergo urine controlled substance testing prior to employment. Receipt
of a satisfactory test result is required prior to employment and failure of a
controlled substance test will disqualify the applicant from further
consideration for employment. Pre-Employment testing requirements will be
conducted in compliance with current law. All existing safety-sensitive
employees who have been on an unpaid leave of absence and during that
period were removed from the random testing pool, shall be subject to

March 2002 Page 4 of 11



SECT |QN£:L LPAGE I‘:O._li\__

undergo urine controlled substance testing prior to reinstatement to their
regular duties.

» Reasonable Suspicion Testing All safety-sensitive employees will be subject
to urine and/or breath testing when there is a reasons to believe that controlled
substances or alcohol use is adversely affecting job performance. A
reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made on the basis of
documented objective facts and circumstances which are consistent with the
effects of substance abuse. Examples of reasonable suspicion include, but are
not limited to, the following:

1. Adequate documentation of unsatisfactory work performance or on-the-job
behavior.

2. Physical signs and symptoms consistent with prohibited substance use.

Occurrence of a serious or potentially serious accident that may have been

caused by human error.

4. Fights (to mean physical contact), assaults and flagrant disregard or violations
of established safety, security, or other operation procedures.

had

Reasonable suspicion determinations will be made by a supervisor who is trained
to-detect the signs and symptoms of controlled substance and alcohol use and who
reasonably concludes that an employee may be adversely affected or impaired in
his/her work performance due to prohibited substance abuse or misuse.

e Post-Accident Testing Safety-sensitive employees will be required to undergo
controlled substance and/or breath alcohol testing if they are involved in an
accident with a District vehicle that results in a fatality. This includes all
safety-sensitive employees who are on duty in the vehicles and any other
whose performance could have contributed to the accident. In addition, a
post-accident test will be conducted if an accident results in injuries requiring
transportation to a medical treatment facility; or where one or more vehicles
incurs disabling damage that requires towing from the site; and the safety-
sensitive employee receives a citation under State of local law for a moving
traffic violation arising from the accident.

Following an accident, the safety-sensitive employee will be tested as soon as
possible, but not to exceed eight hours for alcohol and 32 hours for controlled
substances. Any employee who leaves the scene of the accident without
appropriate authorization prior to submission to controlled substance and
alcohol testing will be considered to have refused the test and subject to
termination. Post-accident testing of safety-sensitive employees will include
not only the operation personnel, but any other covered employees whose
performance could have contributed to the accident.

e Random Testing Employees working in safety-sensitive classifications will
be subjected to randomly selected, unannounced testing. The random

March 2002 Page 5 of 11



secnon U _ pace i, 50~

selection will be by a scientifically valid method. Each safety-sensitive
employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time selections are
made. Safety-sensitive employees will be tested either just before departure,
or during duty, or just after the safety-sensitive employee has ceased
performing his/her duty.

e Return-to-Duty Testing All safety-sensitive employees who previously tested
positive on a controlled substance or alcohol test must test negative and be
evaluated and released to duty by the Substance Abuse Professional (SAP)
before returning to duty. Employees will be required to undergo unannounced
follow-up controlled substance and/or alcohol breath testing following
returning to duty. The duration and frequency will be determined by the SAP.
However, it shall not be less that 6 tests during the first 12 months, nor longer
than 60 months in total, following return to duty.

¢ Employee Requested Testing Any safety-sensitive employee who questions
-———-— -theresult-of arequired-controlled substance test-underDepartment-of - .- - -
Transportation guidelines may request that an additional test be conducted.
This additional test may be conducted at the same laboratory or at a different
DHHS certified laboratory. The test must be conducted on the split sample
that was provided at the same time as the original sample. All costs for such
testing are to be paid by the employee unless the second test invalidated the
original test. The method of collecting, storing, and testing the split sample
will be consistent with the procedures set forth in the Department of
Transportation guidelines. The safety-sensitive employee's request for a retest
must be made to the MRO within 72 hours of notice of the initial test result.
Requests after 72 hours will only be accepted if the delay was due to
documentable facts that were beyond the control of the employee.

V1. Emplovee Assessment

Any safety-sensitive employee who tests positive for the presence of controlled
substances or whose breath alcohol concentration is above the minimum thresholds set
forth in the Department of Transportation guidelines will be assessed by a Substance
Abuse Professional (SAP). A SAP is a licensed physician, psychologist, social worker,
employee assistance professional, or addiction counselor with knowledge of and
clinically experienced in the diagnosis and treatment of alcohol related disorders. The
SAP will evaluate each employee to determine what assistance, if any, the employee
needs in resolving problems associated with prohibited substance abuse or misuse.

If a safety-sensitive employee is returned to duty following rehabilitation, he/she must
agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty Agreement, pass a return-to-duty controlled
substance and/or alcohol test and be subject to unannounced follow-up tests for a period
of one to five years, as determined by the SAP. The cost of any rehabilitation and
subsequent controlled substance and/or alcohol testing is borne by the safety-sensitive

March 2002 Page 6 of 11



SECTIGN_);M_., PAGE 0. |5 )

employee and is on a one time basis only. Employee will be immediately terminated on
the occurrence of a second verified positive test result. Employees may use accumulated
sick leave, and vacation, if any, to participate in the prescribed rehabilitation program.

VIL. Procedures
o Procedures for Reasonable Suspicion Testing

A safety-sensitive employee who may possibly be under the influence of alcohol
and/or controlled substances is observed by a supervisor. Any employee may
identify someone suspected of alcohol and/or controlled substance to any
supervisor. Employees should realize, however, that it is against District policy to
make false or malicious statements about other employees and doing so can result
in disciplinary action being taken against the offending employee. However, the
supervisor must witness first hand the safety-sensitive employee's signs and
symptoms.

The supervisor is then obligated to insure that the matter is immediately
investigated. If possible, two supervisors determine (independently or together)
that the safety-sensitive employee in question may indeed be under the influence
of alcohol and/or controlled substances.

When the supervisor(s) suspect and believe that the safety-sensitive employee
may be under the influence of alcohol and/or controlled substances, the safety-
sensitive employee is then immediately suspended from duty (with pay) and
driven by District staff (or others designated) to the District specified collection
site. Because of a testing facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in
question must show proof of identification, such as a photo drivers license or
state-issued photo identification card.

Whenever practical, the Superintendent or General Manager should be notified in
advance of the employee being taken to the collection site.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a
urine sample in the event that controlled substances are suspected or a breath
sample in the event that alcohol intoxication is suspected to the on-duty
technician. Care will be taken to provide the safety-sensitive employee with
maximum privacy without compromising the integrity of the sample.

The District will take precautions to prevent the safety-sensitive employee being
tested from going back to work and driving their own car home. Instead, the
safety-sensitive employee will be given assistance in obtaining a ride home from
the collection site.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol

concentration or less) will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose
confirmation test results indicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but

March 2002 Page 7 of 11



sEcﬂon_H’ﬁ__iFAGE r:c._l_?_ﬂ_

less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return to duty or perform a safety-sensitive
Afunction for 24 hours after administration of the test. The safety-sensitive
employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of
0.04 or greater for alcohol will be referred to a District specified outside
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) who will assess the safety-sensitive
employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if
accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee.
Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-
duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive
employee's termination.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified
negative will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlied
substance test is verified positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred
to a District specified outside Substance Abuse Professional who will assess the
safety-sensitive employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment
which, if accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive . _
employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to
return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-
sensitive employee's termination.

o Procedures - Random Testing

The compliance company notifies the supervisor to send the safety-sensitive
employee to the collection site for alcohol and/or controlled substance testing.

The supervisor notifies the safety-sensitive employee to go to the collection site
for alcohol and/or controlled substance testing immediately. Because of a testing
facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in question must have proof of
identification, such as a photo drivers license or state-issued photo identification
card.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a
urine sample in the event that controlled substances are to be tested for, or a
breath sample in the event that alcohol is being tested for to the on-duty
technician. Care will be taken to provide the safety-sensitive employee with
maximum privacy without compromising the integrity of the sample.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol
concentration or less) will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose
confirmation test results:indicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but
less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return to duty or perform a safety-sensitive
function for 24 hours after administration of the test. The safety-sensitive
employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of
0.04 or greater for alcohol will be referred to a District specified outside
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) who will assess the safety-sensitive

March 2002 Page 8 of 11



secnowﬂ_., PAGE G, _\_55

employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if
accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee.
Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-
duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive
employee's termination.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified
negative will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled
substance test is verified positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred
to a District specified outside Substance Abuse Professional who will assess the
safety-sensitive employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment
which, if accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive
employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to
return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-
sensitive employee's termination.

o Procedures Post Accident
The safety-sensitive employee notifies a supervisor that an accident has occurred.

The supervisor determines that the circumstances of the accident warrant a post-
accident test when a citation was issued or a fatality occurred. Thereafter, the
supervisor directs the safety-sensitive employee to immediately go to the
collection site for alcohol and controlled substance testing. Because of a testing
facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in question must have proof of
identification, such as a photo drivers license or state-issued photo identification

card.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a
urine sample for controlled substances and a breath sample for alcohol testing to
the on-duty technician. Care will be taken to provide the safety-sensitive
employee with maximum privacy without compromising the integrity of the
sample. .

The California Highway Patrol will be notified that an accident has occurred and
that the safety-sensitive employee was instructed to go to the collection site.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol
concentration or less) will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose
confirmation test results indicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but
less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return to duty or perform a safety-sensitive
function for 24 hours after administration of the test. The safety-sensitive
employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of
0.04 or greater for alcohol will be referred to a District specified outside
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) who will assess the safety-sensitive
employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if

March 2002 Page 9 of 11



SECTION__]:\_LL PAGE G, ]G @

accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee.
Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-
duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive
employee's termination.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified
negative will be reinstated. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled
substance test is verified positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred
to a District specified outside Substance Abuse Professional who will assess the
safety-sensitive employee's condition and make a recommendation for treatment
which, if accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive
employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to
return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-
sensitive employee's termination.

¢ Procedures for Return to Duty and Follow-up

The compliance company notifies the District to send the safety-sensitive
employee to the collection site for alcohol and controlled substance testing.

The supervisor notifies the safety-sensitive employee to immediately go to the
collection site for alcohol and controlled substance testing. Because of a testing
facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in question must have proof of
identification, such as a photo drivers license or state-issued photo identification
card.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a
urine sample for controlled substances and a breath sample for alcohol testing to
the on-duty technician. Care will be taken to provide the safety-sensitive
employee with maximum privacy without compromising the integrity of the
sample.

The safety-sensitive employee whose confirmation test results indicate an alcohol
concentration greater than 0.02 or whose controlled substance test is verified
positive will be terminated.

e Procedures for Chain of Custody for Controlled Substance Specimens

At the time a specimen is collected, the safety-sensitive employee will be given a
copy of the specimen collection procedures. Urine will be in a wide-mouthed
clinic specimen container which will remain in full view of the safety-sensitive
employee until split, transferred to, sealed and initialed in two tamper-resistant
urine bottles.

Immediately after the specimens are collected, the urine bottles will, in the
presence of the safety-sensitive employee, be labeled and then initialed by the

March 2002 Page 10 of 11



SECTION _\_‘.E_% ~PAGE “GJQ:

employee. If the sample must be collected at the site other than the controlled
substance and/or alcohol testing laboratory, the specimens will then be placed in
the transportation container. The container will be sealed in the safety-sensitive
employee's presence and the safety-sensitive employee will be asked to initial or
sign the container. The container will be sent to the designated testing laboratory
on that day or the earliest business day by the fastest available method.

A chain of custody form will be completed by the on-duty technician during the
specimen collection process and attached to and mailed with the specimen.

¢ Procedures for Specimen Collection of Strange and/or Unrecognizable
Substances

A safety-sensitive employee is observed with a strange and/or unrecognizable
substance.

The supervisor, in the presence of a witness, places the strange and/or
unrecognizable substance into a clear plastic bag. The bag is sealed, labeled and
signed by both the supervisor and a witness.

An incident report is made and signed by both the supervisor and a witness. The
plastic bag containing the specimen and a copy of the incident report is taken to
the collection site for transportation to the laboratory for analysis.

e Procedures for Alcohol Concentrations

The safety-sensitive employee and the on duty Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT)
complete the alcohol testing form to ensure that the results are properly recorded.

After an explanation of how the breathalyzer works, an initial breath sample is
taken.

If the results of the initial test show an alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater a
second or confirmation test must be conducted. The confirmation test must not be
conducted less than 15 minutes after, nor more than 20 minutes after the screening

test.

The confirmation test will utilize Evidential Breath Testing devices that prints out
the results, date and time, a sequential test number, and the name and serial
number of the Evidential Breath Testing device to ensure the reliability of the
results.

March 2002 Page 11 of 11



SECTION __{H LrcENe. |50
"

Appendix H



SECT'la.v_ﬁﬁ_i razio, |99

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Employee Educational Course & Expense Approval Form

(Per Employee Handbook Section 4018.3 — Educational Assistance)

Employee Name: Date:
Requesting approval for: [ specific course, which is part of a pre-approved program

[1 Single class or seminar [] Conference [] Required to maintain Certification/License
Course/Class to be taken on: [] Own time [J HBMWD time
Course/Class Title Date(s) of Course/Class:
Name of Institution Presenting Course/Class: Location

List estimated or, when known, actual expenses:

Tuition Books " Exams _ _Travel Llodging- |  Meals Total

Describe how the course/class will be beneficial in your employment with Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District:

If Conference, list workshops/classes registered for:

Check Request: [] Return to Employee [ Send to Vendor (forms completed and attached)
Check Payable to: ' Check Amount
Address:

Reimbursement Request: (Attach copies of receipts)

Employee Name: Amount Requested:

Note:
The following must be attached to the request form when submitting it for approval:
Program Description from the catalog/brochure

Employee Signature Date Supervisor’s Signature Date

G:\Human Resources\Employee Handbook\2017 Employee Handbook\Appendix ltems\Appendix H -
Education Educational Course adn Expense Approval Form.docx



SECTION _hl_l’_\_  PAGE NG-.).(QD__

Appendix |



secmu,ﬂl& LrsEre. |[p!

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 7TH STREET * EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95501
PHONE 707-443-5018 « FAX 707-443-5731

PERSONNEL RECORDS REQUEST

Date:

Employee (Current/Former) Name:

O | request to inspect/receive a copy of (circle one or both) my personnel records.

O 1authorize (authorized representative) to
inspectireceive a copy of the (circle one or both) my personnel records.

I understand that if | have requested a copy of these records, | will be charged the actual cost of reproduction.
(Former employees requesting receipt by mail may also be charged the actual postal expenses.) | understand

that it may take 30 days for copiés to be produced.

| further understand that only those records required by law will be made available to inspect/copy.

Employee Signature Date

EMPLOYER RESPONSE TO REQUEST TO REVIEW PERSONNEL RECORDS

Date:

Employee Name:

In response to your request to review/copy personnel records:

O You/Your representative (circle one) is scheduled for an appointment with

Name

on at for the purpose of reviewing your personnel records.
Date Time

Note that during the inspection, nothing may be removed from or added to your personnel records.

O A copy of your personnel records will be made available to you/your representative (circle one).
Contact to make arrangements for receipt of the

copy.

You will be responsible for copying cost at the rate of $.50 cents per page.

If you are a former employee requesting personnel records, you may receive a copy of these records by
mail only if you reimburse Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District for actual postal expenses. (Humboldt
Bay Municipal Water District has the right to make alternative arrangements for inspection of personnel
records by former employees who have been terminated for harassment or workplace violence.)

(



SECTIGN_]:E’X _FAGEIC. A28

PERSONNEL RECORDS REQUEST

O You/Your representative’s (circle one) request to inspect/receive a copy of your personnel
records has been denied for the following reason(s):

O Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is only required to comply with one request per year
by a former employee to inspect or receive a copy of his her personnel records.

O Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is not required to comply with more than fifty (50)
requests to inspect or receive personnel records filed by an employee representative(s) in

one calendar month.

O Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is not required to comply with a request to inspect a
copy of personnel records while you have a pending lawsuit against the District relating to a
personnelmatter.. . . L ..

O Your records are no longer available. The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is not
required to maintain personnel records for a period longer than three years after termination

of employment.

G:\Human Resources\Employee Handbook\2017 Employee Handbook\Appendix tems\Appendix | - Personne! Records Request.docx



secnon_MY rezro. |

Appendix J



seci'la.vﬂ_'i _FAGE NG

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Critical lliness/Injury Leave Donation Policy

Introduction

The General Manager, or deS|gnee may authorize donations from a full-time employee’s accrued
leave balances, pursuant to the conditions as outlined in this pollcy, to an eligible employee who
has exhausted his/her applicable paid-leave balances and who is required to be absent from work

for personal medical reasons.

This policy does not entitle an employee to extra leave or guarantee the availability of leave
donations. This policy does not supplement current ‘employee-leave benefits as defined in the
District's Employee Handbook. It does not ‘commit the District to leave extensmns beyond that
which are required by federal and state family and medical leave laws (such as FMLA/CFRA)
Rather, this policy is intended to institute consistent procedures for interested employees to support
a fellow employee in need dunng a cntlcal or acute illnessfinjury.

Critical lliness/Injury Leave shall niot apply to industrial injuries/illnesses which are covered by
Workers’ Compensation benefits, or for any other non-iliness work situation.

Request for Donated Leave - Eligibility and Conditions

1. To be eligible for donations of lé‘ayé time, the recipient employee must:
a. have completed three (3) monthe of District employment;
b. have exhausted all accrued personal leave time (e.g. ﬂoatlng holldays vacation and
sick time);
2. To request a donation, the employee must:
a. have exhausted most of his/her personal accrued leave (e.g. floating holidays,

vacation and sick);
b. submit a Critical lliness/Injury Leave Donation Request Form to the District;

c. when requesting a donation, the employee should take into consideration other
forms of pay he/she will reoelve as a result of the illness (e.g. short or long-term

disability payments).

3. Approval for critical illness/injury leave will be on a “going forward” basis, and not
retroactive.
4, The requesting employee may be required to submit a doctor's written statement certifying

the employee’s neéd to be absent from work, including the expected duration.

5. The maximum amount of donated leave a recipient employee may receive is 480 hours (60
days) within a twelve (12) month period. Exceptions to this provision may be approved by

A



10.

secmuﬂ _ FAGE 0, _[(ﬁ

the General Manager on a case-by-case basis based on a doctor’s written statement as to
the employee’s need to be absent for additional recovery/recuperation.

Donations will be exchanged on an hour-for-hour basis. Donated leave shail be used as
time is taken. It shall be paid out at the receiving employee’s normal pay rate and is subject
to normal payroll deductions. The recipient employee has sole responsibility for assessing
any potential impact on his/her taxes and benefits.

By participating in Critical lliness/Injury Leave, the recipient employee agrees to forfeit any
unused donation ““bank™ upon returning to work and/or no longer being eligible.

If the recipient employee separates from the District for any reason, donated hours may not
be converted to PERS service credit or cash (“cashed out”).

The time off in which the employee receives donated hours shall be exciuded from the time
necessary to be considered for a step increase or any other benefit dependent upon time of

employment (e.g. longevity pay).

In regards to sick leave and vacation accrual, any pay period in which the recipient
employee uses 40 or more hours of donated leave, the employee shall be considered in an

---unpaidJeave-status-and-not-entitled-to-sick-leave-and-vacation-accrual. — - — . — — . -

Donation of Leave - Eligibility and Conditions

When an employee has been deemed eligible to participate in Critical lliness/Injury Leave, the
District will notify other employees of the opportunity to voluntarily donate, and provide the
necessary donation form and any other applicable information.

1.

The following leaves are eligible to be donated:

a. Vacation Leave;

b. Sick Leave.

To be eligible to donate, the giving employee must:

a. have worked for the District for at least twenty four (24) months;

b. retain at least 40 hours of accrued Vacation Leave; and

C. retain at least 192 hours of accrued Sick Leave (24 days, twice the annual accrual)
for his/her own use.

The maximum amount of Vacation Leave, Sick Leave, or combination thereof that an

employee may donate is 40 hours per calendar year.
Donations must be a minimum of 4 hours.

Donations are solely voluntary and employees are not to feel pressured to participate.
Requests and/or overt persuasion of fellow employees to donate are not allowed.

The donating employee must submit a Critical lliness/Injury Leave Donation Form to the
District. The names of employees donating and donation amounts will be confidential.

P

9



secnav_ﬂﬂ e, |l

Leave transferred under this policy is not considered wages for the employee making the
donation, and therefore, will not be included in gross income or subject to withholding.

Donations are irrevocable and will be deducted the first reasonable pay period following the
donation and put into a donation leave “bank™ for the recipient employee. Should the
leave “bank” become depleted and the recipient employee is still eligible to receive donated
time, the District will notify employees that additional donations are being accepted.

Once the recipient employee no longer needs or is not eligible for the donation “bank”, the

percentage remaining of the total hours donated will be determined and the donating
employees will receive back that percentage of what was originally donated.

Following is a simplified example:

Employee Hours
Donating Donated
A 16
B 24
C 32
D 40
Total Donated 112

Upon end of the critical illness leave, the recipient used a total of 84 hours
of the 112 hour donation "bank”. There are 28 hours remaining, or 25% of
the 112 hours donateq. Each of the donors would receive back 256% of

the hours donated as follows:

Employee Hours Remaining Hours
Donating Donated % credited
back
A 16 25 4
B 24 25 6
C 32 25 8
D 40 25 10




secTion WS _pacEno. |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: December 7, 2017

Re: MOU with US Forest Service for Drawing Water from Ruth Lake
Discussion

During this past fire season, the US Forest Service has requested and withdrawn water from
Ruth Lake for fire suppression purposes. The Board directed staff to draft a memorandum of
understanding for this activity at Ruth Lake with the US Forest Service.

Staff consulted with the ACWA-JPIA risk management staff regarding any possible liability
coverage for the District under these circumstances. Their response was:

“Aviation only applies if we are the ones flying the planes which we are not, the Forest Service
has this responsibility as part of their fire operations. John, | do not have an issue with them taking
water out of the lake, it has to be done in event of fires and this arrangement could be part of an mutual
aid agreement. “

Staff has contacted Daren Borgen, Super Scooper Manager, at the US Forest Service and is
awaiting to hear who the appropriate staff is at US Forest Service for review and acceptance of

our proposed agreement.

District Counsel has prepared the attached draft MOU for your review and consideration.

Recommendation and Action

Staff recommends approval of the attached MOU with the US Forest Service and requests that
you direct the General Manager to consummate the agreement with the Forest Service.



seciton_YS_FAGE 1O

[FIRST DRAFT]

Dated: December 14, 2017

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, hereinafter referred to as “District,”
a California public entity, and the United States Forest Service, an agency of the United
States Federal Government, hereinafter referred to as “Forest Service,” hereby agree as
follows:

District is the owner of the Ruth Lake dam, property surrounding the Ruth Lake
area, and water rights related to the dam, lake and Mad River located in Trinity County,
California. District has delegated some management of areas owned by District
surrounding the lake to the Ruth Lake Community Services District, also a California
public entity.

A component of the mission of Forest Service is to provide fire suppression
services, including areas in the vicinity of Ruth Lake.

In the course of fire suppression services, Forest Service is in need of water
sources in the Ruth Lake area. In some instances this need is on an emergency basis and
it may be impractical for Forest Service to provide advance notice of its need for water.

District, for public safety and welfare, is willing to grant Forest Service and its
contractors the right to remove water from Ruth Lake for fire suppression services as
reasonably necessary.

District grants to Forest Service the right to remove such water from Ruth Lake as
reasonably necessary for fire suppression services by way of direct pumping from the
lake into tanker trucks or similar equipment, or by helicopter or fixed wing aircraft for
aerial operations.

Forest Service shall be responsible for obtaining any state or federal permits
necessary for the taking of water or for aerial operations. Forest Service shall operate in
accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances and regulations,
including but not limited to those regulating the operation of aircraft, as applicable.
Except as to permission to take water that is subject to District’s water rights,

4]



SECT(GNi\_/_(Q/: ,PAGE NG, __2‘_

the permission of District shall not be construed as the acceptance of responsibility or
approval of Forest Service operations.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Forest Service agrees to be solely
responsible for any and all injuries, damages, and claims to persons or property arising
out of its operations to remove water from Ruth Lake pursuant to this Agreement. Forest
Service agrees to immediately defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, the Ruth
Lake Community Services District, and their respective directors, officers, employees or
authorized volunteers against any and all such injuries, damages and claims.

Forest Service shall notify District prior to the taking of water pursuant to this
Agreement if practical. If an emergency exists and advance notice cannot be provided,
Forest Service shall give District notice within three business days after the taking of
water, or the commencement of operations requiring the taking of water. Forest Service
shall also notify District when the operations cease.

Within 30 days after any operations involving the taking of water pursuant to this
Agreement, Forest Service shall provide to District a written report setting forth the dates
of operation and its best estimate of the volume of water taken (measured by gallons or
cubic feet).

Notice and reports required by this Agreement shall be provided by Forest Service
to District at Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District; Attention General Manager; 828
Seventh Street; Eureka, CA 95501; 707-443-5018.

Because both District and Forest Service are public entities and this Agreement is
designed to promote public safety and welfare, no monetary consideration is required
pursuant to this Agreement.

District may revoke the permission granted pursuant to this Agreement at any time
with 30 days written notice to Forest Service.

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL U.S. FOREST SERVICE
WATER DISTRICT

By: John Friedenbach, General Manager By:



NEW BUSINESS



Association of State

Dam Safety Officials

Dam Owners Academy

Join us November 28, 2017 at 12:00 p.m. Eastern for the pilot webinar of the ASDSO Dam Owner Academy
webinar series.

This webinar will introduce and encourage the use of the Dam Owner Emergency Intervention Toolbox that was
developed in 2016. The Dam Emergency Intervention Toolbox is currently available as an interactive electronic
PDF document and contains the recommended procedures to prepare for, identify, and respond to emergency
conditions at embankment dams. Through case study descriptions, photographs, videos, and reference to best
practice documents, in addition to summarizing the content of the document, the webinar will present detailed
instructions on how and when to use the document as well as emphasize its benefits when used properly.

Five takeaways attendees will receive from this course:

» Awareness of the importance of emergency intervention at dams.

= Instructions for obtaining the Dam Owner Emergency Intervention Toolbox.

« Knowledge of the Dam Emergency Intervention Toolbox contents.

« Suggestions for incorporation of the Dam Emergency Intervention Toolbox into existing dam safety documents
and/or programs.

« Detailed understanding of how to use the Dam Owner Emergency Intervention Toolbox to prepare for and
respond to emergency situations at dams.

The course instructors are Paul Schweiger, P.E., CFM, Vice President and Manager of the Dams and Hydraulics
Section and Kate Aulenbach, E.IT., CFM, Hydraulic and Hydrologic Designer, Dams and Hydraulics Section,
Gannett Fleming, Inc.

This course was made possible by the Montana Department of Natural Resources & Conservation and
Wyoming State Engineer’s Office through a generous grant from the National Dam Safety Program.

To register for this free webinar or learn more visit www.DamSafety.org/DamOwnerAcademyEIT.

Association of State Dam Safety Officials

www.DamSafetyorg | (859) 550-2788 | info@damsafety.org




SECTION £ _PAGENO._[

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors
From: John Friedenbach
Date: December 4, 2017

Re: SB 623 Water Tax bill, AB 1668 and SB 606 Water Management Planning bills

3 ok ok ok ok sk ok 3k ok ok 3k ok sk 3k ok 3 3k ok ok ok 3k ok 3k ok sk sk 3k 3k % ok ok ok %k ok ok ok 3k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok ok 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok 3k ok ok ok 3k o ok ok sk ok

Background

Earlier this year, SB 623 (Monning) Water Tax, AB 1668 (Friedman) and SB 606 (Skinner/Hertzberg)
companion Water Management Planning bills were introduced. These bills were discussed with the
Board and the District sent letters opposing the Water Tax Bill and opposing the Water Management
Planning bills unless amended in accordance with the recommendations of ACWA. A large majority of
urban water suppliers, local governments and business groups voiced their opposition as well.

While our District agrees that safe drinking water and proper water management is needed, the District
and other stakeholder entities do not agree that the above referenced bills are the way to achieve this
since they are unnecessarily complicated and costly. SB 623 the Water Tax bills places an unjust burden
on all consumers of water to fund a small percentage of non-performing water districts. AB 1668 and
SB 606 do not provide legislative oversight of standards setting process, and also fail to address the
extremely expensive methodology proposed to be required to define water budgets for every individual
parcel. That cost will be imposed on local water agencies under these bills. As a result of the previous
opposition to these bills, SB 623, AB 1668 and SB 606 failed passage in the Legislature this year.
However, they have become “two-year” bills and will be resolved during the 2018 legislative session.

Water agencies have proposed alternative bills, AB 968 and AB 1654, in regards to water management
(AB 1668 and SB 606). These would continue multiple pathways to meet efficiency standards and would
also maintain responsibility for drought planning at the local level.

Recent Activity

ACWA continues its lobbying efforts on behalf of all water districts opposing SB 623, AB 1668, and SB
606. The proponents of these bills are also continuing their support efforts. When the state legislature
resumes in January 2018, both sides will renew their efforts with vigor.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to issue appropriate correspondence as
needed opposing SB 623, AB 1668 and SB 606 and supporting AB 968 and AB 1654 during the 2018
legislative session.



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District SECTION_=.2 _ PAGE NO._|

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: December 5, 2017

Re: CSDA Special District Leadership Foundation Programs
Background

The California Special Districts Association offers programs through the Special District Leadership Foundation
(SDLF) to promote good governance. The SDLF was formed in 1999 to provide educational opportunities to special
district officials and employees to enhance service to the public. The SDLF currently offers a total of four programs:

Special District Administrator Certification (for management staff)
Recognition in Special District Governance (for Board members)
District Transparency Certificate of Excellence {Special Districts)
District of Distinction Accreditation (Special Districts)

VVVY

The first two programs are for individuals to achieve certification. The last two are District certifications.
If any of you are interested in the Recognition in Special District Governance, please let me know and | will provide
you with the specifics of certification.

As a District, | would like us to pursue the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence and possibly the District
of Distinction Accreditation. The District Transparency Certificate of Excellence must be completed in order to
achieve the District of Distinction. We already meet most of the requirements for the District Transparency
Certificate and it will not require much staff time to complete the application. One of the requirements for the
District Transparency Certificate of Excellence that we currently do not do is post on the District website the
training compliance with AB 1234 Ethics Training and AB 1825 Harassment Prevention Training for the General
Manager, Management Staff and Board of Directors. This training is required to be renewed every two years.

There is no fee for the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence. The District of Distinction will require
additional training for Board and Management staff and an accreditation fee of $250. Both programs, once
completed, are recognized for two years. At the end of the two years, the District would need to submit renewal
paperwork and for the District of Distinction, pay the fee again for re-accreditation. We have checked with local
Special Districts and at this time, McKinleyville CSD is the only one with certifications. They have a District
Transparency Certificate of Excellence, District of Distinction Accreditation and 4 of their current Board/staff
received Recognition in Special District Governance. Staff would like your feedback regarding pursuing the District
certifications.

Attachments
SDLF Programs

Districts of Distinction Accreditation
District Transparency Certificate of Excellence



California Special sEQT]ON__:_P__?__' PAGE NO. Q

Districts Association

(http://www.csda.net)

SDLF Programs

Home (http://www.csda.net/) » Professional Development (http://www.csda.net/professional-development/) » SDLF Programs

Programs promoting good governance.

b

X

YA o

In1999, the Special District Leadership Foundation, a 501(c)(3) organization, was formed to provide educational opportunities to speciat
district officials and employees to enhance service to the public.

Itis dedicated to excellence in local government. To date, SDLF has designed and implemented the following programs :

» Special District Administrator Certification (http://www.sdlf.org/#!sda-certification/ctzx) (ndividygf, Adimjnistrator
» Recognition in Special District Governance (http://www.sdlf.org/#!recognitions/c309)?vard Mem bers [Trustees
« District of Distinction (http://www.sdlf.org/#!district-of-distinction/c230e) } Districk

» District Transparency Certificate of Excellence {http://www.sdlf.org/#transparency/clOu)

The SDA Certification is for management staff of the district, the Recognition is for the governing board members or trustees, District of
Distinction is for all special districts as well as the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence.

SDLF Scholarships and Allowance Fund Information

Education Allowance Fund
The Special District Leadership Foundation has created the Educational Allowance Fund, designed to provide funding assistance to special
district staff and elected officials who are first-time attendees at select events and/or programs.

Dr. James Kohnen Scholarship

This scholarship is for registration fees for all four modules of the Special District Leadership Academy or the Special District Leadership
Academy Conference and is open to elected/appointed special district board members from districts with budgets of districts with limited
budgets., who have not previously completed the Special District Leadership Academy.

John Yeakley Scholarship
This scholarship is for registration fees for continuing education related to special district govemance and operations for general managers
and executive staff of districts with budgets of districts with limited budgets. Applicants must be currently pursuing their Special District

Administrator (SDA) designation.

If you are interested in more information on the Foundation, or would like to download a scholarship application, contact us at 916.231.2939
or visit us online (http://www.sdlf.org).



g t SPEGIAL DISTRIGT
73 LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION

Showcase Your Commitment to Transparency

Home

District Transparency
Certificate of Excellence

This program was created by the Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) in
an effort to promote transparency in the operations and governance of special districts
to the public and to provide special districts with an opportunity to showecase cheir
efforts in transparency. There are no fees for this certificate and districts will be
recognized for two full years. Three main subject areas include:

* Basic Transparency Requirements

e Website Requirements
¢ Ourreach Requirements

These arc only a sampling of all the requirements needed to complete the
transparency certificate, While it takes time to compile these requirements, being able
to shine a light on all of the efforts your district has taken to be transparent is

invaluable to the public..

yvhy Earn I1t?

1. The certificate covers all general,

website, and outreach best

praclices and requirements
regarding transparency for special
districts.

Earning the certificate is a tangible

acknowledgement of your

transparency efforts.

. Demonstrate to your constituents
and other stakeholders your
district's commitment to being
open and accessible to them.

4. Earning the cerlificate
demonstrates a commitment to
engaging the public and creating
greater awareness of your
district's activities.

[

w

Earning the certificate is a tangible
acknowledgement of fransparency
efforts. Demonstrate to your
constituents and other stakeholders
your district's commitment to being
open and accessible to them.

Sample Policies

Included for your review are sample
palicies similar to those requested in
the application. These are samples
that can be used as a starting point for
policy/document development. SDLF
always recommends you seek legal
review prior to adopting district policy
to ensure full compliance with any
applicable laws and/or regulations.

Brown Act Comptiance 1
Brown Act Compliance 2

Public Records Act Reauests 1
Public Records Act Requests 2
Reimbursement Policy 1
Reimbursement Policy 2
Annual Disclosure 1

Annual Disclosure 2

onflict of Interest Policy 1
Conflict of Interest Policy 2
Code of Ethics Poficy 1
Code of Ethics Policy 2
Financia} Reserv: icy
Financial Reserves Policy 2
Board Vacancy Announcement 1
Board Vacancy Announcement 2
Public Budaet Hearjng 1
Bublic Budaet Hearina 2

ublj

© 2016 SPECIAL DISTRICT LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION. Proudly created with Wix.com

SECTION_ L. _, PAGE N0,

Programs Contact Checklists

=]

Application

1. Complete the application

2. Send application and all
supporting materials to SDLF.

3. Approval process review
performed by SDLF staff

4. Receive your certificate and
recognition

Download the application today,

Certificate
Holders

Sweavurrent fistof special district
leaders who have accomplished
these goals and have been
recognized,



SECTION X2 _pack no, U

R o )

SDLF

SPECIAL DISTRICT
LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION

e

4
| o

SHOWCASE YOUR DISTRICT’S COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY

Purpose
To promote transparency in the operations and governance of special districts to the public/ constituents and provide special districts with an opportunity to
showcase their efforts in transparency.

Duration District Receives
2Years * Certificate for display (covering 2 years)
* Press release template
Application Cost * Recognition on the SDLF website
FREE * Letter to legislators within the district’s boundaries announcing the achievement
* Recognition in social media, letter to the editor of local media outlet,
and the CSDA eNews

* Window c]ing

Basic Requirements
Current Ethics Training For All Board Members (Government Code Section §3235)
[} Provide copies of training certificates along with date completed

Compliance With the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et. al )
[} Provide copy of current policy related to Brown Act compliance
[J Provide copy of a current meeting agenda (including opportunity for public comment)

Adoption of Policy Related to Handling Public Records Act Requests
[} Provide copy of current policy

Adoption of Reimbursement Policy, If District Provides Any Reimbursement of Actual and Necessary Expenses
(Government Code Section 53232.2 (b))
[} Provide copy of current policy

Annual Disclosure of Board Member Or Employee Reimbursements For Individual Charges Over $100 For Services Or
Products. This Information IsTo Be Made Available For Public Inspection. “Individual Charge” Includes, But Is Not Limited To:
One Meal, Lodging For One Day, OrTransportation. (Government Code Section 53065.5)

[} Provide copy of the most recent document and how it is accessible.

Timely Filing of State Controller’s Special Districts Financial Transactions Report -
Includes Compensation Disclosure. (Government Code Section 53891)

[} Provide copy of most recent filing,

SDLF staff will verify that district is not listed on the State Controller’s ‘non-compliance list’

Conduct Audits As Required By Law (Government Code Section 26909 and 12410.6)
[} Provide copy of most recent audit, management letter, and a description of how/where documents were made available to the public

Other Policies — Have Current Policies Addressing the Following Areas
Provide copies of each:

[J Conflict of Interest

[J Provide copies of Form 700 cover sheet for board members and general manager
[} Code of Ethics/ Values/Norms or Board Conduct

[} Financial Reserves Policy



1 I -}

SECTICi_TD _ PAGE NG, _ 9

Website Requirements
Maintain a district website with the following items Required. (provide website link) - Required items available to the public:
[J Names of board members and their full terms of office to include start and end date
[} Name of general manager and key staff along with contact information
[} Election/ appointment procedure and deadlines
[} Board meeting schedule
(Regular meeting agendas must be posted 72 hours in advance pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2 (a)(1) and Government Code Section 54956 (a))
L} District’s mission statement
J Description of district’s services/functions and service area
[J Authorizing statute/Enabling Act (Principle Act or Special Act)
[} Current District budget
[} Most recent financial audit
[} Archive of Board meeting minutes for at least the last 6 months
[} Link to State Controller’s webpages for district’s reported board member and staff compensation (Government Code Section 53908)
[} Link to State Controller’s webpages for district’s reported Financial Transaction Report (Government Code Section 53891 (a))
[J Reimbursement and Compensation Polic
[} Home page link to agendas/board packets {Government Code Section 54957.5)
[} SB 272 compliance-enterprise catalogs (Government Code Section 6270.5)
Additional items — website also must include at least 4 of the following items:
[T} Post board member ethics training certificates
[} Picture, biography and e-mail address of board members
[} Last (3) years of audits
[J Financial Reserves Policy
[} Online/downloadable public records act request form
[} Audio or video recordings of board meetings
il Map of district boundaries/service area
[} Link to California Special Districts Association mapping program
[} Most recent Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) studies (full document or link to document on another site)
[} Link to www.districtsmakethedifference. org site or a general description of what a special district is
[} Link most recently filed to FPPC forms
L} Machine readable/searchable agendas (required in 2019)

Outreach/Best Practices Requirements - (Must complete at least 2 of the following items)
Regular District Newsletter Or Communication (Printed And/Or Electronic) That Keeps The Public,
Constituents And Elected Officials Up-To-Date On District Activities (at least twice annually)
[} Provide copy of most recent communication and short description on the frequency of the communication, how it’s distributed and to whom.
Community Notification Through Press Release To Local Media Outlet Announcing Upcoming Filing Deadline For Election Or
Appointment And Process For Seeking A Position OnThe District Board, PriorTo That Election (Or PriorTo The Most Recent Deadline
For Consideration Of New Appointments For Those Districts With Board Members Appointed To Fixed-Terms).
[} Provide copy of the press release (and the printed article if available)
Complete Salary Comparison/Benchmarking For District Staff Positions Using A Reputable Salary Survey (At Least Every 5 Years)
[} Provide brief description of the survey and process used as well as the general results
Special Community Engagement Project
Designed and completed a special project promoting community engagement with the district (potential projects may be broad in nature or focus on
specific issues such as rate-setting, recycled water, identifying community needs, etc.)
L% Submit an overview of the community engagement project reviewing the process undertaken and results achieved
Hold Annual Informational Public Budget HearingsThat Engage The Public (Outreach, Workshops, Etc.) Prior To Adopting The Budget
[} Provide copy of most recent public budget hearing notice and agenda,
Community Transparency Review
The district would be required to obtain a completed overview checklist from at least 2 of the following individuals (the district may choose to conduct the over-
view with these individuals simultancously or separatcly):
L} Chair of the County Civil Grand Jury
[} Editor of a reputable local print newspaper (only one may count toward requirement)
[} LAFCO Executive Officer
C County Auditor-Controller
[} Local Legislator (only one may count toward requirement)
[} Executive Director or President of local Chamber of Commerce
[} General Manager of a peer agency (special district, city, county, neighborhood association, community organization or county administrative officer)
O Provide proof of completion signed by individuals completing Community Transparency Review

Distria’s



SECIIC T D PAGE i\é’,j‘..;_gg

FlENCE )

SHOWCASE YOUR DISTRICT’S COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY

Submit Application

Submit this application along with all required documentation to:

SPECIAL DISTRICT LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION
1112 [ Street, Suite 200

Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: 916-231-2939 * Fax: 916-442-7889

DISTRICT:

MAILING ADDRESS:

CITY: STATE: ZIP:
CONTACT NAME:

CONTACT TITLE:

PHONE: FAX:

EMAIL: WEBSITE:

ASSEMBLY MEMBER(S)*:

SENATOR*:

LOCAL NEWSPAPER(S):

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED IS ACCURATE SIGNATURE:
AND COMPLETETO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

*include all state legislators representing the district’s area of operation



SECTICN YD pace vg, 3

g t SPECIAL DISTRICT
wn LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION Home About Programs Contact Checklists

Showcase Your Commitment to Excellence

=]

Districts of Distinction
Accreditation

In a time where proper fiscal management and responsibility in public agencies is
paramount and the task of governing these agencies has become even mote complex,
regulated and costly, it has become increasingly important to demonstrate to
constituents that districts have sound fiscal management policies and practices in place
among other areas of importance in district operations.

This accreditation is designed as a way for districts to highlight their prudent fiscal
practices along with other areas important to effectively operate and govern a special

district.

Why Earn it?

The accreditation criterion gets to
the heart of best practices in
public agencies. Demonstrate that
your district:

Understands and respects the
responsibilities inherent in
providing essential public
services.

Has clean financial audits and
operates in a fiscally responsible
and transparent manner.

Is conscious of the ever-changing
operating environment by having
current and relevant policies and
procedures in place that conform
to all statutes and regulations
under state law.

Places an emphasis on continuing
education completed by having
each of the district’s board
members and executive staff in
ethics, governance and leadership
training.

Focuses on having sound policies
in the areas of governance, hoard
conduct, district finances,
transparency and reserves.

Requirements

» They undergo regular financial
audits, have no major deficiencies
and apply any recommendations
to future years.

s Their operations conform to all
statutes and regulations under
state law as reflected in a policies
and procedures manual.

= All directors/irustees, general
manager and executive staff (as
designated by the district) have
received fraining in governance as
well as compliance with AB 1234
Ethics Training and AB 1825
Harassment Prevention Training.

+ They have completed SDLF's
District Transparency Certificate of
Excellence.

DOD Seal

Districts of Distinction earn the right to
use the program'’s seal on district
materials. The District of Distinction
seal is visual proof that your special
district stands out from others

Application

. Complete the application
Send application and all
supporting materials to SDLF.
. Approval process review
performed by SDLF staff
Receive your certificate and
recognition

> ow e

Download the application today.

Current Districts

of Distinction

See a current list of special district

leaders who have accomplished
these goals and have been
recognized.



secTion__1J_page vo, ¥
--—-
L
-

A
N

SPECIAL DISTRICT
LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION

SHOWCASEYOUR COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE

Districts Of Distinction Application

The Districts of Distinction program is an accreditation program that enables districts to demonstrate to their communities, the media and legislators their
commitment to operate in a sound, responsible manner. Districts apply for designation as a District of Distinction by submitting financial audits, policies and
procedures and proof of training received by directors and executive staff.

Requirements:

FINANCIAL AUDITS
Districts must demonstrate they undergo regular financial audits, have no major deficiencies and apply any recommendations to future years.
What to submit:
[ Copies of the three most recent district audits, including financial statements and management letters. Each audit, including findings and
recommendations, will be reviewed by a member of the Certification & Audit Review Advisory Committee. Committee members are
volunteers from the special district community, including district controllers, directors of finance and SDA certified general managers.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Districts must demonstrate that their operations conform to all statutes and regulations under state law as reflected in a policies and procedures manual.
Policies and procedures should focus on governance, ethics, board conduct, district finances, reserves, reimbursement/compensation, etc.

What to submit:

[} Copy of your district’s current approved policies and procedures manual.

[} Copy of your district’s Board minute action adopting and/or having reviewed the policies and procedures manual within the past year.

Training
What to submit:
Documentation showing class attendance, such as certificate of completion for each board member, general manager and other executive staff

members (as identified by the board) in the following areas:

[} Governance Training: Six hours of basic governance training within the past five years. Governance Foundations, offered by CSDA’s Special
District Leadership Academy, satisfies this requirement. Other courses may qualify as well, however will need to be submitted for review by
SDLE. Also, Board Member Best Practices (3 hours) plus 2 approved webinars will satisfy that requirement, Approved webinars are:
Board Member and District Liability Issues; Must Have Communication Protocoels for Board & Staff; and Who Does What? Best Practices in
Board Staff Relations.
*Districts with boards larger than 7 need at least a majority of total board members completing this training requirement.

03 Ethics Training: Documentation verifying completion of AB 1234 ethics compliance training within the last two years,

[} Harassment Prevention Training: Documentation verifying completion of AB 1825 harassment prevention training within the last two years.

Other
Districts must also include the following items with the accreditation/re-accreditation application:
What to submit:
[} Board of Directors roster
[} List of executive staff, including titles
[J Completed application for accreditation/ re-accreditation
[J Accreditation/re-accreditation application fee
[} Completed SDLF District Transparency Certificate of Excellence



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

Who should apply to be a District of Distinction?

Any California special district that wants to demonstrate publicly the
effectiveness of its operations. Applying for this designation shows that your
district understands and respects the responsibilities inherent to providing
essential public services in a fiscally responsible manner.

What does a district receive for completing the program?

Districts of Distinction earn the right to use the program’s seal on district materials
and a plaque honoring their accomplishment. SDLF will also send a letter to a local
publication and notify legislators on a district’s behalf. The District will also receive a
Legislative Resolution.

How does a district apply?

Districts interested in earning the Districts of Distinction designation must
complete the application and submit it along with the required documentation.
Applications must also be accompanied by an application fee,

Fees
The fees are on a sliding scale, based on a district’s ability to pay:

INITIAL ACCREDITATION & RE-ACCREDITATION
Annual operating budget Fee
$0-299,999 $125
$300,000.749,999 5150
§750,000.999,999 5175
§1,000,000-2,999,999 5200
$3,000,000 or more $250

DISTRICT:
MAILING ADDRESS:
CITY: STATE:
CONTACT NAME:
CONTACTTITLE:
. PHONE: FAX:
EMAIL:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER(S)*:
. SENATOR*:
LOCAL NEWSPAPER(S):

1 CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED IS ACCURATE SIGNATURE:

AND COMPLETETO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE,

WEBSITE:

secrien 22 _ pagk vo., 9
24

If my district is a member of the Special District Risk
Management Authority (SDRMA), will getting a District of
Distinction accreditation save me money on my premiums?
Yes. SDRMA offers Credit Incentive Points {CIPs) if your
district earns the District of Distinction accreditation which can
provide significant premium discounts. For more information,
contact SDRMA at 800.537.7790 or visit www.sdrma.org.

RE-ACCREDITATION

For how long is the designation valid?

The Districts of Distinction designation is valid for two years and
a district may be re-accredited by submitting the application and
all current required documents for review along with the re-
accreditation fee.

Is your district a District of
Distinction?

Submit Application

Submit this application along with all required
documentation and payment to:

SPECIAL DISTRICT LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION

11121 Street, Suite 200

Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: 916-231-2939 * Fax: 916-442-7889 www.sdlf.org

ZIP:

TOTAL: § O CHECK I visa O MASTERCARD

ACCT. NAME:

EXPIRATION DATE:

O DISCOVER O AMERICAN EXPRESS

ACCT. NUMBER:

AUTIIORIZED SIGNATURE:

* Include all state legislators representing the district’s area of operation.



secrion_+_race no._ |

e o e ] e~

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors

From: Samantha Ryan

Date: November 27, 2017

Subject: Trinity County Community Alert System — CodeRED

Trinity County OES has a community warning system called CodeRED. This system is a “reverse 911"
system that can be used to alert the public to an emergency via landline, cell phone, email, and
notifications through the Mobile App. The benefit to signing up with the CodeRED Mobile App, is that if
you travel to an area that utilizes CodeRED, you will automatically receive local warnings without having
to sign-up with that jurisdiction.

Trinity County OES and the CodeRED program is in the process of switching from the Sheriff's Office to
the Department of Health and Human Services. The attached brochure is the most current brochure
Trinity County has for the program; the information about the Mobile App and the website are current,
however the phone number to call for more information on the CodeRED program is (530) 623-1265.



..... THTTVRRN [reur-g
0Q18-£29-084 :xey
T193-£29-08S :auoyq d2younen

.Q3y43pod ONINIVM 43IHLVIM

d3Y4°POD

.

M

FAGE

€6096 Y ‘Q[[IAIaABa
g aung
peoy wodiry 19

=

119%-£39-0€S
sadlalag AouaSIiawiy JO IVIJJO
—90133Q 53311348 L1uno) Ayruiyy

4,

SECTION

:qam 2y} 0} 05

a3yepo)d o
" Q - A3pDIY pup proipuy 10f uoynatyddo

O mod ypm apo) YO sty L4 40

EQH@%@ LIV a11qou v sy (J742POD
Arunuuo)
bﬁﬂoo ddv aj1qol

ddy

Apuray, °1190W Q3Y2POD d3d¥°POD



. " [rew-yg
0818-€29-088 :xey
1192-£29-0€S :auoyg

£6096 YD ‘S[[lalaaea
g ang
peoy 1odary 19

1192-£29-0€8
$901A188 LousSrowmy jo a31JJ0
—901330 s, 3j1194s fyuno) LyrurLy

section LY _pasEMNC. D

:19SMOIqG INOA

ur 9d4] ues noA Mou 104 19151891 01 MO[
-[03 03 9[qE 9q [[M NOA BT[] 911G A1Umo)
A uo Yuif e 3s0d [[Im am aIniny Jest Y uf

ddy
IMqOW (I8P 91 NI I93S131 UBD NOX

¢dn udis | ued moy

*98essow INO WIM U] Suriesy

97e1g 9} Sunoeiuod £4q funo) ALy,
UM 189m0} [[90 Surssaooe souoyd (a0
[[e 01 S)19[e PUas 0} 3[qe aq [[ImM am ‘Apser]

“BaIR 151}

-To ut dn pau3is jou asey noA YSnoi usAs
‘Surrem oy} 9A19031 [[IM NOA (JH}APO) osn
Aoy} usym ‘AesIop MAN UI T9Tem SUD[ULIP
PRIEUIIIBIUOD 10 EMO] UT SUTUIEM OPERILIO)
e 10 :3[durexs 104 “(IAAPOY SIS Jey} Ul
Surqeaen; axe no£ uorpIpsLn{ Aue woxy nok
0} ssonj0U Juetodwl SULIq [[Im POYIAUI ST}
‘suonieoynou Ayuno) ALy, 10§ SuLtaysigor
puo4ag ‘suonesynou aAeda1 o dn usts
ued nok ddy 9[IqoIA oY Surpeo] umop I8V

‘nod yym dn sdaay ddy o[IqoN oY1,

SLYoIYMm ‘ddy a[IqOA 911 B1A 1 103 dn uSts sjuap
-IS3I UM ST Pasn aq ueo (JTISPo)) Aem pang} oy

"Jouued s[fe
90TOA UM TLIT} 0F Ua)Jo $95essaul 1x9] asnedaq
‘umop st suoyd [[80 InoL Jo 9pIS [[B2 I0T0A S} JI
UAAS {3UN[IOM ], UST SUI[PUR] INOA UaYM NIty sades
-$ouI 198 wed am sn[d no£ 03 sefessawr JuaSin 108
ued 9M SABM 91} SOSBOIOUT YOTYM ‘Blep [fewd pue
duoyd ([0 aje[nwnIde ULd 9M ‘PO STYI UM
*19)S1391 J[3 0} SUIZNIO 10 ST POTIA PUOIAS YL,

"sSuruIem puss 0y

Sy Tewpue] pue $193.4s 109[9s 0] asn am Jet]} dew
€ U0 uoneso] oA joid ued wa)sAs atj} uonem
-IOJUL ST UM ‘ST auoyd oA Yump £33} s1aym
*9°1 ‘SSRIppe 80lATas Ino4 pue Jequinu suoyd
-9[93 anoA ym sn apaoid satuedurod suoyd oy,
*SOUI[PIE] PaIaIsIol WOIJ ST Polda[[o2 elep A
‘soruedurod suoyd a1} woly eyep 103[[09 0} ST po
-U10UI ISI1] 9], "SABM [BIIADS UT SYIOM (JTIOPO))

AIOM AHUIPOD
S90(] MOY

"UO)SIMIT Ul 211 & pue jusproul suosiad Surssp e
10J Iea4 STY} JeJ OS PISh Udaq ABY] PUB WISISAS 1}
0JUl papeo| usaq sey elep Iy, "AJuno) a3 Ul ssau
-1snq 3utop seruwedwiod suoyd aurpue| oY) woly
ejep Sunos[[0d ST )i 1Rt} SUBSUI UDIYM ‘UID)SAS SIY}
Sunuewe[duwt APuaLmd ST SHO AJUno) ALy,

‘peluI[uUn ST Uss 9 AewI Jey}

o8essawt jo ad£) ay1 9sm00 JO "030 sopered
‘SaINSO[ peol SUNUNOUUER 10 ‘3IN[Ie] W)SAS
Ioyem e jo adoad Sururroyur ‘ype Jo piry>
Suisstut e 03 o1pqnd oY1 SurIate ‘SIgp[Mm € Jo
suaznd Jururem :are sajdurexs agesn awog

*A[91RINO0E POIAAI[OP
aq ueo sSururem palofrel A[YSKq 187} 0S JeW
-10J apyIguo]/opnitie| 01 UOTIEOO] INOA 1I9A
-u0d 0}  3UIPGO-09Y),, S9SN (JHYIPO) °SUOT}
-e00[ Ja1y} ur ade[d Sunfe; syuaad Juerroduy
JO WAy} 1LIeM 0] 3T} U0 B SUIZIIID JO SIaq

-wnu agre[ yoeas o3 sarusde orqnd Jay0
pue s1oydyedsi(q smof[e oefd ul swajsis
9831} JO SUO FUIARE] "SWII)SAS  TT6 9SIAT,,

v
Ty

e _—
MW@ O ZL 8 ¥ D ¥

7 tamo wroqun

SANVYN ALINDWHOD
ALNNOS ALINIDL

Pa][ed UR1Jo axe SWd)SAS s3], ‘JTA2PoD
Po[[eo waisds Sunirem AUnNuurod mau e Sur

-Judursfdun s1 (SHO) s91A198 LdusSIoury jo
SOWO 3} PUE 30O SJLIYS Auno) AjurL],

¢ 9sn Auno)
AL, [IM MOH
SATI2POD STIRYM



ENGINEERING



secTIoN (i pace vo,_|___
CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Change Order No.: 4

1-MG Tank Roof Replacement and Painting Date: 1117/17
Page No.: _ 1 of 5

=g
[’

CONTRACTOR: Paso Robles Tank — Brown-Minneapolis Tank, Inc.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:
This Change Order is a credit to cover the cost for week-end inspection work as well as the cost for the inspector to
travel and show up on 10/2, only to have the paint contractor not be on site.

Simpson Sandblast requested to be allowed to work on Saturday, Sept. 23™ and Sunday Sept. 24™. This required the
paint inspector, Dana Gaya, to work to inspect the interior sandblasting prep and allow Simpson to begin the interior
coating process. The normal inspection rate is $96/hr. The 8 hours of inspection work on the 23™ was required to be
paid at a Premium Rate of $125/hr. The 8 hours of inspection work on Sunday the 24™ was paid at a Double Rate of
$145/hr. Resulting in an increase in inspection of: 8hrs * (($125/hr-$96/hr) + ($145/hr-$96/hr)) = $624. (See attached
invoice and hourly time report as backup)

Simpson Sandblast had also told the inspector that they were going to be on site on Monday, 10/2 to be ready to
perform spark testing of the interior coating. The inspector traveled and arrived at the site at 7:15 ready to work. He
waited around until 9:45 until he was finally able to contact the Simpson foreman and was told the crew would not be
working that day. Costs included travel and site time. Cost = 8hrs * $96/hr = $768.

Total CO cost = $624+$768 = $1,392

Adjustment of contract sum Adjustment of contract completion dates
Original Contract Sum $460,837.50 ggﬂ;ﬁa'tg‘r"“g:g Aug. 07, 2017
Prior Adjustments $6,965.00 g:f;nAd‘:ljr”gtgz“ts in 47
ot SmPor o | gugr.sozs | |Adsimentin Calende o
Adjustment for this Change -$1,392.00 gg\rﬁ;?gﬁggrg;atgt Sept. 23, 2017
Revised Contract Sum $466,410.50

NOTE: CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM FOR FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE
CONTRACT SUM RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED CHANGE IN THE WORK.

RECOMMENDED BY:

4/ DATE: 11/17/2017

Engineer
APPROVED BY:
o DATE:
ACCEPTED BY:
DATE:

Contractor



i

SECTION_) l0u PAGE NO. _ﬁ;_

CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Change Order No.:

1-MG Tank Roof Replacement and Painting

Page No.:

CONTRACTOR: Paso Robles Tank — Brown-Minneapolis Tank, Inc.

5

Date: 111717

1 of 11

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

costs.

This Change Order is to cover the cost of removing the vent brackets and screens, sandblasting the brackets and
coating them, and reinstalling the vents with new screens. See attached labor and material sheets for back-up of

Adjustment of contract sum

Adjustment of contract completion dates

Original Contract

Original Contract Sum $460,837.50 Completion Date Aug. 07, 2017
Prior Adjustments $5,573.00 ggcl)gnﬁijrgtgznts in 47
Change oS 848841080 | | p e Cnamae Order 5
Adjustment for this Change $11,156.95 55‘;2?;53’322 Sept. 28, 2017
Revised Contract Sum $477,567.45

NOTE: CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM FOR FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE
CONTRACT SUM RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED CHANGE IN THE WORK.

RECOMMENDED BY:

4l

Engineer

APPROVED BY:

Owner
ACCEPTED BY:

Contractor

DATE:

11/17/2017

DATE:

DATE:




=
| Meéemorandum
il

December 8, 2017

_To: John Frledenbach Ref. No.: 11125099
. 7
From: Patrick Kaspari, PE / / P Tel: 707-443-8326
cc: R : —_—

Subject: Change Orders 6 & 7, 1-MG Reservoir Reroofing Project

John,

Attached are DRAFT Change Orders 6 and 7 for the 1-MG Reservoir Reroofing and Painting project.
Change Order 6 was prepared to cover the removal of the excessive paint on the floor of the reservoir and is
in the amount of $20,663.40. Change Order 7 was prepared to cover the liquidated damages allowed by the
contract lo cover the exira time the contractor required to complete the project. Change Order 7 was a credit
for $18,000. Paso Robles Tank has suggested that instead of processing these change arders, we simply
allow them to offset each other and do not amend the contract price. Staff is in agreement with this
approach.

P

- . e

AHCLIRBD EbtiNt rén
e ——

GHD
718 Third Street Eureka Callfornia 95501 USA ISO 8001
T 707 443 8326 F707 444 8330 W www.ghd.com TELURITa B GEE



SECTION <J Lex, PAGE NO. 1

(Eleld) ~—
— %F /
PROJECT: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Change Order No.: 6
1-MG Tank Roof Replacement and Painting Date: 1117117
Page No.. __1_ of 03
CONTRACTOR: Paso Robles Tank — Brown-Minneapolis Tank, Inc.
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

This Change Order is to cover the excessive thickness of paint on the interior floor of the tank and extra stripping

time and materials to remove it down to white metal. It also covers the cast savings for installing two coats on the
interior bathtub ring and floor, to the originally specified thickness instead of the three coats specified. Please see
the attached cost detail from Simpson Sandblast.

Adjustment of contract sum Adjustment of contract completion dates
Original Contract Sum $460,837.50 82?;::%%2%:& Aug. 07, 2017
Prior Adjustments $16.720.05| | coo AdkSiments in 52
ol SumPrto W | ga77.567.45| | Adusimentn coender z
Adjustment for this Change $20,663.40 gz"mi;‘fgﬁgg’gg:t Sept. 30, 2017
Revised Contract Sum $498,230.85

NOTE: CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM FOR FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE
CONTRACT SUM RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED CHANGE IN THE WORK.

RECOMMENDED BY:

DATE: 11/17/2017
Engineer -
APPROVED BY:
DATE:
Owner
ACCEPTED BY:
DATE:

Contractor



SECTION < la, PAGE NO._g_._

7
et st v s e

CA#878060 NV#72342 AZ#255672

October 16, 2017

Desiree Brumley
Paso Robles Tank

Re: Excessive Mils at 1MG Domestic Reservoir

444 Pipeline Road
Arcata, CA 95521

Interior Dimensions are: 70'D x 40°H

Roof: 3.14 x r’= 3,847 sq. ft,

Shell: Diameter x Height x 3.14 = 8,792 sq. ft.

Per Ring; 8,792 divided by 5 rings = 1,759 sq. ft.
Floor: 3.14 x r2 = 3,847 sq. fi.
Total {bottom ring and floer): 5,606 sq. ft.
Floor:

The floar, on average, has a coating system that is 32 mils. This represents a coating system that is 60%
thicker than the 20 mils that is deemed as the industry standard as evidenced by the application of the
coating system listed in the specifications. This 60% increase in thickness results in 60% more labor, time
for equipment, fuel, sand removal and sand disposal. The total square footage of the floor is 3,847.

The cost per square foot with the 50% adder would bring the cost up to $10.40/sq. ft. which is an
increase of $3.90 to our base bid price of $6.50. This increase would apply to the entire area of the floor
where the thick coatings are being blasted off, additional equipment and abrasive used, fuel, {abor, and
additional spent abrasive disposal.

Bottom Ring:

The bottom ring, on average, also has a coating system of 32 mils. This also represents a coating system
that is 60% greater than the 20 mils that is deemed as the industry standard. The additional $3.90 per
sq. ft. would only apply to the 1,759 sq. fi. which makes up the battom ring.

The cost per square foot with the 60% adder would bring the cost up to $10.40/sq. ft. which is an
increase of $3.90 to our base bid price of $6.50. This increase would apply to the bottom ring where the
thick coatings are being blasted off, additional equipment and abrasive used, fuel, labor, and additional
spent abrasive disposal.

Corporate Office * 14665 Rancho Vista Dr. « Fontana, CA 92335
P: (909) 829-0000 » F: (909) 829-0023



CA#878060

AZ#235672

Summary:

These totals represent the exact per square foot price supplied at the time of bid without any
additlonal markup. | am not interested in trying to profit from this unforeseen circumstance but only be
made whole as the scope has now changed. | believe the numbers outlined in this letter represent a true
and fair account of the calculations and cost that have been incurfed on this project dug to the excessive

mils which total $21,863.40 {$3.90 x 5,606 sq. ft.)

Cost Deduction:

The Field Work Directive#f7 was suggested to help with the cure time starting 1 day earlier; not
suggested to save on cost. The labor time Is stifl the same for mixing the material, and applying the
material in twa coats rather than three coats. Using two coats instead of three does have a small labor
reduction in the set up/ cleanup of the airless spray procedure. Typically the setup and cleanup will take
an hour for each task, and with the pulling the guns in & out of the tank that would add another hour.
So with a 4 man crew @ the agreed upon rate of $100 per man per hour, for three hours, the cost of
reduction would be $1,200.00. This can be deducted from the additional proposed cost.

Excessive Mils ] 21 863.40
Cost Reduction: $1,200.00
TOTAL: $20,663.40
Thank You,

Let now if there fre

Rusty Simpson

Project Manager

questions that you may have.

Corporate Office * 14665 Rancho Vista Dr, « Fontana, CA 92335

P: (909) 829-0000 « F: (909) 829-0023



SECTIONJ_| & PAGE NO. _1__

GHD, 7T
= DeaFT
PROJECT: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Change Order No.: 7
1-MG Tank Roof Replacement and Painting Date: 1117117
Page No.: _ 1 of 1
CONTRACTOR: Paso Robles Tank — Brown-Minneapolis Tank, Inc.
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

This Change Order is to cover Liquidated Damages and costs incurred for excessive inspection and project
management beyond the contractual completion date. The .original contract completion date was August 7, 2017.
Fifty four additional days were added by Change Order, resulting in a Contract Completion date of September 30,
2017. The date of actual completion of the substantial work was November 7, 2017, yielding 38 calendar days past
the contractual date. At the contractual rate of $500/day, this yields: 38 days x $500/day = $19,000 of liquidated
damages.

Adjustment of contract sum J ' Adjustment of contract completion dates
Original Contract Sum $460,837.50 ggﬁjgf‘e'tgr""g:g Aug. 07, 2017
Prior Adjustments $37,303.35 | | (oo AdlSmentsn 54
ggg:\zgt Sum Priortothis $498,230.85 ﬁ)gj;: ;?ret?ltisfnc?xglnegn;grder 0
Adjustment for this Change -$19,000.00 _gz:i;'fgﬁg:'g:’;g‘ Sept. 30, 2017
Revised Contract Sum $479,230.85

NOTE: CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM FOR FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE
CONTRACT SUM RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED CHANGE IN THE WORK,

RECOMMENDED BY:

DATE; 11/17/2017
Enginée{
APPROVED BY:
DATE:
Owner
ACCEPTED BY:
DATE:

Contractor



R secTioND |1 _pace No.,_|
W
i

Ref: 11146483

November 10, 2017

Mr. John Friedenbach

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 Seventh Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Re: Submittal of Mad River Cross Sections for 2017
Dear John,

We have enclosed two hardcopies of the 2017 survey of the Mad River Cross Sections at Essex.
We have also enclosed a CD with an electronic copy of the drawings in PDF and AutoCAD
format.

There is one area of concern with observed changes to the cross sections. The area of potential
concern for the past few years has been the channel against the north bank at Sections 2 and 3.
The channel on the north bank at Section 3 (between Collector 1 and Pump Station 6) and at
Section 2 (downstream of Pump Station 6) has deepen over the past few years. The deepening of
the north bank channel suggests that the weir placed just downstream of Section 3 to divert flows
back toward Pump Station 6 (PS6), is losing its effectiveness. Failure of the weir, or movement
of the main channel thalweg to the north, would prevent the effective operation of the surface
water intake at PS6, which is located on the south bank of the river between Sections 2 & 3.
However, Dennis Halligan, a fisheries biologist at Stillwater Science, was also out making
observations of this reach when the District was clearing the forebay earlier this year. During this
inspection, he felt that the main channel thalweg was still along the south bank, near the PS6
intake. As recommended last year, if the Industrial System remains idle in 2018, dredging
activities are likely not required. However, if a customer is identified for the Industrial System, it
is recommended that the southern channel be deepened by dredging to ensure the effective
operation of PS6.

The other sections do not indicate any areas of concern. The cross section of the channel at
Section 1, the furthest section downstream of Essex, aggraded or filled in slightly from 2013 to
2014, but it deepened again in 2015. It aggraded very slightly again in 2016 and this year, but
the overall cross sectional profile was generally very similar to the 2015 & 2016 profiles.

As stated above, Section 2, downstream of PS6, has filled in fairly significantly on the south side
of the channel and deepened on the north channel. The channel depths in the central portion of
the channel have not changed significantly over the last few years.

718 Third Street, Eureka California 95501-0417
tel 707.443.8326 fax 707.444.8330



Mr. John Friedenbach

Nov. 10, 2017 SECTION'J |1 pacE N, O~
Page 2

Section 3, just downstream of Collectors 1/1A and upstream of PS6, has changed as noted in the
paragraph above. The central portion of the channel has deepened slightly since 2015 & 2016,
but the channel on the north bank has moved further to the north.

The channel on the north bank of Section 4 (between Collectors 1 and 2) has filled in since 2016.
It had deepened over 2.5-feet between 2014 and 2016, so it is not surprising that it has
aggregated a bit in the last year.

Section 5 is just upstream of Collector 2. The profile at this section has changed very little in the
past several years, but it filled in slightly this year, again this is not surprising since it had
deepened slightly in the last few years.

There is not much overall change in the channel cross section at Section 6, just downstream of
Collector 3. It has deepened slightly in some areas and filled in slightly in others, in such a way
that it should not impact District operations.

The main channel at Section 7, immediately downstream of Collector 4, has seen the channel
move away from the north bank and towards the center of the channel. The area of the sand bar
built up around Collector 4 had largely washed away between 2015 and 2016 and further eroded
this year. This is not of major concern for the operation of the Collector, but the area will have
to be built up again if the boom truck or a crane are required to perform maintenance on the
collector.

There is actually a fairly dramatic change in the channel cross section at Section 8, just
downstream of Collector 5. The main channel has moved away from the south bank towards the
central part of the main channel. The area along the south bank has filled in and the area across
the entire rest of the main channel has deepened by several feet. This should not affect District
operations.

As always, we appreciate the opportunity to assist you on this project. Please do not hesitate to
call me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
GHD

Patrick Kaspari, P.E.
District Engineer



L5
4'0 g«
N
" on 3| D pace o, _2 i
4 SECTI " s gg
® z ns
14' é K]
3
w o
g Es
o <E
¥ 89
° it
85
&R
GRAPHIC SCALE "
~300" ° l?ﬂ' 300
3
1 Inch =300 ft go
169 a8
E «©
499 g%
S g .
* i
299 é [ j g ",?3;
C | DES
(%) ER
% | / 52z
By 40) N
3 N
o d“b 599 H ¢ o N
40 ¢ { E 4 }’ <
N 1)) 4 2 =
201 501 ,;_ Le 99
/ b x
%} rL ¥ e,
€ ¥
2. e TH
<s, 52
699 799 =g
~ 2
© e 8
% § 899 %o
[3)
g 4
® @
701
601 $ g
o b3
a
]
a
w
801 g
BASIS OF BEARINGS
CALIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM — ZONE 1 (NAD 27) g
=
Point Northing Easting Elev. Description |6
secon 1 1O 580490.27 1430941.72 27.83 HELD FOUND 17 IP "CONTROL POINT WK” |n__: .‘: >
199 580897.25 1431098.28 40.86 FOUND 1™ IP "CSC CTRL PT". 0w~ H
0o N
secrioy 2 201 579885.63 1431632.04 47.70 FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK" 4 : . Z
299 580493.34 1431680.02 35.13 HELD FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK" woe ¢ —
g K
SECTION 3 301 580175.31 1432640.64 39.5¢ HELD FOUND OPEN 17 IP, SET TAG "CSC CTRL PT" = g L z
399 580537.47 1432397.23 40.02 FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK" i E (/5] o
SECTION 4 401 580314.39 1433486.47 38.61 HELD FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK” % E m |_
499 580725.19 1433425.83 2498 NO MONUMENT FOUND OR RESET. POSITION CALCULATED FROM OLD SURVEY DATAT S qu m o
SECTION 5 501 579903.95 1434279.72 36.01 FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK" g E [TT] %
599 580140.54 1434614.96 64.48 HELD 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK” > g >
oy o
SECTION 6 601 578898.74 1435765.94 40.73 HELD FOUND 1™ IP "CONTROL POINT WK" LEGEND m E m uw)
699 579359.22 1435702.74 48.29 FOUND 17 IP "CONTROL POINT WK™ = z
® FOUND RECORD SURVEY MONUMENT, HELD FOR POSITION 350 O
SECTION 7 701 5789186.78 1436643.30 47.77 HELD 17 IP TAGGED "CSC CONTROL" o w < m
798 579406.72 1436739.01 60.81 FOUND 17 IP "CONTROL POINT WK” o FOUND RECORD MONUMENT AS NOTED nE) E 0
secTon 8 801 578486.94 1437754.23 68.50 FOUND 1” IP "CONTROL POINT WK” 2
899 579199.47 1438012.41 67.02 HELD FOUND 1" IP "CONTROL POINT WK™
PROJ NO: 11146483
RECORD POSITIONS ARE SHOWN WHERE THEY AGREE WITHIN 1’ HORIZONTALLY AND 0.1" VERTICALLY- DRWN: WJP | CHKD: DAC
MEAS. DISTANCES AND ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN IN DESCRIPTION IF FOUND TO BE OUT OF THIS TOLERANCE. ORTHOPHOTO IS FOR GENERAL |
INFORMATION ONLY AND DOES
SECTIONS ON ATTACHED SHEETS FACE WESTERLY (DOWNSTREAM VIEW). NOT INDICATE WATER/GRAVEL
CONDITIONS AT TIME OF SURVEY.
8SHEET 1 OF 3

Plot Date: 20 October 2017 - 2:42 PM Plotted By: Scott Davis Cad File No: G:V111\11148483 HBMWD-Mad River X-Sections 2017\08-CAD\Sheets\11146483_01_Index.dwg



50

0 27.70

30

20

10
0

50

100

100

200 300 40
SECTION 1
U 33
2016

300 400 500
SECTION 2

600

50

section D] D ,PAGE NO-H;..._

LEGEND
1992 —

WATERSURFACEON — ———%——
SEPTEMBER 12, 2017

SURVEY CONTROL &
POINT IDENTIFICATION ‘e =
& ELEVATION (FEET) ~I

* Section 4 only
HORIZONTAL SCALE:
11 200 | 300 400 0 50 100

SECTION 3 T

VERTICAL SCALE:
0 £y 10

Y e g —

200 300 00
SECTION 4

—_—
'~

e G ol
- Arcata, CA 95521

SUBCONSULTANT
707-840-9542 - fax

5201 Carlson Park Dr., Suite 3
707-840.9510 - Phone

718 Third Street Eureka Califomia 85501 USA

T 1707 443 8328 F 1 707 444 8330

sur
TR
GHD Inc

/ﬂ /M /M/7 W www.ghd.com

BARIS ONE INCH ON
ORIGINAL DRAWING

0

DESCRIPTION

I1SSUE

DATE

MARK

MAD RIVER ESSEX - 2017
CROSS SECTIONS 1 -4

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SURVEY DATE: SEPTEMBER 12, 2017

FROJNO: 11146483

DRWN: WJPISJD[ CHKD: DAC

SHEET 2 OF 3

Plot Date: 20 October 2017 - 2:17 PM

Plotted By: Scott Davis

Cad File No: G:\111111148483 HEMWD-Mad River X-Sections 2017108-CAD\Sheets\11146483_02-03_SECTIONS.dwg




anss!
- Lpz/ 28/ o
o NOILAMIS3a v | ol o
oeeg v 104 L 4 bM.MMM“QHMMB—% - w = m wzo—homw wwomo m 2
XEd - ZPSG-OVB-LOL  BUOHd - 0ISG-0pg-£0, | YO HOTS6 BUICHED BRINT JeRi PUML 81 S Iy
12556 cw ‘eledly - £ ANNG “4Q YEJ UOSUED) [0ZS Ul dHO = W "
NN (IATA LSIAA—STNIO _— S
=) INAIAUAS J 2102 - X3SS3 H3AIY AVIN d
U r————7 £10Z ‘Z} HIGWIALAIS ‘3LVA ATANNS |3 °
[ ONUMYHA TYNIDINO g B
INVLSNGOENS Myt dasd LORILSIA ¥ALYM TVAIDINNIN AVE L0T08BNNH | § | £ 4
b
D L
/ | | O g ®
g ) "
- | B § \ M .. m
M _ _ \ m 3 _.I__._ in
_ 3 S
| _ z < 7]
A [ - Q ~ E -
1| w’ 33 g -l g
.m 2 b = Be: =
prd | ke ZEZ o I rl -
w ! Su 829 o W
N o© ~ 3 OE I s o
G D — — Rm HIW 2
W e o o o HE &0
% d - N N N sh 5o
o BEw
'8
8
-
o ®
¥z
(]
5
= 7]
N~
& g
=
0
gw
=]
-8
(=]
5
mn
8 g
2 g
©
5
2 =
5 O
2 4
T
g0 g
7]
8 E
R “ =

.dwg

Cad File No: Gi\111111148483 HBMWD-Mad River X-Sections 2017\06-CAD\Sheets\11146483_02-03_SECTIONS,

Pletted By: Scoft Davis

Plot Date: 20 Oclober 2017 - 2:40 PM



SECTIONJ\C_pAGE NO, |
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOx 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918
FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERRIE WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH November 14, 2017

Mr. Anthony Roggio, Hazard Mitigation Specialist
Recovery Infrastructure Branch, Program
California Office of Emergency Services

3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655-4203

Subject: ~ FEMA DR-1911-09-09R
6-Month Deadline Extension Request for Project Activity Completion Date
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipeline Retrofit

Dear Mr. Roggio,

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) respectfully requests a 6-month extension of time for
the completion of the HBMWD’s Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipeline Crossing Project (BL/FB Project). We request
that the deadline for the project activity completion date be extended six months, from May 7, 2018 to
November 7, 2018. An explanation for the necessary deadline extension is outlined below.

The main reason the project has been delayed is that the cultural resources investigation for this project resulted
in the identification of archaeological resources in the project’s Area of Potential Effect (APE), and triggered the
subsequent need for an extended cultural resource investigation. The original Cultural Resource Investigation of
the Mad River Pipeline Crossing for the HBMWD, Roscoe & Associates, was completed and submitted to
CalOES/FEMA in September 2014. Due to the discovery of the cultural resource site during this investigation,
an expanded study was required, and the Addendum to Roscoe and Rich (2014)-Archaeological testing at the
Area of Potential Effect for the Mad River Pipeline Crossing Project, was submitted in February 2015. This
subsequently had a ripple effect on all the remaining Phase 1 tasks. The finalization of the Feasibility Study to
select the final river crossing alternative was dependent on the completion of a geotechnical investigation, which
was contingent upon the completion of the cultural resource survey and final approval from FEMA for the
performance of ground disturbing activities. After the revised Cultural Resource Survey was submitted in
February 2015, FEMA approved the performance of the geotechnical investigation on September 23, 2015.

The geotechnical investigation was then completed and the geotechnical report; Preliminary Geotechnical
Report, HBMWD Water Transmission Pipeline Replacement Over Mad River, Crawford Geotechnical was
submitted to CalOES/FEMA in December 2015. The geotechnical data was then used to complete the
Feasibility Study and the Feasibility Study, Construction of Secondary Pipelines across the Mad River to Supply
Water to Fieldbrook and Blue Lake, GHD was submitted in April 2016.

The discovery of the cultural resource site also impacted the final alignment of the proposed project, which was
required to avoid the cultural resources. This in turn changed the Area of Potential Effect and required amended
Biological and Cultural Resource Surveys to assess the changed APE. The Amendment to Biological
Evaluation, Blue Lake Fieldbrook Glendale CSD Pipeline, Mad River Crossing, GHD, and Cultural Resources



ENTRANCE PIT SITE
GRADING

WARREN CREEK
ROAD
EXTENTS OF
CULTURAL SITE

LEGEND

4& BORING LOCATIONS - PHASE 1
4‘535 BORING LOCATIONS - PHASE 2

I_ SEISMIC LINE LOCATIONS

Map and Data Source:
Topography and Proposed Pipeline Alignment
provided by GHD via electronic transfer.

CI"‘BWfOPd GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION |Figure 1

& Associstses, Inc.

@  Geotechnicel Engineering. Design

end Construction Services
1100 Corporate Way
Suite 230
Sacramento, CA 95831
(916) 455-4225

HBMWD PIPELINE CROSSING
PHASE 2

HUMBOLDT COUNTY, CA

Proposed HDD
Alignment Plan

Proj. No: 15-245.2
Scale:  As Noted

Date: 11/08/2017




secTion 2 pace vo. 4

ELEVATION (FT)

STATION
9+ 10+00 11+00 12400 13 14+00 ‘ 15f00 16+00 18+00 20+00 21400 21453
W e - ! —F - ]
5 l : ) !

o T | O O S R U S A
R : ! ! I * | !
i A | | ) | %
MAAAAN, TR | i i

Qwﬁ; :\ o ——— ——JAA -- ~!A S NE—— N _— *l— —_ I e e e e e e e e e e e B7
RIS ‘ | Jf T
o7 YV AN 4 : ; :
SRR : 5 = i =
i e | |
R R NS 25 N PROPOSED | —— |~ ——— == == = =~ = = e L —
G0, 4 80% s GRADING | | A
O AN NG | Ao 7
KK A | :
AR \ i ‘
"? ’0” e e == - - A
"/\’\. i >><
,;/ ‘ - —EXISTING GROUND a“
’g / : SURFACE (APPROX.) o
W= 4 ] —_ Pt A o ML P
. 4 | j ;; G
l () AL
i APPROXIMATE WATER v/
T i 7 ELEVATIONDURING | - s 50
: L MAPPING 4
i H | Vi
i | -
N 7 ?‘?v TR XX XX XX N r— —_—— — TR T T = s . -
"m\ x[:_:xxxxxxx xxxxxxxx:xxx_x-;;x‘t\ I
; AAAAAR X_X_X Xl % % % _x xxxxxxxxxxxxx:éxxxxb\ i = o KK _x
x__x._:(;_x__.x__x.ixixxxx]ixx A‘zmxxixxxxTnhj"xx rxxx
AP \ ~ \* % ‘x X ® X X X X K X XXX _;:_: x X
.’.....s \ X;XXKXKXXXKXIXK .FXK
‘...."" - A gl GO RN XM X % % X X X X X X X X K x x
‘ i IS I I III I OO I IIII T 000 xhxresn semcx g o i CRE R 55
1 = s x xxxxxxxkﬁxx x’ x X / :FALIJLTG UGE:
7 YOI G AR
5 5 et il Rl £ e ' FHHH :
x xIx x x x x x x o | i: x ;
— 53¢ e %%~ XX o L -“
i oo e %=
x % X X % ] r 1, ~+
{ ] ;7/
Y
I
1
FAU[LT GOUGE
SCALE
S o' 100
= 25
LEGEND
E CHANNEL BEDLOAD
TERRACE ALLUVIUM
@ RESIDUAL SOIL {IN-SITU)
m WEATHERED BEDROCK
,f f i BEDROCK
R raurcouse
50

PROFILE OF CROSS SECTION

s Crawford
] & Asspciates, Inc.

Geotachnical Enginesring. Design

=55 end Construction Services
1100 Corporate Way
Suite 230
Sacramento, CA 95831

Since 1954 {916) 455-4225

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
HBMWD PIPELINE CROSSING
PHASE 2

HUMBOLDT COUNTY, CA

Figure 2

Cross Section

Proj. No: 15-245.2

Scale:  As Noted

Date: 11/08/2017




~ 3 —T . < 1 v
\ . \ | / ,; \ . 1 \‘\. . I f{
. 3 . [ secmon D | Crhaeno_T |
\ N }Ir \ SEQT[ON\ E 4 ( z
. R 4 v % f i
. ) | |' \ ‘ L&
N 1 I( | \ \r | I\
~ N [ NN WA\ \
D N | ‘| \ \ \ \
K ko4 VN \ 3
~ i 9 v\ % \
N AN . [ SN \, "
~ . I v\ T
\ h \ N ’
|~ - \ A
. \‘ N ‘ J‘ | N \ \
~ . N - o
\ ‘\ \ l E | J|: R \ \ )
| W\
. .. a \ \
(E) ARV (APPRX) ~ . N\ b \
CL OF NCRA ALIGNMENT N \ _)’
— . GLENDALE DRIVE ——%
\ APPROX APPROXA APPROX i ‘ \ OWNERSHIP \-_‘_
LANDS OF HEMWD S PL . PL | b LANDS OF FORD \ BG | A UNKNOWN N\ T
- '\ l \
.
Q\ N ___1 \ A
= ———— CONNECT (N) 14" — \ A
® ‘%7 . 1 ———— PVC TO (E) 14" ACP \\ o HIvawT
£ N b W/ (N) 45° BEND. AR ]
T uwos oF e . CUTAND CAP (E) e
g™ \ i LANDS OF NCRA g — ~ LINETOTHE WEST S 3 S
! = y
4908, N (E) AR (APPRX) - ~ ) ¥ mnﬂygg&g& .
Aenr Fhoo R100.0000 N o ) e R\
(EXITSIDE) & ; ~—2\
> 10" HOT TAP 12400 1340 ) 1400 ) 15400 } 2 92 L1V4éBUTI'ERFLY ~ .\\\
g MR ) ’ ) i 4 N) TRENCHED ~ =¥ N
N \ 14 PVC i
N ' BEGIN HDD
NN \ e ALIGNMENT
X e = T = (ENTRY SIDE)
NS \ - - _
- ! (N) 10" GATE OWNERSHIP UNKNOWN .
- A\ 1 vaLve, () 107x a0 k Aoy o
L o ¥ . — | ==
ey o/;‘;fr
_—— - P rﬁr
/ h - AREA OF PROPOSED
APPROX \< \\ DEVELOPMENT BY
- /\@f v OTHERS
PL = NORTH LINE OF THE SO N <oy
OWNERSHIP UNKNOWN HALF OF OF THE SOUTHEAST) )
QUARTER OF SECTION 14 —— T LANDS OF SUNDRERG N
PL ‘5 RIVER BANK, .
s TvP .
-
-~
(E) ARV (APPRX) Y \ ~
~ & L] ?70 .‘ . ~ - -
= . \
", — CUT AND CAP (E) PIPE AT -7 <1 L .
/-/('_ . 2 LOCATIONS AND DAYUGHT 14° PIPE - ( Y & S .~
- INSTALL (N) BLOWOFF ON > / APPROX  *
THE PORTION THAT IS P "
REMAINING IN SERVICE - - .
- / I = ~ "
i & . y
__\-@— O - LANDS OF WEIBEL \
—=.lg%, e /
o ", ] )
[ v 8™ Q - i 3 .
. Y f?: - « ] . .
" -aa- 8 / \ \
\ - " J I —_—— _ ~
\ \ I P \ . *
[ e %\ 20°' WIDE HBMWD N / 4 A .
— \ & EASEMENT | .
e ——— J)’\ \ P
(E)FIRE HYDRANT —~y '\, . | \
AND (E) VALVES
| | \ \" .
£ | LANDS OF AVILA o \ .
N
) PIPELINE CROSSING - PLAN VIEW -
i o —
Beris one inch =] D NS Designer NS |cet HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
o .
orgina e shot o — s Pt MAD RIVER PIPELINE CROSSING
. ng esigl
y ! > check 'K check 7% T  PIPELINE
= | e e e PLAN AND PROFILE
: ions i \ 3 lana b - "
e ro s = e 11162
and s e W0 of I Eureka Califarnia 95501 USA This document shall nol be wsed for iginal Sizo
e =R Drawn | Approved ok e Aol GHOS win 8 ioizake T'1 707 443 6226 F 1707 444 8330 W v ghd.com st s s end st | Gcgle A NOTED ANSID | shesto. C.1 e =
Piot Date: 29 Novernber 2017 - 12.28PM Piotied By Nathan Stevens Filename: G:\Legacy\Proj 1 BLFG CSD Pipeiil homwddwg




. LansoFHEWD [ PL ' FIVERBANK, TYF.
) #’ | '
)
L w Aﬁﬂox TOP RIVER BANK, TYP %\
& EASTERN LIMIT OF ~—

" FIR TREE TO
EMAIN & BE PROTECTED 3/

LANDS OF HemwEY w' o A ~—<" HEMWD EASEMENT

PL = NORTH LINE OF THEAOUTH /
" HALF OF OF THE SO ST LANDEC
QUARTER OF SECTION/14

A ] . N K ’ s = ’
PIPELINE CROSSING - PLAN VIEW N
1 SCALE: SEE SCALEBAR @
0 60' 120'
(™ s ™= s
STATION
ENTRY (SUNDBERG/EAST
SIDE OF RIVER)
w%'bﬂﬁ 10+00 11+00 i 12400 13+00 14+00 15400 16+00 17400 16400 18400 , 20+00 21400 LH?&)
1] R -] | | NE - L L e

2

e = 1
i — - - ! -
— :
\ | bl —— S SO ) N L e (A SR e i | H I A s e (o Ly | .£ | L
2 R el e T S S —— b — e — — —

ELEVATION

ELEVATION
1
H
i
t
1|
I
|
]
o
i
{
[
#’
t

g i
50 - 1 1 H - -
0480 10+00 10450 11400 11450 12+00 12450 13+00 13450 14400 14450 15400 15450 16400 16+50 17400 17450 18+00 18+50 18+00 19+50 20+00 20450 21400 21430
BORE LENGTH = 1,150' FAULT GOUGE
0 [ L
PIPELINE CROSSING - PROFILE
SCALE: SEE SCALEBAR (VERTICAL EXAGERRATED 4X's) P R E L I M I N ARY
Bar s one nch on | Dewm 1D Designer NS ot HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER D|STR|CT
orginal size shest T : Pt MAD RIVER PIPELINE CROSSING
0 g [‘l Drafing oy Design e
= Check Check Te  PIPELINE
Fease of D t \ H Proi
This m;'f T::: idess and desins incorporated |\ GHD Inc. M’:g;ef P. KASPARI Date  _J_i_ PLAN AND PROFILE
hereln, es en insirument of professiondl sewvics, is Lhe 718 Third Street Project No. 8411162
oo i Wit ¢ 1 ot Eureka Calffornla 95501 USA T docamert stall ol bo w6ed for OrgalSzs
No. [ Drawn | Approved Date exvran T T 1707 4438326 F 1707 444 8330 W www.ghd.com mm unless signed and sedled for | Scale  AS NOTED ANSID | sheettio c 1 Shest  _ of

Plot Dale: 14 November 2017 - 8:43 AM Ploited By: Nathan Stevens Filename: G\Legacy\ProjecisiC1055 HBMWD\B411 162 HBMWD-BLFG CSD Pipeli Phs 1¥06-CADPI 4 1162 PlanProfile.dwg



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: December 7, 2017

Re: Kieselhorst Easement Agreement, AP 507-430-002
Discussion

The owners of the property located at 5720 West End Road in Arcata, Nick and Chris
Kieselhorst, are in the process of developing their property. The District’s Industrial and
Domestic waterlines transverse this parcel for which we have an existing easement. The
proposed development avoids our pipeline easement except for two relatively small concrete
slabs. One is for a handicap parking space and one is for a trash receptacle. They have
proposed to use the balance of our easement area for parking spaces.

In the past when development has occurred on a parcel for which the District has an original
“floating” pipeline easement, we have negotiated with the property owner to fix our pipeline
easement in exchange for additional setbacks from the easement to be able to access the
pipeline with heavy equipment in the event of maintenance requirements. The Kieselhorst’s
have stated that they are agreeable with keeping our floating easement over their parcel as
their proposed plans allow for access to our pipelines. Staff is in agreement with this.

Therefore, District Counsel has drafted the attached Easement Addendum Agreement to clarify
both party’s understandings and responsibilities.

Recommendation and Action

Staff recommends approval of the attached Easement Addendum Agreement with Nick and
Chris Kieselhorst and requests that you direct the General Manager to consummate and record

the agreement with them.



EASEMENT ADDENDUM AGREEMENT

December 14, 2017

Christopher Kieselhorst and Nicholas Kieselhorst, hereinafter referred to as
“Kieselhorst,” and the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, a California public
entity, hereinafter referred to as “District,” agree as follows:

Kieselhorst are the owners of real property in Humboldt County, California
located at 5720 W. West End Road, Arcata, California, Humboldt County Assessor
Parcel No. 507-430-002. District has a 30-foot wide pipe line easement and other
easement rights related to the Kieselhorst property pursuant to a deeded Grant of Right of
Way from Kieselhort’s predecessor in interest, Frank P. Toste and Maria Toste, granted
July 21, 1961. A copy of that Grant Right of Way is attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit A. A parcel map diagram of the Kieselhorst property, which also depicts the
pipe line location portion of the District’s easement rights, is shown as Parcel 1 on
Exhibit B attached to this Agreement.

Kieselhorst desire to make improvements to and construction on their property.
District desires to accommodate Kieselhorst and at the same time maintain its ability to
maintain, repair and replace as necessary its facilities located in the pipeline easement
area on the Kieselhorst property pursuant to its easement rights. Kieselhorst has applied
to the City of Arcata for permits related to said improvements, designated by the City of
Arcata as Project 178-035-DR2 Kieselhorst.

District will not object to the Kieselhorst project as depicted in the Kieselhorst
proposed site plan, attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C. The encroachments into the
District easement area basically consist of a concrete slab that is part of a disabled access
ramp, a small structure with a concrete foundation and floor, and parking spaces.
Kieselhorst shall not seek any permits for other expansion of its facilities in the easement
area in the future.



SECTION AL PAGENO,_ 3

Kieselhorst will not pave the parking area over the easement, but shall be entitled
to gravel the area. The area may be used for the parking of passenger vehicles and light
trucks, but shall not be used by heavy trucks or other equipment. Kieselhorst shall be
responsible to District for any damage caused to District’s facilities by the weight of
vehicles or equipment. If District needs access to the parking area for routine repairs,
maintenance or replacement, Kieselhorst shall cause the vehicles to be removed for the
time necessary as requested by District. In the event of an emergency, as defined in the
sole discretion of the District, District shall have the right to remove vehicles to a
different location. Kieselhorst will defend, indemnify and hold harmless District for any
and all claims for damage to such vehicles, including but not limited to vehicles owned
by Kieselhorst, its employees or agents, or third parties.

If the District needs the cement slab, small structure, or other property removed
from the pipe line easement area, Kieselhorst shall remove the same upon request by the
District. In the event of an emergency, as defined in the sole discretion of the District,
District shall have the right to remove any such obstructions to gain access to its facilities
located in the pipe line easement area. District shall not be responsible for any damage or
repair or replacement costs to Kieselhorst’s property resulting from such removal.

Kieselhorst confirms and acknowledges the District’s rights pursuant to Exhibit A
to use the Kieselhorst property as reasonably necessary for ingress and egress to the
District’s 30-foot right of way in which its facilities are located, and to use the
Kieselhorst property adjacent to and along the 30-foot right of way area as may be
reasonably necessary for the installation, repair, and replacement of the District’s
facilities located within the 30-foot easement area. These rights apply whether the
District’s requirements arise out of routine repairs, maintenance or replacement or arise
out of the need for emergency repairs.



SECTIONS A€ PAGE NO._ 4__

This Agreement shall be binding on the subsequent owners and other successors in
interest to the Kieselhorst property.

Christopher Kieselhorst

Nicholas Kieselhorst

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

By: John Friedenbach, General Manager



sEcTioN 34f paceNo._ T

Exhibit A

| AP 507-25| -20

B O - L T T be T AR LML ot o v ttte e e - 430 - %
. ol ".

) %

ation of witar i gh }ipe , Ak

“apules under, UpdL-ovar wnd L‘lmg“x 1=nds which thein
inieresl, a.iualod".a thu t;hmiz of Jimbctdl

‘tor uction nn& 3 ; :
utrtar af. Hurthent quarieroll:
'bo!dt Meridin

Baotlnn 1 5 )
nCe Ko;rtb on qmter -#section xne

$hi pes East on t

quurur ot swsid section; J00 . fest; . E
< “thepce South 85 dograes 15 n!nutc. Eu!: 334 tent;

Houth 78 aaekusﬂ 30 tlnutu k1] :08 :ien:'
out;

£ California by

M.BO ncmxus that pnruun copveyed to the Stue (-]
~deed ncm_-ﬁtd 4 1? 18, 1055 in Brx:k 3l5, Page’ n:u, Humboldt County .

e Iocardl "




secTioN JA£ PacENo. (o

. = Granles miry Jurther dabine tha lheotion ol i right el way and y
“Motice of Locohsn” releming to ihis lastnonent and saliing o a } descriplion of to i
of said right of woy ond eczomen - wehich gescription 'may ‘be sal forth by mop ifached to
wid Notlos B copy of pald Holice 1 celiverad ta Geonlor e
Ty Granies sucl kave oll ether rights oad bapebls necosaury d convenient for the Bl en.
{oymant gr ure of the Tights hareln greited, includng bt without limliing tha some 1o, the lree vight
of ingimae and sgress to, VAL, GO, and from amd Jerds, iogother with tha Tight 1o e wach pot-
Lsn of sald Tands adincent 1o and along sa'd right of waoy o3 may La rpamcnably necessary in oon-
saciion with jhe inglollation, Tepatr, ond replocement ol much pipoline or Lines. ; 2
Tha Grenles ghall have (e right 1o erlarge lts pipe or pipes 1o ooy rize Gicniew shall deem
- ~mntessory of desirable, wnd alter the ialtal insialiaten ol pipe or pioss 10 jay, conaliuct, madniain,
‘opercte, repdlr and remove oddifional Jines ol pipe. AT
TO HAVE AND 7O HOLD the estots, rights ol -woy, wcarmenls, Tights, md privileges hereb;
‘eenveyed o paid Grantes, s puccenson ond wssigns, un #lich pipeline ke ccatristed and 8o long
thereadler ©1 o ppeline 1s mnianed theresn, R el
.. Grentor repeesents emd werranta fhot Grontesis the owner in los simple ol the {ands chbave dies-
eibed, subled enly 1o outtanding sncucbrnsal, I ony, Bow on recerd in scid County, end Graml-
or ogrees 1o worment and (oraver defend cll and aingular said might of woy unto the Gronles, il
puccesssrs cnd oulgns, oguine every pereon whomsosvor fowiully calming or fa celm G pema
Pt thereaf. - Y > 2 aed
hie urdersigred ‘Geoptor, and Gremior's puccessore, hairs, 45
4 aiss and prjoy. the waid premised sublect To ‘the permerept righ
groried wid coaveyed: prondsd, however, thet the rantes phall hove .
o cutanid termove il troce. ol yndergrowt soy othar chelructone thal may e
ers with falnattien and use of scid pippling o inea, o fillings end appiloncss EF .
9. The Grantor ahadl nel erect or ‘donsiruct any, bulldings &1 other wiructire, oy
ar. constiuct any ‘yasgrveir or olher Obstruesios h
12 The griund CXwaL OVOT 8@ Hpalin <

cle x 1 4, ferices, Lildings, ‘pﬁrfu
my giise from-daying. aieing, operuilsg
ke gizs ol cntt 'Jn\pi g sechpipsli e p r.'b:ll

{oma ' Or ;kziacrga which ghail b¥ caus
o it agenia o2 otiploysm 1n the ‘couma ‘ol thelr

ranion dirset by meli s Ceamiss.
lifernia :

(ko thls indan
thaty o TopEALE;
eharging e terma {hetec),

1 ey : 3
ke 1o me 12 ba the perscn whote pams
/ud 10 e tha he swec he same.




SECTION J4.€_PAGE NO.__/

i

This ib t0 certdfy thet the dnterest An real properiy
conveyrd by thB deed vr grant vated

— e
” =
Al o e P

10 HUMBOLDT RAY WUNICTIPAL WATEN DISTRICT. n pulatical
subdiviricn ol 1he ﬂln.l(- st Catlsernia. is nervhy accepled
~by the Drantee, Al u.c- Grattui eiabenls 10 Ferorgation
tht.-'l'!:t.-[. Surl accEptenee ned o eonseat Lo v eordalinn :-rle-

‘pursnant-to Resnivtine Ao, 46 of ahpibirectors ol the

HUNBOLDT. DAY MINICIPAL WATER DISTRILT,

Dated Wils o2F < dny of _ﬁﬂf

14270

“RECOADRD AT AZQUIFT OF
N PYRR e L
ig;ﬁﬁﬂngcmlplﬁf}
s 28 4 u2PHI0N

-.l-'ﬂ!i\l.b'l COUUTY RECOADL

Ehlifﬂll"cﬂ. CORDER
",w.;..‘-":}-t('urr :
E FEE 8 0




AL PAGENO.__E

SECTION

g

777 — 39Vd 'SAVIN 1304vd 4O HM0o0g

.nm.u.»m, M ,0F 6T 08 KN

T

SLIAME T 40 2 LIS
N8 80 *3wa8

®{6I ¥IBWIS0
VIKUCAYD ‘elvIE
133ME R HIIWA

%
%
.HT
H3INIGN3  AD
ig
'YizIur 40 S1LiMN ALY 3N RIMIIA

E
. VINYDINYD
WEtEH 'Did NS e NOLLDAaS
~

=PI

e

=3

SIYIV 29 w ¥IUY
c "2R0uvd

O9g ey

w92k 2 g
w15.80.0200

SHIGING - FHIdNT GOOMAEY

SO

FEA7ON Svn 10N

2] {
> /i
e S
» g ®\ iy
Jw L
v |8 \ &
18 8
g J# o]
7
gk see
q SV 1574 s wAmY & Sgef
2 N/ | N3ADHYL & ey
\Ml. / \ 5 g Tap
£ " d
2 | e :
4 j =
;i | &
0 3 %
N i - FILV G| & vIuY ~ )
G € / [y € "3oHve o Y
™ / Iy SEY
y e
: K 54 «n..m 1 3
.m. ?J S % PRIRE DY paduis B6 qum BONS wOn OF X _9/E NS A
D I} 3 2
L 28 (e - 68 stng "vdog
; \Wmﬁ Qo.m. 2 130 10§ £008 2E " IReE 51 pMwhs B0) w0 iz D0 Demy @
- s a,
’ ..Mvn & s \Vo ‘68 P68 "SU0N jeas0g
: \)J\ \Mw > f & # 9 7008 W5 Cigof §7 PRduDed Bngd uid edio o gyg puny O
E iy lhu-é 3
i E
g s ONISD3EM
] §, ks
4 \ M m
ke, I3
g8 ¢ \ - § P2l
i ,\,. m.. S
s & Mg o
/e o
S g 2
i : n.. S3UIT 00°E T w3Ny ¥
'y \ | 5 ¥ TROUYH /
v ;E .
j \ =
I N
§ ‘64 sbod ‘1don uny 0 § N00G 'eLe .
\ 2 oN gBK 18394 RO UMOR 3By BIRg 40 Wreegng & & doy dnbd YRA %
] m_..u < TIPSEIRY [OISI0 KiEnaD poawny iy doy
1\ i .w.arMe&wA ) ‘R0G WOl ‘AU0dwo) iIMT MWD DD M0y j& 1045 v sajed D ALY [&))
- [SE - W X
P [ $ m,.wo\ by, {0 GINS DAY OF Mpasoy Aamo
I oo Y% (BOTWnY bt 3404090990 0 4 4R ‘ISR T f0 MY @ prine (B
i ; o - eIy 1093H)G AUNED ipiedwni ‘Say Alug 'pse
s 100 AT H1oM, OIPImH D IPIOqUNK JO 0N} w2 saptd solons ()
’ \ i “BLB1'GH AN 15 40 BUfLER Padle 56 stcawmny g
4 L
— . s vl u J5C hove ) ;
Q97908 M 0f @1 .60 N 4 fO 50 ot DS s ‘m.m...w A _..uwns ﬁrzﬁ.wxﬂnunﬂ_ = .“nh.mamn.. .us..nu_m R
S310N
m H.- — . Ft— m




£ PAGENO.__9__

4

SECTION

; .":.. SN T — éun.mé....ﬁmmw& A
s N o (3 ov . ARG
qAZ'IY Viesasten ]
evoeoen 8 e 77770 ] e
_irten| Mt sanr B encvsanrn  EESEZREY \ -
e - s b
S Usaw SRS = y B .
o 17 e . . - '
G - : - _
- i} 1]
I e IDTIIITY mpee . ” PR i t '
e ! N
1 4 ' oo ) ' 2edziraic ' 1
ATH . \ ' 1 t
. i | v 4
la unEnﬁa..izt?ﬂm N ) N Y
a A0 433 313 SO DOTYE THE LV NI 26¥ISAHIT THA 24 BRIaV IHE A1) : N i H
¥ L3 § b
L o ln-tung.al.,/“nw 1 WA L oo | WA N
= 1 A3 t
I N = ¥ & , .
o I.a iz L L B -
B O ELI E € A 1 -
) i L '
i3 V ) R = ! H _
P2 m : : St
= = S ] . -
D . .ﬁ
6 AT RGeS L] & ,
i ¥ F 4 N L
= . £00-08L0%
TV [ TS L] N
i~ o L 3 i
— s— T ) AT e L] .
Ry ¥ L *
-4 G IR 1
N S _ e
z R R ' @ *
&
m Q|| T e— 3 @ !
g 2 o #y De THE K oy *
5 ) L .
88 0 T a o .
& m - o @ ¢
£z T !
BeR o
2 R ||~ —canay 5 « @ 120-102008 o %
2 I (e ] ¢ 8
i
m. 3 || o s B . 2
1.# 2 1
[2d B U " “
L)
51t REg— R @ CO0OREGS
mm
it
Lod U Y »

S 1 domav e e v

e s TEEE n
.M e

QEEE VYD AVIRY 1SEXDAUd I8 ZZTLOL

SRNINHY IS guY 3¥NLI3NIWIAY

LT )

B e SO 773 L A

TINGIHIS DNIINVAA

TR

AN L |- 1§ Paar0a)

O Hqlyx3

e

-



SECTION YA€ PAGE NO._\ (D

BACKGROUND INFORMATION



SECTION-) L £, PAGE NO.__{ |

R EST FOR CO TS by November 27, 2017
TO:

_ 1 Arcata Fire Protection District _1 Envircnmental Services Degpartment, City of Arcata
__1 Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria _ 1 Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

_1 Blue Lake Rancheria __1 Public Works Department, City of Arcata
| _1 City of Arcata Building Official _ 1 Wiyot Tribe, Table Bluff Reservation

Packages: 1 = All attachments included

Planner: Burnett, Saskia

City of Arcata - Community
Development Department
736 F Street, Arcata CA 95521

Date: 11/9/2017
Subject: New Industrial building, building remodel and site improvements
Project: 178-035-DR2 Kieselhorst 1

File Number 178-035-DR2
| Assessor Parcel Number Property Address ’
507-430-002 5720 West End Rd.

We request your comments by November 27, 2017 so they can be included in the analysis and staff
report. Although itis preferred to have a written response, if we do not hear from you by this date, we
will assume that the project does conform to your reguirements. Please direct your response toward
both the land use and environmental implications of the project as well as the development conditions
or requirements that should be imposed. If you have any questions concerning this project, please call
Saskia Burnett at (707) 825-2110.

Please return this sheet with your comments. Comments may be faxed to 825-2029 to the
attention of Saskia Burnett; or email at shurnett@cityofarcata.org

ATTACHMENTS:
Project Description & Application Materials
City recorded maps
GIS 2016 Property Report

178-035-DR2 Pape 1 of 2



SECTIONSJA £ PAGENO,_ 1 R

PLEASE USE THE AREA BELOW FOR YOUR COMMENTS (OR ATTACH)

[J Recommend Approval

Recommend Conditional Approval with the following Recommended Conditions of
Approval (or attach):

[J Do Not Recommend Approval - Based on the following (or attach)
]

1c, 7, ./ 4 - A 7 e =
/A ;i},{t_.;_;//z{‘(/(,{;_j_.%f_‘ {» é'a’;wis/ﬁ,z ARG A / r_;f.’z’ //

Signature Date

178-035-DR2 Page 2 of 2



SECTION S AL PAGENO.__1 3

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 EssEx 707-822-2918

FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EmaAIL @
Website:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOOQ, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR

MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER November 24, 2017
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

Saskia Burnett

City of Arcata

Community Development Department
736 F Street

Arcata, CA 95521

RE: Project: 178-035-DR2 Kieselhorst
Assessor Parcel Number: 507-430-002
Address: 5720 West End Road

Dear Ms. Bumnett,

Our District respectfully submits the following information for consideration in regards to the above
referenced project. Our District has a major water transmission line with corresponding easements across
the parcel 507-430-002. Our District has a right of way over the subject parcel.

Our District is not opposed to development, but would like to raise some issues for your consideration
when developments are proposed in the vicinity of major transmission size water lines. Our interest
generally in this area involves access to our pipeline for maintenance and repairs and concerns for
structures and/or landscaping that could inhibit our existing rights in these regards. As such we are
concerned with encroached development that may either inhibit our operations or be in the area of an
emergency repair response. A break in the 51 inch large water transmission line would likely result in a
large area of flooding and severe soil erosion in and around the vicinity of a break. Therefore, any
development that could be impacted by such should be given thorough and prudent consideration.

We plan to continue to access our pipeline through this property.

Our District is currently in negotiations with the property owners to reach an agreement regarding the
encroachment proposed over our easement. Although these negotiations are progressing, we have not
reached a final written agreement and therefore can only provide a Recommended Conditional Approval

pending a signed agreement between the Property Owner and our District.

Respectﬁllly R

} [Lt/l-r_’{,/{ /J’(’/

/' John Fri€denbach
General Manager



SECTION AL PAGE NO._1 4

i l T

Project: Proposed new 3-story industrial building, exterior modifications and remodel to the existing
shop building, outdoor lighting, accessory trash/recycling structure, and site improvements
that include off-street parking and paving, bicycle parking, pedestrian walkways,
landscaping,and trash/recycling facilities. A new cannabis extraction facility is proposed to
occupy the property. The property is zoned Industrial Limited, and is located in Area 1 of the
Medical Marijuana Innovation Zone. Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District's water pipeline
and an adjacent railroad exists along the east property line.

Application Type: Design Review (B) Large (DR2)

Assessor Parcel Number | 507.430-002 5720 West End Rd., Arcata, CA 95521
(APN) and Location:

Location Information: The property is located in the Aldergrove-West End Road Industrial area in
northern Arcata.

File Number: 178-035-DR2
Zoning: 507-430-002 (5720 West End Rd.): Industrial Limited (I-L)
Coastal Status:  507-430-002 (5720 West End Rd.): Inland

Environmental: A Categorical Exemption is proposed pursuant to Section 15332 Class 32 of the
Callifornia Environmental Quality Act Guidelines.

Special Considerations:
| 507-430-002: 5720 WEST END RD. (I-L)

Consideration Regulation_ |
Liquefaction: Moderate Liquifaction 9.28.050

|
Matthew's Dam flood plain 9.28.050

Redevelopment zone I




SECTION -TA.€ PAGENO.__ 1S

200 - 08¥ - LOG'N'dY

12656 ¥2 ‘VIVIRY aY0d ON3 JSaM 0aLE

INIWIAOAdNI INVYNZL
dNInH

BISSE YD YAVIUY 1892X0§°0'd 1629°C20L0L

ONINNY1d dNY 3dMLIILIHIAY

B S
N .y
’ NOUYIOT 133r0%d _.

L ’ /

Sl
NOLLINALENGS ﬁ/
204 LON e
- XTNO M3 e
NOIS30 %04 oy -
4YIW ALINIDIA

NI TWIAN - SHOUVATTI| JGTV|
Aigvd 2ONIGW P
. 4
MQ — °< V'OV 123HE ‘WY1 al6 336 ANV ONIATNG WLIN - SNV §001S A360d0NA| 3dEDY| Euuﬂ_atunn &x_ b%" ﬁﬁuasmu uﬂnunnu
Wooysfpacqugeriaes vi3 P SNV 4001 038040Na| 302ZV| )
s3v) T ONITUII 20HG - GV JO0T: Q2G040 WY, (LN ePaaE s ot [r—
16856 ¥ VaFana 48vaLee = g1 TR GNOLVAZTE ¥ 8NV'1d ONLLGDA| 34T 1Y | {aanouIaNOINN} $801D 48 28"t OO GHA  AUTIOVE NOUIYLG
E Eu:ruuuwﬁ:um_.nwuhon e pand e (TVUNI0I63Y @ 4402) 14 01 AV N¥1d LIVISANYT 03€040NA AAIZY| (ONLEDE) 282 LHEIIH ONIGTING
ok Uazws) 3ais NV 36 03604084| AaLLY| (onusua) L (aacosou) £ 6313019 ONIGTING
(TVUNIBIGI & L402) 14 01 (S0 ae Laane Tuu sovov] WanLALHONY
ASAOHTISIN SR LIVINDT o W [aaNOWaNG)) G50AD 46 00a°0L Avial
298Y-GYG-20Z ANDHA k FU| L3N a (G3NOWIANDD) 880D 46 O¥S'Y 1400 ANGIZO {1230003u)
12996 V2 VI¥IuY N {0INOWIAN?) 66038 020 001 Loud Pt
SXUOM IWITH IAISNON {EHi0viEv?) 28 Easan D
1G0HTII XN % 61AHD 7 4
XN IRVIEV TSI anon r— X2ANI ONIMVEa T WD
o OUVAIIENOD YT
— - “3NOZ ONINIINDD VZVid {90 299) 14 dN0YO WRLSNAN! AJOLIVA AUVZYH Aavaaon BNIATNE TPIEW «
WY3L 153rodd ' oz NOULVAONNL AHY Y Y ( } -4 no: NI ANDLIVA QNVZYH FAVIE00W
TV IROEIVESS «
10 ORIGHOH 304 S53BHOH (90€ 242} (-4 aNDAY WTLGNA! LIV-
INON DAVAANYT TYHIOLSIH I? 3 JADIOVA VIV T
no LIRILGIA ANV 4noue e ‘ b |
EENCZ ONHIGNT3 ROUVIAREVTS AIRVINTa0 oRY 360 -
0o VY aNa A00HIpRHotN
I— o, “auveNnod 2 B3 A0 TAVD 30 0L G2V o
L] N1 YA INSWAOT3A30T . ANY HUM 3INYTLINGD 304 3 19I9ND4638 30 LON 11YHP GANVIINGNOD
=] o . ANGZ X0, OTUTTINGLLG 'G:A 2AL V-3 dn0¥D THITTTWIIN » | 43y, G LIZUHHY FHL JOLVAZAO SOIGNY KINMG THI 40 ALTTIGIGNOLGE 3L b
NI ANVANTIOR SEIANIE Hyaan B . UV SININTUNDIN IGOHL GLNTV T O 3HAUTS MO ALV 3HL 40 IINYNLINIVI o
- amon e drAZUAL U3 ANY SNOLYA340 7 0L JRUV 1Y BINSNIUINDZS NIVINO? GIINYNKTHO
GM3H, X s ¥ ¥ JAIHN 'L0N
m HOUIVANDIT 2LVU300H NoLv4NDn GTATTAHIS 64 3481 19 0D TG » 20°HOUVINGTS '§3000 EHIO ANV A0 RAGHV,THE d AN
0 ANCZ 0108 LSINDTY N
o +ANOZ LIV 30 58 NIHLM “AAS NOUIMUENOD 21 L3vd V2 T1UIL 3003 SEIVONYLS dIINTITITa VINIOAIIY3 L2 o |
- AHOMMIN IHL 31YAONNODDY 0L a3ddy wﬂwus:»ﬁwﬁuww oN “GONY1LIM SMISN U Lavd 'vZ T1UL (NIZN0Y)) 3002 Sdxvanvas oNITING Nazdo «_z.su_._ﬁ Qwze
n uv vl 4001 H N 01 13¥4 52 2140 '3002 ONIATND ONLSDA VINIOIITY 9102 ¢
0 T ONANG VIIN LI0S S TN Y S 241,01 0300V 30 T oY . Aonvrad) oy 8 L3V V2 2U1L(249) 3403 3413 VINSOAWS @102
Nolav IYNNY2 AN V "SNIHOL ONY SN00LE3 MIN 40 NOLLIdaY -} WYIDUSMINDD - TYRLLGNANI (03504024} 2-#F  DHOIZH ONIOTING 8 13Vd ‘¥ T1LIL 4009 A9IND VINIOHYS 9102 e
H ZHL ONIMIINI SIOVAS AOIIAIN IRGS 0 THONIA ¥ ¥ 13131 GNOIES MIN (11) cln - TYRLLENANE TERG? (03504004} 8 630016 ONIOTNS 9 LV ‘2 JULL (2d3) 3003 ONKNATI VINIOSITYS D102
¥ 30NN SINSWAAOUNI JOIALNI SONIALG ZHL NO DNIAIS ¥ ‘53000 ‘SMOANW ¥ 13V V2 31411 {510} 3003 TVOINVHIIN VINIOAI TV 8102
— — — MIAN SIANINI ONITING dOHS ONUSIXA 2HL OL LNIWATLIRE INVHIL ¥ TR 650U9 36 ATEL “IVADL €13V ¥ 30 (939) 3002 TYIUIIITA VINIOSI VS 8102
VIV INIAITA MHEVALY O ¥1'GYTVAIAIE ¥ DNV (QINDLLANOONN) S80US 46 ¥OR'Y 74007 ddiHL TRISINNIOA T Lavd vz 31U (263) 3000 ONITING VINIOHI TV 9107 «
—-—.— SININAAQLINI 216 “ALIS GUY.A ADHE SNLLEDA NV NI SOHIATING ONUERC 12068 ¥2 'VIvIuY (a3INOIUONOD) G600 45 ¥OR'y  TWOOTAANGIIS (FuNUNJ /03E040N) Lava 5 S, 3000 TALVALGINHOY VINBOI V3 6107+
OL SANTNIAOULAI 'S SONIAUNE TN ¥ MIN 40 SLSISNOT LIINGA SIHL avod ON3 16IM 0ZS T55IRAGY DA VI {03NOILIANDD) 6904E 48 vOB'y 0074 1533 IOHIBUNG LI WIVIAY 4 EL
— ¢
zo_t_uummn ._bm_..oum ONINOZ /NOILYWAO-ANI L2Arodd A3NNILNOD ‘MAIATY 202 MIAIATY mnoo
_ JR13N0SI 3Us
| P
W Ak NG TANLIINTE ONILSDA

A3(qUIe]) L1-90-T1 paalanay

PP a———



g

o=

e
T e o ume e [
. mowvy ] [ — NVI4 TS 4350404d %
ﬁ V < 1001 ov o9 o a —
. TS MM
= Jary o we—] - —
L . S o —] _ i | = 3
(O] [Fevrv——— I | 1 -
= . -
o o [revy— X [ 1 -
° owrwassnn ] ] _ ! =
0 ll\lll.ll.l\ll =
— B PN ; e s
I R @ T Y r— ] : - \\..H\\.\\\\\ ——1
N H—— i -ll\l.llllu\ ] .
A o ] B A : 1
P, Ty —— 30 LaRiO -—-- | ﬁ\\l\l — | e0-05ri0e 0000206
TV ALY B A — ! L]
=) L ey e— sionsers 1 ¥ |
TR S WA ESE— ! _ _
O o —— EE
= Bt s
T TETIOITVR TNV IS {
[&) |
| 26N D440 ALLLNIEL
“ “ “ AA | )| NOUSMISNOZ S30NN BN

$00vErL00 2000600 waosn-08

“BOJITU ONINNY 1A YLYTRY 40 AL 3L 40 NOLIRIGI
3HL LY 6] INFNNDS WVIINYHIIW 40 INIWIIYTA ANV GNOLLYIILIG0N oMM THTOR

NVd
4115 d350d03d

| : lﬂ*\‘sei_. owas () Foo0CRLO8
|
\ |
) i
| | |
q |
— 1 | wm 3
i s $ u_ lllllllllllll
o / g S R L _ _ SN De R R A e el
3 Z | > ! ,m g
i _ HER XS _ _
i o
& ! oD
e ™ " ' _~ |1
2Z |= ) ' ! ;AF{JC;SE&%
1 e
o
= I ! ! , 4
Ha N i
m 2N | = « | 14 oNnlvS
= | T2Avao (3}
1S N _
B3 I< @ B ! 1 s ;
N 120-152-£0% b L 3 = ‘
4 ¥ @ |
© | - R
2 3 & i
B w [ !
® [T Ld " = 1
= ] 1 ¢ 4
z ! e I i
| [ ]
N [ ey =i aws o
, ] = | 200-0ch-L08 = i
1 =
1] ™ 1 = ﬁ
; I = s 200-05%-L0a
3 _ I | L - = 1 i
gx | - i _ g
Re 0 TERVIST ISR an | 1 | i
oxm soHo veuTYS i
L 7 e Y ! IR = "
e 49 d2MND3A 6IOVAS ONINIVA F13IHIA 40 208 VA 3 nEERVE Qi | ! ! _rul._
o2 S20VS bl ¥ GAIVLE OC 40 XL | _ i HOWH 1 9% Vo
2= S0VO'OSE I YLVIRY 434 | V101 46 00F N 1
Sm T G375 91 = 48 G0Q / 36 699°C1~ | INI%4I004 4 ag'Y b
© HIN 48 000 3434 § XYW 46 006 33 | [l ' N VSN gL |
@ m > 2+ 21aVE 301 LY 22V u3d NI 7SV ORIV oot | ONIING Tirynd 1
= ﬂ 36N 0N V02V CARUIIG XIOCTITIY _n = ‘o
m 2T ATHADIA JON V'0009Z6 BEIVANWVIE VITIR SRR - -
>» 5 3 LN -~ -
M e Lk =g
2z “40Z1V (I2HE NV14 TAVISANY) 0360403 135 — T~
wz v AN k T~
g “ONLIYISONYT M3N any 663203 s30T m > ~ o
s /A GBAIADAA 36 TIM NOLLY OGS MEN ¥ 5300V DanLvalD ~~ o
g Or—— kAP P N
“GANIVINIVA 30 TICAALIE 31 30 INIT ALIONA r : B -~
3H) ONOTY NOLLVAT3A 1V “T3AY2S HUUK % s ~ -
A34vd 51 36 TN IHL IGONTY 5V 16 IHL —— il o Nouvaon oa500ms
NO HOUYI39TA FOUYT ON AUMZLINS €1 DAL H
zoﬂwuxﬁ%ﬁnu 45 06Y'Y VEHV GLIVIGANVT 3N VI0L DRAVIEATI 2 GSC-OR¥LOR
- ATNO M3ATY T 3005 T BNV TVIVISV W37 Eird ¥
N9I53A 304

NOLLYWHOANI LI3road TYNOLLIAaY
A(WOD) £1-90-TT Patarsy

g g



7

PAGE NO.

SECTION T4

= — siiid=diowrm, | o
 — NYd LIS a350403d .
M & 001 3 o8 or o et
MDNQF( YRiY AYIONY
apave o @ L R N— |
v sovoomw Y P I——
e _
s ll\lluill\.l
i — = \_
e A S pogt
mamyy ———— . o e e
—— UINOI AN AU e — - el P
I oy ————— T — . |l\|\|.\l-. |1|i\|l\|1‘ \@ : T .
TRNWVE IS — e e TR _
i — .
e e E 900-05riod 600-08P-L0C.
A ﬂu\ e —
d “HOLIIMA ONINNY I VAVISY _ —T I
H 40 AL FHL 40 NOUTAISIA 3HL LY Nvld 3dvISANY) 3HL 0) BNOLLYIAIa0M TION i
1 .-(E.—.um—ha,
i) 360 A9t 100 BatisptuL [
m O zﬁﬁgsué ! NOUIMUGNOT HIGNN ofvannd | | | L Y — $00-00r-208 900037205 00009408
— & f 390 IVHUSNENI 03604084
la it 0 e 3 ANGVANQUIVALKS () | 0+ z
n o} - : :
& wmT s P T B | m _ 3
o | & (@ ¢ i
V L e LT e \ﬁrw s m
m |- T "n 7D % a
Z o Jf - " , |
be
g I ~ &
— T IR A 2 o
- | $00-0E-L09
m- TR e X L
e FE \
i
AT saG T 50 ] | _
LI T ¥ * 1 m
=z
i Pod L s | | oo
stz B = . @ i 3 5 . . =n.mu e i I
w V Crm T 1 ) -3 m 1 =‘®M
3 . «
= ¢ | - amanan (T TS N i T
o Q|| e e A ' - bl NG 48 o7e o |
> =4 = 36N TYILINGM (3) -
53 0 ey W i i - oG doHs (3] 1
HE : N |
eI Y i« . g _
wa Y =i e @ I« 101 9HDRVA !
am w [ | vio (3) |
o> =
E ! WETRE R o _
w.w _.M G T— e 120-162-205 § “ m il « ] @a _..#.._.,
2 Q- ressmms S 3 Y s b
) | — - . ot 4 &
] 3Cie .
= il . . ! E BRI
e e " . la 1 = -" - g._
. - 200-0¢v-£0G = a® s (-
Y . s = = ,m«_
L = |
3 T By . " 7! = .nt_ | £00-02¥206
mv = | i \\ |
Raf ) \ |
m.m. M-w R M w f Wl . - | ﬁ
m 3 — |
0 L.
S v
W 7, PYS=Srurs; sy v ININALOOH 46 06 _ |
1 ﬂs E _ IAVIASIN GLUANL |
mM > _ - i oNiaTing Durnd b
ma 7 wE _ ..ﬁ ; s > == =
~ °
i \ Saiea mas an S~
WN ﬂ Wi ek sy 8 T~
H .-
z - ~ -
E B 3 .-
3 o el
§ R
s ™ a g
NOUDNULSNOD o 2 020-00v-L0%
404 LON H
- ATNO M3AZH o S|
Pl e mvemonnes | s woewiod] evil “oans
ATNAIHIS ONIINV | ,

AWOT) L1-90-T1 Paalaoay

[T



NO isuoZ yned Jo 05 UM

ON :spuepsm SMmdsn

Ul :Asepunog sedias uegin

U] :ealy Juswdoljeaspay

SOA 1INOJUOD) ISION

UJ :24njed Weg smaynep

uonoenby 9)e19poly :uondejenbr

BUON :juadolaaaq apisiiiH

O :(£107) U0z POOH ViNZd

INO :UOHIIPSUNC [LISea)

ON (19342 Jo ,SZ uiyim)euoz yeaun

INO :e3uy uoisNPXg [eauobale)

INO :Adepunog U0z |eiseod)

N0 :3U0Z YNy OjoLd/1SINblY

BUON :su0z Buiuiquiod (dS:/dm:) Weans/puesm
ON :auoz Buuigwo) (JS:) uopelapisuo) jeads
ON :suoz Buiuiquo) (gd:) essy ezeld

ON :3uoz Buiuiquo) (ad:) uswdojpasq pauug|d
INO :{¥ON:) ealy uoneaiasuo) poousoqybisy

T BAIV-ZIWW :auoz Buqwo) (ZIWW:) ZIWW
rauoz Buiiquo) (HH:) BuisnoH 104 Ss3RWOH
BUON :auo7z Buiuiqwio) (H:) sHewpueT |eaLolsiH
NQ duoz Buwiquo) (go:) pLIsig Alswear)
Sealy sjulensuo) /splezep /sa3.1nosay jepads

g

\

SECTION=S A€ PAGE NO.

V/N :upld [e1ouss eIROLY - [RISE0D
pajwi - jelgsnpur  tueld jessuas) eleay - pue|ul
9s() pueT uejd jelduan

VIN

((9an10) sping JuswidoEAa@ B 3SN pUET [RISEOD) BIEDIY - [PISR0D
pajw - jewgsnpur

(D) 9poD 8sn pue eledly - puejul

Gujuoz

ON :(£T02/L1/6 J0 Se)oj@dynIe) [RIo1e] Jomss

jurt deyy sjboon
¥'1 {(paandwio) SID) say Ul 9ZIS [90.ied
620579  :(peIndwiod SI9) 3d bs ul dzIS [edtey

374 ‘N9L 9T NOLLD3S :36uey/diysumo) /uonoas
84L0L0'¥CT-

*SpnYBuoT foprinet
spieyaq Ayedoad

$06906°01

€T el snsua) 602 Po[g snsusD
6E0T  :eaty )y Xep
Ty :9po) asn

Jpd* €205 /sdeus/Iossasse/sn eI IplogUINY 03//:dy i)ury depy [904ed JOSSISSY
84850 WOTOZ :uaWniog peploosy
00°0$ :@njeA 1BYI0

00°960°¥ST$ :anjeA Juswoacidw]
00°SzE'0EES  :onjeA pue

T25S6 ‘BIROY Py pul 1S9M M 024§ :diz/Ain/sseIppy aliS
TZSS6 ‘v BIe2IY ‘Y %83.) usuem OTZ 1SS4ppy Bulen
SEIOYIN B \_wcnsm_‘_r_u Jsioyjesay| PuWeN fumQ

£99.L-5vp (L04)
L0956 8D ‘®f3IN3 19943 YIS SZ8
Iossessy Ajunod Jpjoquing
8o esvejd uogRuLOiU} JOUMO jeaied Jof

L10Z/1€/8 ‘8}ep UOjEULIOJUL [9BH

4pd 41 0Z-2-6818pRIRW Jiodes Auadoid/iodas Auodoidreep/bioeieaiejofo L osiby sdpy  JSuogduosap ainquUye jpued

yeau) ——
[821ed | S— HLIYON 1994 “Uosial] soUEgal 5980
a1 pue dew ay) W s1ei? of BNP Aspe Aew Yajym s 9BEWER §& PUE AuE 1o} AJEqEy
NQQ:QM.VINQW Nd¥ SWIRISP ‘NOPBRUCI-QNE pug EeeAcidwe Aue Buipnjau) ‘eay jo A ey ‘dew
S} U] PSUIE)UCO UoRRWIGH B JO AJRINDIR o4y O] S ‘Poegduy Jo 8S aidxe 'SafuRURM
Aiepunog auoZ [ejSEc) o o @ 43 0L SE Y ol Ba3BI ‘S1019RNOS-GNS PuE So3foldura Aue BUpIIOU "ejeasY Jo Ag0 L

*Ruo sesodind jeuoyewisc)u) sof 5| dew spyl

ST, 00 WoS3H0 T IIOET 0 P

910z dIVN ‘010z Buig :Aiabeuw|

ML I

020-1 S¢-20S

{: ! n

s

| foro0epz08 .

jusuwpedaqg

C00-0EY-£0S :19qun)p |3d.ded S,10Ss9ssy - }10day Ayj1adoud



C D o Yproquiny Jo Aunog
£t Bd-Z0G 4 SION S Jossessy

@ 2.l 'sbd 2148 Wy

( £-92 6d €27 Y9 Wd 40 952 W 8£1 4904, “PGNS Yidg [DI4SNDY]
- 961 B 12 M8 W 40 152 Wil 0olg66 .»u.%& 2l %9 Wd 40 82p1 ON Wd
m-&.W o 66 9%8 Wd 0 622 ON Wd 4od
S R
=
&
5 D,
ol
71
i
=
Q
_mlu |||||||||
]
7]
N
$
5
! @ w’n_ﬂu — —_
sl p—

- Ep=206 WRGH ‘LY NOL ‘0L DIS $AMNA0Z/S B $/13NJ0.24S SHOd




A0

3

SECTION

X PAGE NO.

=

BLE! HIBWINIQ

VINEOITYD  ‘wivauy
NIINISNT UAID | LIZAS 'S HILTWM

Ag
VINNOJITYY ‘VAVOMY 30 SLIWIT ALID 3HL NIKLIR

W8 e .H_E..ZWF ‘9l ZO_L-.UM.w
Ny

SHY3AUNE JHIdN3- GOOMAIY

HO4
FEA7TON JdYN TEOHvVE.

_.._E_S._fux
|¢|M\!|\n§ T g P
qwmlmhlum.oz.-ot:_oak

. uDERpGW) Buiuudtd BN AQ ‘BLEI ‘I’ RQUBAON W0 ULOISSIWIOD
Bujuucid ayy A9 psaoaddp som dow (93:0d: S 10) dow GalDjuaL 8y}
o4 WDj8 fgeusy ‘ouaoNoD 40 BiIS ipjeqwan 0. Kunod ‘ojooly jo
Az Byl Jo juswyindeg Buruudlg eyl 0 JoySeng 'QUYNOI) NuwW )

HivOIdii H30 S HOLOIHIA ONINNYG

oo

AunoD yploquing _4apioaay . Aunay
UOSAIDE * DI

J8OMS “E AR4{UM 4O $30nbes By) in ‘spiodey

Anoy  4plogquny .gﬂlvsul&fnom& ‘sdoi [@2ing ]

CI) v i '8l .Egs @..leﬁ iy pag

peiva

) ......n....mmﬁ%i /e
v ’, . "aping jUsWAOlANRQ. PUD B8N EUDT
D 20002 utuSes P 255!,_39_ Y WM SwWiou0y dow SIyL

ALeDIHI1LE3ID SHIINDONI A LID

/8ie1 3oM

139MS B LIOM

© o JO%eys JA0AAED O GUONIPUOD PYF PUD
Dd SnyojUBL P3ACIGUD oul OF BWOOD 1) jouL Al1Ry Kqesey )

‘@L61 2aquedeg uo *UJDZ_J. invd wo senbos syt 1o
<oy, uoy ay o boa syl yim f wy Agning
ploly - UOdR pPaEDq Bt pUD LONIAMNP Aw lapun paspdesd som dow Sy

FALvOIHdILNEFO S EIINIONI

sl

§:FI1) ..SnEtuun o fop Bl _uua _u.o_te _Eu puoy >E umosi

: : P

._o.s.o..su 53 1oy !..2 iunc_soiuu 2 oty -puo wnABUL WY IM

i p “ioh 9 e’ 40} ay a0, e o unow

'ATANIT T INVE - pesnaddo  Ajouosied ‘wioks  pun vu__an_EEeu »-:m
‘oIoND 40 A0S ‘aljand KIDION 01T g anpy

‘sw .2i058q m.hm_ ¥V powe ° Aop X3 Siyb up

10708RNH 30 ALNNOD

55 VINROAMYD uo alvis

LNINIOAITTMONMOV

uajoiedioy oflisaylog o .mzmn.::m HIJWI J00MITY

‘8461 Jaquezeg 4O App ||MI|M| LI I voﬁﬂ.

‘dow Siyl 0 UOHOPIOISS PUD  u)iRscdesd

By} 0f jussuos Aqassy op ‘dow sy &q papMIpqRs Buisq Ajsadoud o3y
Sl U i%RJeiul ol Piools 0 Bunoy Apod o Bueg CpauBiiapun By 40YL

S1INISINd ISIHL AQ- NIW. TV iozvm

LNISNOD S HINMO

I ON
dvin ALINIDIA




PAGE 'N.'O_.f‘i' A

=A%

SECTION;

-

———

RN, bt s el At

s o o el

S133HS T 4O T LIIHS
L. 08 =) 13TY08

8161 NAgW3D30
‘vLvayy

YINNOSIT YO
© WIINIONZ 1AL 1338 '8 ¥ALA
A8

S WINHOSIIVY . 'WAVOUY 40 SLINIT AL BHLT NIHLIMK
W BB 3B 'NSL 'S1 NOLLOIS
N

v I &
coy Iy

7 39Vd 'SV 13J4Vd 40 M0o089
- 867 98¢ o mm
s (56792¢ M ,0r 65 .08 ,. — .jw.n .mx_..u.
/ i
Wk
3 Y 83|
21l F
n & @\ ,luN S3YIv 2971 = VIV w_
o .m.v m. Wo 2 3acidvd /
'z [Rs / /
RN . o
o7 S3UDY 6871 = VAUV S5/
2 ) | I 30dvd 2 ¥z
2 ]
gL/ |
I
/
5
$380V 6471 = VAUV ‘~ 3
‘€ TEDEvVL <
W»
o]

; O
Nega ) s
. e
)

SYIATING  FHIdWNI: QOOMAIY|

FEF7ON VW T3OMV

POIEl 301 Pedwsis Bnjd yum sd|d uoal OF X brE 195 @
. '66 #bDg."$don

BuDg o 9 %00g 89S CIEHE 57 pedwois Boy unu._n LUL] :E_ Py @
66 uo& ‘sdow wosnd

1o 9 4008 985 “ISYE 67 Peduiois Bmd wpm edid uut [¥/g putey  Q
ON3D3T

. mﬁuoam -na!-g.aw.aon mm—.
‘oN dow .oﬂﬂ UO [UMOUB. 60 [ 8D 40 UOSIAPANT D s Gy (end -._:. g
‘spiooay JorSII0 Fiune ipioguns *ive %un .

- 'g06 ¥00g “AbuOWO) 3f4aM3 puo S0 WG J0 40ADE U] saad o aupY @
. "puby. jo iy 198} D2 §pioRy ..58

» .
ihJE
~ e S3UOV9v°E = V3UY
\ | & v "Souvd
[ 13
. Iz
§
\ 2
H
: 3 A
’ i LoV »
1 L © oS
o
Of . o.o._.‘wn. 1poquing ‘o) uoam ‘dpeeg joig ._onm ‘auDA WT P - ..9—2 ‘4 poostiod (§)
j f\ il “8pa030Y 1B15130. KN03 1RI0quInK ‘591 8504 ‘059
i ~ 008 .—u_.__uE Jaiop (odIunp ADZ PIOQUWnH )0 10AD) Ul duIRdid” 1atom (@)
.nN - il ) “861 *C1 AIPF 10 90 Dupupss pioons Ju wlewevey g
" ] |
rm— - T Mp.mpz i "6 abog ston (wnd jo-g ¥90G sbs “icks ‘S pKdums
RIS W g 2 Mo ¢ SBnid yith sadid vor “g/Er punny uUSIMIQ aun 3yl s-Buiolg o sisog )
S3.LON




FINANCIAL



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Fund Balances at November 30, 2017

SECTION _C_Y_Q_@,mcs No.___l__

Total Net Position

Account Fund Balance at Month End AT 11-30-17 AT 11-30-16
U.S. BANK ACCOUNTS
- Commercial Account - General Fund Account 200,921.33 -43,302.76
- Money Market Account (DWR Contract for SRF Loan) @) 298,831.34 297,153.56
- Certificate of Deposit (DWR Contract for SRF Reserve) @ 547,336.94 547,657.05
Subtotal 1,047,089.61 801,507.85
HUMBOLDT COUNTY:
- Investment Account 2,495,732.73 2,855,835.99
- DWFP Reserve (in accordance with Ordinance 16) @ 231,591.12 468,281.60
- MSRA Reserve (Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account) @ 424,334.34 419,377.14
- SRF Loan Payment @ 140,183.02 139,621.38
- ReMat Account @ 57,491.43 0.00
- 1% Tax Account @ 0.00 45,624.05
Subtotal 3,349,332.64 3,928,740.16
L.A.LF. 1,618.88 1,604.99
Cash on Hand 650.00 650.00
TOTAL CASH 4,398,691.13 4,732,503.00
Less: Encumbrances & Reserves (Funds Dedicated for
Specific Purposes and Projects)
RESTRICTED
Municipal Customers PF2 Prior Year Reconciliation (253,451.92) (356,794.61)
1% Tax Account ® 0.00 (45,624.05)
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Ranney Collector 1 & 1A
Rehabilitation 0.00 (946,404.80)
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Collector 1 Pump Motors 0.00 0.00
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - 1MG Domestic Reservoir Roof (323,538.04). 0.00
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Replace Ruth Bunkhouse (403,500.00) (195,000.00)
Muncipal Customer Adv. Chrg - SCADA System Upgrade (105,936.62) 0.00
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Blue Lake/FGCSD River Crossing {100,039.40) 0.00
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Surge Tower Replacement 0.00 0.00
DWR Reserve Fund for SRF Loan @ (547,336.94) (547,657.05)
DWR Contract Payment for SRF Loan for DWFP {Drinking Water
Filtration Plant-PF1 Charges from Munis) @ {298,831.34) {297,153.56)
SUBTOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVES (Net Position) (2,032,634.26) (2,388,634.07)
UNRESTRICTED:
Board Restricted:
Paik-Nicely Development {4,158.00) (4,158.00)
DWFP Reserve @ (231,591.12) (468,281.60)
MSRA Reserve {Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account) @ (424,334.34) (419,377.14)
PG&E REMAT Deposit (27,000.00) (27,000.00)
PG&E REMAT Reserve (County Fund) @ {57,491.43)
nrestri Reserves
SRF Loan Payment @ (140,183.02) (139,621.38)
Municipal Customer Accumulation for Debt Service for US Bank
Ranney & Techite Project Loan Payment 22,080.01 21,913.90
General Fund Reserve (1,503,378.97) (1,307,344.71)
SUBTOTAL UNRESTRICTED RESERVES (Net Position) (2,366,056.87) (2,343,868.93)

(4,398,691.13)

(4,732,503.00)




sEcﬂonja\o" PAGE NC. 9*

Jaquialdas - Apnr 1sauaiul 41y (T)

LV'6S8°TV6C $ %.IC Th0'169°L3 9.°€652¥8Z $ 89'9680L5 S1di303Y V101
0 %L1 000'00€ ¥8'ESt'2S 81'90L'L1 3} JueINSU0D ss3| INNIATY 1VINTY
09°0£8°255C $ %6¢ 188°691°9$ 88°156°9Zv'c $ ¥0'9LESIY  $ SINNIW TV1OL
6L9.9'19 %6€ 9LL'v9l 9£'618'%9 81'886'Z) Div1ianiga
0£'€.5'€9 %0b L11'1S1 62°122'09 99'22L' 1) aso ooygadiald
60°99%'88€ %6€ ov8'se6 25'8vZ'29¢€ pLOLY'0Z aso ITUAATINDIOW
$¢°296'0€ %P €182 92'622'52 0£'G85'E aso V1INV
58°0v9'v8E %68 96t'€26 v'8Z2'09¢ 20'259'69 aso La1ognnH
ZrSLe'syL L %0t 5§90'862'Z £1°659°060'} Zr'ore'e0z W)3dN3 40 ALID
08°068'0r  $ %6E 822'291'L$ 8.86Y'.Sr  § Z£1L0'88 $ V1vOHV 40 ALID
99v9/$ %0 01$ 00°0$ 00°0$ IVRILSNANI TYLOL
99'v9.$ %0 oL 00°0$ 00°0$ LORILSIQ HOFHVH / TVI¥LSNANI
S1dI303d LOVHLINOD 3TVSTTOHM|
I2YITY8E  $ %¥T 1S1°125°1$ 70'88L°89¢ § 9p'plg'ee $ 11a3¥2 2 4d Iv.LOL
50 ¥29'GYy %0} 000'G2L 09'920'7. 000 SIXVL %l
SLdI303Y XV1|
SE'86¥'69L  $ %6E 000'¥E¥$ 20869'69L  $ 1858/ $ SINNIAIY Tv¥INTD TYLOLENS
SL6PEYL $ %EP 00005 0v'295°12$ Gv'681'Z$ (39vd LX3N 33S) SNOINVTIZOSIN
09°Cr6'LE %G1 000'26} 81°228'sz Zr'zl9's LYY 13N STTVS ¥IMOd
06'6.8'201 %E9 000521 L0'EZL LLL 000 SNOILVYIdO 2 "INIVIN HOd LOVMINOD dS0O4
01'6ZE'G) %89 000'ZL$ £7'08L'8 00°0 1STHIINI
SINNIATY TvYINTD
ISLYL'EOL  § %0b LSL'ZLES Zreor'vel  § 65'910'92 $ SIVS ¥ILVM TIVL3N T¥1018NS
Lg'LvL'e9l  $ %0r 151'ZLES Zreor'vzl $ 6591092 $ STIVS ¥ILVM TIVLIY
(z4d VIA SHIWOLSND OL G3INAUNLIY) SLHIFOIN SNOINVTIIOSIN]
OL-08-}} LV 13sang 139ang 2108 1L LY S1di303y
V1OL AlA 40 % TVLOL Q1A YIGWIAON

(%L1 - HLNOW S) £T0Z ‘0€ 4IGWIAON LY
1O141SIQ ¥3LVM TVdIDINNIN AVE LA109NNH



SECTION. I, PAGE NS,_2

MISCELLANEQUS RECEIPTS

NOVEMBER YEAR TO DATE

Administrative

Parking Lot Rent $25.00 $150.00
Employee Telephone 314.72 357.52
Employee Gas 20.83 541.48
Retirees' Reimbursement of Health Insurance Premium 247.08 11,477.43
COBRA Vision Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 265.02 302.88
COBRA Dental Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 931.00 1,147.48
Water Processing Fees 30.00 240.00
Hydrant Rental Deposit 0.00 175.00
Meter Installations 0.00 0.00
Retail Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Mainline Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Right of Way Fees 0.00 0.00
Special Event Liability Insurance 0.00 514.75
ACWA/JPIA Retrospective Premium Adjustment 0.00 0.00
ACWA/JPIA Insurance Claim 0.00 0.00
Dividend Check (Principal Life) 0.00 496.62
Bad Debt Recovery 40.60 81.20
Miscellaneous Payments for Copies &/or Postage Costs 28.20 111.85
Diesel Fuel Tax Refund 0.00 72.80
Park Use Fees 0.00 50.00
Sale of Surplus Equipment 0.00 4,950.00
Reimbursement for District Coffee Mugs 0.00 97.39
Reimbursement for personal charge on District credit card 0.00 70.00
Reimbursement for safety apparel 0.00 38.00
Reimbursement for District Hats 283.00 283.00
Ruth Area
Use of Ruth Cabin 0.00 210.00
RLCSD-Water System Permit Fees 0.00 0.00
Ruth Area Water Use Permit 0.00 100.00
Buffer Strip Right of Way License Fee 0.00 0.00
Ruth Buifer Strip PG&E Right of Way Fees 0.00 100.00
Ruth Sale of Merchantable Timber 0.00 0.00
Ruth Sale of Surplus Gravel 0.00 0.00
Don Bridge Lease 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneous
QOther 0.00 0.00

Total Miscellaneous Receipts $2,185.45 $21,567.40

OTHER RECEIPTS or GRANTS

Prop 84 - Ranney Collector 1 93,755.50 93,755.50
CalEMA Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipeline Crossing 0.00 0.00
Quagga Grant 2015/16 on behalf of RLCSD* 0.00 915.00

* Not included in PF2 Credits. No charges were expended by HBMWD.
Claim for expenditures was submitted by HBMWD on behalf of RLCSD.



-4-

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . /a Tt S L&
AT NOVEMBER 30, 2017 (5 MONTHS - 41.7%) SECTION { )¢ __oj’_, PAGENS.__)
NOVEMBER YTD TOTAL % OF TOTAL
EXPENSES 11/30/2017 BUDGET BUDGET 11/30/2016
PAYROLL:See next page for detail
Total Compensation $201,778.90 $937,773.86 % 2,273,365 41% $868,608.83
Taxes/Benefits 107,156.20 595,487.42 1,468,911 41% 639,701.11
TOTAL PAYROLL $308,935.10 $1,533,261.28 § 3,742,276 1%  $1,508,309.94
SERVICE & SUPPLY
O&M
Engineering $18,558.75 $44,033.50 § 75,000 59% $15,873.25
Maint., Repairs, Supplies 89,059.09 125,494.91 115,000 109% 40,710.27
TRF Maint, Repairs, Supplies 1,995.87 11,214.77 62,000 18% 14,580.96
Lab 1,880.00 5,090.00 13,000 39% 3,084.70
Auto Maintenance 3,041.94 14,221.17 46,000 31% 13,608.35
Radio Maintenance 512.65 2,563.25 10,500 24% 3,291.13
USGS Meter Station 0.00 .00 7,800 0% 0.00
Ruth Lake License 0.00 1,500.00 1,500 100% 1,500.00
ARG
Accounting Services 0.00 1,657.50 $§ 25,000 6% 7,556.03
Legal 0.00 449.50 28,000 2% 2,287.93
Professional Services 0.00 6,836.68 20,000 34% 1,737.34
Insurance 0.00 60,560.75 105,000 58% 55,980.50
Telephone/internst 5,240.75 24,984.39 51,000 49% 19,743.98
Office Building Maintenance 1,494.50 9,134.88 18,500 49% 6,285.97
Office Expense 4,298.18 19,615.16 54,000 36% 27,896.46
Travel & Conference 722.87 3.557.60 22,000 16% 3,976.67
Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 14,989.78 11,300 133% 14,629.40
CSDA Dues 2,851.00 8,039.00 5,200 155% 0.00
Technical Training 602.05 1,112.05 14,500 8% 3,452.98
General Manager Training 0.00 917.08 §,000 18% 0.00
Safety Apparel 0.00 0.00 3,000 0% 0.00
County Tax Fee 0.00 0.00 21,000 0% 0.00
County Property Taxes 0.00 53.60 1,100 5% 53.60
LAFCO 0.00 0.00 7,000 0% 0.00
Regulatory Agency Fees 38,977.64 46,310.44 76,000 61% 46,962.67
Ruth Lake Programs 0.00 0.00 5,000 0% 0.00
Miscellaneous 2,908.08 6,184.14 11,500 54% 3,196.96
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES W/OUT POWER $173,153.37 $410,131.58 $814,900 50% $286,409.15
POWER
Essex Pacific Gas & Electric $58,089.13 $275,505.85 $285,791.32
Fuet For 2 MW Generator 0.00 0.00 2,513.59
Subtotal Essex Pumping $58,089.13 $275,505.85 $595,803 46% $288,304.91
All Other Pacific Gas & Electric 6,885.06 26,809.74 71,662 37% 27,336.18
POWER EXPENSE SUBTOTAL $64,974.19 $302,315.59 $667,465 45% $315,641.07
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES WITH POWER $238,127.56 $712,447.17 $1,482,365.00 48% $602,050.22
PROJECTS, FIXED ASSETS
& CONSULTING SERVICES $95,520.94 $1,285,143.19 $7,563,490.00 17% $1.258,016.59
TOTAL OPERATING $642,583.60 $3,530,851.64 $12,788,131.00 28% $3,369,376.75
DEBT SERVICE - SRF LOAN (1) $0.00 $0.00 $547,337.00 0% $0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $642,583.60 $3,530,851.64 $13,335,468.00 26%  $3,369,376.75
DEBT SERVICE - US Bank $0.00 $81,094.05 $162,200.00 50% $81,094.05




——ea

O oo9rzzvee wses LVELE'99S L= BHOLL69V - %E 66 90'S61°11E-  0Ol'SE6'BOE- awoduj AleuipiQ 19N
O o09zTrLE %8ES LFELG'99S'L  bHIIL69Y ]  %EG6 90°'S61°11E 01°SE6'80E asuadx3 2101
: “M 00'9/22Tvl'E  %BE6 LVEL6'99S T bHOLL'69% |  %E66 90'S61°LLE 01'SE€6'80€ "'N38 3IA0TIWI 3 STRIVTIVS [210]
W.d 00°Z1¥'ESE"L %EZOl  SLH0869S 19°681°€85 %Z'001 SL€06901 0Z'951°201 SLI4INTE JIAOTdNI - 851 18301
i —— - S—
Ali 00'596'88 %0'65 SL6v6TH Ly LbE'ST %ES6 SLZES'] 611941 s;auag JUIO - 'g 3 18101
”Vw ' o080 %0°101 616bb SSESH %E98 £8'68 SS11L dv3 99foidwz - z/1
€ 00slELl %0°+6 95417, 664829 %656 Z6Zhbl b9ESE’l 1 Apgesig wis1-buo - g9}
5 oozisoz %E'1S 00'98Z'S€E £8'801°81 %00 000 000 "suj *dWIoD SIOM - 61
r&_ s|RURg SPYIO - g 3
0005299+ %668 61614561 SOb9L YL %S°Z01 £8'568'8€ 5908865 SI2UDG JUSWRAINSY - °g T [E10L
0005 1°9c %168 61622181 S0V96°191 %701 £9'SHE9E 59°0£Z'LE sasuadx3 Sy3d - eyl
00°009°0€ %001 00052Z1 00°008°Z1 %6€01 00'055°Z 000597 “NQUILOD PISIA LS - ¥91
Slijsuag JusWailay - g '3
00ZL5°L %2501 00°'SS1°E 8YbEEE %1°ZS 0019 06'8Z€ UOISIA - g ]
00'94+0% %816 0525891 S8ZLH'S1 %S1S 0S0LEE SSvEL’L lewaq--g 3
00'489°6¥ £ %9911 LE'89EZIE Z8°0L7'+9€ %0201 LYELY'T 1670SL'E9 41 9 [e2Ipa - ‘g3
SLI4INTE 3TAOTIINT - 85
00'658'88€°Z %688 ZL801°L66 £8'925'988 %886 LE 162407 06'8LL°10Z ISNIdXT TIOYAVd - 00 [BIC0L
00 LEL'LLI %598 [8°1S0bL Y0'9€0'F9 %926 655221 99°5E°p1 ~uadx3 xeL y/4 »okodw3 - 0zz
002241122 %168 S8'0S0°EZ6 6106228 %686 71595681 YZ'E0b'L81 sabe/m 3 saueles - | | (2101
00°0S1°€ %0001 0SZIE'] 05ZIE] %0001 05792 05292 5394 [BUEISIAS - 60
00°050°9Z %048 6145801 00'0Z1°6 %LEL £80/1Z 00°009'1 uonesuadwo? 1019314 - 80
0000071 %0'8L 00°000°S 9€°668'E %65 00°000°1 0885/ [enUSISHIG WIS - 0
000001 | %Z'08 00°000'% 26'L0Z°E %Z b6 00°00Z°1 0 0EL’] Aepyor-sabem - 50
00°000°06 %098 00°005°LE R L yara %E9L 00°005°L £V1ZL°S Kapuers-sabep - 10
0000042 %Z 011 00°00%°1 | 69'295°Z1 %L ZEL 00°008°1 8/°88€°Z awmaAQ-sabe - €0
00°009°€S %606 99'910°€Z S9'€£6'07 %EL6 69857 80'+Z 1% swn-ued-sabe - Zo
00'226'166° %168 05°£96'628 E101Z'6EL %0001 0S€6E'1L1 SZTLIVLLL 1einbay-sabem - 10
sobem 9 sauees. | |
ISNIdX3 TIO¥AVd - 00
SLI4INIF ITAOTING = STRIVTVS
osuadxg
asuadx3z/ewodul Aeuiplo
~png [enuuy  196png 09y 19BpNg aAiA  LLAON-INT  19bpng 40 % 196png L1 AON
£10Z J9QUISAON

sounpuadxy mausg saAoidw g » Arejes

12u3sIQ 1912 [edpdDiuniy Aeg 3pjoquiny



oly _

N

SECTIONZ_E_O_J_. PAGE

000

OIpAH YInY ~ 85

UoDASIUIWPY — 9G

SuonDI3dE % IUDUIIUIDW — 1S

00°0

QUWIIDALL 12IPM - £9

AIINISS 120)SN) — §G

Su0/3p43dQ ' IUDUUIDW HY1 ~ JY 1S

josquo) » burdwing - zg

0070 0070 00°0 00°0 000
BL'88E'2 GZ LG 0g"oLe I1°€T S°0 P LYT € 897 L6T'T GL'FC LETTT9 Tz BO"6F T
8L°88¢'Z SzZ'LS og oLE 11°€T S0 Per Lyt € 89°L6T'T GL'¥E LETTTO 1e 80°6¥ T
BL™88E’'T GZ LS 0€°0LE TT°€T S°0 ¥ZTLPT ' € 89°L6T'T &L ¥ LE"TTY x4 80°6¥% T
8L°88E'2Z GZ'LS 0€70LE T1°€T S0 verLvT € 89°L6T'T GL"PT LETTY 12 80°6% T
(T AON SINOH LT 40N sanoy LT AON sanoy LT AON SIANOH LT AON sanoy LT AON SANOH LT AON SInoy
TEIOL 95 ¥S €9 4] TS dLYS

yiny - 1s

SUOTINYTIIUOD pur saxe] Islkordug
Aeg 3oN
Aeg ssoin peisn(py
Keg ssouan Teiol

QWTIIDAQ
Ked ssoin
sjuswisnlpy pue sexey ‘sabey sokotduy

LT0Z ISquBAON
Keg awtaa=ap

30TI3ISTA Ioqem TedroTunw Aeg jproquny

LT/S0/2T



SECTION T O~ PAGE NG, +

'SJ9W03sN 3|eSIjOYM 313 03 pagieyd Bujeq aue spafoid paaueuy 353U 104 3IIAISS 1GBP |eNUUE 3YT AjuQ 'SJeBA 0T JoA0 Buidueuy Yyum papuny Afjeried uaaq aaey spaloud Juawade|day
3uljadid auydaL pue £ 4020903 AsuueY BY3 UOIIPPE UJ 'SAINOS JBLYIO AG Papuny 5195[0.d J0 Sunsl| Y3 51 D S1930Jd WSISAS [BLIISNPLY PUE 3 SIS SUINSUOD 3 Jeuoissajold ‘J s1afold [ende)

‘Sy60G5 TS 948 S281eyd Jawolsnd [enoe Ayl ‘06%'€95°2$ 1e pa1a8pnq ale sasnypuadxa s30afoud [e101 Y3 B|IYM

%1 000'299°'Ss$ L8'69V'T6LS S9°660°6ES 'S10310¥d TVLIdVD TV.LOL
%0T 0S£'79T'S$ 00°0TS'9¥SS  PL'T6Y'8S 221vL0L4ns
%001 000°0S 00°000'05 000 sadJey) paoueapy Aq papund T dung - T 10322)|0) 23e|doy
%007 000°0S 00°0000S 000 safiey) peoueapy Aq papung T°T dwingd - T J0108jj07) adejday
%8y 000529 96'T9Y'T0E SCTETL sag.iey) paoueapy Aq papund [ Sunuied 1g JOOY JI0AI958Y Ja1eA 211S8WOg SN T
%S 000°096 v £80°SEk 05°98¢ sa81ey) "ApY 13 JUEIS YINT4 AQ papuny [ 23ue3sissy UoIaNAsuo) 1§ Suipprg ‘vO3) - Juawase day Jamo] a8ins
%E 05.°645°€S 09'096'66% 66'T6V LS sadiey) "ApY 13 s1UID YINIZS 8 ¥8 doid Ag papuny | Buissous Jaaly gsoD4/aye] snig
{4ma) saainos say20 Aq papund s323foid 3
%0 000'9€$ 00°0S 0005 ‘4Ivioians
%0 00S°2 000 000 Wd35AS 93euiel(q 13 qe|S ealy 99e401S 4y
%0 00s°s 000 000 Z @5eyd - BaJY Y20M JYH L
%0 000°€Z$ 00°0$ 00°0$ W1sAG IIURI||PAINS OBPIA Y1
{41MQ) Z 203204 33144 DIA siawolsn) jodpiunin 03 pabioy) spafold g
%89 0SZ'T9ES [8°656'7VZS  T6L09'0ES 'V 1v1018NS
%0 0S4y 000 000 WSAS WBAIND peoy $5300y weq yiny
%0 0002y 000 000 1 95BUd - JuBWade|day Aejay dA11031014 OJPAH yIny
%0 0009 000 000 |2poway 21O uapuuIRdng
%0 0ST'LT 000 000 UIT IPIYIA dseyaLng
%0 0s2°0¢ 000 000 - “T-¥ 104 S9A|EA 3D3UD JO WBwWade|day 7 10193)|0D
%TITT 000°0TT 08'020'7¢T 16'£09°0€ 123png 1wa.1n) Aq papuny 41 dwnd - T J0133}j0) 3de|day
%L8 000'VET SO'8SPITT 000 198png Wwa.aun) Aq papund T'T dwnd - T 10123||0) doejday
%0 0009 000 000 BA|BA J21|9Y 24NSSald JO Juswade|day ‘T 10199)|00
%¥8 0SLL z0' 189 000 BWaIde|dIY JUIOT UoIsuBAX3 13 BARA UONE|OS| ¥ B € dwing ‘T 10393]j0)
%0 0SZ'eS 00'0$ 00'0% apelddn uopeauNWWo) $10393]|0) Asuuey
{4m8a) z 103204 32114 DIA S4aW0ISN) jIy 03 pabioy) spafold Y
139ana 13sang LT0Z/0E/1Y SISNAdX3I
40 % TV10L GtA HIAINIAON _ S123r0dd 1VLIdVD °I|




6. %

M

PAGE

SECTION CY&(E,

%L 0ss'otzs 06°6€EL'STS LE'908'E$ *$133r0Yd SL3SSV Q3XI4 VL0l
%SL 000'9% €0 I8V VS 00°0S g4 1v1019NsS
%L0T 00S'T €9'709'T 000 dwing J34suel) [BINWBY)
%19 00S'v$ 0Ov'848TS 00°0S Aojusau] spied aseds 4y
{41Ma) z 10334 32114 DIA S1aW01sND [DdIIUNNY 01 PaBipy) salfoid ‘g
%S 0S£'v0TS £8°8ST'TTS LE908'ES ‘¥ vio14ans
%0 000'sT 000 000 $103031i(] JO pieog 10} SUIAIDS
%0 000°0€ 000 000 12/3S Ul J1Indwo) exaing spesSdn/aoeiday
%TTT 000°¢ LTETE'S LTETE'E ysaq +a8euel ssauisng adejday
%0 000°c 000 000 Ja1ndwo) azeidsy - exyaung
%0 00S'T 000 000 04pAH Yyiny a3y
%0 0009 000 000 J1d WI3sAS aunoly)
%0 000°€ 000 000 auo.Q seyaing
%0 000 000 000 9JES [|EIUSWUOIIAUT JIXO | UON - JBUED|) SHed
%C6 0SL'y €0°CSEY 000 solpey 3|qeiod Pusig soejdsy
%0 005°0Z 000 000 6 Hun adejday
%0 000°st 000 000 £ 3un aoejday
%58 00S'T TTT82'T 0T'¢c8Y swdinb3 Supalemaq - 921MS JBWOISN)
%0 0SZ'T 000 000 1032313 [RISAl - 9IS JBWOISN)
%0 0sz'e 000 000 saoinag dmjoeg 491ndwo) wialsAg |04u0)
%0 000 000 000 swdinb3 Ajages |eowds|3
%8S 000'% 9¢"I0ET 000 awdinb3 uoiloaloud B4
%0 0sZ'c 000 000 uoeIS YsemaAT PAIUNO [leM
%0 0051 000 000 Syg)s 40y saj1j0g Aueds
%0 057'9% 00°0S 00°0% s19indwo) aaneASIUILPY OMm] doe|day -xa5s3
13sanga 139ang L10Z/0E/1T SASN3dX3 (dmg)} z 101004 3311 DIA S13W03SNJ JIY 03 PaBiny) $10vfoid Y
10% V101 AlA YIGINIAON _ $13SSv a3xid ‘i




A

il
&
T
i
2
&
m %LE 0v0°892 $ €8'T0E'86S 0S°St5'ses :S133r0dd IDNYNILINIVIN TVLOL
Ll
@ %TS 000'2E $ 90°0TZ'9TS 000S g 1vioLlans
%0 0S.LPT 000 000 31BJ|NS WNUIWNJY 31SEM pue PIXCIPAH WNIPOS JO [eACWRY -4y 1
%L6 0S4'9T 90°0TZ'9T 000 T 9s5eyd - sa1jddng 1110119y aAjeA anbiopwi) 441
%0 00sS 00°0S 00°0S IDIALBS J01RIBUIG) - Y|
{41M@) Z 403204 321ig DIA s1aW01sND fodidIuniy 01 pabipy) spaloid g
%SE 0v0'9€T S L1°T60T8S 0S°5¥S'STS ¥ 1violans
%0 00S'2 000 00°0 adid 984eyasig AYd Jieday - cIpAH yiny
%901 000°0S L1'860°€S 0S'SP6'TT Juswanoidw| 13 maiaay Aem||ids yiny
%0 0006 000 00°0 SUOIIEDIHPOIA WIISAS OIpeY Yead s1adld
%29 000°s S¥'CoT'E 000 JojesadQ Jaquii] pasuadr)
%0 ors's 000 000 UBWaleqy Ysnig - ayeT yany
%87 000z 99°SLE'E 000 Jeday yjeydsy
%0 052'€ 000 000 juawade|day an juswdinbl uoponusuc)
%0 0009 000 000 juawaoe|day jutor uoisuedxy uoijels dwng J31s00g eowes
%0 0SLT 000 000 JuBWaIe|daY SMOPUIM 3ued 3(Suls 10 X3553
%0 0008 00°0 000 apesSdn wasAs wuejy aii4 xass3
%0 0052 000 000 Aiojuanul sseag s34 pea
%0 000's 000 000 sieday juied 199|4
%TE 000°0S ' 165°ST 00°009° Jeday Aduagiaw3g ssueusueln
%0 00s9 000 000 UOI193304d JIpOYIe)
%0 0s2'9 000 000 |eAOWIaY 331) pasessiq g piezeH
%0 00S'E 000 000 92IAIDS J01RIBUDY
%EE 00012 [8'€T6'9 000 Wwa1sAg jouo) apnjpu) o3 sajepdn a1emyos 1 poddng jeatuyaa)
%0 0sez'e 000 00°0 1933N gSIH 2oejday
%0 000 000 000 uoileLql|e) MO| JAIDN ULjUIBA]
%0 000% 000 000 3JUBUSUIRIA WISAS 2UIIDIF ANTT
%0 00S°ET 000 000 2oueuuiey auljadid
%0 000Z$ 00°0S 00°0$ uoneiqije) I ¢ 10123)|0D)
139ang 135ang LTI02/0E/TT S3ISN3dX3 {dM8g) z 401204 3d1id DIA SIaWOISN) |iY 0 Pabipy) Y
40 % TVLOL A1A H3IGINIAON _ $1J37104d IONVNILNIVIA I}




o._ 10

P

E

PAG

SECTION SR

%0¢ 05Z'8LE $ LP'626'SLS Tr'690°LTS SAIIAYIS DNILTNSNOD B TYNOISSIA0Hd TVLI0L
%0 0ST'vP 00'0$ 00°0S 3 7v10149ns
%0 000°TT 000 000 S9AIDSY 10141sIA [ 21193 LWRISAS 21sawW0Q g [elIsSNpuU|
%0 000%Z 000 000 SaAIasDY 1I1ISI] [ JUSWISSISSY YBNo|S JSAIY peIA 3ur 88uis walsAs [eusnpu)
%0 0sT's 00°0$ 00°0$ shemiazepn g Sunteog Jo 1daqg vD [aSI1y/1ueln ed8eny

(4M8) sa2unos 1ay10 Aq papung s123foid -

%0 00191 S 000S$ 00°0S 9 1v10.18NsS

%0 00T91S 00°0$ 00°0$ ddueUUIRI WRYSAS BULIONYD
(11Ma) g 101304 3d1id DIA s1aw0lsn) [odiiunil 03 pabipyy spaafoid g

%¥T 000'8TE S LY'626'SLS r'690°'LCS 'V violans
%LE 000's 05°£28'T 05°999°T ASAINS [2UONIAG-55017) JaALY Weg SMAYNEW
%95 000'TT 00°S9T‘9 ST'1SC ASAING SuULIOUOA JUBWINGY LT Weq smaylieln DY3d
%LS 000'TT 0061’9 ST'IST Aanung jlea Aemjjids weg smaynen Jy¥34d
%09 000's STTIS'Y ST'ISC ASMING JUBWINUOIN Weg SMaYLIeN JY3d
%0 00001 000 000 J93u18u3 A1ages weq JayD) JY34
%t 000°€ 00'6ZT 000 (2T ved) mainay Aajes weq DY34/(YINSSa)Ioday Suloluoly g Sduel(jSANS Alajes weq DY
%0 00021 000 000 8unss] Aejay aAaa104d yiny
%LT 000°s 0S'SPE'T 00°500'T Suluue|d $32UN053Y JB1RA
%0 000's 000 000 uoneanpg 2ljgnd
%0v 000°0T SZ'€e0' 000 suonealjddy jueig
%00T 000'C 000002 00'0 wesn Apeay arew) Adueasasuo) [BISEOD JO Juauodiuo)) - wesgoid SuloNuop sung
%1 000°0S 00°00S 000 aoueldwo) Auciein3ay paysialem JaAIY Pe
%0 000zt 000 000 3unsa] Aejay aada10.1d X2553
%16 00001 SLYPT'e SL6ER'T Aanng [eUO1192S-5501) JIATY PEIN X553
%0 0SL'v 000 000 yiny - wWalsAS uollewlojul sanljne4/s1o
%0 000'CT 000 000 WwR1sAS uoeULIO| SR /SID
%0 00S'y 000 000 8unsa] 10 Jswiojsuel )
%L6 00S’'s 00°€£0'S 00°€L0°S Suuiel] 1eiNzeH
%0 000 000 000 Sululel | J91sa1 Mmopioeg
%LE 005°'L 98'€SL'T 000 Sutured] [ediuyaa)
%TL 0s¢'0€ T 019'1e T6'ELE'ST Buiuiel) a1emYyos YavIS/|0Hu0)
%L8 005°2 $1°£0S'9 05°89¢'T uonedyiad/8unss) aues)
%0 000'vk 000 000 suoledIaads 1§ sue|d uoisuedx3 Suip|ing |0J1U0D) X553
%0 0009 000 000 sopessdn 1010 g dwing T 10323}j0)
%0 000's 000 000 uoilen{eA] [B214123]3 '3 JIuUIO)SuRL) T 10123||0D)
%0 000'vzS 00°0$ 00°0$ aur andQ J3qi4 73 JI9MOd punoJasispun g 10193)|0)
131sang i1inang L10Z/0E/TT $3ISN3IdX3 (4M8) z 101204 33144 DIA S13Ui03SN) |y 03 PaBILY) Y
40 % V101 dlA HIGNIAON S$3JNAYIS ONILINSNOD B TYNOISSII0Hd ‘Il




Ll .

Geno,_\|

m
3
n/ﬂ.% %CE 00S'vE6 8€°€90S62$ 00°0$ S10310dd VLIV TVLOL
m %0 000°00% 000TTS 00°0S :3IvioLans
—=|%0 000°00TS 00°0TTS 00°0S sagseyD paouenpy [ Z aseud - apesddn waishs vavds 4L
2 (41Ma) sa2inos 1ay10 Aq papuny s13/0id 3
w
%t 00S'v0/ 8E'ES6'V6TS 00705 2 1v1018nS
%0 005's0v 000 000 sadiey) pasueapy [ asnoyiung yiny oe|day
%86 000°T0€$ 8E'ESE'V6TS 00°0$ sagley) pasuenpy [ z aseyd - spes3dn waisAs vavds
(4Mmg) sasunos 1ay310 Aq papunyg spafoid
%0 0 00°0S 00°0$ ‘"4 jviolans
{41MQ) z 402004 32144 DI siawo3sn) joduny 03 pabiny) spafold g
%0 000'0€T 00°0S 00°0$ 'V 1v1018ns
%0 000'0€ 000 000 J10A1959Y J1SaWOQ BN T MO[3q SAIBA MON
%0 000'00TS 000 00°0$ Juawade|day anjea auljuiey
{4M8g) Z 101204 a311d DIA SIaWOISN) [IY 03 PaBIDYD 'Y
l139ang 139ang L10Z/0€/TT SISNIIX3 _ S103royud 1v1iidvd ‘i
40 % V104 AlA HIBNIAON L1/9T0T INOYd S123r0dd HINO-AYUYD
%0 00°0S2’LL 00°0$ 00°0$ :S1031f0dd WILSAS IVIHLISNANI TYLOL
%0 000'79 00°0S 00'0S 2 violans
%0 000¥9$ 00°0S 00°0$ Juswaeuey UORONIISUOD 1@ Suipplg ‘sJads ‘Sunjuled JI0AIBSIY [BLISNPU)
(3m8a) sasinos 1ay310 Aq papund spafoid )
%0 0 00°0S 0005 ‘4 1violans
(41MQ) Z 101204 3d14g DI siawoISN) [odiunyy 03 pabioy) s123fold ‘g
%0 0SZ'eT 00°0$ 00°0S 'V 1v10L18NS
%0 0SZ'ETS 00°0S 00°0% SYIUO MO|4-moT Buling (9 uonels dwnd) uonieis dwng [ersnpul 01 Alddns Jaiep uleuleln; -
1395ang 139ang LT0Z/0E/1T SISNIdX3 {4M8) € 101504 32114 DIA SI12WOISN) JfY 0} pabipy) Y|
40 % 1VLOL QLA HIGWIAON — S103rodd IWILSAS TYRILSNANI “Al




PAGE NG._|. &

SECTION A0,

|%ze StL'88E'TS 18'695€vts 02°620°L8$ {#ueg sn) 221495 3920 Sulpn|aXB S19WOISN) 03 padiey) 12304 199104d Z4d|
_xvﬂ SYL'vLT9S 8EELS'TV8S L 16t'8S (s3ns3say/sa84ey) PRJUBAPY/SUBDT/SIURID) SBDIN0S J3YIQ WO papund s3a(oid wmﬂ_
_xh 06v°€95°LS 6TEVT'SBL'TS ¥6'0TS'S6S IVLOL ANVYD S1J3r0¥d|
_.xﬂm 002296 Z1°20LE0ES 00°0$ TYLOL S1J3r0O¥d YINOAYYVILI/ITOZ _
%0t 002's 11°880°Z$ 00'0% :S103r0dd W3ILSAS TVINLSNANI TVLOL
%0 0 00°0$ 00°0$ ‘81vioLans
{41MQ@) Z 101304 33114 bIA s13w03sn) [odpduniy 03 pabipy) s3rafoid g
%0t 00z's 11°880'CS 00'0$ 'V IVLOL8NS
%0t 00¢'ss T1'880°CS 0008 SYIUON MO|4-M07 Suung (9 uonels dwng) uoneis dwind [erisnpul 03 Aiddng Jsiem weurey -
{3m8) Z 103004 22114 DIA SI2WI03SN) [fYY 03 paBIDYD V|
$10310Ud WILSAS TVIHLSNANI Al
%St 00S°L T8°6LE'ES 00°0% SAIIAYIS ONILTIASNOI B TYNOISSIF0Ud 1VLIOL
%0 o] 00°0$ 00°0S ‘d1vioLans
{11M @} z 103914 3311d DIA S12WO3SN) JodIUN 03 pabivy) s3afosd g
%St 0052 T8'6LEES 00°0$ v Iv1018NnS
%St 00S°£S T8'6LE'ES 000$ a1epdn ue|d jenueutd did
{4M8) T 103204 8214d DIA SIDWOISN) [IY 0O PABIDY) Y
SADIAHIAS DNILINSNOD B TYNOISSAI0Ud ‘Il
%1T 000sT Z8°0LT'ES 00'0$ S103r0dd IINVYNILNIVIN TVI0L
%0 0 00'0S 00°0S ‘g iviolLans
{11.MQ) Z 201904 331ig DIA SI2WOISN) [PdIIUNIA 01 pabipy) s135[04d *g
%IT 000°ST 8°0LT'ES 00°0$ 'V 1vlolans
%TT 000°STS 78°0LT'ES 00°0$ 9 pays aun apeisdn/aeday
{4M8) € 1013b4 3311d DA SI3WOISN) [jY 0 PIBIDYY Y
S103r0¥d IDONVNILNIVIA 1
%0 000°s 00°0% 00°0$ S13SSY @3xid V1oL
%0 0 00°0$ 00°0$ ‘8 Iviolans
%0 0 (41/M@) Z 401204 331id DIA siawio3sn) jodpiuniy 03 pabiny) s3ralold *g
%0 000°s 00'0$ 00°0$ 'Y 1YLOLENS
%0 000'SS 0005 00°0$ SOPIYSA 199]4 AAeaH 321AJ9s 0) Jupwdinb3 oilsouSerq 3 |enuey doys aseyaund
(4M8) € 103304 32144 DIA SI2WOFSN) JIY 03 pabipy) s3a2foid Y|
S13SSV @3xid I
ponuniuod s1aalosd 1enohiie)




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTIONI/, PAGE N0, 1D __

12/05/17
November 2017
Memo Amount

101Netlink

Ruth Data Link/Internet -180.00
Total 101Netlink -180.00
Acrison, Inc

TRF chemical pumps maintenance - -292.29
Total Acrison, Inc -292.29
Advanced Security Systems

Eureka office Quarterly Alarm System Monitoring -318.00
Total Advanced Security Systems -318.00
AT&T

Ruth HQ

TRF

Essex office

Eureka office -88.63

Ruth Hydro

Valve Building Samoa

Ruth HQ

TRF -8.04

Essex office -313.89

Eureka office -6.41

Ruth Hydro -371.43

Valve Building Samoa -96.44
Total AT& T -884.84
AT&T

Eureka/Essex Landline -34.93

Arcata/Essex Landline -34.93

Samoa/Essex Landline -234.35

Blue Lake Meter Signal -60.34

Eureka Office Modem -134.16

Eureka Office Alarm -39.63

Samoa Booster Pump -80.13

Valve Building -134.17

Eureka Office -323.41

Essex Office -850.57

TRF -133.89

Ruth Dataline -129.98
Total AT&T -2,190.49
AT&T Advertising Solutions

white page listing -21.00
Total AT&T Advertising Solutions -21.00
Bay Tank Metal Fabrication

replace Collector 1, Pump 1.4 - -14.40
Total Bay Tank Metal Fabrication -14.40
Buckles-Smith

Control Software Training - M. Palmero, P. Jorgensen & L. Ahmad - August... -5,160.00

Control Software Training -M. Palmero, D. Corral, L. Ahmad & R. Chairez - ... -10,360.00
Total Buckles-Smith -15,520.00
California Dept of Tax and Fee Admin

Water Rights Permit #11715 -3,462.72

Water Rights Permit #11714 -7,323.37

Water Rights Permit #18347 ~ -29,191.55
Total California Dept of Tax and Fee Admin -39,977.64
Cascade Fire Equipment

Sales Tax on Invoices 77133 and 77685 -28.0(_)
Total Cascade Fire Equipment -28.00
City of Eureka

Eureka office water/sewer -66.98

Nnem 4



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

12105017 Expenses by Vendor Detail  secrion A%, pack k. _I
November 2017
Memo e _ Amount
Total City of Eureka -66.98
ClickSafety

Hazmat Training -5,073.00
Total ClickSafety -5,073.00
Coastal Business Systems Inc.

Eureka office copy and fax machine -1,053.37
Total Coastal Business Systems Inc. -1,053.37
CSDA

2018 Membership -2,851.00
Total CSDA -2,851.00
Customer Truck Service/Eureka Truck Lines

ship material for spillway repair B -373.00
Total Customer Truck Service/Eureka Truck Lines -373.00
Dave Perkins

auto mileage reimbursement -390.82

auto mileage reimbursement -1_4355
Total Dave Perkins -534.15
David J. Corral

travel advance for Treatment Certification Exam in Redding - -332.06
Total David J. Corral -332.05
Eureka Oxygen

cylinder rental -107.30
Total Eureka Oxygen -107.30
Eureka Readymix

Blue Lake/Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD river crossing -176.71
Total Eureka Readymix -176.71
FEDEX

ship transformer oil sample -9.95

ship high voitage gloves for testing -11.52
Total FEDEX -21.47
Frontier Communications

Ruth HQ -51.17

Ruth Hydro/Ruth Dataline ) -160.33
Total Frontier Communications -211.50
GEIl Consultants, Inc

Ruth Dam Spillway repair ~ -1,476.00
Total GEI Consultants, Inc -1,476.00
GHD

(90532) Blue Lake/Fieldbrook River Crossing ~7,214.00

(90615) Mad River Cross Sections -1,839.75

(90617) 1 MG Reservoir Roof Replacement -713.25

(90355) Ruth Spillway Repair -404.00

(90535) Ruth Dam Crest Monument Survey -251.25

(90515) Ruth Left Abutment Slide Survey -251.25

(90514) Ruth Dam Spillway Wall Survey -251.25

(87682) Collector Mainline Redundancy to TRF -2,194.25

(87551 and 90529) Sheriff's Cove Debris Removal - Storm Damage -11,142.25

(90364) Collector 3 Monitoring well -900.75

(90364) General Engineering - Essex -904.50

(90364) General Engineering - Eureka -1,206.00

(90364) General Engineering -WRP -1,005.00

(90364) General Engineering - Crane Lifting calculations -1,368.50

(90294) Surge Tower Replacement -286.50

(90537) FERC DSSMR Assistance -1,655.50

(90534) General Engineering - Essex -1,005.00

DA n



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detall

SECTION T (-, PAGE 1'7.

|5

o vt

12/05/17
November 2017
Memo Amount

(90534) General Engineering - Eureka -1,206.00
Total GHD -33,799.00
GR Sundberg, Inc

Sheriff's Cove Dredging -84,906.42
Total GR Sundberg, Inc -84,906.42
Hach Company

lab supplies ~ -111.29
Total Hach Company -111.29
Haygor Instrument and Company, Inc

TRF transmitter -650.00

shipping charges for TRF transmitter -110.52
Total Haygor Instrument and Company, Inc -760.52
Hensel Hardware

domestic water reservoir roof repair - -18.63
Total Hensel Hardware -18.63
Hensell Materials

Spillway Repair -0,586.19
Total Hensell Materials -9,586.19
Henwood Associates, Inc

Consultant Services Agreement B -405.47
Total Henwood Associates, Inc -405.47
Hopkins Technical Products, Inc

TRF chemical pump repair -243.37
Total Hopkins Technical Products, Inc -243.37
Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC

Mt Pierce Lease site -262.65
Total Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC -262.65
Humboldt Waste Management Authority

dispose of hazardous materials -159.00

Biue Lake/Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD river crossing - right of way clearing -101.28
Total Humboldt Waste Management Authority -260.28
JTN Energy, LLC

Consultant Services Agreement _ -405.47
Total JTN Energy, LLC -405.47
Ken's Auto Parts

Unit 5 toggle switch -10.72
Total Ken's Auto Parts -10.72
Kernen Construction

TRF sludge bed spoils removal -195.40
Total Kernen Construction -195.40
Lisa Newell

expense reimbursement for safety boots -25.00

expense reimbursement for safety boots -25.00
Total Lisa Newell -50.00
McMaster-Carr Supply

maintenance supplies -86.60
Total McMaster-Carr Supply -86.60
Mendes Supply Company

Eureka office maintenance -65.87

Nama 2



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTION (S0~ PAGE NO._l(p__

12/05/17
November 2017

B o - Memo Amount
Total Mendes Supply Company -65.87
Miller Farms Nursery

Customer service dewatering equipment -483.10

tree maintenance tools - -67.76
Total Miller Farms Nursery -550.86
Mission Linen

maintenance supplies -146.48

Uniform Rental -664.96
Total Mission Linen -811.44
Napa Auto Parts

diesel vehicle maintenance -25.31

vehicle maintenance -54.02

vehicle maintenance Unit 16 -21.46
Total Napa Auto Parts -100.79
Network Management Services

Essential Care Computer Support Service for Eureka office -368.10

Guard-IT Security Service for Eureka office -139.99

Recover-IT Backup Solution -124.99

Domain Management -3.00

Umbrella Security -30.00
Total Network Management Services -666.08
North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc

Eureka office building maintenance -482.00
Total North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc -482.00
North Coast Fabricators

Crane assistance to replace Collector 1 Pump1.4 __-2_9,736.00
Total North Coast Fabricators -29,736.00
North Coast Laboratories

lab tests -1,335.00

Humboldt Bay retail lead and copper sampling -185.00

Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD lead and copper sampling -370.00
Total North Coast Laboratories -1,890.00
Northern California Safety Consortium

membership fee ~ -50.00
Total Northern California Safety Consortium -50.00
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

Eureka Office -585.56

Jackson Ranch Rectifier -18.14

299 Rectifier -91.12

West End Rd. Rectifier -116.74

TRF -5,235.80

Ruth Valve Control -55.80

Ruth Hydro -22.47

Samoa Booster Pump Station -687.79

Samoa Dial Station -22.79

Essex Pumping 10/1/2017 to 10/31/2017 -58,089.13

Ruth Bunkhouse -48.85
Total Pacific Gas & Electric Co. -64,974.19
Pacific Paper Co.

Business Manager ergonomic desk -3,323.27

Eureka office supplies -532.23
Total Pacific Paper Co. -3,855.50
Pacific Water Resources

Replace Collector 1 Pump 1-4 Motor -857.51
Total Pacific Water Resources -857.51

Mamm 4



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
/ P secTIoN_JA(-PacE No._| T

12005/17 Expenses by Vendor Detail
November 2017
Memo - B B Amount

Pierson Building Center

materials for spillway repair -177.02
Total Pierson Building Center -177.02
Pitney Bowes

refill postage meter -500.00
Total Pitney Bowes -500.00
Prescription Spectacle Inserts Int., LLC

Prescription lens for SCBA masks - 4 employees -433.85
Total Prescription Spectacle Inserts Int., LLC -433.85
Recology Arcata

Essex Garbage Service -469.55
Total Recology Arcata -469.55
Recology Humboldt County

Eureka office garbage/recycling service -85.40
Total Recology Humboldt County -85.40
Redwood Electrical Services

Inspect and evaluate Collector 2 Transformer/Install temporary Collector 2 t... - _j3,600‘09
Total Redwood Electrical Services -3,600.00
Renner Petroleum

restock Essex bulk diesel -1,519.82

restock TRF generator diesel -374.37

cardlock fuel - pumping & control -566.87

cardlock fuel - water quality -566.87

cardlock fuel - maintenance -566.87

cardlock fuel - customer service -566.86
Total Renner Petroleum -4,161.66
Ruth Lake C.S.D.

Boat rental to search for illegal water pump B 5_389
Total Ruth Lake C.S.D. -53.80

" Ryan Chairez

expense reimbursement for 2 Employees Retirement Party -176.47
Total Ryan Chairez -176.47
Sequoia Construction Specialties

Spillway Repair - -8,609.34
Total Sequoia Construction Specialties -8,609.34
Seth Stone

expense reimbursement for safety rain boots -131.82
Total Seth Stone -131.82
Sitestar Nationwide Internet

Essex Internet -522(_)
Total Sitestar Nationwide Internet -52.90
Streamline

Website maintenance membership fee - -450.00
Total Streamline -450.00
Sudden Link

TRF internet -105.38

Eureka office internet -204.95

Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD Internet -271.02
Total Sudden Link -581.35

SWRCB-DWOCP
Water Distribution D2 Certification Renewal - Timothy P Farrell -60.00

L TP PN ~



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTION U, PAGE 1. _[

12/05/117
November 2017
Memo B Amount
Water Distribution D4 Certification Renewal - Jasson S. Klingonsmith -105.00
Water Distribution D4 Certification Renewal - Steven A. Marshall -105.00
Total SWRCB-DWOCP -270.00
The Times-Standard
Position Advertisement - Maintenance Mechanic -2,063.02
Total The Times-Standard -2,063.02
Trinity County General Services
Pickett Peak site lease -250.00
Total Trinity County General Services -250.00
Trinity County Solid Waste
Ruth HQ dump fees -3.35
Ruth Hydro dump fees 3 -3.35
Total Trinity County Solid Waste -6.70
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System
Lodging for Rockwell Training 146.08
Board of Directors - Training information -90.00
mailing labels -114.27
CSDA Conference -865.24
copy charge Ruth Dam Constructuion Documents - DSOD -159.72
position advertisement - Maintenance Mechanic -115.00
Employee Appreciation -110.92
replenish General Fund checks -507.76
working lunch - Policy Committee -72.67
Lodging for AWWA Conference 142.37
spillway repair -1,179.18
Unit 15 tail light -128.81
spillway repair -140.77
Total U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System -3,195.89
U.8. Bank Corporate Trust Services
SRF Quarterly Account Maint Fee (July - Sept 2017) -150.00
Total U.S. Bank Corporate Trust Services -150.00
USTI, Inc
Humboldt Bay eBilling Utility Billing System -3.44
Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD eBilling Utility Billing System -17.36
Total USTI, Inc -20.80
Verizon Wireless
General Manager -37.28
Superintendent -119.87
Customer Service -52.61
Operations 2 -0.67
Water Operations Supervisor -33.70
Electrician -14.96
Unit 6 -3.82
Unit 6 -3.82
Assistant Water Operations Supervisor -58.82
Opererations 1 ~ -b22
Total Verizon Wireless -325.77
WBCO Electric Service
Collector 1 Pump 1.4 wiring -65.73
Total WBCO Electric Service -65.73
Wienhoff & Associates inc
Annual Consortium membership - -280.2(?
Total Wienhoff & Associates Inc -280.00
William B. Newell
expense reimbursement for safety boots -174.89
expense reimbursement for safety boots -174.90

PDava



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
¢ > SECTION D), PAGE NO. 14

12/08/17 Expenses by Vendor Detail
November 2017
- - Memo Amount
Total William B. Newell -349.79
William Wardrip
expense reimbursement for safety boots -216.29
Total William Wardrip -216.29

TOTAL -333,522.59

Pama 7



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District SECTION@"‘ FAGE NO"‘L—--

To: Board of Directors

From: Chris Harris

Date: December 14, 2017

Re: Software Upgrade — Utility Billing and Finance
Background

HBMWD has used a combination of stand-alone software for utility billing (USTI, implemented late 80’s) and
bookkeeping/finance (QuickBooks, implemented mid 90’s) for many years. Over the past twenty-plus years,
additional accounting/financial responsibilities and requirements (tracking grant expenditures, increased
regulatory reporting requirements, increased special projects activity, added payroll reporting requirements and
complicated employee benefits) have been layered on a software set-up that reached it’s limitations many years
ago. In order to provide the additional data and detail needed, muititudes of work-arounds have been created.
It is not uncommon for staff to spend hours (or days!) on some processes that should only require one mouse-
click. Since many of these processes have been going on for years, most of the work-arounds are considered
“standard procedures.”

The question has not been “do we need to upgrade our software?” rather it has been “when are we going to
upgrade our software?” The following is a list of current challenges compiled by staff:

Current Software challenges with utility billing (UST1):

e Does not integrate with QuickBooks, requiring manual data entry to post utility billing (UB) activity into
QuickBooks.

® Reporting features are severely limited. Unable to print even simple reports (ie: one including customer
name, phone number, address, and meter number).
o The work-around for this issue is to download and export multiple reports into excel and carefully
combine the data. This is a very time consuming and tedious process.

e Past Due Notices cannot be printed directly out of the software with the appropriate information.
o This work-around again requires multiple reports to be exported into excel, re-organized, and re-
aligned so that the data can be manipulated into printable notices. Again, this is a very time
consuming and inefficient process.

¢ Unable to reprint bills — either current or closing bills. If a customer has lost their bill, we have to provide
the information in a different format.

e Unable to view customer’s previous balance versus payments, only able to view the customer’s current
balance.

o When customers have a question about the history behind their current balance, data must be

exported into excel and reviewed and calculated. This often needs to occur while the customer



sEcTIoN D) FAGE NO,_

P e |

e e

waits on the phone or is standing in the lobby, resulting in disgruntled customers and unnecessary
stress to our employees.

e Customer Support hours end at 3:00pm our time — no 24-hour support
o We have had software “events” after 3:00pm in the past, and have been stuck waiting until the
following morning to resolve them.

¢ Restricted to one database open at a time — currently we have a Humboldt Bay database and a Fieldbrook
database. This will become an even bigger issue if the new Peninsula CSD requests us to process their
billing.
o Currently customers from both Humboldt Bay & Fieldbrook call and come in to the office
simultaneously; staff is constantly required to open/close the databases.

¢ No access to online customer accounts. We cannot assist our customers and guide them around the online
payment portal, because we do not have access.
o There is no work-around for this. We can only sympathize with the customer’s frustration, which
again results in disgruntled customers and unnecessary stress to our employees.

¢ Online payment feature poorly set-up, only allowing for payment of exactly what is owed.
o Often customers want to make a partial payment, pre-pay (if going out of town), or pay a rounded
dollar amount — none of these are possible. We receive complaints about this weekly.

¢ Online payments all go through PayPal, these are part of our monthly transaction fees.

* Online payments do not post to customers’ accounts in the USTI software without being
downloaded/uploaded.

e Program itself not user friendly nor designed for ease of use, requiring too many “clicks” to move between

data screens.
o This creates additional delay when trying to assist a customer on the phone or in person.

Current Software challenges with bookkeeping/finance software (QuickBooks):

e Is not an “auditable” program (very weak audit trail) because anything can be changed or deleted at
anytime with little/no paper-trail.
o The option to “close” periods only causes an error message to appear, notifying the user they
are posting to a “closed” period.

e Based on the ease of changes to the data, mistrust of the data/system is engrained in the staff.
o The work-around is maintaining perpetual 10-key tapes, tallies, and spreadsheets outside the
QuickBooks program to verify data.

e QuickBooks is not designed for government entity financial statements and is limited in the types of
financial reports it can provide.
o The work around is to export and manipulate data outside the program to create Fund Balance
Statements and Project Expense Reports.

e The account number requirements are unstructured, which creates unnecessary challenges when
organizing the chart of accounts.

e QuickBooks is not designed to manage the many projects HBMWD does each year.
o The work-around is to use the “customer” field for the project name.



SECTION %_b.. PAGE NQ.M%*._

* Unable to establish budget for projects, since “customers” do not have budgets.

* Project expenses are enmeshed with regular expenses. For example, one cannot look to the software
program to know how much has been spent on General Engineering because the Engineering Expense
account also includes any project related engineering expenses.

o The work-around is to export the data and manually remove expenses to create accurate
reports.

e Special Projects require wages and benefits to be compiled and calculated by hand and added to the
project at the end of the fiscal year. This takes a combination of staff several weeks to accomplish.

e Payroll requires intense data entry since there is no way to upload information. There is no way to
easily review/verify data entry without reviewing each check individually.

e Direct Deposits for payroll are individually {(manually) entered to US Bank website to avoid additional
per-check fees from QuickBooks.

* Currently unable to cross-train staff for succession plan due to lack of user licenses. Qur version (Pro)

only allows three users. Upgrading to Premiere would aliow for 5 users ($600-$800), but would not
provide any other useful benefits.

Discussion — Staff Support, Timing, Product Selection, Funding Source, and Cost

Staff Support

Earlier this year employees began researching utility billing software options. A packaged combination of utility
billing and finance software would be the most efficient. Consequently, potential vendors were asked to
broaden their scope to include financial software as well. To date, staff at various levels have participated in
different software demonstrations and have reviewed and discussed multiple ideas and options. Since a
software conversion of any kind is not a simple task - there is never an easy or convenient time to accomplish
this process - there must be buy-in from all parties involved. Currently all Eureka office staff are supportive and
on board with moving forward to transition the District onto a modern, updated and more efficient software
system. Staff and employee support is only one of the considerations. Timing, product selection, cost, and
funding source are additional factors to be addressed.

Timin

From start to finish, this endeavor will take many months. Software transitions are incredibly time consuming
and create mass disruption in “business as usual.” Any product the District purchases will not be “out of the
box,” and will need to be configured by the software company for HBMWD. Additionally, all our data must be
converted and verified. The set-up and conversion alone can take 3-4 months. Ideally, the District would not
switch processes in the middle of the fiscal year. A fresh start at the beginning of the fiscal year makes the most
sense. An additional timing concern is several key employees will potentially be retiring within 5-6 years. It is
imperative that we make the transition while we have the valued historical perspective and knowledge of these
key employees. Not only do we need their help to make the switch, but we need their help in reviewing all of
our processes after the switch. Moreover, their participation in rewriting all the new Standard Operating
Procedures is critical.

A go-live date of July 1, 2018 is currently the goal to create the operating efficiencies and reporting capabilities
desired.



SEC‘I'ION__G_Q_:Q FAGE 'S, mq

[T

Product Selection

The demonstrations staff participated in included*:

Asyst/Aptean — This would add additional features to our current utility billing software & add several
other modules for finance and budgeting.

Continental Utility Solutions, Inc. (CUSI) — An all-inclusive utility billing and finance software application,
customizable to specific needs.

Caselle - An all-inclusive utility billing and finance software application, customizable to specific needs.

*Springbrook — Staff made repeated attempts to schedule a demonstration with this company.
Company did not return phone calls nor make any effort to schedule demonstration.

Utility Billing Software - Essential Features (based on employee input)

e Better reporting capabilities on all levels — dramatically reduce or entirely eliminate compiling data
outside program

Customer Support available during our business hours

Better access to customer details and information

Ability to have multiple databases open at once

Improved online accessibility & payment options

Chart A — Utility Billing Features Comparison (by Software)
Utility Billing Asyst/Aptean Cusl Caselle

Improved Reporting

ini ES -V : - i
Capabilities Minimal Y ery Good YES - Extensive

NO — Closes at YES — Closes at

Customer Support Available 3pm 5pm YES - 24/7

Better Access to Customer Info NO YES YES

Multiple Databases Open at NO YES, but awkward YES - seamless - also able to
Once post payments separately
Improved Online Customer NO YES VES

Portal

Other Features:

Service Orders Paper NO Electronic




Finance Software - Essential Features (based on employee input) SECTION J;b I"I-\bt fio)

s n-c——..-

¢ Audit Trail provided within program (with ability to close periods)

e  Ability to create Board Financials within software

e Structured account numbers, ability to report and drill down on different sections of account number
(for example: XXX-XXX-XXXX-XXXXX)

Ability to manage projects as such and track project budgets

Ability to approve and upload timesheets electronically

Ability to process payroll direct deposits within software

Ability to have all office staff use software without software being assigned to individual desktop
computers

Chart B - Finance Features Comparison (by Software)

Finance Asyst CuUsI Caselle
Audit Trail YES YES YES
Board Financials NO NO - Board Financials YES — Board Financials
Increased Reporting YES — Better reporting YES - Extensive reporting
Structured Account VES VES VES
Numbers
Manage Projects/Budgets YES YES YES
I-\.pprove/ Upload NO NO VES
Timesheets
Direct Deposits w/in VES VES VES
software
Staff access w/out being NO4gssigned NO -5 assigned users YES — 5 unassigned users
designated computer users

Other Features:
Can be locked down at a
Different Staff Permission Allin or all out, Can be locked down by detail level to different

Levels no adjustability module (in or out) degrees (ie: no access, read
only, read/write, full access)

Bank Reconciliation NO YES YES

Done externall ]
Y Done internally or

General Budgeting in excel & Done internally
externally
uploaded
L .
miExcel (Proprietary) NO NO ooks up data in program

and brings into spreadsheet.

Caselle Connect - Expanded
online access for processing
& approving timesheets.
Offsite staff also has access
to program

Online access for utility

Online access Same as current
customer only




SECTION _j_;_b_, PAGE MO. La

Funding Source

The first-year financial needs of this project are estimated between $8,000 and $53,000. There are several
options available to consider:

1. Do nothing in the current fiscal year. Include in Project Budget for Fiscal Year 18/19. Implement
conversion during late FY 18/19 or at beginning of FY 19/20. Delays project implementation.

2. Fund project in current fiscal year from General Reserves. The current year funding amount is
available in the General Reserves or the Board Restricted DWFP Reserve or MSRA Reserve.

3. Fund project in current fiscal year from General Reserves and replenish Reserve during Fiscal Year
18/19 by including amount in “Additions To Reserves — Price Factor 4” or as a Project Budget line
item.

4. Fund the project in the current fiscal year through the year end Project Budget re-allocation process.

Due to the timing issues outlined earlier, staff is requesting this project be accelerated and completed within the
current fiscal year. Staff suggests the required funds be supplied by use of General Reserves with the
replenishment of these funds within the FY18/19 budget.

A portion of the software upgrade costs will be shared with Fieldbrook CSD through our arrangement for billing
management services. The amount ultimately shared will require consideration and approval by the FCSD Board
of Directors.

Cost

Staff has found costs vary widely. Increased features definitely attribute to increased over-all cost. However,
after experiencing the product demonstrations, staff believes that much of the higher cost associated with the
more advanced software can be offset by increased productivity by staff at various levels. In addition to the
one-time implementation and training costs, another big factor in cost consideration is the on-going annual
maintenance fee. Maintenance fees are standard and unavoidable (HBMWD pays $2,525 between the two
current programs). Another factor to consider with on-going costs is program version updates. If this is not
included with the annual maintenance fees, this will be an unknown cost in the future.

When reviewing the cost of the utility billing software, it should be noted that some of this burden will be
shared with Fieldbrook (and possibly Peninsula CSD). The allocation to Fieldbrook is calculated three ways.
Items that require duplicate purchases (i.e.: two UB software licenses) are split 50-50, other items are allocated
using the same percentage we do for other charges (74/26), and items that can be individually accounted for
(i.e.: number of UB records transferred) are calculated individually. Rick Hanger has been contacted and is
aware we are considering upgrading our software. He has also been given a rough range of what the cost may
be.

“I believe having the right tools is necessary and not terribly surprised that the cost for a new
system is about triple what we paid for the Quest software. I'm confident that you will carefully
choose the right product. It would be nice to have a product that we could "grow" into - perhaps
purchasing a mid-range product that has the ability to add features as needed.”

--Rick Hanger 11/13/17



SECTION _@_@_, PAGE O, __?

il e

Finally, the last cost factor is the current IT Server configuration. Our current server is scheduled to be replaced
in this year’s project budget. After conferring with our IT consultant, there is only one of the programs that
would function on our current server as configured. Thus, replacement of the server is a precursor to upgrading
the utility billing and financial software.

Please see the following four charts detailing the costs:

Chart C: Summary of Costs Incurred at Other Agencies and Summary of Potential Costs to HBMWD
Chart D: Additional detail for the Asyst/Aptean Software (including Fieldbrook allocations)
Chart E: Additional detail for the CUSI Software (including Fieldbrook allocations)

Chart F: Additional detail for the Caselle Software (including Fieldbrook allocations)

Chart C— Summary of Costs Incurred at Other Agencies
Summary of Potential Costs to HBMWD

Implementation Annual
SUMMARY  Software P . Comments
Costs Maintenance Fee
Struggling with an out
HCSD Springbrook $120,000 (2008) 524'.000/ gt dated version, newer
version upgrade .
version extremely costly
. I~ $11,000/yr - No Considering upgrading
MCSD Corbin Willits Unknown (1995) version upgrade software
On a newer version than
: - $24,000/yr - No
City of Arcata | Springbrook $150,000 (2012) SO IOy ~ HCSD. Many
implementation issues
Ci _ . . e
ty of INCODE $310,000 (2003) $50,.000/yr No Will be upgrao_hng specific
Eureka version upgrade modules in FY18
. New Server not required.
Asyst/Aptean $6,713 3969/yr —No version Does not address current
upgrade e
utility billing issues
HBMWD -
Vi d 1L
CRLT Cusl $21,354 $3,§36/yr o New server required
Software version upgrade
Options
New server required.
$8,778/yr — includes Includes travel/training
% ’
Caselle >44,181 version upgrades expense $6,300 (3 staff, 5
days, Provo, UT)

*Caselle implementation costs include $6,300 travel expense for training (3 staff - 5 days, Provo, UT) at
mandatory training facility. Cost to have local training quoted at $18,000.




ssc*no.@_%ﬁ_, PAGE 115,

Chart D — Asyst/Aptean Additional Detail Regarding Cost

Asyst/Aptean

Software

Utility Billing

Finance/Budgeting

Totals

Total

Implementation

SuERiine ) $395 $6,610 $7,005
Implementation
Less Fieldbrook ($292) $0 ($292)

Maintenance Fees

$81

$948

$1,029

Less Fieldbrook

Total Maintenance
Fees

($60)

$0

($60)

Add’l Training Costs

Training available online only

Server Upgrade

Not required

Grand Total First-Year Costs $7,682

o



secrion W) race 1s.9

L -

Chart E — CUSI Additional Detail Regarding Cost

CUsI Software Utility Billing  Finance/Budgeting Totals
Sesnel, - $7,300 $17,790 $25,090
Implementation
Less Fieldbrook ($3,736) ($3,736)

Total Implementation $3,564 $17,770 $21,354
Maintenance Fees $995 $3,577 $4,572
Less Fieldbrook ($736) ($736)
Old d = d =
Add’l Training Costs Training available online only
Server Upgrade Required

Grand Total First-Year Costs $25,190



secion 0. race 1. /0

Chart F — Caselle Additional Detail Regarding Cost

Caselle Software Utility Billing Finance/Budgeting

Cnelige - $26,470 $31,215 $57,685

Implementation

Less Fieldbrook ($19,804) ($19,804)

Total Implementation $6,666 $31,215 $37,881

Maintenance Fees* $5,324 $7,968 $13,292

Less Fieldbrook ($4,514) ($4,514)

Total Maintenance ¢810 57,968 &8 778

Fees

Add’l Training Costs $6,300
Server Upgrade Required

Grand Total First-Year Costs $52,959

*Caselle maintenance fees include automatic version upgrades are locked in for the first three years and limited
to a 5% increase dfter that. (Typical increases have been 2%). Amount above also includes a 5% discount if paid
annually.




snscm:@_, PAGE NS, ||

After careful consideration, staff recommends upgrading the utility billing and financial software programs with
the Caselle Software product suite during the current fiscal year with initial funding from the General Reserves
and replenishing the Reserve during the FY 18/19 budget unless the project can be funded through the year end
Project Budget Re-allocation process.

Recommendation

The Caselle Software will greatly enhance our financial reporting capabilities, improve operating efficiencies in
accounting, payroll, utility billing and provide better customer service while reducing staff stress. Although this
is the more expensive of the products considered, it offers District staff significantly more options and features
than the several alternate software. Staff anticipates improved productivity at various staff levels throughout
our organization. There are also additional Caselle modules (inventory and purchase orders) that would
potentially be desired in years to come that would provide further operating efficiencies in these areas as well.

Attachments

Pertinent Pages from Quote Packages:
Asyst/Aptean
Continental Utility Solutions (CUSI)
Caselle



SECTIGH _C_Q_b_, FAGE 115, | -

PJ\_—_;‘, Tocty

) ~=AN

WHERE SOFTWARE WORKS

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water

October 26, 2017

L] ’ ] f . ,

lll""""".’.
(R R B B B B B BN B A B B B I R R

"'l"""""‘oo...,.
""'Olooo..,.

.

/ N
1000000000 @000 - e
00000 0 0o0ss N
0000 12000000008 TN
Y. S 2\
| = §g§
$§§§\§
\\§‘\§\
preed AN
e’ ., . _@°2%° R
1, ,o':o‘:';o': =il IEEENE
'0' 0%, . 2029-:" S
00%,00,07:..202":
"." ""':"'-
‘ ' 4 [ ' "'.
4 D‘o'o‘l"a -
’ (4 [ ] [ "","‘v::-
’ ’ e " e, . L.
o 0' o, ...
4 ’ o . ‘.




secrm@_, FcErs |

QUOTATION
2017-98618

Quotation is valid through: November 25, 2017

CUSTOMER CONTACT INFORMATION:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water

828 7th Street

P.O. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95501

United States

PROPOSAL NOTES:

QUOTE DETAILS:

SOFTWARE LICENSE AND MAINTENANCE

Product License Metric| Qty | Maintenance | Maintenance Price Maintenance
Start Date End Date

asyst Accounts Payable Users 2 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 695.00 UsSD 141.67
Date

asyst Bank Drafts Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

asyst Budget Xlence Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

asyst Cash Control Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

asyst General Ledger Users 2 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 695.00 UsSD 141.67
Date

asyst PR to AP Interface Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

asyst Payroll Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 5§95.00 USD 121.28
Date

asyst Project Accounting Users 2 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 695.00 USD 141.67
Date

asyst Report Xlence Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

asyst Service Orders Users 1 Effective |Jun 30, 2018 USD 395.00 USD 80.52
Date

Software Total = USD 5,050.00

Prorated Maintenance Total* = USD 1,029.41

Software License and Maintenance Total* = USD 6,079.41

2017-98618




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Product

Unit

SECTION ;Q_\‘b_. PAGE 1'0. .H_,__

Qty

Price

USTI Pre-Implementation Services (Fixed Fee)

Fixed

1

UsD 1,955.00

Services Total = USD 1,955.00

QUOTE TOTAL

Total* = USD 8,034.41

NOTES:

*The Prorated Maintenance Total is an estimate and will be adjusted based on the actual Maintenance Start Date. Any
such adjustment decreasing the Prorated Maintenance Total will decrease the Software License and Maintenance Total

and the aggregate Total amount stated above.

Payment Terms : Net 30
M&S Billing Frequency : Annually
Applicable taxes not included

A

To request an invoice for this quote, please contact:

Account Manager: Tania Arnett

Billing Entity: United Systems Technology, Inc¢. (lowa)

Phone: +()972-830-3406
Email: Tania.Arnett@aptean.com

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, Licensor has a No Refund policy.
DO NOT PAY FROM THIS QUOTATION.

2017-98618




SECTION __:L%Q paGE 113, é__

- Sales Representative: Rich Dickerson

P
P. 0. Box 1515

Jonesboro, AR 72403

wWww.cusi.com

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC. (870) 336-2209
Quote # rd171027085617

October 27,2017

Sales Agreement

: Humboldt Bay MWD Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn
0 828 Seventh St. (707) 443-5018
office@hbmwd.com

Eureka, CA
95502
== Economic Summary detailed descriptions attached
@ Utility Billing Software $8,295.00
Payment Solutions $0.00
Website Solutions $0.00
CYMA Accounting for Windows $21,367.20
Total $29,662.20
Grand Total $29,662.20
Payment Terms

15 Days From Date of Invoice

Purchaser Authorization
I certify that as the person signing this form | have purchasing authority for Humboldt Bay MWD.

Print Name:

Title:

Authorized Signature Date

Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute Economic Summary Page 10f 8



SECTIO PAGE !

CTION, @)_, FAGE MG, _L‘;/“_
——— o Sales Representative: Rich Dickerson
P. 0. Box 1515
Jonesboro, AR 72403
www.cusi.com

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC. (870) 336-2209
Quote #: rd171027085617

Sales Agreement Crtiberer 200
- Humboldt Bay MWD Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn
“ 828 Seventh St. (707) 443-5018

Eureka, CA office@hbmwd.com
95502

UMS Utility Billing Software
1,000 Service Location Licenses $1.50 $1,500.00
2 Named User Licenses $500.00 $1,000.00

Add-On Interfaces
2 Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) Interface $500.00 $1,000.00

Implementation Services
1 Basic Data Conversion Package for up to 1,000 locations* $1.00 $1,000.00
Includes beginning balance data conversion of customers, locations,

usages, readings, deposits, and meter information.

*Complete data must be provided in a ASCHI, delimited, or SQL format. Data extraction and data cleanup will
be invoiced based upon time and effort at CUSI current services rate. CUSI will invoice client the greater of the
number of service locations provided in this Sales Agreement or the actual number of service locations
converted.

1 CUSI Certified Implementation $1,400.00 $1,400.00
Includes Application Implementation, Installation, Setup, Formatting,
Testing, Transition Support, & Project Management

2 Days of CUSI Certified Training $700.00 $1,400.00
Includes Application & Database Training for All Users as Applicable

Travel expenses will be billed separately.

Annual Technical Support & Maintenance

UMS Annual Technical Support & Maintenance: $995.00
800 Line Voice, Online, Email Support, Client Services Website, Application

Updates

Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute UMS Initial Page 2 of 8



T

CUSI

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

sec‘no:@_@_. FAGE r:"s_\.ﬁ;__

Sales Representative: Rich Dickerson
P. 0. Box 1515

Jonesboro, AR 72403

www.cusi.com

(870) 336-2209

rdl 027085617

Sales Agreement October 27, 2017

J : Humboldt Bay MWD
0 828 Seventh St.
Eureka, CA
95502

Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn
(707) 443-5018
office@hbmwd.com

& Tl Economic Summary
UMS Utility Billing Software
o Implementation Services

Annual Technical Support & Maintenance

Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute UMms

$3,500.00
$3,800.00
$995.00

Total $8,295.00

Initial Page 3 0of 8



SECTION Q_Q;D, FAGE 1'0. __L %__

———— Sales Representative: Rich Dickerson
f P. 0. Box 1515

2 Jonesboro, AR 72403
www.cusi.com

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC. (870) 336-2209

Sales Agreement October 27, 2017
3\ Humboldt Bay MWD Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn
0 828 Seventh St. (707) 443-5018

Eureka, CA office@hbmwd.com
95502

CYMA Accounting for Windows

CYMA User Licenses
1 Single-User System Manager 1-25 Companies $725.00 $725.00
4 Additional Concurrent Users $675.00 $2,700.00
CYMA Modules
1 General Ledger $675.00 $675.00
1 Accounts Payable $675.00 $675.00
1 Bank Reconciliation $415.00 $415.00
1 Purchase Order $675.00 $675.00
1 Payroll 1-100 Employees $1,095.00 $1,095.00
1 W2/1099 - 100 Employees $150.00 $150.00
1 Grant Tracking/Project Tracking $415.00 $415.00

Pervasive Database
1 Pervasive Version 12 SERVER 1-5 Users $1,245.00 $1,245.00

Implementation Services from Kerr-Consulting
1 Certified CYMA Application Implementation, Installation, Setup and Formatting $9,000.00 $9,000.00

(Online)

Travel expenses will be billed separately.

Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute CYMA Initial Page 6 of 8



seciion ) race 1o )9

CUSI

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Sales Agreement October 27, 2017

Sales Representative:

Rich Dickerson
P. 0. Box 1515

Jonesboro, AR 72403

WWW.cusi.com
(870) 336-2209

Quote #:

Humboldt Bay MWD Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn
828 Seventh St. (707) 443-5018

Eureka, CA office@hbmwd.com
95502

Annual Technical Support & Maintenance

CYMA Accounting and Payroll Maintenance: $1,582.20

Includes System Upgrades and Updates

Phone Support by Kerr Consulting: $1,995.00

Includes unlimited technical support for applications and modules

purchased; does not include additional training, upgrade support or

additional module installation or training

Economic Summary

CYMA Accounting for Windows $8,770.00

Implementation Services from Kerr-Consulting $9,000.00

Annual Technical Support & Maintenance $3,577.20
Shipping $20.00

Total  $21,367.20
Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute CYMA Initial Page 7 of 8



SECTIGN _@_D_, FAGE 1'3._AD

Rl 2 —

Caselle® Software & Services Proposal

Humboldt Bay
Municipal Water District, CA

December 8, 2017
(Valid for 90 days)

From:

Wade Walker, Territory Manager
pww@caselle.com

C A S E L L Er“ Proven Software Solutons for Local Govermment
ww caselle com  Toll Free (800) 226-9851 Fav (801) 850-5001 11 East Bay Bhaf, Ste 110



Caselle® Software & Services Proposal SECI[Ob J‘;Z-b.. FAGE 1D, 2\ [

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, CA T —
December 8, 2017
Total Software License $44,050
Special Consideration Discount <8,810>

Net Software License $35,240
Total Training 6,500
Total Setup 10,950
Total Conversion 4,995
Total Investment $57,685

A deposit of 50% of the total proposal price is required with order. The
remaining balance will be due upon completion of training.

Software Assurance will be $1,166 per month.

The monthly Software Assurance amount will remain fixed for three (3) year providing
You license no new applications or increase user levels. Following the third year, the
monthly charges may be increased at Caselle’s discretion, however, such an increase shall
in no event exceed five percent (5%) in a given calendar year.

I have read and agree to all terms & conditions proposed herein. I understand if
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is unable to provide data to Caselle in the
requested format, additional fees will apply.

Signature

Printed Name & Title

Date

C A S E L L E@ Proven Software Solutions for Local Government
waw casellecom  Tolf Free (800) 226-9851 Fax (801) 850-5001 1656 5. Fast Bay Blvd , Ste. 100/ Provp, /1



seciion oY), Fice 1, 9_@__

Caselle® Software & Services Proposal
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, CA

December 8, 2017
Caselle® Application Software License Fees | Training Setup Conversion Total
General Ledger $5,500 $1,500 $700 $400 $8,100
Budgeting Incl. w/GL Included - - -
Bank Reconciliation Incl. w/GL Included - 500 500
miExcel GL 500 Included 500 - 1,000
Payroll/Direct Deposit 9,200 1,500 1,750 595 13,045
Timekeeping 2,700 375 500 - 3,575
Accounts Payable 5,500 375 500 1,900 8,275
Utility Management 5,500 1,500 *3,000 *1,600 11,600
Utility Electronic Reading Interface 2,700 Included 250 - 2,950
Utility Service Orders 2,700 375 500 - 3,575
Online Mapping - - - - -
Cash Receipting 4,500 375 **1,000 - 5,875
Online/Electronic Payments 2,250 500 2,250 - 5,000
Three (3) Concurrent User Licenses Included - - - Included
Two (2) Additional Concurrent User
Licenses (5 Total) 3,000 - - - 3,000
Sub Total $44,050 $6,500 $10,950 $4,995 $66,495
Special Consideration Discount (8,810) - - - (8,810)
Grand Total $35,240 $6,500 $10,950 $4,995 $57,685

*Utility Management Setup includes 2 (Two) databases and Conversion for 800 customers.
** Cash Receipting includes setup for 2 (Two) databases.

Notes:

1. The training will take place at Caselle.

2. Two (2) years of Utility historical data is included at no extra charge. It is the customer’s responsibility to
submit their historical data in the Caselle Load Table which will be provided. Data not submitted in the
load table will be billed at normal hourly rates.

The monthly credit card and electronic payment transaction fees will be billed by Xpress Bill Pay.

4. Online Paystubs includes 35 employees paid bi-weekly and annual W2’s, Software Assurance will be
adjusted if the number of employees exceeds this estimate.

5. History Conversion is available on a per bid basis. Additional fees may apply upon review of existing
legacy data.

C AS E L L E@ Proven Software Solutions for Local Government



SECIION _:2_?_, PAGE 10,4 )

Caselle® Software & Services Proposal AL
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, CA
December 8, 2017
Software Assurance Monthly Fee
General Ledger $138
Budgeting Incl. w/GL
Bank Reconciliation Incl. w/GL
miExcel GL 25
Payroll/Direct Deposit 230
Timekeeping 68
Accounts Payable 138
Utility Management 138
Utility Electronic Reading Interface 68
Utility Service Orders 68
Online Mapping 10
Cash Receipting 113
Online/Electronic Payments 70
Three (3) Concurrent User Licenses Included
Two (2) Additional Concurrent User
Licenses (5 Total) 100
Sub Total 1,166

r A S E ! [ EC‘-i> Proven Software Solutions tfor Local Govermment
A



Caselle® Software & Services Proposal SECTIGN J;b_‘ FAGE 10, é{u
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, CA T
December 8, 2017

$18,000

Travel expenses will be invoiced when training is complete and include actual airfare, hotel, and car
expenses, plus Caselle’s food per diem of $40.00. These are not included in the total proposal price.

In order to receive the full benefit and value of our software products, it is imperative that the on-site training
be conducted in an organized, professional and uninterrupted manner. To insure this, Caselle Inc. requires the
following conditions:

Training class size will be limited to the number of workstations available in the training area,

Each training area will have one workstation for each student and one workstation for the instructor or
data conversion specialist. Each training workstation must have access to a common network.

Each training room must have a dedicated printer networked to all the training workstations.

Training rooms must be set up and completely functional before the first day of training,

Training rooms should provide an education environment and be free from interruptions or distractions
for students. Equipment such as a whiteboard or easel, three-hole punch, and stapler should be available in
the training room.

Key personnel must be available before and after normal working hours to discuss data conversion issues,
assist with implementation, or if a “live” run of Accounts Payable, Utility Billing or Payroll etc,, is to be
done.

Caselle will be in contact with the customer prior to scheduling the training to insure the above conditions can
be met. If delays result from the above conditions not being met during on-site training, additional training fees

may apply.

CASE ! l E Proven Sofoware Solutions tor Local Government



OPERATIONS



SECTION 330 PAGE NO. |

Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent

Date: November 2017

Subject: Essex/Ruth November 2017 Operational Report

Upper Mad River, Ruth Lake, and Hydro Plant

1. The flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) was 0.0 cfs up to
the 8th of November. Zenia Flow reached a high for the month of 763.7 c¢fs on
November 21,

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake for the month of November were as follows:

a. The lake level on November 30® was 2644.36 feet which is:
1. 8.62 feet higher than October 31%, 2017
2. 11.11 feet lower than November 30%, 2016
3. 5.48 feet lower than the ten year average
4. 9.64 feet below the spillway

3. There was 12.64 inches of recorded rainfall for November 2017 at Ruth
Headquarters.

4. Ruth hydro power production was 295200 kWh for the month of November
with 0 shutdowns and 0 kWh lost power.

5. The high discharge flow from the lake for the month was 79.0 cfs on November
27" and the low release flow from the lake was 71 cfs on November 6%.

Lower Mad River, Winzler Control, and TRF

6. The river at Winzler Control Center reached a high recorded flow of 7120 cfs
and a level of 25.9 feet on November 21%. The low river flow was on
November 2™ with a flow of 103 cfs and a level of 21.2 feet.

7. The domestic water conditions were as follows:

a. The monthly turbidity average was 0.06 NTU, which meets Public Health
Secondary Standards.

b. We pumped 237.6 million gallons at an average of 7.92 MGD.

c. The maximum metered daily municipal customer use was 8.04 MGD on
November 6.

8. The Turbidity Reduction Facility ran 30 days in November. The conditions were
as follows:
a. Average monthly source water turbidity was 0.43 NTU.
b. Average monthly filtered water turbidity was 0.05 NTU.
c. We did 46 backwashes on the TRF filters in the month of November.



SECTION 320~ PAGE NO.__

9. November 1st®
a. Dave Deskins last day of work
b. Safety Meetings
i. Fall Prevention / Ladder Safety
ii. Cable Car safety
iii. Trenching and Excavation Safety
10. November 3™ — Lee Dedini’s last day of work
11. November 7% — SCADA training Mario, Ryan, Paul, Dave, Lui
12. Simpson Painting disinfected 1 Mg DW reservoir, District Staff filled reservoir,
took samples to lab for testing.
13. November 9" — 1 Mg DW reservoir back on line
14. November 13™ — 16™ — Supervisors and I interviewed 7 candidates for the
Maintenance Mechanic position. Our new Maintenance Mechanic started on
December 4,
15. November 14™ — Supervisors and I attended a JPIA Workers Compensation
class at the Main Office
16. November 15" — We did our annual R.W. Matthews Dam EAP drill as required
by FERC
17. November 15th-17" — Telstar did our annual Chlorine System Maintenance
18. November 17™ — Assistant Maintenance Supervisor attended a Silica Exposure
and safety training class at NCSC.
19. November 28" - Pat, Samantha, Nate and I attended a Dam Owner Emergency
Intervention webinar.
20. November 29% —
a. Safety Meetings
i. SDS/Right to Know
ii. Spill Prevention
iii. Sexual Harassment
b. Samantha and I went to Ruth for a Trinity County DTSC inspection at
Headquarters and the Hydro Plant
21. Current Projects
a. SCADA upgrade — Work is continuing on the SCADA upgrade. For the
most part the project is winding down and minor issues are getting fixed
as they come up. Some training has been done and there is more
scheduled in December.
b. Collector 1 Pump Replacement - Pumps 1-1 and 1-4 are both complete
and running very well.
c. BL/FB under river crossing project — Brush clearing along the Right-of-
Way is complete. A contract is out for tree removal work to make access
for directional drilling equipment next spring.



AY4

SECTIGN

PAGE NO._2.

aeq
e e - =
TRXPEREELE LI J 28 2 Q2w e g |
W B2~ 2SS NN SN RN PR SRR SO SN SN RN RN R
©C O N 0 b B NWO N OO OO R NNWOO BN 00U RN YW WU R
| r Y a4 i a4 " __ _ __ _ - 05292
|
_
- 0°0£92
1
| [ |
|
| _ ™ - 0592
7 [9A7 Aem||ldG e
_ : : ~ - 0°0V9T
_ SAY Jeap \
ioﬂ uolleAl|] el
- OSP
i = 97
Y L10C _ - 00592
| uoljeAljj je]—— |
|
| N\ - 0S92
X ‘9T0T
uoleAl|3 e
00992
uoneAs|3 ael yiny

0°999¢




R
|

Mad River at

Zenia Br 2016,

cfs

Zenia Br 2017,

Mad River at
cfs

Ten Year Avg
2007 - 2016

~ SECTION

(20

e e ot

o€/ct

- 9T/t

444"

- 8T/T1

/11

- 1zZ/0T
- L/oT

€2/6
6/6

97/8
ct/8

- 62/L
- ST/L
T/L

- LT/9

- €/9
- 0Z/s

S§2 - Mo}

Q
m -
2
|
(a1]
c‘-u
| =
Q
N
)
o
K=
L
-
g p
1%
o [==] o o [=] =] (=]
[=] Q (=} o (=} (=}
Q (=] (=] [=)] o (=]
o [¥p} < o o~ i

- 9/8
LTy

8/v

st/
11/¢€
9Z/t
T/t
62/1

- ST/T

1/T

PAGENO._{___

Date




32 ence Ko 9._

: 9T, - €8,
‘98eJaAY dAIIRINWIND
|

_ [eO1JOISIH

SECTION

98elaAy
BAIR|INWINYD JBDA OT

aAllelhwin)

1O

dog

3ny Inr unr  Aeyy ady  aey  go4 uer 29qg

8T-LT 189\ 131EM

dAllRINWINY
LT-9T 129\ ISR e

LTOCZ-9TOC 1e3A 191EM - ||Bjuley Yiny

0c

ov

09

08

001

0ct

sayou|

MN8H



SECTION D 2% pAGE MO._o

SJ0 ‘MOJ4 JaAlY
Ay 1BaA QT o

s§2 ‘28pug 662
18 MO £TQT ~

40 ‘28pLg 66¢
1B MO|4 9TOT ==

1 ‘19Aa7 J9AlY
8ay Jeap 01

U 4102
ELER R E—

1 ‘9102
BV PN E—

‘Mmo[4 1911y

s

000S -

0000T

000ST

0000¢

000SZ

0000¢€

—

il
2

9leq

= = = =

N N B = B O = WO 0 o0 NN N u - W W N N R
OSSO ONOSS RBN O ON OOSNS N N N N NN BN N N N N N R
w o RSN SN SN RN P SN RSN SN SN = N N = N
Q O N 0 A B NN WO N WU RN WO YN 0N R, YN WO N .

1 i [ i § L i 1 i 1 { 1 1 1 1 i | 1 L | /| L A !
v 2 " :,4..,.. ;

L

i

VA,

i

MO|4 pUE |[9A3T JOAIY

- 0T

T4

o€

S¢€

1 ‘|aA91 43A1Y




SECTION J 30 PAGE NO,__ 1

SALBINWIND £ TOZ UONONPOIJ OIPAH emmmmmmm

SAREINWIND :9TOZ UONINPOI] OIPAH eemmmmmm

AAIBINWINY 1STOZ UOINPOL O PAH seemmmms

SAIRE(NWIND :98e1aAY JBBA US|

sARENWIND 198eISAY JMOISIH

o

000'000'T

000°000°C

000°000°€

000000y

000°000°S

0000009

000°000°L

YIUO|Al Jad AN :uo11dNpOoLd 0IPAH Yyiny




secTion 20 mezno. !

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Hydro Production Report — Since June 1983

PG&E June 1983 through May 14, 2017

Total Kwh Production Average Mont-hly KWH
Production
On Peak 11,630,086 28,575
Part Peak 58,575,072 143,919
Off Peak 83,856,378 206,035
Super Off Peak 26,796,680 65,840
Grand Total 180,858,216 444,369
Pre REMAT Total Revenues S 8,790,377.99
No. of Months of
Operation 407.5
Average $/Kwh S 0.0486
REMAT
May 15, 2017 to November 2017
2017/2018 Production KWH Totals Total No.of  Cumulative
Monthly ~ REMAT Monthsof  REMAT GrandTotal  Avg $/Kwh
Month Day  Shoulder  Night Total KWH Revenues  #of Mos Operation  Revenues RevenuestoDate REMAT
May 96,0701 1139746 179,458.6 389,5033 § 30,388.07 0.5 4075 $ 3038807 § 8820766.06 $ 0.0932
June 81,5352 96,8020 155,848.2 3341854 S 26,120.87 1 408 S 5650894 § 884688693 § 00932
July 378399 439786  69,926.9 151,7454 § 1414642 2 409 § 7065536 S 8861,033.35 S 00932
August 39,0752 454189 71,5306 156,033.7 S 14543.49 3 410 $ 8519885 § 887557684 $ 0.0032
September 36,3632 422260 66,2202 144,809.4 § 13,497.57 4 411 § 98,6942 S 888907441 § 00932
October 48,5702  56,566.9  87,605.6 19,7427 & 18,451.9 5 412 6 117,15438 § 8907,532.37 § 0.0932
November 774345 881103 1385323 304,077.1 § 29,180.65 6 413 $ 146,335.03 § 8936713.02 $ 00932

G:\Operations\Hydro Prod\HydroProdREMAT\Hydro Report NEW.docx



—d

Aepl

ldy

LVINIZY UOIINPOId A JUDLIND e

Yole

Atenugo4

UMyl 95ISAY 389 |EIIIO]SIH mmeemmne

Yo

Asenuer _qualag  ISqWSAON  13go1dQ  Jaquiaidas 1sn8ny Aing

aunr

HNI SEL'TST'S
|ejo aSeJany |enuuy |ed1I0)SIH

000°00T

000002

000°00€

000°00%

000005

000009

00000

000008

000006

HMM

SINOH Remojny ul ejeq ||y
3)e| Yiny 1e jue|d 314393|304pAH Ul|a5505)
uoldNPOId dAIEINWIND [EN}IY *SA |BILIOISIH




A 8 5 4 S

SECTION .J2}) PAGE NO._)

L10¢/vieL

(£102-2102) poid 2U308[3 CIPAH\POLY CPAHISUONBIBIOND

_|
Yuo
o R R
& X O & Q i &
ﬁ% @% & «o% & WS S %% @% <
— : : : : : : —— 0
/ - |
croe TR wi 000002
WHON secsvss / / nnnoc' \\ e o
STOZ <= -v-- A- ...w..u h\\ " 000°00% .w.
V107 === / et T ) $
000009 R
€TOC svove- | m.
ZT07 = = 000008 3
S
000°000'T m
=
000°00Z'T
LT0Z - ZT0Z (HAMM) uondnpoud oipAH Ajyluon :aMINEGH
6£0°L08°L 991°L20'9 L8L‘S0E"S Z0v'spe'z 192°'82Z'y LL9°2LS'Y [enuuy [ejo}
- .|688'8.6 gl6'0ls €28699 leee'09)  fegsee6 [ 8qusdsg
100006 |160°¢6L o6L'shl __ [oi8'8vl T |g6lLSI 89/°282 3 JaquiaAoN
£v.261 0£6°6G | 2V TV |zie'ezL |oos'6LL 18qo120
608'vyL  |0iL'8vl sov'syl  |ozo'syl 89/'691 058°/¥L 1equisdag
¥£0'9G 1 LES L) L16°0V1 0ZZ 8Pl __|sevsgl _|reriist B ___jsnbny
SYL1SL ¥9G8°J¥7 |66s‘osk  |eos'eyL  |€iz'val leo'ogl e Ainp
g8l 'veE gveevl ~ |sso'erl 0e9'2vy _ |vv0TSL 18L°8€E1 e aunp
1¥5°289 |ogo'eze €08°1SL  [896'06L |geél'zsl 888‘6GS N Aepy
££0°296 £/G°€2S 852°901 €68's¥S  |zov'er9 Zsv'268 T udy
00v'998 052°0S6 __|sss’ioz 218108 |zze's09 wsgoy Yo
LIv'y88 ~|sis'sye 0.1°692 o les0‘€L2 _|eeg'06E Ateniqad
295'916 €01°206 119°Z€9 Z00°'LY ¥21°296 00€°S52 Aenuep
1102 9102 5102 7102 €102 Z1L0Z Yyuow

L10Z - 2LO0ZTAD 10} (HMM) uononpold 21130913 04pAH Ajyjuopy
PUISiq Jo3eM jedidlunyy Aeg jpjoquiny



SECTION (00 PacENo, 4

SELLER: Electric Statement

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

828 7th Street Invoice prepared 2017-12-01 21:27:02

Eureka, CA 95501 Invoice period 2017-11

Attention: General Manager Contract reference 33R403RM
Executed 2016-10-16

PURCHASER: Payment due 2017-12-30

Pacific Gas and Electric Company Meter id LOWGAP 7 QFUNTS

P.O. Box 770000 Channel WH3 REC

Mail Code N12E Project Matthews Dam Hydro

San Francisco, CA 94177

Attention: Azmat Mukhtar

(ASM3@pge.com), Mgr. Bilateral

Settlements

Summary Invoice

Charge Gen (kWh) Sold (kWh) TOD factor TOD $/kWh Energy ($)
Day 77,434.5 77,434.5 1.399 0.12483277 9,666.36
Shoulder 88,110.3 88,110.3 0.718 0.06406714 5,644.98
Night 138,532.3 138,532.3 1.122 0.10011606 13,869.31
Totals 304,077.1 304,077.1 1.075 0.09596463 29,180.65

Page 1/1



SECTIONI3D  PAGE KO, 4

JuswiAeq 13 anusARY JBNBY/SISAjRUY JeiIeY /8uiunody /o

373 5d Wouj paaRdal S| Yuow Jof JuswAed Y314y DU} ‘s31R100S5Y POOMUSH 13 ABJau3 N Lr 03 panss| ale o3y ajesedss,

| o0 $  HMY 13 330y papuajg 1Ua.1inD |

€8°875'ST S | Zr'TS8 S Tr'1S8 $ | 66°'806°8 S | V6200 §9°081'62 S 0T'LLO'VOE
(Awunop) *JU[ ““20SSY POOMUDY |>w._u:m_ S Junpj ajey TE698°ET 909TT00T 0 0€'TES'BET 1HOIN
punj ey NLf 0] 2eqay aseq 380d unpy | L6'v¥9°S ¥1.290¥90°0 0£0T1'88 AVQ-QIN/YIATNOHS
0] dduejeg 9€£'999°6 LLTEBVIT O 0S'veEY'LL Wv3id/Ava
«0S/05 ¥jds PETELEN] HAD/S HM aoad

$132043U03 9500°0S 120.43U0D) JDN3Y dwAed 1eAlRY
0 palnjad S3aAISS E:Emnmkoi

£T0Z ‘0&-T JaquianoN

8T/LT0TA4 Spun4 IUNA 8 1BIAIRY 3894 40 uonendje)



MANAGEMENT



SECTION_K [, PAGE NO. __l___

Certificate for Liability Coverage

The undersigned, being duly authorized to execute this Certificate on behalf of the Board of
Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (hereinafter the “District”) hereby affirms the
following:

1. That the participation by employees and members of the Board of Directors of District in the
meetings and activities conducted by the Humboldt Area Chapter of the California Special
Districts Association have been authorized by the District's Board of Directors; and that the
Board of Directors has found such activities constitute activities in the course and scope of
such individual's employment with or position of director with the District.

Executed this 14™ day of December, 2017.

By:

John Friedenbach

Its: General Manager



ACWA



Gl ——

SECTION_L- 2{PAGE No.__\‘,71

ACWA JPIA
President’s Special Recognition Award Recipients
November 27, 2017

BACKGROUND

Each year at its Fall Conference, the JPIA recognizes those members that have a Loss
Ratio of 20% or less in either of the Liability, Property, or Workers’ Compensation
Programs. Those members receive the “President’s Special Recognition Award”.

CURRENT SITUATION

The following districts are receiving this special recognition. The districts with an
asterisk next to their name were recognized in all three categories: Liability, Property,
and Workers’ Compensation. The data for this calculation is for a three-year period,
2013-2016, as of September 30, 2017. Printed awards will be mailed directly to the
districts.

If your district is one of those receiving this special recognition...

RECOMMENDATION
None, informational only.

Prepared by: Bobbette Wells, Executive Assistant to the CEQO Date prepared: October 18, 2017



SECTION_L 20uPAGE N0, 2~

Liability Program
President’'s Awards
November 27, 2017

Alpaugh Community Services District
Alpaugh Irrigation District

Amador Water Agency*

American River Flood /Control District
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors

Association
Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency*

Apple Valley Foothill County Water District
Apple Valley Heights County Water District
Aromas Water District

Banta Carbona Irrigation District
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District
Bella Vista Water District

Beiridge Water Storage District*

Big Bear Municipal Water District
Bodega Bay Public Utility District

Bolinas Community Public Utility District*
Boron Community Services District
Borrego Water District*

Brophy Water District

Browns Valley Irrigation District*

Buena Vista Water Storage District
Calaveras County Water District*
Calpella County Water District

Camp Far West Irrigation District
Carmichael Water District*

Carpinteria Valley Water District
Castroville Community Services District
Centerville Community Services District*
Central California Irrigation District
Central Coast Water Authority*

Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District
Central Water District

Chino Basin Water Conservation District
Chowchilla Water District*

Circle Oaks County Water District

Clear Creek Community Services District
Clearlake Oaks County Water District
Coastside County Water District
Consolidated Irrigation District*

Corning Water District

Cottonwood Water District

Crestline Village Water District
Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency
Cucamonga Valley Water District*

Deer Creek & Tule River Authority

Del Puerto Water District*
Delano-Earlimart Irrigation District

*awarded in all three programs

Desert Water Agency

Devil's Den Water District

Ducor Community Services District
Dudley Ridge Water District

Dunnigan Water District”

East Contra Costa lrrigation District*
Empire West Side Irrigation District

Fall River Valley Community Services District
Fallbrook Public Utility District

Feather Water District

Florin Resource Conservation District
Foothill Municipal Water District*
Forestvilie Water District

Free Water County Water District

Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District
Friant North Authority

Friant Power Authority

Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District

Glide Water District

Golden Hills Community Services District
Goleta Water District

Gravelly Ford Water District

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Idyllwild Water District*

Ivanhoe Public Utility District

James Irrigation District

Joshua Basin Water District*

Kanawha Water District*

Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District
Kaweah River Power Authority

Kern Delta Water District

Kern Water Bank Authority*

Kern-Tulare Water District*

Kings County Water District*

Kings River Conservation District

Kings River Water District

Kinneloa Irrigation District*

Knights Landing Ridge Drainage District
La Canada Irrigation District

Lakeside Water District*

Laton Community Services District
Laytonville County Water District

Le Grand-Athlone Water District
Lindsay-Strathmore Irrigation District
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District*

Los Alamos Community Services District*
Lost Hills Water District*

Lower Tule River Irrigation District

- i \

=) =" i



,_\ — ——

e O ey ====n

T I

secTION_LM(paGENO, D

Property Program 75
President’'s Awards
November 27, 2017

Amador Water Agency*

American River Flood Control District
Angiola Water District

Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency*
Apple Valley Foothill County Water District
Aromas Water District

Arvin-Edison Water Storage District

Bard Water District

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District
Belridge Water Storage District*

Big Bear Municipal Water District
Biggs-West Gridley Water District

Bolinas Community Public Utility District*
Boron Community Services District
Borrego Water District*

Browns Valley lrrigation District*

Buena Vista Water Storage District
Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
Calaveras County Water District*
Camrosa Water District

Carmichael Water District*

Castaic Lake WA - Santa Clarita Water Division
Castaic Lake Water Agency

Castroville Community Services District
Centerville Community Services District*
Central Basin Municipal Water District
Central California Irrigation District
Central Coast Water Authority*

Central Water District

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Chino Basin Water Conservation District*
Chowchilla Water District*

Circle Oaks County Water District

Citrus Heights Water District
Consolidated Irrigation District*

Corning Water District

Cottonwood Water District

Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency
Cucamonga Valley Water District*

Del Paso Manor Water District

Del Puerto Water District*

Desert Water Agency

Devil's Den Water District

Ducor Community Services District
Dunnigan Water District*

*awarded in all three programs

East Contra Costa Irrigation District*
East Orange County Water District

El Toro Water District

Empire West Side Irrigation District

Fall River Valley Community Services District
Fallbrook Public Utility District

Feather Water District

Foothill Municipal Water District*
Forestville Water District

Frazier Park Public Utility District

Fresno Irrigation District

Friant Power Authority

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District

Golden Hills Community Services District
Goleta Water District

Helix Water District

Hi-Desert Water District

¥ Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District <

Humboldt Community Services District
Idyllwild Water District*

Ivanhoe Irrigation District

Ivanhoe Public Utility District

Joshua Basin Water District*

Kanawha Water District*

Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District
Kern Delta Water District

Kern Water Bank Authority*

Kern-Tulare Water District* -
Kings County Water District*

Kinneloa Irrigation District*

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District
La Canada Irrigation District

La Habra Heights County Water District
La Puente Valley County Water District
Laguna Beach County Water District
Lakeside Irrigation Water District
Lakeside Water District*

Laton Community Services District
Laytonville County Water District

Le Grand-Athlone Water District
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District*

Los Alamos Community Services District*
Lost Hills Water District*

Lower Tule River Irrigation District
Madera-Chowchilla Water & Power Authority



YOUR BEST PROTECTION

ACWA JPIA

P. O. Box 619082
Roseville, CA 95661-9082

phone
916.786.5742
800.231.5742

direct line
916.774.7050
800.535.7899

fax
916.774.7040

claims fax
916.786.0209

www.acwajpia.com

President
E.G. "Jerry" Gladbach

Vice President
Tom Cuquet

Chief Executive Officer
Walter "Andy" Sells

Executive Committee
Tom Cuquet

David Drake

E.G. "Jerry" Gladbach
Brent Hastey

David T. Hodgin
W.D. "Bill" Knutson
Melody A. McDonald
J. Bruce Rupp
Kathleen Tiegs

" secTion L0 paGE No. E_L_

8890 230 "OMway

December 4, 2017

John Friedenbach

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
P.O. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Dear John:

Each year at Fall Conference, the JPIA recognizes members that
have a Loss Ratio of 20% or less in either of the Liability, Property, or
Workers' Compensation programs (loss ratio = total losses / total
premiums).

The members with this distinction receive the “President’s Special
Recognition Award” certificate for each Program that they qualify in.

The JPIA is extremely pleased to present Humboldt Bay Municipal
Water District with this special recognition and commends the District
on the hard work in reducing claims.

Congratulations to you, your staff, Board, and District. Keep up the
good work!

The JPIA wishes you the best in 2018.

Sincerely,

E.G. “Jerry” Gladbach
President

Enclosure: President's Special Recognition Award(s)



Q;OGHQK.\GA_OHOHO.OQUO.Oucuc.r_ﬂ_c"_c“n_“O“

WIYDUY Ul SUNIIPY ,SI10§9241( JO pADOY 2y} Iv PIIUNOUUD

910Z/0£/60 - E10Z/T0/01 porad ayp sof winaSorg Gupqory ayp un
uSntumaag psodo(,, 01 ,,5244353y asv) pup sunny) pwd,, Jo o4 Moy v Suraaryon Jof

114381 19104 [pd1orunpy Avg pjoqungy

01 uoytuB0o2y [vioads soars Aqaiay
VIdL VMOV

vaWe._ w:uﬁwwr% oz

PADME UOHIUS002Y [D192dS S, JUdP1SIA]

09YE SA0D ©




¥'SN NI OHL

LI0T ‘LT 4aquiaaoN puapIsatd ‘Yovgpuyn  Auaf,, 9 g

%{x»@t&%% rd

WIYDUY U SUPIIPY ,S1010241(T JO PIDOY Y} ID PIIUNOUUD
9I10Z/T1S/€0 - STOZ/T0/#0 poriad ayy aof wivaSoag Qaadosg ayp wr
uSnua4g j1soda(,, 01 ,,S244252y sV pup S piIvy,, Jo ovL Moy v Supaaryon so0f

1014381(J 121041 odiorunpy Ang pjoquungy

01 uoNIUB002Yy W102ds saa18 Aqaiaay

VIdIl -\\va\

ayy. \e JUIPISIIT YT

PADME” UOIUS002Y [¥122dS S, Judp1sasg

Se9re s30D ®

O 0L 0D O DL O D00 0 O DL DD 00, 01 0L 0L DL 0L 01 0 01 D101 000 0 0 0. 00101 01 01 01010, 0, 0. 0L 01010, 010,01 010, 0.0, 0.0, 0L 0L 0105 0.0, 01 010, 01 01010040 140

!

OIOIGI0IO0I0,01010.0. 0.0, 0100010,




CONFERENCE AGENDA

8:30 - 10:00 AM
o ACWAJPIA Program Committee

10:15-11:15AM
e ACWA JPIA Executive Committee

1:30-4:00 PM

e ACWA JPIA Board of Directors
4:00 - 5:00 PM

o ACWAJPIATown Hall
5:00-6:00 PM

e ACWA JPIA Reception

| TUESDAY,NOV.28
7:00AM - 4 PM

o ACWA Fall Conference Golf Tournament

8:00 AM - 6:00 PM
e Registration

8:30 AM - Noon
o ACWA/JPIA Seminars

9:00 AM - 4:00 PM
e Legal Affairs Committee CLE Workshop

10:00 - 11:45 AM
o Groundwater Committee
e |ocal Government Committee

11:00 AM - Noon
e Qutreach Task Force

Noon - 2:00 PM
» ACWA 101 & Luncheon
» Committee Lunch Break

1:00 - 2:45 PM

¢ Energy Committee

® Finance Committee

¢ Scholarship & Awards Subcommittee
* Water Management Committee

1:30-3:30 PM

o ACWA JPIA: Sexual Harassment
Prevention for Board Members &
Managers (AB 1825)

3:00-4:45 PM

* Business Development Committee
e Communications Committee

e Federal Affairs Committee

e Membership Committee

e Water Quality Committee

5:00-6:30 PM
e Welcome Reception in the Exhibit Hall

WEDNESDAY, NOV. 29

| 7:30AM- 5PM
i ® Registration

! 8:00-9:45AM
i ® Opening Breakfast (Ticket Required)

! 9:00 AM - Noon & 1:30 - 5:00 PM
! o Exhibit Hall

i 10:00-11:30 AM

i e Attorneys Program

i ® Energy Committee Program

i o Exhibitor Case Studies

: o Finance Program

i ® Region Issue Forum

i o Statewide Issue Forum

i ® Water Industry Trends Program

: 11:30- 11:45AM
i @ Networking in the Exhibit Hall

| 11:45 AM - 2:00 PM
: e General Session Luncheon (Ticket

Required)

i 2:15-3:15PM

i ® Attorneys Program

i e Communications Committee Program
i & Energy Committee Program

i e Exhibitor Case Study

: & Region Program

i o Statewide Issue Forum

i o Water Industry Trends Program

: 3:30-4:45PM

¢ e Aguatic Resources Subcommittee
i e Exhibitor Demos

i = Finance Program

i ® Statewide Issue Forum

: ® Water Industry Trends Program

| 3:30-5:30PM
i e Legal Affairs Committee

| 5:00-6:00 PM
Q. Prize Drawing Fiesta Night in the

Exhibit Hall

 5:00-7:00 PM
i o CalDesal Hosted Mixer
i ® CH2M Hosted Reception

| 6:45-8:30AM
i ® SanJoaquin Valley Agricultural

Water Committee

: 7:30AM- 4PM
i ® Registration

8:00 AM - Noon
i * Exhibit Hall

. 8:00-9:15AM
i e Networking Continental Breakfast,

Exhibit Hall (Ticket Required)

| 8:30AM-9:15AM
® Ag Initiative Meeting

i 9:30-11:00AM

i o Attorneys Program

i o Exhibitor Case Studies

i & Region Issue Forum

: e Town Hall

i o Water Industry Trends Program

! 9:30-11:45 AM
i o EthicsTraining (AB 1234) - Limited

Seating

i 11:00-11:30 AM
i @ Prize Drawings in the Exhibit Hall

! 11:45AM - 2:00 PM
i ® General Session Luncheon (Ticket

Required)

£ 2:15-3:15PM

: o Attorneys Program

i ® Exhibitor Demos

: @ Federal Issues Forum

: e Finance Program

i e Statewide Issue Forum

i ® Water Industry Trends Program

 3:30-5PM
i ® Regions 1-10

Membership Meetings

| 6:00-7:00PM
: ® Outreach Reception

{ 7:00 - 10:00 PM
i ® Dinner & Entertainment (Ticket Required)

FRIDAY, DEC. 1

 8:00-9:30 AM
i ® Registration

Programs are subject to
change without notice.

8:30-10:00 AM

e ACWA's Hans Doe Past Presidents’
Breakfast in Partnership with ACWA JPIA
(Ticket Required)

ACWA 2017 Fall Conference & Exhibition | 9



ATTORNEYS PROGRAMS

These programs have been approved by the State Bar of California for
attorneys to receive general MCLE credits.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 10:00 - 11:30 AM
Recycled Water: The Race to Purple Pipes and Beyond

In light of state mandates to increase recycled water

use and in anticipation of regulation of direct potable
re-use, this panel will discuss the numerous regulatory
and environmental requirements related to recycled
water with an emphasis on strategic planning to enable
the most expeditious implementation of recycled water
projects. Lessons learned and recommendations for
developing reuse projects, including Regional and State
Board permitting, changes in water rights, environmental
considerations resulting from reduced wastewater
discharges to water bodies and brine considerations, and
grant funding opportunities will be explored.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 2:15 - 3:15 PM
Devices & Data: Public Records Act and Beyond

In March, the California Supreme Court issues its
landmark decision in City of San Jose v. Smith, finding
that government emails stored on council members’
personal devices could constitute public records. This
panel will analyze the holdings of this case, discuss its
implications for public agencies, and provide an overview
of the laws and rules applicable to public agencies’ and
officers’ management of electronic data.

Thursday, Nov. 30 | 9:30 - 11:00 AM

P3s: Key Issues Impacting Alternate Delivery of Water
Projects in California

Public-private partnerships (P3s) and other alternative
delivery models have become critical tools for
completion of infrastructure projects across sectors. This
panel will discuss their specific California infrastructure
project experiences and the issues impacting use of P3s
and alternative deliver for water projects in California.

Thursday, Nov. 30 | 2:15 - 3:15 PM
Legal Issues of Conservation Mandates

This panel will address constitutional issues like
uncompensated takings, unconstitutional impairment of
contract and charter cities’ power to resist state intrusions
on such cities’ management of their municipal affairs. The
panel will also discuss the legislation passed this year

(or anticipated legislative activity for next year, given the
failure of legislation to pass this year).

4 | ACWA 2017 Fall Conference & Exhibition

ENERGY COMMITTEE PROGRAMS

These programs may count toward the Certified Energy Manager (CEM)
continuing education credit.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 10:00 - 11:30 AM
What is Community Choice Aggregation and How Can
It Help My Agency?

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) is changing

how electricity is produced and delivered by allowing
agencies to purchase electricity in the wholesale power
market and better control the source and cost of their
power. Eight CCAs are already operating in California
and at least seven more are in the development process,
including in Los Angeles County and San Diego. Don't
get left behind the next wave in cost effective renewable
power.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 2:15 -3:15 PM
Energy Storage: The Future is Now

New time-of-use electricity rates are just around the
corner that will completely change the economics on
existing and future solar generation projects. As energy
storage technology costs continue to come down and
the technology is refined, more and more agencies are
implementing energy storage to provide reliable cost-
effective power and preserve the value of their renewable
energy projects in an environment where the rules and
prices for renewable energy seem to be in constant flux.
However, as is always the case with emerging technology
and the regulatory environment it operates within, energy
storage projects face a wide range of challenges and
opportunities.

WATER QUALITY COMMITTEE PROGRAM

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 3:30 - 4:45 PM

Aquatic Resources Subcommittee Program - New State
Wetlands Regulations?

The State Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has for many
years been considering new requirements for “Waters of
the State” intended to be more protective than the fed-
eral Clean Water Act Section 404 wetlands regulations.
What is the scope of the current proposal, and how and
when might is impact the operations of urban and agri-
cultural water agencies statewide?



Check the ACWA website for updated conference information >> www.acwa.com

FINANCE PROGRAMS

CPAs may receive continuing education credit by attending these programs.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 10:00 - 11:30 AM
Innovative Rate Structures

A wave of litigation seems to have pushed water agencies
to more conservative rate structures. This doesn't have to
be the case. In this panel, we will hear from agencies and
consultants who have innovated within the requirements
of 218.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 3:30 - 4:45 PM
Prop 218 In the Social Media Age

How to Successfully hold a Prop 218 Public Hearing:
Prop 218 Public Hearing process is becoming more
complicated and has higher visibility in our community.
Social networks, such as Facebook, NextDoor and
MyNeighorhood have assisted in organizing the public
surrounding rate increases. This panel will discuss the
recent trends in Public Hearing meetings and provide
guidance on how to successfully hold a Public Hearing
meeting that addresses your stakeholder concerns.

Thursday, Nov. 30| 2:15 - 3:15 PM

Safeguarding Ratepayer Funds: Fraud Prevention and
Detection for Utilities

Governing boards and management at all levels of a
utility bear responsibility for managing fraud risk. The
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO")
provides best practice guidance for professionals
dedicated to improving organizational performance and
governance through effective internal control, enterprise
risk management and fraud deterrence. In this panel
discussion, we will explore the most recent version of the
COSO Internal Control Integrated Framework, examples
of the types of fraud that you most need to be aware of
and case studies of fraudulent activities and the internal
controls that did or did not mitigate their impact or led to
detection.

' "mmsﬁrﬁeqmsz

WATER INDUSTRY TRENDS
PROGRAMS

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 10:00-11:30 AM
Desalination: Progress and Challenges

The Claude “Bud” Lewis Carlsbad Desalination Plant,

the nation’s largest and most technologically advanced
seawater desalination plant, has been operational for
almost two years now. Santa Barbara’s Charles E. Meyer
Desalination Plant has been operating since May. Both
have provided their communities with a significant new
water supply and have helped Californian’s envision a
more secure water supply future. Join an expert panel as
the progress is marked and the remaining challenges are
charted.

Thursday, Nov. 30 | 2:15-3:15 PM
Getting Our Arms Around Groundwater Replenishment

ACWA's Board of Directors has adopted a new policy
goal to “provide leadership on strategies to increase
groundwater replenishment”. The need for more
attention on this issue is being driven by the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act and critically overdrafted
basins, the need for increased surface and groundwater
storage, conveyance improvements, and flood
management and land subsidence responses. Join an
expert panel to discuss ways we are getting our arms
around groundwater replenishment.

Wednesday Prize Drawing Fiesta Reception (5-6 PM)

NEW THIS YEAR! Enjoy a fiesta themed reception,
mingle with your peers and exhibitors and win great
prizes! All raffle prizes will be drawn on Wednesday
night (excluding the Grand Prize) and you must be

present to win.

Exhibitor Demonstrations

Check out these new demos! Jain select exhibitors for a
30-minute demonstration to learn about their products
and services. Check the conference agenda for details
on times and the topics of discussion.

ACWA 2017 Fall Conference & Exhibition | 5



STATEWIDE ISSUE FORUM

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 2:15 - 3:15 PM

Water Fees, Assessments, Surcharges, and Taxes:
The California Water Plan Update 2018 Funding and
Implementation Plan ‘

The Department of Water Resources is preparing

its Administrative Draft of the California Water Plan,
Update 2018. This update is expected to include an
unprecedented “Funding and Implementation Plan”
that includes a sweeping proposal for multiple types of
water user fees (taxes), assessments, surcharges, and
other novel funding mechanisms to fund investments in
water infrastructure and planning to support long-term
sustainability.

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 3:30 - 4:45 PM

Finding the Path Forward for Renewed Health of
California Headwaters

While there is now broad recognition that our Headwater
forests are declining, we still must bring together a
common vision to tackle the array of issues facing our
headwaters. From weather variability to fire suppression
to general forest management practices, there is

a growing understanding that we must develop a
comprehensive, proactive strategy to change course and
increase the helath and resilience of our headwaters. This
panel will explore the key issues at play and how we can
best address them.

6 | ACWA2017 Fall Conference & Exhibition

Programs are subject to change without notice.

Tuesday, November 28,2017 « Coyote Hills Golf Course, Fullerton, CA

REGIONAL iSSUES

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 10:00 - 11:30 AM
Headwaters: Navigating Climate Change in the Sierra

The Region 3 Issue Forum will focus on how climate
change is affecting the headwater regions of California
from three distinct perspectives. A climate scientist

will discuss model projections, how the most recent
drought cycle impacts the data, and what challenges are
projected for the Sierra with respect to water quality/
quantity, snowpack, pest infestations, wildfire, and
extreme weather. Additionally, a representative from the
utility insurance industry will discuss their projections and
adaptions to these rapidly changing conditions, how they
affect their risk assessments, and impact premiums. Lastly,
a hydro-electric generation professional will answer,
what does climate change mean for them? How are they
forecasting, adapting to changing conditions up and
downstream, and adjusting their expectations for hydro-
electric power generation revenue in the future?

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 2:15 - 3:15 PM

Connecting the Dots - Salton Sea and Western
Water Security

ACWA Region 9 invites you to learn the important

role that the Salton Sea plays in water supply in the
southwestern United States. Located in a pivotal

position on the Colorado River system, the Salton Sea is
California's largest lake. Hear from experts on how the
accelerating challenges brought on by the aging Salton
Sea are being addressed in conjunction with improving
long term water security for Southern California and all of
the west.

q

e = e o W
DA ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

2017 FALL CONFERENCE

GOLF TOQURNAMENT

ENTER TO PLAY >> WWW.ACWA.COM



COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE
PROGRAM

Wednesday, Nov. 29 | 2:15 - 3:15 PM

Public Affairs Engagement in a Changing
Political Environment

How do communications professionals convey compli-
cated legislative issues to the public when the politi-
cal landscape is shifting daily under our feet? Public
affairs and communications efforts are becoming
increasingly important in this new political landscape
as legislative proposals are changing at the eleventh
hour. Proactive planning and making use of ali the
tools in the communications tool box—including social
media-- are essential to advancing our legislative,
regulatory and policy goals. This panel will showcase
recent case studies and lessons learned on what works
and what doesn't.

ETHICS TRAINING
Thursday, Nov. 30 | 9:30 - 11:45 AM

AB 1234 Ethics Training

If you are a board member of a public agency, you are
required to have your AB 1234 Ethics Training every
two years. You can take care of this requirement at the
upcoming ACWA 2017 Fall Conference & Exhibition in
Anaheim.

You will be trained by a legal professional on all the
requirements specified in the AB 1234 mandate. A
certificate verifying your attendance will be handed
out at the end of the session.

Limited seating - on a first come basis.

Check the ACWA website

for updated conference information.
WWW.ACWA.COM

" 3

¥ SR |
e AR

ACWAC | E*

CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION FOR WATER PROFESSIONALS
November 28, 2017 | Anaheim, CA

EARN UP T0 6 HOURS OF GENERAL CLE CREDIT!

THEWORKSHOP WILL INCLUDE PROGRAMS SUCH AS:
Annual CEQA Litigation Update
Understand the WHN Act

Settled Answers or Just More Questions? What You Need to
Know About Propositions 218 and 26 Cases Decided Since
the Last Time You Asked

Utility Relocation and Public Projects

Continental breakfast, networking lunch, materials and
presentations are included.

ok

SAVE $50

IF ATTENDING ACWA'S 2017 FALL CONFERENCE & EXHIBITION




RREDC/RCEA



SECTION.LY _ pagE No, |
Redwood Coast Energy Authority

633 3" Street, Eureka, CA 95501
Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenerqy.org

MEETING AGENDA

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office November 20, 2017
828 7th St, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.
RCEA will accommodate those with special needs. Arrangements for people with disabilities who attend RCEA meetings

can be made in advance by contacting Ahn Fielding or front office staff at RCEA, 633 3 Street, Eureka, or by calling 269-
1700, or by e-mail at afielding@redwoodenergy.org, by noon the day of the meeting.

OPEN SESSION Call to Order

1. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral & written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted on one motion.
There is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the
Consent Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or
members of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

3.1 Approve Minutes of October 16, 2017 Reqular Board Meeting.

3.2 Approve Warrants.

3.3 Accept Financial Reports.

3.4 Approve Account Services Manager Job Description and Revised Organizational
Chart.

3.5 Approve Amendment No.1 to L ease Agreement for 633 3™ Street removing short-
notice cancelation clause and authorize the Executive Director to sign the
Amendment.

4. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

ltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

5. OLD BUSINESS

None.

6. NEW BUSINESS

6.1 Revisions to Board Operating Procedures

Adopt Revisions to RCEA Board of Directors Operating Guidelines.



LY pace o, &
RCEA November 20, 2017 Meeting Agenda SECHON_____.PAGE ho‘-——-—.
Page 2

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS (Confirm CCE Quorum)

Items under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA's CCE voting
provisions, with only CCE-participating jurisdictions voting on these matters with weighting voting as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

7. OLD CCE BUSINESS
7.1. Biomass Procurement Options Update

Continue discussion of procurement options.

8. NEW CCE BUSINESS

None.

END OF COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS

9. STAFF REPORTS
9.1 Director of Business Planning and Development
e Principle Power Update

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The Redwood Coast Energy Authority Board of Directors will meet in closed session to
consider the items listed under agenda item number 11, “Closed Session.”

10. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING THE CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S)

11. CLOSED SESSION

With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957(b)(1):

11.1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
11.1.1. Executive Director

12. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
13. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

14. ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
December 18, 2017 3:15 p.m.
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office
828 7th St, Eureka, CA 95501



SECTION LY PAGENO._J
Redwood Coast Energy Authority

633 3™ Street, Eureka, CA 95501
Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

MEETING MINUTES

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office October 16, 2017
828 7th St, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.
RCEA will accommodate those with special needs. Arrangements for people with disabilities who attend RCEA meetings

can be made in advance by contacting Ahn Fielding or front office staff at RCEA, 633 3" Street, Eureka, or by calling 269-
1700, or by e-mail at afielding@redwoodenergy.org, by noon the day of the meeting.

ROLL CALL
Board Chair Woo called the meeting to order at 3:15 p.m.
Present: Dean Glaser, Jack West, Austin Allison, Frank Wilson, Estelle Fennell, Sheri
Woo, Michael Winkler, Bobbi Ricca
Absent: Michael Sweeney

1. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES
None.

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral & written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

None.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted on one motion.
There is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the
Consent Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or
members of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

3.1 Approve Minutes of September 18, 2017 Reqular Board Meeting.

3.2 Approve Warrants.

3.3 Accept Financial Reports.

3.4 Approve 2017-2018 CivicSpark Program service agreement for $51.000 with the
Local Government Commission

Chair Woo pulled consent calendar item 3.3.

M/S/C: Winkler, Glaser: Approve consent calendar items 3.1, 3.2, and 3.4.

4. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Iltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

Chair Woo asked for clarification on revenue and expenditures: based on what
percentage of the fiscal year has passed versus the actual revenue and expenditures.



RCEA October 16, 2017 Meeting Agenda SECTION U"_‘ PAGE NC. E‘

Page 2

1) Revenue earned — Electricity Sales- Un-collectable accounts: percentage of overall
budget estimate set-aside placed in reserves to cover potential loss from unpaid
customer accounts. This amount gets adjusted over the year as actual payments are
received.

2) Expenses — Low Carbon Settlements — 617% above budget: an untypical structure of
one of RCEA’s hydropower transactions results in RCEA receiving large credits on
CAISO Energy invoices which are balanced out subsequent monthly bills. This structure
is beneficial to RCEA for cashflow purposes and overall actual total net income/expense
balance out accurately, but in results in budget line item totals that don’t accurately
reflect to true final costs for CAISO Energy and Low Carbon Settlements. Staff is going
to work with TEA to adjust and update how these transaction are reported so they align
with the budget.

3) Regulatory line item — 679% above budget — Some costs currently included in this
line item are budget for elsewhere and need to be recategorized.

M/S/C: Winkler, Wilson: Approve consent calendar item 3.3.

5.

OLD BUSINESS
None.

NEW BUSINESS
6.1 November 2017 Board of Directors Meeting Date

Change Date of November Board of Directors Meeting

There was discussion whether the board wanted to consider changing the November
board meeting date because of its proximity to the Thanksgiving holiday. It was
confirmed that there would be a quorum for the November meeting and though ED
Marshall will not be present at that meeting, the board concluded they could still conduct
board business in his absence. The board did not take action to change the meeting
date.

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS (Confirm CCE Quorum)

ltems under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA’s CCE voting
provisions, with only CCE-participating jurisdictions voting on these matters with weighting voting as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

7.

OLD CCE BUSINESS

7.1 Summary of Previous DG Fairhaven Discussion

Executive Director Marshall reviewed the staff report on item 7.1, concluding with a goal
to provide the board with additional information and options for consideration and
discussion at the next board meeting.

NEW CCE BUSINESS
8.1. Energy Risk Management Quarterly Report

Accept Energy Risk Management Quarterly Report



LY pcero, S
RCEA October 16, 2017 Meeting Agenda SECTION PAGE No.

Page 3

Jeff Fuller and Shehzad Wadalawala from The Energy Authority (TEA) provided a
Procurement and Risk Management quarterly report. Overall the CCE program is going
well. Renewable and non-fossil fuel targets are higher than projected, and other
program and budget targets are generally on track.

While the program is on track so far, there remain significant potential risk that need to
be managed, and RCEA will need to consider balancing procurement commitments with
ensuring reserves for potential price spikes or PCIA increases. 2018 budget headroom
is projected to tighten relative to 2017.

2017 headroom update (headroom is the gross available for RCEA to invest in program
expenditures, rate savings, biomass purchases, procuring RPS over just what the state
mandates, and zero carbon supply to get the non-fossil fuel component higher.):
January 2017 projection had a unit cost of $16.07 per MWh, whereas the October
(current) outlook is below the January projections with a unit cost at $13.81 per MWh,
equaling approximately $600,000 less than anticipated at the beginning of the year.

2018 Headroom — projecting lower headroom in 2018 due to projected higher energy
costs, higher resource adequacy prices, slightly higher CAISO charges, and a higher
PCIA charge — projecting a 21% bump in PCIA next year (21% is the equivalent of a
little over $5.50/MWh). Actual 2018 PCIA costs will not be known until January.

Reserves — Net bottom line and outlook for 2018: Assuming a repeat of high level
objectives next year as this year, 40% RPS-eligible renewable energy, 80% non-fossil-
fuel resources, and 2.7% customer rate discount on the generation rate. Based on
these parameters the current projection for 2018 reserve accumulation is $3.2mm, but
there are risks in these calculations due to uncertainly around the 2018 PCIA charge.
The probability that reserves would be at or above $2mm is 69% and the probability that
reserves could be at or below $0 is 5%. There is a material change clause in the
Humboldt Redwood Company power purchase agreement should projected annual
reserve accumulation dip below $2mm.

High PCIA scenario — reasons PCIA rates have gone up include the value of energy has
been declining for several years as well as the cost of renewables coming down. This
results in legacy PG&E contracts that must be remarketed being increasing out of
market prices, resulting in a loss that is recovered through the PCIA. With a high PCIA
scenario, annual and cumulative reserves would be slow growing until 2020 when 10U
legacy contracts start to expire.

Upcoming changes to procurement requirements: Contract for storage resource equal to
1% of peak load by 2020 and online by 2024. Effective 2021, 65% of renewable
generation supply must be contracted on a 10-year or greater term.

The importance of reserves was discussed, as there is a significant lag between paying
power supply costs, when the customer gets their bill, and when RCEA ultimately
receives payment. Reserves are required to pay those costs prior to receiving payment.
The baseline cashflow reserve required is approximately $6mm. Discussed
encouraging customer direct payment options.



RCEA October 16, 2017 Meeting Agenda SECTION LL’\ FAGE NC. (ﬂ
Page 4

The Energy Risk Management Quarterly Report will be posted on the Board of Directors
webpage.

M/S/C: Fennel, Ricca: Accept Energy Risk Management Quarterly Report.
Ayes: Ricca, Winkler, Allison, West, Glaser, Wilson, Fennell

Noes: none

Absent: Sweeney

Not Voting: Woo

8.2. Principle Power MOU

Approve Memorandum of Understanding and Intent to Cooperate with Principle
Power

Executive Director Marshall reviewed the agenda item 8.2 staff report
recommending approving an MOU and intent to cooperate with Principle Power,
which does not commit dollars or contracts, but formalizes a relationship to work
with Principle Power to engage the community and perhaps find a suitable site for
a local offshore wind project. A non-disclosure agreement associated with the
MOU was still in the process of legal review and approval.

Member Fennel asked how this MOU would take form, noting the importance of the
public being apprised of what RCEA is doing with respect to this project
exploration. The MOU provides a message to the public that RCEA is working with
them to try to identify projects which work in this community. She suggested
regular staff updates to the Board regarding activities taken place on this topic.
Executive Director Marshall noted on November 9 he and Principle Power will be
presenting to the HSU Sustainable Future Speakers’ Series.

The Board discussed the importance of being open and having open discussions
with the community regarding their concerns and ideas.

Joao Metelo, CEO of Principle Power, Kevin Banister, and Antione Peiffer spoke
on behalf of Principle Power, noting their interest in working with RCEA. The
offshore wind energy sector is a growing industry and Principle Power would like to
see a project closer to their home base of Emeryville, California.

M/S/C: Fennell, Wilson: Approve Memorandum of Understanding and Intent to
Cooperate with Principle Power, contingent upon legal counsel approval of the non-
disclosure statement.

Ayes: Ricca, Winkler, Allison, West, Glaser, Wilson, Fennell

Noes: none

Absent: Sweeney

Not Voting: Woo

8.3. Peak Day Pricing Program
Approve Extension of 2017 Peak Day Pricing Program Through 2018




RCEA October 16, 2017 Meeting Agenda SECTION l/l/\ : PAGE NG, —‘l/
Page 5 -

Staff member Andrea Alstone presented staff report on agenda item 8.3. Board Member
Winkler asked if RCEA would be establishing a Peak Day notification system. Ms. Alstone
confirmed RCEA would be providing peak day notifications to customers.

M/S/C: Fennell, Ricca: Approve Extension of 2017 Peak Day Pricing Program Through
2018 with the addition of notification services.

Ayes: Ricca, Winkler, Allison, West, Glaser, Wilson. Fennell

Noes: none

Absent: Sweeney
Not Voting: Woo

END OF COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS

9. STAFF REPORTS

9.1. Demand-side Management

Staff member Lou Jacobson provided an update on the Demand-side Management
program; 1) 2017 Implementation Update, and 2) Engagement with local trade
professionals.

His presentation will be posted on the Board of Directors webpage.
9.2. Executive Diregtor

Executive Director Matthew Marshall reported he attended the CalCCA annual
meeting in Riverside, CA. A central focus topic was discussing the upcoming PCIA
proceedings.

Professional Development: There was a recent 2-day all-staff training with Mary
Gelinas focused on internal communication, meeting effectiveness, and how to
improve communications internally and with the public.

Community Engagement: On November 9 Executive Director Marshall will be a
panelist in a Public Speakers’ series at HSU focused on new renewable
opportunities, such as microgrid projects. As staff member Lou Jacobson reported,
there will be a Lighting EXPO on Tuesday October 24. There was a Sustainable
Living EXPO in Arcata this past weekend which staff member Nancy Stephenson
and other staff tabled at. Pastels on the plaza was the weekend prior and a picture
of the square sponsored by RCEA was provided in the Executive Director’s report.

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The Redwood Coast Energy Authority Board of Directors will meet in closed session to
consider the items listed under agenda item number 11, “Closed Session.”

10. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING THE CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S)



RCEA October 16, 2017 Meeting Agenda SEGT ICN Lﬁ PAGE NO%;

Page 6 ——————

11. CLOSED SESSION

With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957(b)(1):

11.1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
11.1.1. Executive Director

12. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

13. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Board Chair Woo announced there was nothing to report from closed session.

14. ADJOURNMENT

Board Chair Woo adjourned the meeting at 6:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted: Ahn Fielding



. L .

‘ . SEGTION \ PAGE ‘\_Q_j.__
Redwood Region Economic Development Commission
Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka, California 95501

Phone 707.445.9651 Fax 707.445.9652 www.rredc.com

REDWOOD REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Regular meeting of the Board of Directors
At the Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka
November 27, 2017 at 6:30 pm
AGENDA

. Call to Order & Flag Salute

It Approval of Agenda and Minutes
A. Approval of Agenda for November 27, 2017
B. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting October 23, 2017

lil. Public Input for non-agenda items

IV.  ‘Program — Broadband in Humboldt County: State and Federal Issues Affecting Huimboldt
County Economic Development. Discussion of Telecommunications Reliability in

Humboldt County.
Sean McLaughlin - Executive Director, Access Humboldt and Connie Stewart — Executive

Director, California Center for Rural Policy

V. New Business
A. Consideration of position statements regarding Net Neutrality, Retirement of Legacy Copper

Telephone Networks, and AT&T Telecommunications Reliability in Humboldt County.

VL. Consent Calendar
A. Acceptance of Agency-wide Financial Reports: October 31, 2017

Vil.  Reports = No Action Required
A. Loan Portfolio Report: October 2017
B. Executive Director's Report

VIlI. Old Business
A. Update and Discussion on Providing Support for Digital 299 Broadband Project via

California IBank Program

IX. Member Reports

X. Agenda/Program Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings

Xi. Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission will, on request, make agendas available in
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation
thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or
accommiodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 445-9651.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Commission to make reasonable arrangements for

accommodations.
RREDC Citfes Arcata - Blue Lake - Eureka - Ferndale + Fortuaa * Rio Dell + Trinidad
Member Community Services Districts Humboldr - Manila - McKinleyville + Orick - Orleans - Redway * Willow Creek
Agencies Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District * Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District /
County of Humboldt - Hoopa Valley Tribe - Redwoods Community College District



